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EXPLANATORY NOTE
 
The purpose of this Amended Annual Report on Form 10-K/A is to amend Part I Items 1 and 4, Part II Items 5 and 7, Part III Items 10, 11 and 13, Part IV Item 15, Signatures, and
Exhibits 31 and 32 (together, the “Amended Items”) of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2009, which was filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) on April 16, 2010 (the “Original 10-K”)
 
The Amended Items have been amended and restated in their entirety to respond to comments issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission and to supplement and clarify
previous disclosures.  Except as stated herein, this Form 10-K/A does not reflect events occurring after the filing of the Original 10-K on April 16, 2010 and no attempt has been
made in this Annual Report on Form 10-K/A to modify or update other disclosures as presented in the Original 10-K. Accordingly, this Form 10-K/A should be read in
conjunction with the Original 10-K and our filings with the SEC subsequent to the filing of the Original 10-K.
 
No other changes have been made to the Original 10-K.
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PART I
 
ITEM 1.    BUSINESS
 
Iconic Brands, Inc., formerly Paw Spa, Inc. (“Iconic Brands”), was incorporated in the State of Nevada on October 21, 2005. Our plan was to provide mobile grooming and spa
services for cats and dogs. Our services were going to include bathing, hair cutting and styling, brushing/combing, flea and tick treatments, nail maintenance and beautification, ear
cleaning, teeth cleaning, hot oil treatments, and massage. We did not have any business operations and failed to generate any revenues.  We abandoned this business, as we lacked
sufficient capital resources.  On June 10, 2009, the Company acquired Harbrew Imports, Ltd. (“Harbrew New York”), a New York corporation incorporated on September 8, 1999
which was a wholly owned subsidiary of Harbrew Imports, Ltd. Corp. (“Harbrew Florida”), a Florida corporation incorporated on January 4, 2007.  On the Closing Date, pursuant
to the terms of the Merger Agreement, the Company issued to the designees of Harbrew New York 27,352,301 shares of our Common Stock at the Closing, or approximately 64%
of the 45,510,301 shares outstanding subsequent to the merger.  After the merger, Harbrew New York continued as the surviving company under the laws of the state of New York
and became the wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.
 
In anticipation of the merger between Iconic Brands, Inc. and Harbrew New York, on May 1, 2009 the Board of Directors and a majority of shareholders of Harbrew New York
approved the amendment of its Articles of Incorporation changing its name to Iconic Imports, Inc. (“Iconic Imports”). On June 22, 2009, this action was filed with the New York
State Department of State.
 
Prior to the merger on June 10, 2009, Iconic Brands had no assets, liabilities, or business operations.  Accordingly, the merger has been treated for accounting purposes as a
recapitalization by the accounting acquirer Harbrew New York/Iconic Imports and the financial statements reflect the assets, liabilities, and operations of Harbrew New
York/Iconic Imports from its inception on September 8, 1999 to June 10, 2009 and are combined with Iconic Brands thereafter.  Iconic Brands and its wholly-owned subsidiary
Harbrew New York/Iconic Imports are hereafter referred to as the “Company”.
 
The Company is a brand owner of self-developed alcoholic beverages.  Furthermore, the Company imports, markets and sells these beverages throughout the United States and
globally.
 
Effective June 10, 2009, prior to the merger, Harbrew Florida effected a 1-for-1,000 reverse stock split of its common stock, reducing the issued and outstanding shares of
common stock from 24,592,160 to 24,909, which includes a total of 317 shares resulting from the rounding of fractional shares.  All share information has been retroactively
adjusted to reflect this reverse stock split.
 
OUR BRANDS
 
Iconic markets specific beverage brands nationally and internationally. Some of the major brands marketed by us include:
 

oDanny DeVito’s Premium Limoncello
 
Limoncello is a popular Italian after-dinner drink, traditionally served ice-cold. Danny DeVito’s Premium Limoncello is a lemon liqueur produced in Southern Italy, mainly in the
region around the Gulf of Naples, the Amalfi coast and the Islands of Ischia and Capri, but also in Sicily, Sardinia and the Maltese island of Gozo. Danny DeVito’s Premium
Limoncello is produced exclusively using lemons from Sorrento, Italy, which are harvested and immediately processed in a distillery situated on the Sorrento peninsula. At the
October 2007 International Review of Spirits competition, this product was awarded a “Gold Medal” with 90 points and earned a rating of “Exceptional.” This international
competition is run by the Beverage Tasting Institute of Chicago, an independent corporation. Harbrew believes that, in the U.S. market, the potential of our Limoncello drink has
been virtually untapped. It also believes that Danny DeVito’s Premium Limoncello is the first “branded” product in an “unbranded” category. Harbrew has an exclusive perpetual
license agreement with Seven Cellos, LLC, Danny DeVito’s company, and, in accordance with that agreement, net profits are shared between us and Seven Cellos, LLC. For the
terms of that agreement, see “License Agreements” below.
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oGlen Master Single Malt Scotch Whisky
 
Glen Master Single Malt Scotch Whisky is a collection of single malt Scotch whiskies. Hand-picked, rather than randomly chosen, the Glen Master range of whiskies is the result
of hours of expert nosing. The character of Scotch whisky is influenced by many factors, but prime among these is the quality of the cask and the storage conditions in which the
whisky has been matured. Bottled at ambient temperature, the original style is enhanced with all the color coming naturally from the wood, as the whisky matures over the years.
Judging when the whisky has reached its peak of perfection is a rare expertise that we believe the makers of Glen Master Single Malt Scotch Whisky possess.
 

oSt. Andrews “The Champion” Whisky
 
St. Andrews “The Champion” Whisky is a 21-year old blended Scotch whisky that comes in a limited number decanter with each box individually numbered. St. Andrews
Beverages Limited, considered a master blender in the industry, has selected high quality malts and grain whiskies to create a marriage between these ingredients. The Champion
received 86 points and was awarded a “Silver Medal” at the January 2005 International Review of Spirits competition, run by the Beverage Tasting Institute of Chicago. St
Andrews whiskies, both single malt and blended, fit into our family of brands.
 

oBench 5 and Bench 15 Premium Scotch Whisky
 
Bench 5 Premium Scotch whisky is marketed as a well-matured and rounded five-year old Scotch whisky with a smooth mellow flavor. Our “celebrity brand partner” for this
Scotch is Johnny Bench, the hall of fame catcher. Following in the footsteps of Bench 5, we also introduced Bench 15 Premium Scotch whisky, a 15-year old Scotch whisky.
 
The territory and years remaining on the term of each of our brand’s exclusivity are as follows:
 
Brand  Territory  Remaining Term
     
Danny DeVito’s Premium Limoncello  Worldwide  unlimited
     
St. Andrews “The Champion” Scotch Whisky  North America  5 years
Bench 5 and 15 Scotch Whisky  Worldwide  unlimited
Glen Master Single Malt Scotch  Worldwide  unlimited
 
Each of the above licenses is renewable by its terms.
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GROWTH STRATEGY
 
Our objective is to continue to build a unique portfolio of global brands aimed at the premium market, with a primary focus on increasing both total and individual brand case
sales. To achieve this, we intend to focus on the following:
 

Increase market penetration of existing brands. The utilization of the existing distribution relationships, sales expertise and targeted marketing activities to achieve
growth and gain additional market share for the brands with retail stores, bars, restaurants and, ultimately, with the end consumers in the United States; adding experienced
salespeople in selected markets; increase sales to national chain accounts and begin to penetrate international markets.

 
Build brand awareness through marketing, advertising and promotional activities. Building brand campaigns that emphasize the “Gold Medal” awards from the
Beverage Tasting Institute of Chicago using advertising firms, billboards, print advertisements and in-store promotional materials, to increase consumer brand awareness.

 
Selectively add new brands to the portfolio. We intend to continue developing new brands and pursuing strategic relationships, joint ventures and, to a lesser extent,
acquisitions, to selectively expand the portfolio of brands. In particular, we will focus on our demonstrated ability to partner with celebrities to create unique brands that
reflect each celebrity’s image within their marketplace.

 
MARKETING STRATEGY
 
We are in the process of building our brands into the United States market. To achieve this end, we are focusing on penetrating select markets with the intention of influencing the
remainder of the country as a result. We believe that the key national markets in the United States for our products are New York, Florida, Texas, California, Illinois and
Massachusetts. We believe that creating brand awareness — both awareness of the brands, as well as the appropriate impression associated with them — in these select markets is
of the utmost importance, as these markets tend to be the opinion leaders for the country.
 
We intend to vigorously market our brands by utilizing a combination of both traditional media and non-traditional, Internet-specific methods and campaigns. Initially, marketing
is focused on the key national markets. Our marketing campaigns have four separate marketing objectives:
 

Create each brand, its placement and value in the marketplace;
 

Ensure a steady interest among distributors, wholesalers and both categories of retail outlets;
 

Create brand awareness and appetite in the mind of the consuming public; and
 

Penetrate throughout all key markets within the United States.
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DIRECT SALES STRATEGY
 
Within the spirits distribution industry, the key mode of sales generation is tied to a direct sales force for both the importer and distributor business lines. We intend to increase our
sales staff by adding four new sales people to our New York sales force. These salespeople will not only sell in the New York metropolitan market, but will assist in our national
exposure efforts.
 
During the next 12 months, we intend to dedicate additional people both to the New York sales force, as well as defined personnel for the national efforts. This national sales force
will target distributors in the key markets, as well as large secondary markets in the cities of Atlanta, Philadelphia, Dallas and Houston, among others.
 
DISTRIBUTION NETWORK
 
We believe that our distribution network and New York State wholesale license are among our competitive strengths. We believe that the rapid introduction of Danny DeVito’s
Premium Limoncello in the major markets with subsequent re-orders during the holiday season reinforces and further bolsters our confidence in our ability to bring new brands to
market and quickly establish them as brands of choice. Additionally, we believe the awards given by the Beverage Tasting Institute of Chicago for Danny DeVito’s Premium
Limoncello confirms our ability to not only develop new products, but to recognize the value of brands selected.
 
Domestic Distribution
 
General. Importers of distilled spirits in the United States must sell their products through a three-tier distribution system. An imported brand is first sold to a U.S. importer, which
then sells it to a network of distributors, or wholesalers, covering the United States, in either “open” states or “control states. In the 31 open states, the distributors are generally
large, privately-held companies. In the 19 control states, the states themselves function as the distributor, and suppliers like our company are regulated by these states. The
distributors and wholesalers, in turn, sell to the individual liquor retailers, such as liquor stores, restaurants, bars, supermarkets and other outlets in the states in which they are
licensed to sell beverage alcohol. In larger states such as New York, more than one distributor may handle a brand in separate geographical areas. We are a licensed wholesaler in
the state of New York, which gives us a competitive advantage in bringing a product to this large market in the shortest time possible. In control states, where liquor sales are
controlled by the state governments, importers must sell their products directly to the state liquor authorities, which also act as the distributors and either maintain control over the
retail outlets or license the retail sales function to private companies, while maintaining strict control over pricing and profit.
 
Importation. We own most of our brands or, by contract, have the exclusive right to act as the U.S. importer of the brands in our portfolio. We have both the federal importer and
wholesaler license required by the Alcohol and Tobacco Tax and Trade Bureau, a division of the U.S. Department of the Treasury, and a wholesale liquor license issued by New
York State. For those states in which we do not have a wholesale license, we use the services of distributors who have the proper licenses to distribute our products.
 
Wholesalers and Distributors. In the United States, we are required by law to use state licensed distributors or, in the control states, state-owned agencies performing this
function, to sell our brands to the various retail outlets. As a result, we are dependent on them not only for sales, but also for product placement and retail store penetration. We do
not have distribution agreements or minimum sales requirements with any of our U.S. alcohol distributors and they are under no obligation to place our products or market our
brands. In addition, all of them also distribute the products and brands of our competitors. To that end, the fostering and maintaining of relationships with the distributors is a key to
introducing and maintaining product placements and growth within each marketplace.
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PUBLIC RELATIONS, ADVERTISING AND TRADE SHOWS
 
We intend to engage a public relations firm to ensure proper press coverage in spirits industry trade publications. Our public relations efforts will target influential retail outlets,
such as popular clubs and restaurants, as well as very specific “image makers,” who have influence on popular trends.
 
We pursue a selective advertising campaign to promote our brands in appropriate trade magazines such as Market Watch, Wine Spectator, Wine Enthusiast, Penthouse, US
magazine, People, Vanity Fair (November and December 2008) and Details (November and December 2008), as well as select influential consumer magazines, such as New York,
Time-Out and InStyle, and the city’s high-volume tabloid newspapers. In future years, these print campaigns will be augmented by radio and outdoor buys in key marketplaces. We
believe that these placements represent value-added purchases as they have lower cost per thousand page impressions (CPMs) and can more fully illustrate the value and quality of
our products.
 
 We intend to expand on our interactive and integrated corporate website, www.iconicbrandsusa.com, to include a fully interactive demonstration of our brands, highlighting all the
specific advantages of our offerings. We are pursuing a method by which a “virtual store” can be established to aid the distributors and retail customers in placing orders and
helping them to monitor their inventories of our products.
 
Trade shows are and will remain an integral part of our marketing concept for the purpose of attracting both distributors and wholesalers. In particular, marketing investments are
budgeted for several industry-specific expositions. We believe that by attending these annual events, it will aid in establishing our brands and our company as an emergent leader
for the industry.
 
 
BONDED WAREHOUSE
 
By maintaining our own bonded warehousing facilities, we gain added flexibility in managing our inventory. Bonded warehouses carry different classifications. One classification
allows a bonded warehouse proprietor/company to only warehouse the product that is owned by the proprietor/company and not the property of other companies. The other
classification allows a bonded warehouse proprietor/company to both warehouse the product that is owned by the proprietor/company and the property of other companies. We
maintain both levels of this license. We believe the fact that one’s inventory is in its own facility where the primary business is conducted gives our company flexibility. We can
move product from an “In Bond” condition to a “Tax Paid” condition under our own timeline due to our direct control of the inventory under our company’s own roof. Another
advantage of a company having its own bonded warehouse and being in the import and distribution of alcoholic beverages is the company from time to time will run marketing
programs that require the product to be enhanced by adding what is referred to as a “value added component” to it. One such example is the addition of gift packaging and then
marketing the product as a value-added gift pack. Without a bonded warehouse license under its own control, a company seeking to offer such value-added gift pack would not
only have to pay an outside co-packer to perform the manipulation, but would have to pay the federal FET tax in advance of shipping the product to distributors or the trade.
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Another advantage is the positive impact having a bonded warehouse has on the company’s cash flow. The company will keep the majority or bulk of the inventory it possesses in
an “In Bond” condition until such time as it needs the inventory for sale. The company would then instruct its custom broker to pay the duty on a designated amount of inventory
and move the inventory from an “In Bond” status to a “Tax Paid” condition. This process actually gives the company an additional ten or more days of cash flow until the ACH,
the automatic transfer of the tax from the company’s account to the federal government. The federal excise tax can significantly impact a company’s cash flow in terms of actual
dollars. On a standard nine-liter case of 80-proof Scotch Whiskey, which costs a company approximately $50 per case, the federal excise tax is approximately $30 per case.
 
LICENSE AGREEMENTS
 
On April 26, 2007, we entered into an exclusive License Agreement with Seven Cellos, LLC, pursuant to which we were granted a limited license to certain rights in and to Danny
DeVito’s name, likeness and biography for use by us in connection with Danny DeVito’s Premium Limoncello. The term of the agreement continues in perpetuity unless the
agreement is terminated upon prior notice. In consideration for the license, we agreed to pay royalties as follows: 5% of net profits to Behr Abrahamson & Kaller, LLP and a
payment of 50% of the remaining net profits to Danny DeVito. In addition, we granted a warrant to purchase 100,000 shares of our Common Stock to Mr. DeVito, for an exercise
price equal to the lower of $1.00 per share or 85% of the 30-day average bid and ask price prior to exercise. We also granted a warrant to Behr Abrahamson to purchase 20,000
shares of our Common Stock for an exercise price equal to the lower of $1.00 per share or 85% of the 30-day average bid and ask price prior to exercise. Danny DeVito agreed to
use reasonable efforts to be available for a reasonable number of promotional appearances during each consecutive 12-month period, the duration of which will not exceed two
days. Pursuant to the agreement, Mr. DeVito granted us a right of first refusal for a period of five years to license any other liquor, spirit or alcoholic beverage which Danny may
determine to endorse or develop. A condition precedent to Danny DeVito’s performance under the agreement is our applying for a trademark for the brand name “Danny DeVito’s
Premium Limoncello,” with Danny DeVito being designated as a 50% co-owner of the such trademark. We applied for the trademark on April 10, 2007 (trademark application
number 377/152,934), which application is currently being reviewed by the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.
 
Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, we entered into an Addendum to the License Agreement whereby we granted Danny Devito the right to receive notice and provide his prior
written consent for any material contract that we enter into. Failure to obtain such consent will permit Danny Devito to terminate the License Agreement.
 
On January 15, 2010, we entered into an exclusive License Agreement with Tony Siragusa, pursuant to which we were granted a limited license to certain rights in and to Tony
Siragusa’s name, likeness and biography for use by us in connection with Tony Siragusa’s YO Vodka.  The term of the agreement is four (4) years.  In consideration for the license,
we agreed to distribute net profits of the venture as follows: 42.5 % to the company, 42.5% to the licensor, 10% to William Morris Endeavor Entertainment, LLC and 5% to Brian
Hughes.  In addition, we issued 250,000 shares of the company’s common stock, and warrants to purchase 500,000 shares of our Common Stock at a price of $1.00, and a warrant
to purchase 500,000 shares of our Common Stock at a price of $1.50. Tony Siragusa agreed to use reasonable efforts to be available for a reasonable number of promotional
appearances during each consecutive 12-month period, the duration of which will not exceed six days.  A condition precedent to Tony Siragusa’s performance under the agreement
is our applying for a trademark for the brand name “Yo Vodka,” with Licensor being designated as a 50% co-owner of such trademark. We applied for the trademark on March 9,
2010 (trademark application number 77747523), which application is currently being reviewed by the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.
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MANUFACTURING AGREEMENTS
 
In August 2007, we entered into an Exclusive Manufacturing Agreement with Fagema Sorrento Delizie Di De Luca Antonino and Scala Antonino, an Italian corporation. The term
of the agreement is for five years from August 18, 2007, and it automatically renews for additional, consecutive five-year terms unless either party gives written notice at least 90
days prior to the end of the then current term. In return for Fagema Sorrento Delizie Di De Luca Antonino and Scala Antonino’s manufacture and shipping of Danny DeVito’s
Premium Limoncello, we pay between $65 and $68 per case of 12 750-ml. bottles. This is an exclusive contract where Fagema Sorrento Delizie Di De Luca Antonino and Scala
Antonino is bound to not manufacture or sell Danny DeVito’s Premium Limoncello to anyone other than us, and we are bound to not purchase Danny DeVito’s Premium
Limoncello from any other manufacturer.
 
COMPETITION
 
We compete on the basis of the strength of our quality, price, brand recognition and distribution. The premium brands compete with other alcoholic beverages for consumer
purchases and for shelf space in retail stores, restaurant presence and wholesaler attention. In addition to the six major companies listed below, we compete with numerous
international producers and distributors of beverage alcohol products, many of which have greater resources than are currently available to us. According to Beverage Media, over
the past ten years, the U.S. distilled spirits industry has undergone dramatic consolidation and realignment of brands and brand ownership. The number of major spirit importers in
the United States has significantly declined due to mergers and brand ownership changes and consolidation. While historically there were a substantial number of companies
owning one or more major brands, today there are six major companies: Diageo PLC, Pernod Ricard SA, Bacardi Ltd., Brown-Forman Corp., Fortune Brands Inc. and
Constellation Brands. We believe that we are in a better position to partner with small to mid-size brands in that we can make quicker decisions and move to market faster than
these larger organizations.
 
GOVERNMENT REGULATION
 
We hold several federal beverage alcohol permits and are subject to the jurisdiction of the Federal Alcohol Administration Act (27 C.F.R. Parts 19, 26, 27, 28, 29, 31, 71 and 252),
U.S. Customs Laws (U.S.C. Title 19), Internal Revenue Code of 1986 ( Subtitles E and F), and the Alcoholic Beverage Control Laws of all 50 states. The Alcohol and Tobacco
Tax and Trade Bureau of the United States Treasury Department regulate the spirits industry with respect to production, blending, bottling, sales and advertising and transportation
of alcohol products. Each state regulates the advertising, promotion, transportation, sales and distribution of alcohol products within its jurisdiction. We are required to conduct
business in the United States only with holders of licenses to import, warehouse, transport, distribute and sell spirits.
 
Labeling of spirits is also regulated in many markets, varying from health warning labels to importer identification, alcohol strength and other consumer information. Specific
warning statements related to risks of drinking beverage products are required to be included on all beverage alcohol products sold in the United States.
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In the so-called control states, the state liquor commissions act in place of distributors and decide which products are to be purchased and offered for sale in their respective states.
Products are selected for purchase and sale through listing procedures that are generally made available to new products only at periodically-scheduled listing interviews. Products
not selected for listings can only be purchased by consumers through special orders, if at all. The following states are control states: Alabama, Idaho, Iowa, Maine, Michigan,
Mississippi, Montana, New Hampshire, North Carolina, Ohio, Oregon, Pennsylvania, Utah, Vermont, Virginia, Washington, West Virginia and Wyoming. In addition,
Montgomery County in Maryland is a controlled county. The distribution of alcohol-based beverages is also subject to extensive taxation at both the federal and state level.
 
The industry is subject to regulations that limit or preclude certain persons with criminal records from serving as our officers or directors. Certain regulations prohibit parties with
consumer outlet ownership from becoming officers, directors or substantial shareholders. We believe that we are in material compliance with all applicable federal, state and other
regulations. We operate in a highly regulated industry which may be subject to more stringent interpretations of existing regulations. Future costs of compliance with changes in
regulations could be significant.
 
We are primarily an importer of distilled spirits produced outside the United States. Adverse effects of regulatory changes are more likely to materially affect earnings and our
competitive market position rather than capital expenditures. Capital expenditures in the spirits industry are normally associated with either production facilities or brand
acquisition costs. Because we are not a U.S. producer, changes in regulations affecting production facility operations may indirectly affect the costs of the brands we purchase for
resale, but we would not anticipate any resulting material adverse impact upon our capital expenditures.
 
  Our industry is dominated by global conglomerates with international brands. Therefore, to the extent that more restrictive marketing and sales regulations are adopted in the
future, or excise taxes and customs duties are increased, our earnings could be materially adversely affected. Large international conglomerates have far greater financial resources
than we do and would be better able to absorb increased compliance costs.
 
EMPLOYEES
 
As of December 31, 2009, we have 9 full-time employees. Our employees are not represented by any collective bargaining agreement, and we have never experienced a work
stoppage. We believe we have good relations with our employees. Following our planned funding and expansion later this year, we intend to hire an additional 5 employees. These
employees will perform functions in the areas of in-house compliance, accounting, sales, marketing, warehousing and deliveries.
 
CONSULTANTS
 
On January 4 2010, an advisory engagement letter was entered into between the Company and CorProminence LLC, under which CorProminence would provide services for
management consulting, business advisory, shareholder information and public relations.  In return for the services contemplated, the Company issued 300,000 restricted shares of
the company’s common stock
 
On March 16, 2010, an amendment was made to the agreement with Cresta Capital Strategies LLC extending their services for 12 months. In consideration of this extension, the
company will issue 2,000,000 shares of common stock and reduce the price of their warrants to twenty-five (.25) cents.

 
12



Table of Contents
 
ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
 
The Company is a smaller reporting company, as defined by Rule 229.10(f) and need not comply with the requirements of this Item.
 
ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
 
There are no unresolved staff comments.
 
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
 
The Company occupied its facilities in Freeport, New York up until March 2009 under a month to month agreement at a monthly rent of $14,350.  In March 2009, the Company
moved its facilities to Lindenhurst, New York pursuant to a three year lease agreement providing for annual rentals ranging from $85,100 to $90,283.  Provided certain conditions
are met, the Company has an option to renew the lease for an additional two years at annual rentals ranging from $92,991 to $95,781.
 
ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
 
From time to time, we may become involved in various lawsuits and legal proceedings which arise in the ordinary course of business.  Litigation is subject to inherent
uncertainties, and an adverse result in these or other matters may arise from time to time that may harm our business.
 
On or about January 24, 2008, Connecticut Container Corp., a wholesale distributor of packaging materials, initiated litigation against us in the Supreme Court of the State of New
York in Nassau County (Docket No. 1458/08).  The plaintiff had demanded payment of an aggregate of $31,693 in connection with certain amounts allegedly owed by us.  On
August 7, 2008, we settled the litigation for the full amount. We agreed to pay one-half of such amount on each of August 20, 2008 and September 20, 2008.  We paid $24,500 and
due to non-payment of the remaining amount a judgment for $7,443 was issued against us by the court.
 
On February 14, 2008, Chester Stewart, an individual, initiated a lawsuit in the State of Connecticut Superior Court (Docket No. D.N. HHD CV08-5018180S) alleging breach of a
promissory note in the amount of $100,000. A judgment was entered in Connecticut, and will be defended when the action is entered in New York. .
 
On or about July 24, 2008, Elite Marketing Concepts, a wholesale distributor of wine, initiated litigation against us in the Supreme Court of New York in Nassau County (Docket
No. 08-009338).  The plaintiff has demanded payment in the amount of $32,270 for goods sold and delivered to us by the plaintiff.  On August 15, 2008, we reached an agreement
to pay Elite $29,000 in two equal payments.  We paid the first $14,500 and due to non-payment a judgment was issued against us on June 5, 2009 in the amount of $9,679. On May
6, 2009 a payment of $4,129.12 was made bringing the balance to $2,549.88
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On October 23, 2008, Thermo Plastic Tech, Inc., a manufacturer of thermo plastic material, initiated litigation against us in the Superior Court of New Jersey Law Division, Civil
Part, Union County (Docket No. UNN-L-3062-08). The plaintiff has demanded payment in the amount of $30,292 for goods sold and delivered to us by the plaintiff. The court
issued a judgment against us in the amount of $30,292. A settlement agreement was reached in the amount of $12,500; final releases will be given with the last payment of $2,500
on June 1, 2010.
 
On August 5, 2009, The Estate of Mercer K Ellington initiated litigation claiming the company used the name Duke Ellington without permission. The company has retained
counsel, answered all the accusations, and has initiated a counter claim against the estate.
 
On August 12, 2009, Christina Hsu, a former employee, initiated an action claiming the company owed wages and consulting services in the amount of $20,000. The company has
retained counsel and answered all the pleadings.
 
On October 28, 2009, Contri Spumanti S.P.A., a producer of wine, initiated litigation against us in the Supreme Court of the State of New York County of Suffolk (index # 09-
43045). The plaintiff has demanded payment the amount of $37,516.14 for goods sold by the company. The Court issued a judgment in the amount of the claim. A settlement
agreement was reached for the amount claimed for 8 payments of a similar amount commencing April 1, 2010.
 
On October 29, 2009, Fred and Joseph Scalamandre Real Estate initiated litigation claiming non-payment of rent in the amount of $238,000 plus interest and fees for a specific
time period. The company has recognized the total obligation on its books as of September 30, 2009, and has retained counsel to file an answer.
 
On November 4, 2009, Toyota Motor Credit Corporation initiated litigation in the amount of $17,104.09 claiming a default on the lease of an automobile. The company has
retained counsel, and has answered all the pleadings.
 
We believe that the ultimate resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or operations. Apart from the legal proceedings noted in
the previous paragraphs, we are not party to any legal proceedings, nor are we aware of any contemplated or pending legal proceedings against us.
 
ITEM 4. (REMOVED AND RESERVED)
 
None.
 
PART II
 
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY

SECURITIES
 
Market Information
 
We have three classes of equity securities: (i) common stock, par value $.00001 per share, 44,810,411 shares of which were outstanding as of December 31, 2009, (ii) Series A
preferred stock, par value $.00001 per share of which 1 share was outstanding as of December 31, 2009, and (iii) Series B preferred stock, stated value $2.00 per share of which
916,603 shares were outstanding as of December 31, 2009.
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Our common stock has been quoted on the OTC Bulletin Board under the symbol "ICNB.OB" since July 2009.
 
The table below sets forth the high and low bid prices for our common stock for the period indicated based on reports of transactions on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board and
the NASDAQ Capital Market. Such prices reflect inter-dealer prices, without retail markup, markdowns or commissions and may not necessarily represent actual transactions.
 
Price Information  
Financial Quarter Ended  High  Low 
September 30, 2009   0.60   0.25  
December 31, 2009   0.45   0.07  
 
Holders
 
As of March 31, 2010, there were approximately 362 shareholders of record of our common stock. This does not reflect the number of persons or entities who held stock in
nominee or "street" name through various brokerage firms.
 
Holders of common stock are entitled to share in all dividends that the board of directors, in its discretion, declares from legally available funds. In the event of liquidation,
dissolution or winding up, each outstanding share entitles its holder to participate pro rata in all assets that remain after payment of liabilities and after providing for each class of
stock, if any, having preference over the common stock. Holders of our common stock have no pre-emptive rights, no conversion rights and there are no redemption provisions
applicable to our common stock.
 
Dividends
 
We have not declared dividend on our common stock during the last two fiscal years or the subsequent interim period nor do we anticipate paying any in the foreseeable future.
Furthermore, we expect to retain any future earnings to finance its operations and expansion. The payment of cash dividends in the future will be at the discretion of our Board of
Directors and will depend upon our earnings levels, capital requirements, any restrictive loan covenants and other factors the Board considers relevant.
 
Securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation plans
 
We do not have any equity compensation plans.
 
Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities; Use of Proceeds from Registered Securities
 
The following unregistered securities were issued by the Company during the past three years:
 
On January 15, 2008, the Company issued a total of 125 shares of common stock each to Michael H. Ference and Richard A. Freeman in consideration for legal services
rendered, valued in the aggregate amount of $25,000.
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On July 14, 2008, the Company issued a total of 1,600 shares of the Company’s common stock to Bentley Asset Invesment Group, Inc, and New Century Capital Consultants,
Inc. (the “Consultants”), , pursuant to Consulting Agreements between the Company and the Consultants, in consideration for services rendered, valued in the amount of
$160,000.
 
On August 8, 2008, the Company issued 2,731 shares of common stock to its Richard J. DeCicco, its Chief Executive Officer in consideration of services rendered, valued in the
amount of $273,096.
 
On August 8, 2008, the Company issued a total of 1,050 shares of common stock to The DeVito  Family Trust DTD and the DeVito Children’s Trust of 1988 in consideration of
services rendered, valued in the amount of $105,000.
 
On August 11, 2008, the Company issued 2,000 shares of the it’s common stock to MLF Group, LLC, a consulting firm pursuant the Financial Consulting Agreement dated July
31, 2008 between MLF Group LLC and the Company, in consideration for services rendered valued in the amount of $200,000.
 
Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, On June 10, 2009, the Company issued 27,352,301 shares of common stock to the designees of Harbrew New York.  Of this amount:
 
1) 24,909 shares were issued to Harbrew Florida stockholders;
 
2) 19,634,112 shares of common stock were issued to Company management and personnel for services rendered, including 15,972,359 shares to the Richard J. DeCicco,

the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, 100,000 shares to the William Blacker the Company’s Chief Financial Officer, and 2,586,753 shares to Donald Chadwell. The
estimated value of the services rendered is $1,963,411 and 850,000 shares to eight employees, and 125,000 shares to a law firm,

 
3) 2,086,973 shares of common stock valued at $208,697 were issued to Danny DeVito and affiliates for services;
 
4) 4,606,307 shares of common stock were issued to noteholders in satisfaction of $2,125,625 of debt and $177,529 of accrued interest; and
 
5) 1,000,000 shares of common stock were issued to Capstone as part of the Termination Agreement dated June 5, 2009, between the Harbrew Imports Ltd and Capstone

Business Credit LLC and Capstone Capital Group, LLC.
 
Pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement, the Company issued 1 share of Series A Preferred Stock valued at $100,000 to Richard J. DeCicco, the Company’s Chief
Executive Officer for services rendered, valued in the amount of $100,000.  The 1 share of Series A Preferred Stock entitles the holder to two (2) votes for every share of
Common Stock deemed outstanding and has no conversion or dividend rights. 
 
All securities issued pursuant to the Merger Agreement were issued based on an exemption under Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.
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Pursuant to the terms of the Termination Agreement dated June 5, 2009, between the Harbrew Imports Ltd and Capstone Business Credit LLC and Capstone Capital Group, LLC,
the Company issued 916,603 shares of Series B Preferred Stock valued at $1,833,206 to Capstone Capital Group I, LLC. Each share of the Series B Preferred Stock has a
liquidation preference of $2.00 per share, has no voting rights, and is convertible into one share of Common Stock at the lower of (1) $2.00 per share or, (2) the volume weighted
average price per share for the 20 trading days immediately prior to the conversion date.
 
In the three months ended September 30, 2009, a total of $122,500 of debt and $28,147 of accrued interest was converted into a total of 300,110 shares of Company common
stock.
 
On August 19, 2009, we completed a private placement offering in the aggregate amount of $500,000 from an accredited investor through the sale of (a) 1,000,000 shares of its
common stock, par value $0.0001, with a per share purchase price of $0.50 per share; (b) a Class I Common Stock Purchase Warrant to purchase an aggregate of 100% of the
number of shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $1.00 per share, exercisable for a period of five years; and (c) a Class J Common Stock Purchase Warrant to
purchase an aggregate of 100% of the number of shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $1.50 per share, exercisable for a period of five years. Proceed from the sale
of the securities were used for working capital purposes.
 
On October 6, 2009, the Company issued 1,000,000 shares of its common stock to Brady Middleditch, pursuant to a one month Consulting Agreement for financial services,
valued in the amount of $200,000.
 
Subsequent Issuances of Common Stock
 
On January 6 and 13, 2010, the Company issued a total of 200,000 shares of common stock, 100,000 five year warrants exercisable at $0.22 per share, and 100,000 five year
warrants exercisable at $0.23 per share, along with two promissory notes in the amount of $110,000 each (one due March 31, 2010 and one due May 31, 2010), to Marvin
Mermelstein in exchange for a $200,000 loan.  The fair value of the common stock ($45,000) and warrants ($33,930), along with the $20,000 discount, were recorded as debt
discounts, which are being amortized over the terms of the notes as interest expense.  The warrants were valued using the Black-Scholes option pricing model and the following
assumptions: risk free interest rates of 2.6% and 2.55%, volatility of 100%, and terms of five years.
 
On January 15 and 25, 2010 the Company issued 152,546 shares of common stock, and 250,000 warrants to three accredited investors pursuant to convertible promissory notes,
in the aggregate amount of $62,500 plus accrued interest of $13,773. The notes were converted at the rate of $0.50 per share and the warrants were exercised at the price of
$$1.00 and $1.50.
 
Pursuant to the Exclusive License Agreement dated January 15, 2010, between the Company and Tony Siragusa, the Company was granted a limited license to certain rights in and
to Tony Siragusa’s name, likeness and biography for use by the Company in connection with Tony Siragusa’s YO Vodka. In consideration for such uses, the Company issued
250,000 shares of its common stock, warrants to purchase 500,000 shares of our Common Stock at an exercise price of $1.00 per share, and warrants to purchase 500,000 shares
of our Common Stock at an exercise price of $1.50. We did not generate any proceeds from the issuance of the securities.  The shares were issued under Section 4(2) of the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended.
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On February 24, 2010, the Company issued 300,000 shares of common stock to CorProminence LLC, in consideration for services rendered pursuant to the Consulting
Agreement dated January 4, 2010. The $69,000 fair value of the common stock at date of issuance was expensed in full in the three months ended March 31, 2010 and included
in professional fees.
 
On March 16, 2010, the Company issued 2,000,000 shares of common stock to Cresta Capital Strategies LLC in consideration for services rendered pursuant to a one year
extension of the Consulting Agreement dated March 16, 2010. The fair value of the common stock ($350,000) and warrants ($246,000) at date of issuance was capitalized as a
prepaid expense (see note 4) and is being amortized over the one year term as professional fees. The warrants were valued using the Black-Scholes option pricing model and the
following assumptions: risk free interest rate of 2.37%, volatility of 100%, and term of five years.
 
 These securities are issued in reliance on the exemption under Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Act”). These securities qualified for exemption under
Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933 since the issuance securities by us did not involve a public offering. The offering was not a “public offering” as defined in Section 4(2)
due to the insubstantial number of persons involved in the deal, size of the offering, manner of the offering and number of securities offered. We did not undertake an offering in
which we sold a high number of securities to a high number of investors. In addition, these shareholders had the necessary investment intent as required by Section 4(2) since
they agreed to and received share certificates bearing a legend stating that such securities are restricted pursuant to Rule 144 of the 1933 Securities Act. This restriction ensures
that these securities would not be immediately redistributed into the market and therefore not be part of a “public offering.” Based on an analysis of the above factors, we have
met the requirements to qualify for exemption under Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933 for this transaction.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
 
The Company qualifies as a smaller reporting company, as defined by Rule 229.10(f)(1) and is not required to provide the information required by this Item.
 
ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.
 
The following discussion is an overview of the important factors that management focuses on in evaluating our business, financial condition and operating performance and should
be read in conjunction with the financial statements included in this Annual Report.  This discussion contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and
uncertainties.  Actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward looking statements as a result of any number of factors.

Overview

Prior to the consummation of the Merger Agreement, Harbrew New York was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Harbrew Florida.  Harbrew Florida was incorporated in the state of
Florida on January 4, 2007, under the former name Stassi Harbrew Imports Corp., pursuant to the Bankruptcy Court Approved Reorganization Plan for the Stassi Interaxx, Inc.
(“Stassi”) reorganization confirmed on December 20, 2006. On May 17, 2007, Harbrew Florida acquired Harbrew New York, a New York corporation incorporated on September
8, 1999 engaged in importing and wholesaling spirits, wine and beer.  As a result, Harbrew New York became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Harbrew Florida.

On June 10, 2009, Merger Sub, Harbrew Florida, Harbrew New York and we entered into a Merger Agreement which resulted in Harbrew New York becoming our wholly owned
subsidiary (the “Merger”).  The Merger was accomplished by means of a Merger Agreement in which Harbrew New York merged with and into Merger Sub and each share of
Harbrew’s common stock issued and outstanding immediately prior to the closing of the Merger was converted into one share of Iconic Brands’ common stock.  Under the terms of
the Merger Agreement, Harbrew New York became our wholly owned subsidiary and each share of Harbrew’s common stock issued and outstanding immediately prior to the
closing of the Merger was converted into one share of Iconic Brands’ common stock

Prior to the merger on June 10, 2009, we had no assets, liabilities, or business operations.  Accordingly, the merger has been treated for accounting purposes as a recapitalization by
the accounting acquirer, Harbrew New York, and the financial statements reflect the assets, liabilities, and operations of Harbrew New York from its inception on September 8,
1999 to June 10, 2009 and us thereafter.  References to our company are with respect to Harbrew New York to June 10, 2009 and us thereafter.
 
 
We are in the business of importing and wholesaling spirits, wine and beer to distributors in the United States on a national basis and to retail licensees both on and off premise in
New York, through our wholesale license.  We are federally licensed, maintaining licenses to both import and sell to wholesale licensed distributors in 51 markets in the United
States.  In addition to the federal import and wholesale licenses, we maintain a federal customs bonded facility license for our premises in Lindenhurst, New York.  Within the
licensing category, we also maintain a New York State wholesale license and a New York State warehousing license, permitting us to warehouse products of other companies.

 Our brands include, among others, Danny DeVito’s Premium Limoncello, Glen Master Single Malt Scotch Whisky, St. Andrews “The Champion” Whisky, Bench 5 and Bench 15
Premium Scotch Whisky. Our objective is to continue building a distinctive portfolio of global premium and celebrity brands. We have shifted our focus from a volume-oriented
approach to a profit-centric focus. To achieve this, we continue to seek to:
 
 • increase revenues from existing brands. We are focusing our existing distribution relationships, sales expertise and targeted marketing activities to concentrate on our

more profitable brands by expanding our domestic and international distribution relationships to increase the mutual benefits of concentrating on our most profitable
brands, while continuing to achieve brand recognition and growth and gain additional market share for our brands within retail stores, bars and restaurants, and thereby
with end consumers;

 • improve value chain and manage cost structure. We have undergone a comprehensive review and analysis of our supply chain and cost structure both on a company-
wide and brand-by-brand basis. We further intend to map, analyze and redesign our purchasing and supply systems to reduce costs in our current operations and achieve
profitability in future operations;

 • selectively add new premium brands to our portfolio. We intend to continue developing new brands and pursuing strategic relationships, joint ventures and acquisitions
to selectively expand our premium brand portfolio, particularly by capitalizing on and expanding our already demonstrated partnering capabilities. Our criteria for new
brands focuses on underserved areas of the beverage alcohol marketplace, while examining the potential for direct financial contribution to our company and the
potential for future growth based on development and maturation of agency brands. We will evaluate future acquisitions and agency relationships on the basis of their
potential to be immediately accretive and their potential contributions to our objectives of becoming profitable and further expanding our product offerings. We expect
that future acquisitions, if consummated, would involve some combination of cash, debt and the issuance of our stock; and

 • cost containment. We have taken significant steps to reduce our costs. Even though we had a significant increase in selling, general and administrative expense, which
was the direct result of the stock based compensation issued in connection with the Merger, during the year ended December 2009, the Company had a reduction in
expenses relating to administrative, compensation and benefits, occupancy and warehousing, travel and entertainment, and permits. Efforts to reduce expenses further
continue. In particular, all brand expenditures with the exception of Limoncello have been either curtailed or eliminated. This practice will continue until additional
equity is raised for the Company.

 
Operations overview
 
We generate revenue through the sale of our products to our network of wholesale distributors or, in control states, state-owned agencies, and to retail outlets. In the U.S., our sales
price per case includes excise tax and import duties, which are also reflected in a corresponding increase in our cost of sales. Most of our international sales are sold “in bond”,
with the excise taxes paid by our customers upon shipment, thereby resulting in lower relative revenue as well as a lower relative cost of sales, although some of our United
Kingdom sales are sold “tax paid”, as in the United States. The difference between sales and net sales principally reflects adjustments for various distributor incentives.

 
19



 

Our gross profit is determined by the prices at which we sell our products, our ability to control our cost of sales, the relative mix of our case sales by brand and geography and the
impact of foreign currency fluctuations. Our cost of sales is principally driven by our cost of procurement, bottling and packaging, which differs by brand, as well as freight and
warehousing costs. [We purchase certain products, such as the Limoncello and Scotch Whiskey, as finished goods. For other products, such as the planned Siragusa Vodka,, we
will purchase the components, including the distilled spirits, bottles and packaging materials, and have arrangements with third parties for bottling and packaging. U.S. sales
typically have a higher absolute gross margin than in other markets, as sales prices per case are generally higher in the U.S. than elsewhere, in addition, domestically sourced
components do not have the disadvantage of a weak US dollar versus the cost of sourcing from the EEC.
 
Selling expense principally includes advertising and marketing expenditures and compensation paid to our executive officers and sales personnel. Our selling expense, as a
percentage of sales and per case, is higher than that of our competitors because of our brand development costs, and level of marketing expenditures  versus our relatively small
base of case sales and sales volumes. However, we believe that maintaining an infrastructure capable of supporting future growth is the correct long-term approach for us.
 
While we expect the absolute level of selling expense to increase in the coming years, we expect selling expense as a percentage of revenues and on a per case basis to decline, as
our volumes expand and our sales team sells a larger number of brands.
 
General and administrative expense relates to corporate and administrative functions that support our operations and includes administrative payroll, occupancy and related
expenses and professional services. We expect general and administrative expense in fiscal 2010 to decrease from fiscal 2009 primarily due to the reduction in stock based
compensation and other expenses, as we continue to control core spending. We expect our general and administrative expense as a percentage of sales to decline due to economies
of scale.
 
We expect to increase our case sales in the U.S. and internationally over the next several years through organic growth, and through the extension of our product line via line
extensions, acquisitions and distribution agreements. We will seek to maintain liquidity and manage our working capital and overall capital resources during this period of
anticipated growth to achieve our long-term objectives, although there is no assurance that we will be able to do so.
 
Our growth strategy is based upon partnering with other brands, acquiring smaller and emerging brands and growing existing brands. To identify potential partner and acquisition
candidates we plan to rely on our management’s industry experience and our extensive network of industry contacts. We also plan to maintain and grow our U.S. and international
distribution channels so that we are more attractive to spirits companies who are looking for a route to market for their products. With respect to foreign and small private and
family-owned spirits brands, we will continue to be flexible and creative in the structure and form of our proposals and present an alternative to the larger spirits companies.
 
We intend to finance our brand acquisitions through a combination of our available cash resources, bank borrowings and, in appropriate circumstances, the further issuance of
equity and/or debt securities. Acquiring additional brands could have a significant effect on our financial position, and could cause substantial fluctuations in our quarterly and
yearly operating results. Additionally, the pursuit of acquisitions and other new business relationships may require significant management attention. We may not be able to
successfully identify attractive acquisition candidates, obtain financing on favorable terms or complete these types of transactions in a timely manner and on terms acceptable to us,
if at all.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. The preparation of these consolidated financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. On an on-going basis, we evaluate our estimates based
on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments
about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or
conditions.

A summary of significant accounting policies is included in Note 2 to the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2009. Management believes
that the application of these policies on a consistent basis enables us to provide useful and reliable financial information about our Company's operating results and financial
condition.
 
Revenue recognition
 
We recognize revenue from product sales when the product is shipped to a customer (generally a distributor), title and risk of loss has passed to the customer in accordance with the
terms of sale (FOB shipping point or FOB destination) and collection is reasonably assured. We do not offer a right of return but will accept returns if we shipped the wrong
product or wrong quantity. Revenue is not recognized on shipments to control states in the United States until such time as product is sold through to the retail channel.
 
Accounts receivable

The Company extends unsecured credit to its customers in the ordinary course of business but mitigates the associated risks by performing credit checks and actively pursuing past
due accounts.  An allowance for doubtful accounts is established and recorded based on historical experience and the aging of the related accounts receivable.
 
Inventory valuation
Our inventory, consists of finished bottles of distilled spirits, cases of wine, and packaging. The inventory is valued at the lower of cost or market (first in first out method), using
the weighted average cost method. We assess the valuation of our inventories and reduce the carrying value of those inventories that are obsolete or in excess of our forecasted
usage to their estimated realizable value. We estimate the net realizable value of such inventories based on analyses and assumptions including, but not limited to, historical usage,
future demand and market requirements. Reduction to the carrying value of inventories is recorded in cost of goods sold.

Stock-based awards
 
We follow current authoritative guidance regarding stock-based compensation, which requires all share-based payments, including grants of stock options, to be recognized in the
income statement as an operating expense, based on their fair values on the date of grant. Stock based compensation for fiscal year 2009 and 2008 was $2,714,868 and $640,873,
respectively. We used the Black-Scholes option-pricing model to estimate the fair value of options granted. The assumptions used in valuing the options granted during fiscal year
2009 and 2008 are included in note 2 to our consolidated financial statements.
 
Fair value of financial instruments
 
ASC 825, “Financial Instruments” (“ASC 825”), defines the fair value of a financial instrument as the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction
between willing parties and requires disclosure of the fair value of certain financial instruments. Except for long term debt, we believe that there is no material difference between
the fair value and the reported amounts of financial instruments in the balance sheets due to the short-term maturity of these instruments, or with respect to the debt, as compared to
the current borrowing rates available to us .
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Results of Operations

Results of Operations for the Year ended December 31, 2009 Compared to the Year ended December 31, 2008

The following table sets forth key components of our results of operations for the periods indicated, in dollars, and key components of our revenue for the period indicated, in
dollars. The discussion following the table is based on these results.
 

Iconic Brands, Inc. and Subsidiary
Consolidated Statements of Operations

  
Year Ended

December 31,  
  2009   2008  
Sales  $ 773,555  $ 1,565,520 
         
Cost of goods sold   613,494   1,163,042 
         
Gross profit   160,061   402,478 
         
Selling, general and administrative expenses:         

Selling, marketing and promotion   331,306   455,700 
Administrative compensation and benefits   860,275   1,327,161 
Stock-based compensation issued in connection with merger   2,272,108   - 
Professional fees   692,062   492,492 
Occupancy and warehousing   155,793   233,187 
Travel and entertainment   115,787   227,670 
Office   36,678   40,741 
Licenses and permits   4,315   37,254 
Other   40,764   39,979 

         
Total   4,509,088   2,854,184 

         
Income (loss) from operations   (4,349,027)   (2,451,706)
         
Other income   98,411   - 
Interest expense   (656,818)   (1,227,627)
         
Income (loss) before income taxes   (4,907,434)   (3,679,333)
         
Income taxes   -   - 
         
Net income (loss)  $ (4,907,434)  $ (3,679,333)
         
Net income (loss) per common share - basic and diluted (as restated - See note 11)  $ (0.13)  $ (0.13)
         
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding - basic and diluted (as restated - See Note 11)   36,613,416   27,347,383 
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Sales:

Sales decreased by $791,965, or 50.6%, from $1,565,520 for the prior year ended December 31, 2008 to $773,555 for the period year ended December 31, 2009.  The decrease in
sales was a direct result of the Company inability to raise sufficient capital to market, promote and distribute it products. As a result of having limited funds available for working
capital purposes, the Company shifted its focus and available resources from marketing, promoting and distributing the products of other manufacturers to marketing, promoting
and distributing its celebrity branded products, such as the Danny DeVito’s Premium Limoncello, Glen Master Scotch,and its other organically developed brands.

 Cost of goods sold:

Cost of goods sold decreased by $549,548, or 47.2%, from $1,163,042 for the period ended December 31, 2008 to $613,494 for the period ended December 31, 2009. This
decrease in COGS is consistent with the decrease in sales for the period as the Company shifts its focus and resources towards its celebrity and organically developed brands.
 
Gross profit:

Gross profit decreased by $242,417, or 60.2%, from $402,478 for the period ended December 31, 2008 to $160,061 for the period ended December 31, 2009 mainly due to the
decrease in sales as the Company refocuses its resources to its celebrity and organically developed brands.

Selling, general and administrative expenses:

Selling general and administrative expenses for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 were $4,509,088 and $2,854,184, respectively, an increase of $1,654,904, or 60.0%,
primarily due to the increase in professional fees incurred in connection with financing activities and stock-based compensation in connection with the merger. Included in selling,
general and administrative expenses are selling, marketing and promotion expenses in the amount of $331,306, which reflects a decrease of $124,394 for the period ended
December 31, 2009 from $455,700 for the prior year ended;  administration, compensation and benefits which decreased to $860,275 for the period ended December 31, 2009 from
$1,327,161 for the prior year ended; stock-based compensation of $2,272,108 for the period ended December 31, 2009 as compared to $640,873 for the prior year ended;
professional fees which increased to $692,062 for the period ended December 31, 2009 from $492,492 for the prior year ended and were the result of expenses relating to the
merger; occupancy and warehousing expense which decreased to $155,793 for the period ended December 31, 2009 from $233,187 for the prior year ended; travel and
entertainment, which decreased from $115,787 for the period ended December 31, 2009 from $227,670 for the prior year ended and were the result of the reduction in executives’
travel schedules and the diminished opportunities to market and promote the Company’s products; office expenses decreased to $36,678 for the period ended December 31, 2009
from $37,254 for the prior year ended as a result of  implementing cost controls; license and permit significantly decrease during the period ended December 31, 2009 to 4,315
from $37,254 for the prior year ended, primarily because of the Company’s refocus in marketing its own organically branded products; and other expenses also increased
marginally to $40,764 for the period ended December 31, 2009  from $39,797 for the prior year ended.

Income (loss) from Operations:

Loss from operations was $4,349,027 for the period ended December 31, 2009 and $2,451,706 for the prior year ended. We have implemented cost containment measures during
the fiscal year 2009 and we are now focused on our celebrity and organically branded products and we expect growth of these products.  The 77.4% increase in the loss from
operations for the period resulted from the decrease in sales and the increase in expenses as previously described, primarily resulting from stock based compensation in connection
with the merger in the amount of $2,272,108.

Interest Expense:

Interest expense for the period ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 was $656,818 and $1,227,627, respectively, a decrease of $570,809, or 46.5%. The decrease in interest expense
for the period was a result of a rate reset by our largest creditor, and by converting and exchanging our convertible debts for equity during the fiscal year 2009.
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Net Income (loss):
 
Net loss was $4,907,434 for the period ended December 31, 2009, compared to $3,679,333 for the period ended December 31, 2008, an increase of $1,228,101, or 33.4%. The
slight increase in the net loss for the period was a result of decreased sales, professional fees incurred relating to financing activities, and an interest rate reset by our largest
creditor.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Since our inception, we have incurred significant operating and net losses and have not generated positive cash flows from operations. For the year ended December 31, 2009, we
had a net loss of $4,907,434, and used cash of $538,842 in operating activities. As of December 31, 2009, we had an accumulated deficit of $13,385,569.

On August 19, 2009, we completed a private placement offering in the aggregate amount of $500,000 from an accredited investor through the sale of (a) 1,000,000 shares of its
common stock, par value $0.0001, with a per share purchase price of $0.50 per share; (b) a Class I Common Stock Purchase Warrant to purchase an aggregate of 100% of the
number of shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $1.00 per share, exercisable for a period of five years; and (c) a Class J Common Stock Purchase Warrant to
purchase an aggregate of 100% of the number of shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $1.50 per share, exercisable for a period of five years.

  On January 6 and 13, 2010, the Company issued a total of 200,000 shares of common stock, 100,000 five year warrants exercisable at $0.22 per share, and 100,000 five year
warrants exercisable at $0.23 per share, along with two promissory notes in the amount of $110,000 each (one due March 31, 2010 and one due May 31, 2010), to Marvin
Mermelstein in exchange for a $200,000 loan.  The fair value of the common stock ($45,000) and warrants ($33,930), along with the $20,000 discount, were recorded as debt
discounts, which are being amortized over the terms of the notes as interest expense.  The warrants were valued using the Black-Scholes option pricing model and the following
assumptions: risk free interest rates of 2.6% and 2.55%, volatility of 100%, and terms of five years.

Our primary uses of cash have been for selling and marketing expenses, employee compensation, new product development and working capital. The main sources of cash have
been from the financing of purchase orders and the factoring of accounts receivable. In addition, we issued convertible notes and promissory notes to bridge the gap between our
primary lender and our working capital requirements. All funds received have been expended in the furtherance of growing the business and establishing the brand portfolios. The
following trends are reasonably likely to result in a material decrease in our liquidity over the near to long term:
 
 · An increase in working capital requirements to finance higher level of inventories and accounts receivable,
  
 · Addition of administrative and sales personnel as the business grows,
  
 · Increases in advertising, public relations and sales promotions for existing and new brands as the company expands within existing markets or enters new markets,
  
 · Development of new brands to complement our current celebrity portfolio, and
  
 · The cost of being a public company and the continued increase in costs due to governmental compliance activities.
 
Cash flows
 
The following table summarizes our primary sources and uses of cash during the periods presented: 
 
  Years ended December 31,  
  2009   2008  
Net cash provided by (used in):       
Operating activities  $ (538,842)   (1,579,707)
Investing activities   5,150   0 
Financing activities   556,911   1,547,013 
         
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents  $ 12,919   (32,694)
 
 

23



 

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities
 
A substantial portion of our available cash has been used to fund operating activities. In general, these cash funding requirements are based on operating losses, driven principally
by our sizeable investment in selling and marketing, and general expenses. The business has incurred significant losses since inception.
 
For the year ended December 31, 2009, net cash used in operating activities was $(538,842), consisting primarily of losses from operations of $4,907,434, offset by a non-cash
charge for stock-based compensation of $2,714,868, decreases in receivables of $229,896, decreases in prepaid expenses and other current assets of $3,042, and increases in
accrued expenses of $932,923.
 
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

For the year ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, net cash used in investing activities was $5,150 and $0, respectively.
 
Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities

For the year ended December 31, 2009, funds provided by financing activities amounted to $556,911 resulting from increases of debt.

We anticipate that we will need to make significant expenditures during the next 12 months, contingent upon raising capital.  These anticipated expenditures are for advertising,
marketing, promotional items, overhead and working capital purposes. We cannot assure you that financing will be available in amounts or on terms acceptable to us, if at all. We
anticipate that we will require up to $7,500,000 for funding our plan of operations for the next twelve months, depending on revenues, if any, from operations.

By adjusting our operations and development to the level of capitalization, we believe we have sufficient capital resources to meet projected cash flow deficits.  However, if during
that period or thereafter, we are not successful in generating sufficient liquidity from operations or in raising sufficient capital resources, on terms acceptable to us, this could have a
material adverse effect on our business, results of operations liquidity and financial condition.

We will still need additional investments in order to continue operations to break even. We are seeking additional investments, but we cannot guarantee that we will be able to
obtain such investments.  Financing transactions may include the issuance of equity or debt securities, obtaining credit facilities, or other financing mechanisms. However, the
downturn in the U.S. stock and debt markets could make it more difficult to obtain financing through the issuance of equity or debt securities. Even if we are able to raise the funds
required, it is possible that we could incur unexpected costs and expenses, fail to collect significant amounts owed to us, or experience unexpected cash requirements that would
force us to seek alternative financing. Further, if we issue additional equity or debt securities, stockholders may experience additional dilution or the new equity securities may
have rights, preferences or privileges senior to those of existing holders of our common stock. If additional financing is not available or is not available on acceptable terms, we
will have to curtail our operations.
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DEBT

The Company’s total debts is in the amount of $2,578,008 for the year ended December 31, 2009, of which $175,000 is past due debt. The Company’s debts consist primarily of
the following:
 
  December 31,   December 31,  
  2009   2008  
Due under Purchase Order Financing Agreement  $ -  $ 2,937,177 
Due Under Discount Factoring Agreement   85,887   55,741 
Convertible notes, interest at 7% to 14%, due July 2, 2012 to July 2, 2013 – net of unamortized discounts of $52,328 and $328,875,

respectively   160,172   766,750 
Convertible debentures, interest at 9%, due December10, 2008 to January 23, 2009 – net of unamortized discounts of $0 and $525,

respectively   -   104,475 
Interim loan convertible promissory notes issued from July 22, 2008 to September 9, 2008, interest at 0%, due the earlier of (1) one year

after the date of issuance or (2) completion of $3,000,000 minimum new private placement (in which case the notes were to be
automatically converted into new units)   -   1,100,000 

Promissory note, interest at 20%, due January 9, 2009 to January 29, 2009   100,000    100,000 
Unsecured promissory note, interest at 7%, due in installments until June 10, 2011   334,523   - 
Convertible promissory note, interest at 7%, due     September 13, 2014 – net of unamortized     discount of $77,595 and $0,
respectively   22,405   - 
 
Loans payable, interest at 0%, due on demand   249,000   - 
Loan payable, interest at 12%, due January 14, 2010 – net of unamortized debt discount of $26,823 and $0, respectively   73,177     
Convertible promissory notes, interest at 10%, due October 25, 2007 to November 27, 2007   75,000   125,000 
Due Donald Chadwell (significant stockholder), interest at 0%, no repayment terms   763,000   763,000 
Due Richard DeCicco (officer, director, and significant stockholder) and affiliates, interest at 0%, no repayment terms   714,844   762,630 
Total   2,578,008   6,714,773 
Less current portion of debt   (803,064)   (4,422,393) 
Long term debt   1,774,944   2,292,380 
 
Pursuant to the Purchase Order Financing Agreement was dated January 22, 2007, Capstone Capital Group I, LLC (the “Secured Party provided advances of credit to the
Company.  Among other things, the agreement provided for fees to the Secured Party equal to 2.5% for the first 30 days (or part thereof) that each advance was outstanding and
1.25% for every 14 days (or part thereof) that such advance remained outstanding. On June 10, 2009, the Company entered into a termination agreement with Capstone (the
“Termination Agreement”) whereby Capstone agreed to forgive the $2,833,205 balance owed it under the Purchase Order Financing Agreement in exchange for: (i) a $500,000 7%
unsecured promissory note (the “Promissory Note”); (ii) 1,000,000 shares of Common Stock; (iii) $1,833,205 worth of Series B Preferred Stock; and (iv) a 3-year warrant to
purchase up to 1,000,000 shares of Common Stock at an exercise price of $0.50 per share.  The Promissory Note is payable in 24 monthly installments of $10,000 commencing
July 10, 2009, $100,000 on or before June 10, 2010, and the remaining $160,000 on or before June 10, 2011.  If the Company closes a financing prior to maturity of the
Promissory Note, up to 50% of the proceeds are to be used to prepay the remaining balance of the Promissory Note.

Pursuant to the Discount Factoring Agreement was dated January 22, 2007, Capstone Business Credit, LLC (the “Factor”) provided financing to certain Company
accounts.  Among other things, the agreement provides for commissions to the Factor equal to 2% for the first 30 days (or part thereof) that each such account receivable is
outstanding and 1% for every 14 days (or part thereof) thereafter that such account receivable remains outstanding.
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Fees and commissions charged pursuant to the Purchase Order Financing Agreement and the Discount Factoring Agreement are included in interest expense for the period, in the
amount of $656,818.

The $387,500 total face value of convertible notes outstanding at September 30, 2009 are convertible into shares of the Company’s common stock at a price of $0.50 per share.

Accrued interest payable on debt (included in accrued expenses and other current liabilities in the amount of $1,500,652 consisted of:

  December 31,   December 31,  
  2009   2008  
Convertible notes, interest at 7%  $ 56,651  $ 174,513 
Convertible debentures, interest at 9%   -   4,744 
Promissory note, interest at 20%   10,082   1,973 
Convertible promissory notes, interest at 10%   24,767   36,031 
Total  $ 91,500  $ 217,26 

Obligations and commitments

Rental Agreements – The Company occupied its facilities in Freeport, New York up until March 2009 under a month to month agreement at a monthly rent of $14,350.  In March
2009, the Company moved its facilities to Lindenhurst, New York pursuant to a three year lease agreement providing for annual rentals ranging from $85,100 to
$90,283.  Provided certain conditions are met, the Company has an option to renew the lease for an additional two years at annual rentals ranging from $92,991 to $95,781.
 
For the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, rent expense was $117,329 and $171,776, respectively.
 
License Agreement – On April 26, 2007 and as amended November 1, 2007, the Company entered into an exclusive License Agreement with Seven Cellos, LLC (“DDV”),
pursuant to which the Company was granted a limited license of certain rights in and to Danny DeVito’s name, likeness and biography for use by the Company in connection with
the Danny DeVito Premium Limoncello brand.  The term of the Agreement continues through perpetuity unless the agreement is terminated.  In consideration for the license, the
Company agreed to pay royalties as follows: (a) 5% of Net Profits (as defined) to Behr Abrahamson & Kaller, LLP (“BAK”), (b) a payment of 50% of the remaining Net Profits to
DDV after the payment described above; and (c) a payment of 2% of Net Profits to Sichenzia Ross Friedman Ference LLP after payment of 50% of Net Profits to DDV.
 
 Danny DeVito agreed to use reasonable efforts to be available for a reasonable number of promotional appearances during each consecutive 12 month period, the duration of
which shall not exceed 2 days.  Pursuant to the agreement, Danny DeVito granted the Company a right of first refusal for a period of 5 years to license any other liquor, spirit or
alcoholic beverage which Danny DeVito may determine to endorse or develop.  A condition precedent to Danny DeVito’s performance under the agreement are subject to the
Company applying for a trademark for the brand name “Danny DeVito’s Premium Limoncello” with Danny DeVito being designated as 50% co-owner of such trademark.  The
Company registered this trademark with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office (trademark application number 77152934).
 
For the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company calculated cumulative “Net Profits” from the brand to be negative and thus did not pay or accrue any royalty
expense under the License Agreement .
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Merchandising License Agreement - On June 12, 2009, Iconic Imports, Inc., the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a merchandising license agreement (the
“License Agreement”) with Paramount Licensing Inc., (“PLI”) granting Iconic Imports the non-exclusive right to use the title of the theatrical motion picture “The Godfather” in
connection with the development, importation, marketing, and distribution of an Italian organic vodka and Scotch whiskey throughout the United States. Under the terms of the
License Agreement, which has a term of 5 years ending on June 30, 2014 and may be extended to June 30, 2019 upon certain conditions unless it is sooner terminated, the
Company agreed to pay PLI a royalty fee of five percent (5%) and guarantee a total of $400,000 in royalties due as follows; (1) $60,000 as an advance payment due upon signing
of the License Agreement, (2) $100,000 due on or before November 1, 2010, (3) $100,000 due on or before November 1, 2011, and (4) $140,000 due on or before November 1,
2012. In addition, PLI was granted warrants to purchase shares of the Company’s common stock in substantially the same form as other warrants previously issued, which is (a) a
five-year warrant to purchase 1,000,000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $1.00 per share; and (b) a five-year warrant to purchase 1,333,334 shares of our
common stock at an exercise price of $1.50 per share. On August 12, 2009, the Company paid $60,000 to PLI as the advance royalty due under the License Agreement. The
License Agreement became effective on this date as the advance payment was a condition precedent to the effectiveness of the License Agreement.
 
  At March 31, 2010, the Company has not yet commenced sales of the product named “The Godfather”. For the year ended December 31, 2009, the Company expensed $40,000
(included in selling, marketing and promotion expenses in the consolidated statement of operations) to provide for the ratable accrual of the $400,000 minimum royalties over 5
year term of the License Agreement.
 
  Employment Agreement with chief executive officer - On January 23, 2008, the Company entered into an employment agreement with its chief executive officer Richard
DeCicco.  The agreement provides for a term of 5 years, commencing on January 1, 2008.  The term can be extended by a written agreement of the parties.  The agreement
provides for annual compensation ranging from $265,000 to $350,000.  In addition, if the Company enters into an agreement and further sells any brand in the Company’s
portfolio, Mr. DeCicco will receive 5% of such sale.  Mr. DeCicco is also entitled to incentive bonus compensation, stock and/or options in accordance with Company policies
established by the Board of Directors.  The agreement provides for the grant of a non-qualified ten year option to purchase up to 1,000,000 shares of common stock of the
Company at an exercise price which shall represent a discount to the market price. Mr. DeCicco has the right to terminate the agreement upon 60 days notice to the Company for
any reason.  Pursuant to the terms of the agreement, if Mr. DeCicco is absent from work because of illness or incapacity cumulatively for more than 2 months in addition to
vacation time in any calendar year, the Company may terminate the agreement upon 30 days written notice.  The agreement also provides that the agreement may be terminated
upon 90 days notice to Mr. DeCicco if: (A) there is a sale of substantially all of the Company’s assets to a single purchaser or group of associated purchasers; (B) there is a sale,
exchange or disposition of 50% of the outstanding shares of the Company’s outstanding stock; (C) the Company terminates its business or liquidates its assets; or (D) there is a
merger or consolidation of the Company in which the Company’s shareholders receive less than 50% of the outstanding voting shares of the new or continuing corporation. Mr.
DeCicco shall be entitled to severance pay in the amount of 2 years compensation and medical and other benefits in the event of a termination of the agreement under certain
circumstances
 
  Employment agreement with chief financial officer - On October 1, 2007, the Company entered into an employment agreement with its chief financial officer William
Blacker.  The agreement provides for a term of 3 years, commencing on October 1, 2007.  The term can be extended by a written agreement of the parties.  The Company agreed to
issue options to purchase shares of its common stock to Mr. Blacker if and when the common stock becomes publicly traded, as follows: (A) upon execution of the agreement,
100,000 options at an exercise price of $0.05 per share; (B) on October 1, 2008, 100,000 options at an exercise price of $0.15 per share; and (C) on October 1, 2009, 100,000
options at an exercise price of $.75 per share.  Pursuant to the terms of the agreement, Mr. Blacker is to receive an annual salary of $150,000.  Mr. Blacker has the right to
terminate the agreement upon 60 days notice to the Company for any reason.  The agreement further provides that if the agreement is terminated for any reason other than willful
malfeasance by Mr. Blacker, Mr. Blacker shall be entitled to receive severance pay in the amount of 6 months or the balance of the agreement’s term of existence, whichever is
greater, and shall receive all benefits under the agreement. The $16,850 estimated fair value of the 300,000 options (using the Black-Scholes option pricing model and the
following assumptions: $0.10 stock price, 4% risk free interest rate, 100% volatility, and term of 3.5 years) is being amortized over the 3 year term of the employment agreement
as compensation and benefits.
 
  Legal proceedings – The Company is party to a variety of legal proceedings that arise in the normal course of business.  We accrue for these items as losses become probable and
can be reasonably estimated.  While the results of these legal proceedings cannot be predicted with certainty, management believes that the final outcome of these proceedings will
not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated results of operations or financial position.
 
Impact of Inflation
 
We expect to be able to pass inflationary increases for raw materials and other costs on to our customers through price increases, as required, and do not expect inflation to be a
significant factor in our business.
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Seasonality
 
Although our operating history is limited, we do not believe our products are seasonal.
 
OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS
 
There are no off-balance sheet arrangements between us and any other entity that have, or are reasonably likely to have, a current or future effect on our financial condition,
changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources that is material to stockholders.
 
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
 
The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. The preparation of these consolidated financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. On an on-going basis, we evaluate our estimates based
on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments
about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or
conditions.
 
A summary of significant accounting policies is included in Note 2 to the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2009. Management believes
that the application of these policies on a consistent basis enables us to provide useful and reliable financial information about our Company's operating results and financial
condition.
 
Code of Ethics
 
We currently do not have a code of ethics that applies to our officers, employees and directors, including our Chief Executive Officer and senior executives, however, we intend to
adopt one in the near future.
 
Conflicts of Interest
 
Certain potential conflicts of interest are inherent in the relationships between our officers and directors, and us.
 
From time to time, one or more of our affiliates may form or hold an ownership interest in and/or manage other businesses both related and unrelated to the type of business that
we own and operate.  These persons expect to continue to form, hold an ownership interest in and/or manage additional other businesses which may compete with ours with respect
to operations, including financing and marketing, management time and services and potential customers.  These activities may give rise to conflicts between or among the
interests of us and other businesses with which our affiliates are associated.  Our affiliates are in no way prohibited from undertaking such activities, and neither we nor our
shareholders will have any right to require participation in such other activities.
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Further, because we intend to transact business with some of our officers, directors and affiliates, as well as with firms in which some of our officers, directors or affiliates have a
material interest, potential conflicts may arise between the respective interests of us and these related persons or entities.  We believe that such transactions will be effected on
terms at least as favorable to us as those available from unrelated third parties.
 
With respect to transactions involving real or apparent conflicts of interest, we have adopted policies and procedures which require that: (i) the fact of the relationship or interest
giving rise to the potential conflict be disclosed or known to the directors who authorize or approve the transaction prior to such authorization or approval, (ii) the transaction be
approved by a majority of our disinterested outside directors, and (iii) the transaction be fair and reasonable to us at the time it is authorized or approved by our directors.
 
ITEM 7A. QUANTITIATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOUSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
 
The Company qualifies as a smaller reporting company, as defined by Rule 229.10(f) and as a result it need not comply with the requirements of this Item.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

 
 
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Iconic Brands, Inc.
 
I have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Iconic Brands, Inc. and Subsidiary (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, changes in stockholders’ equity (deficiency), and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audits.
 
I conducted my audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that I plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. I believe that my audits provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.
 
In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Iconic Brands, Inc. and Subsidiary as of
December 31, 2009 and 2008 and the results of their operations and cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States.
 
The accompanying financial statements referred to above have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern. As discussed in Note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Company’s present financial situation raises substantial doubt about its ability to continue as a going concern. Management’s plans in regard
to this matter are also described in Note 2. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.
 
As discussed in Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company restated its consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008.
 
  /s/ Michael T. Studer CPA P.C.  
  Michael T. Studer CPA P.C.  
 
Freeport, New York
 
April 14, 2010 (except for the matters discussed in Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements, as to which the date is January 12, 2011)
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Iconic Brands, Inc. and Subsidiary
Consolidated Balance Sheets

 
  December 31,   December 31,  
  2009   2008  
       
Assets       
       
Current assets:       

Cash and cash equivalents  $ 23,889  $ 10,970 
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $ 35,000  and $35,000, respectively   254,268   484,164 
Inventories   393,811   738,507 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets   391,140   595,769 

         
Total current assets   1,063,108   1,829,410 

         
Property, plant and equipment, net   7,273   6,294 
         
Restricted cash and cash equivalents   75,000   100,000 
         
Total assets  $ 1,145,381  $ 1,935,704 
         
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity (Deficiency)         
         
Current liabilities:         

Current portion of debt  $ 803,064  $ 4,422,393 
Accounts payable   1,290,680   1,481,916 
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities   1,500,652   938,494 

         
Total current liabilities   3,594,396   6,842,803 

         
Long term debt   1,774,944   2,292,380 
         

Series B preferred stock, $2.00 per share stated value; designated 1,000,000 shares, issued and outstanding 916,603 and 0
shares, respectively - an equity security with characteristics of a liability (as restated in 2009 - See Note 11)   1,833,206   - 

         
Total liabilities   7,202,546   9,135,183 

         

Stockholders' equity (deficiency):         
Preferred stock, $.00001 par value; authorized 100,000,000 shares:         
Series A, designated 1 share, issued and outstanding 1 and 0 shares, respectively   1   - 
Common stock, $.00001 par value; authorized 100,000,000 shares, issued and outstanding 44,810,411 and 24,909 shares,

respectively   448   - 
Additional paid-in capital   7,327,955   1,278,656 
Accumulated deficit   (13,385,569)   (8,478,135)

         
Total stockholders' equity (deficiency) (as restated in 2009 - See Note 11)   (6,057,165) )  (7,199,479)
         
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity (deficiency)  $ 1,145,381  $ 1,935,704 
 

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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Iconic Brands, Inc. and Subsidiary
Consolidated Statements of Operations

 
  Year Ended  
  December 31,  
  2009   2008  
       
Sales  $ 773,555  $ 1,565,520 
         
Cost of goods sold   613,494   1,163,042 
         
Gross profit   160,061   402,478 
         
Selling, general and administrative expenses:         

Selling, marketing and promotion   331,306   455,700 
Administrative compensation and benefits   860,275   1,327,161 
Stock-based compensation issued in connection with merger   2,272,108   - 
Professional fees   692,062   492,492 
Occupancy and warehousing   155,793   233,187 
Travel and entertainment   115,787   227,670 
Office   36,678   40,741 
Licenses and permits   4,315   37,254 
Other   40,764   39,979 

         
Total   4,509,088   2,854,184 

         
Income (loss) from operations   (4,349,027)   (2,451,706)
         
Other income   98,411   - 
Interest expense   (656,818)   (1,227,627)
         
Income (loss) before income taxes   (4,907,434)   (3,679,333)
         
Income taxes   -   - 
         
Net income (loss)  $ (4,907,434)  $ (3,679,333)
         
Net income (loss) per common share - basic and diluted (as restated - See Note 11)  $ (0.13)  $ (0.13)
         
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding - basic and diluted (as restated - See Note 11)   36,613,416   27,347,383 
 

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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Iconic Brands, Inc. and Subsidiary
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity (Deficiency)

 

  
Series A Preferred Stock,

$0.00001 par value   
Common Stock,

$0.00001 par value           

  Shares   Amount   Shares   Amount   

Additional
Paid-in
Capital   

Accumulated
Deficit   Total  

Balance, December 31, 2007   -  $ -   16,336  $ -  $ 395,593  $ (4,798,802)  $ (4,403,209)
                             
Shares issued for services   -   -   8,573   -   825,596   -   825,596 
                             
Fair value of warrants included in sales of Units   -   -   -   -   33,779   -   33,779 
                             
Stock options and warrants Compensation

expense   -   -   -   -   23,688   -   23,688 
                             
Net loss   -   -   -   -   -   (3,679,333)   (3,679,333)
                             
Balance, December 31, 2008   -   -   24,909   -   1,278,656   (8,478,135)   (7,199,479)
                             
Issuance of stock to management and employees

on June 10, 2009   1   1   19,634,112   196   2,063,214   -   2,063,411 
                             
Issuance of stock to Danny DeVito and affiliates

on June 10, 2009   -   -   2,086,973   21   208,676   -   208,697 
                             
Issuance of stock to Note holders on June 10,

2009 in satisfaction of debt and accrued
interest ( as restated in 2009 - See Note 11)   -   -   4,606,307   46   2,303,108   -   2,303,154 

                             
Issuance of stock to Capstone on June 10, 2009

in connection with Termination Agreement   -   -   1,000,000   10   499,990   -   500,000 
                             
Acquisition of Harbrew Imports, Ltd. on June

10, 2009   -   -   15,158,000   152   (152)   -   - 
                             
Issuance of stock to Note holders in July and

August 2009 in satisfaction of debt and accrued
interest.   -   -   300,110   3   150,644   -   150,647 

                             
Sale of Units at $.50 per unit on August 19,2009,

less placement costs of $55,000   -   -   1,000,000   10   444,990   -   445,000 
                             
Fair value of warrants included in sale of

convertible promissory note in August 2009   -   -   -   -   82,440   -   82,440 
                             
Issuance of stock to consultant in October 2009   -   -   1,000,000   10   199,990   -   200,000 
                             
Fair value of reduction of exercise price of

warrants in connection with debt financing in
December 2009   -   -   -   -   61,310   -   61,310 

                             
Stock options and warrants compensation

expense   -   -   -   -   35,089   -   35,089 
                             
Net loss   -   -   -   -   -   (4,907,434)   (4,907,434)
                             
Balance December 31, 2009 (as restated - See

Note 11)   1  $ 1   44,810,411  $ 448  $ 7,327,955  $ (13,385,569)  $ (6,057,165)
 

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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Iconic Brands, Inc. and Subsidiary

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
 
  Year Ended  
  December 31,  
  2009   2008  
       
Cash flows from operating activities       

Net Income (loss)  $ (4,907,434)  $ (3,679,333)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by (used in)operating activities:         

Depreciation   4,171   700 
Amortization of debt discounts charged to interest expense   311,316   89,935 
Stock-based compensation   2,714,868   640,873 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:         
Accounts receivable, net   229,896   7,116 
Inventories   344,696   580,919 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets   (3,042)   (76,952)
Restricted cash and cash equivalents   25,000   8,785 
Accounts payable   (191,236)   236,276 
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities   932,923   611,974 

         
Net cash provided by (used in)operating activities   (538,842)   (1,579,707)
         
Cash flows from investing activities:         

Property, plant and equipment additions   (5,150)   - 
         
Cash flows from financing activities:         

Increases in debt, net   449,000   1,600,975 
Repayment of debt   (337,089)   (53,962)
Sale of units of common stock and warrants, net of placement costs   445,000   - 

         
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities   556,911   1,547,013 

         
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents   12,919   (32,694)
         
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period   10,970   43,664 
         
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period  $ 23,889  $ 10,970 
         
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:         
         

Interest paid  $ 264,621  $ 961,641 
         

Income taxes paid  $ -  $ - 
         
Non-cash financing activities:         

Shares of common stock issued to noteholders in satisfaction of debt and accrued interest  $ 2,453,801  $ - 
Securities issued to Capstone in connection with Termination Agreement and satisfaction of debt:         

Unsecured promissory note  $ 500,000  $ - 
Series B preferred stock  $ 1,833,206  $ - 
Common stock  $ 500,000  $ - 

         
Total  $ 2,833,206  $ - 

 
See accompanying notes to financial statements
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Iconic Brands, Inc. and Subsidiary
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2009
 
 
1.  ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF BUSINESS
 
Iconic Brands, Inc., formerly Paw Spa, Inc. (“Iconic Brands”), was incorporated in the State of Nevada on October 21, 2005. Our plan was to provide mobile grooming and spa
services for cats and dogs. Our services were going to include bathing, hair cutting and styling, brushing/combing, flea and tick treatments, nail maintenance and beautification, ear
cleaning, teeth cleaning, hot oil treatments, and massage. We did not have any business operations and failed to generate any revenues.  We abandoned this business, as we lacked
sufficient capital resources.  On June 10, 2009, the Company acquired Harbrew Imports, Ltd. (“Harbrew New York”), a New York corporation incorporated on September 8, 1999
which was a wholly owned subsidiary of Harbrew Imports, Ltd. Corp. (“Harbrew Florida”), a Florida corporation incorporated on January 4, 2007.  On the Closing Date, pursuant
to the terms of the Merger Agreement, the Company issued to the designees of Harbrew New York 27,352,301 shares of our Common Stock at the Closing, or approximately 64%
of the 42,510,301 shares outstanding subsequent to the merger.  After the merger, Harbrew New York continued as the surviving company under the laws of the state of New York
and became the wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.
 
In anticipation of the merger between Iconic Brands, Inc. and Harbrew New York, on May 1, 2009 the Board of Directors and a majority of shareholders of Harbrew New York
approved the amendment of its Articles of Incorporation changing its name to Iconic Imports, Inc. (“Iconic Imports”). On June 22, 2009, this action was filed with the New York
State Department of State.
 
Prior to the merger on June 10, 2009, Iconic Brands had no assets, liabilities, or business operations.  Accordingly, the merger has been treated for accounting purposes as a
recapitalization by the accounting acquirer Harbrew New York/Iconic Imports and the financial statements reflect the assets, liabilities, and operations of Harbrew New
York/Iconic Imports from its inception on September 8, 1999 to June 10, 2009 and are combined with Iconic Brands thereafter.  Iconic Brands and its wholly-owned subsidiary
Harbrew New York/Iconic Imports are hereafter referred to as the “Company”.
 
The Company is a brand owner of self-developed alcoholic beverages.  Furthermore, the Company imports, markets and sells these beverages throughout the United States and
globally.
 
Effective June 10, 2009, prior to the merger, Harbrew Florida effected a 1-for-1,000 reverse stock split of its common stock, reducing the issued and outstanding shares of
common stock from 24,592,160 to 24,909, which includes a total of 317 shares resulting from the rounding of fractional shares.  All share information has been retroactively
adjusted to reflect this reverse stock split.
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Iconic Brands, Inc. and Subsidiary
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2009
 
 
2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
 
(a)  Basis of Presentation
 
The financial statements have been prepared on a “going concern” basis, which contemplates the realization of assets and liquidation of liabilities in the normal course of business.
However, as of December 31, 2009, the Company had negative working capital of $2,531,288 and a stockholders’ deficiency of $6,057,165. Further, from inception to December
31, 2009, the Company incurred losses of $13,385,569. These factors create substantial doubt as to the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The Company plans to
improve its financial condition as recently launched products mature and brand awareness increases, thereby increasing the profitability of its operations. Additionally, the
Company intends to obtain new financing which will primarily be used to market and promote Danny DeVito’s Premium Limoncello and other new products. However, there is no
assurance that the Company will be successful in accomplishing these objectives. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might be necessary should the
Company be unable to continue as a going concern.
 
(b)  Use of Estimates
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting periods.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.
 
(c) Fair Value of Financial Instruments
 
The Company’s financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts, current portion of debt, accounts payable,
accrued expenses and other current liabilities, and long term debt.  Except for long term debt, the fair value of these financial instruments approximate their carrying amounts
reported in the balance sheets due to their short term maturity.
 
(d) Cash and Cash Equivalents
 
The Company considers all liquid investments purchased with original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.
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Iconic Brands, Inc. and Subsidiary
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2009
 
(e)  Accounts Receivable, Net of Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
 
The Company extends unsecured credit to its customers in the ordinary course of business but mitigates the associated risks by performing credit checks and actively pursuing past
due accounts.  An allowance for doubtful accounts is established and recorded based on historical experience and the aging of the related accounts receivable.
 
(f) Inventories
 
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) or market, with due consideration given to obsolescence and to slow moving items.
 
(g) Property, Plant, and Equipment, Net
 
Property, plant, and equipment, net, is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.  Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
respective assets.
 
(h)  Revenue Recognition
 
Revenue from product sales is recognized when all of the following criteria are met: (1) persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, (2) the price is fixed or determinable, (3)
collectibility is reasonably assured, and (4) delivery has occurred.  Persuasive evidence of an arrangement and fixed price criteria are satisfied through purchase
orders.  Collectibility criteria is satisfied through credit approvals.  Delivery criteria is satisfied when the products are shipped to a customer and title and risk of loss pass to the
customer in accordance with the terms of sale.  The Company has no obligation to accept the return of products sold other than for replacement of damaged products.  Other than
quantity price discounts negotiated with customers prior to billing and delivery (which are reflected as a reduction in sales), the Company does not offer any sales incentives or
other rebate arrangements to customers.
 
(i) Shipping and Handling Costs
 
Shipping and handling costs are reported as selling, general and administrative expenses in the accompanying statements of operations.  Shipping costs, which are included in
selling, marketing and promotion expenses, were $8,000 and $51,493 for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.  Handling costs, which primarily represents
warehousing costs and are included in occupancy and warehousing expenses, were $7,368 and $15,832 for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
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Iconic Brands, Inc. and Subsidiary
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2009
 
(j) Advertising
 
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and are included in selling, marketing, and promotion expense.  For the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, advertising expenses
were $0 and $24,500, respectively.
 
(k) Stock-Based Compensation
 
Stock-based compensation is accounted for at fair value in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 718, “Compensation- Stock Compensation”.  For
the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, stock-based compensation totaled $2,714,868 and $640,873, respectively.  These amounts consist of stock-based compensation
given to Company officers and consulting firms, which are included in administrative compensation and benefits and professional fees, respectively.
 
(l) Foreign Currency Transactions
 
Gains and losses arising on settlement of foreign currency denominated transactions or balances are included in other selling, general and administrative expenses.  For the years
ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, foreign currency transaction losses were $0.
 
(m) Income Taxes
 
Income taxes are accounted for under the assets and liability method.  Current income taxes are provided in accordance with the laws of the respective taxing authorities.  Deferred
income taxes are provided for the estimated future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities
and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards.   Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which
those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled.  Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion of management, it is not more
likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will be realized.
 
(n) Net Income (Loss) per Share
 
Basic net income (loss) per common share is computed on the basis of the weighted average   number of common shares outstanding during the period.
 
Diluted net income (loss) per share is computed on the basis of the weighted average number of common shares and dilutive securities (such as stock options and convertible
securities) outstanding.  Dilutive securities having an anti-dilutive effect on diluted net income (loss) per share are excluded from the calculation.
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Iconic Brands, Inc. and Subsidiary
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2009
 
 
(o) Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements
 
Certain accounting pronouncements have been issued by the FASB and other standard setting organizations which are not yet effective and have not yet been adopted by the
Company.  The impact on the Company’s financial position and results of operations from adoption of these standards is not expected to be material.
 
3.  INVENTORIES
 
Inventories consist of:
 
  December 31,   December 31,  
  2009   2008  
Danny De Vito's Premium Limoncello ( Liqueur) brand  $ 13,626  $ 192,898 
Hot Irishman (Irish coffee) brand   125,718   127,693 
Glen Master (scotch) brand   108,470   119,351 
George Vesselle (champagne) brand   75,110   80,604 
Other   145,013   217,961 
         
Subtotal   467,937   738,507 
         
Reserve for obsolete and slow moving items   (74,126)   - 
         
Total  $ 393,811  $ 738,507 
 
4.  PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets consist of:
 
  December 31,   December 31,  
  2009   2008  
Prepaid inventory purchases  $ 297,684  $ 369,820 
Prepaid stock compensation issued to consultants   -   208,411 
Royalty advance   60,000   - 
Other   33,456   17,538 
Total  $ 391,140  $ 595,769 
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Iconic Brands, Inc. and Subsidiary
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2009
 
5.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET
 
Property, plant and equipment, net, consist of:
 
  December 31,   December 31,  
  2009   2008  
Vehicles  $ 126,295  $ 126,295 
Office and warehouse equipment   20,853   15,711 
Total   147,148   142,006 
Accumulated depreciation   (139,875)   (135,712)
Net  $ 7,273  $ 6,294 
 
6.  DEBT
 
Debt consists of:
 
  December 31,   December 31,  
  2009   2008  
Due under Purchase Order Financing Agreement  $ -  $ 2,937,177 
Due Under Discount Factoring Agreement   85,887   55,741 
Convertible notes, interest at 7% to 14%, due July 2, 2012 to July 2, 2013 – net of unamortized discounts of $52,328 and $328,875,

respectively   160,172   766,750 
Convertible debentures, interest at 9%, due December10, 2008 to January 23, 2009 – net of unamortized discounts of $0 and $525,

respectively   -   104,475 
Interim loan convertible promissory notes issued from July 22, 2008 to September 9, 2008, interest at 0%, due the earlier of (1) one year

after the date of issuance or (2) completion of $3,000,000 minimum new private placement (in which case the notes were to be
automatically converted into new units)   -   1,100,000 

Promissory note, interest at 20%, due January 9, 2009 to January 29, 2009   100,000   100,000 
Unsecured promissory note, interest at 7%, due in installments until June 10, 2011   334,523   - 
Convertible promissory note, interest at 7%, due September 13, 2014 – net of unamortized discount of $77,595 and $0, respectively   22,405   - 
Loans payable, interest at 0%, due on demand   249,000   - 
Loan payable, interest at 12%, due January 14, 2010 – net of unamortized debt discount of $26,823 and $0, respectively   73,177   - 
Convertible promissory notes, interest at 10%, due October 25, 2007 to November 27, 2007   75,000   125,000 
Due Donald Chadwell (significant stockholder), interest at 0%, no repayment terms   763,000   763,000 
Due Richard DeCicco (officer, director, and significant stockholder) and affiliates, interest at 0%, no repayment terms   714,844   762,630 
Total   2,578,008   6,714,773 
Less current portion of debt   (803,064)   (4,422,393)
Long term debt  $ 1,774,944  $ 2,292,380 
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Iconic Brands, Inc. and Subsidiary
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2009
 
At December 31, 2009, debt  is due as follows:
 
Past due  $ 175,000 
2010   654,887 
2011   114,523 
2012   200,000 
2013   12,500 
2014   100,000 
No Repayment Terms(due two signiciant stockholders)   1,447,844 
TOTAL   2,734,754 
Less Debt Discounts   (156,746)
Net  $ 2,578,008 
 
The Purchase Order Financing Agreement was dated January 22, 2007, had a term of two years, and provided for advances of credit from Capstone Capital Group I, LLC (the
“Secured Party”) to the Company.  Among other things, the agreement provided for fees to the Secured Party equal to 2.5% for the first 30 days (or part thereof) that each advance
was outstanding and 1.25% for every 14 days (or part thereof) that such advance remained outstanding. On June 10, 2009, the Company entered into a termination agreement with
Capstone (the “Termination Agreement”) whereby Capstone agreed to forgive the $2,833,205 balance owed it under the Purchase Order Financing Agreement in exchange for: (i)
a $500,000 7% unsecured promissory note (the “Promissory Note”); (ii) 1,000,000 shares of Common Stock; (iii) $1,833,205 worth of Series B Preferred Stock; and (iv) a 3-year
warrant to purchase up to 1,000,000 shares of Common Stock at an exercise price of $0.50 per share.  The Promissory Note is payable in 24 monthly installments of $10,000
commencing July 10, 2009, $100,000 on or before June 10, 2010, and the remaining $160,000 on or before June 10, 2011.  If the Company closes a financing prior to maturity of
the Promissory Note, up to 50% of the proceeds are to be used to prepay the remaining balance of the Promissory Note.
 
The Discount Factoring Agreement was dated January 22, 2007 and provides for financing of certain Company accounts received by Capstone Business Credit, LLC (the
“Factor”).  Among other things, the agreement provides for commissions to the Factor equal to 2% for the first 30 days (or part thereof) that each such account receivable is
outstanding and 1% for every 14 days (or part thereof) thereafter that such account receivable remains outstanding.
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Iconic Brands, Inc. and Subsidiary
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2009
 
Fees and commissions charged pursuant to the Purchase Order Financing Agreement and the Discount Factoring Agreement are included in interest expense in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations.
 
The $387,500 total face value of convertible notes outstanding at September 30, 2009 are convertible into shares of the Company’s common stock at a price of $0.50 per share.
 
Accrued interest payable on debt (included in accrued expenses and other current liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets) consisted of:
 
  December 31,   December 31,  
  2009   2008  
Convertible notes, interest at 7%  $ 56,651  $ 174,513 
Convertible debentures, interest at 9%   -   4,744 
Promissory note, interest at 20%   10,082   1,973 
Convertible promissory notes, interest at 10%   24,767   36,031 
Total  $ 91,500  $ 217,261 
 
7. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
 
On January 15, 2008, the Company issued a total of 250 shares of common stock to two attorneys in consideration for legal services. The Company included this issuance in its
consolidated statement of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2008 in professional fees at the $25,000 estimated fair value of shares.
 
On July 14, 2008, the Company issued a total of 1,600 shares of the Company’s common stock to two consulting firms pursuant to consulting agreements with terms of one year.
The Company initially capitalized as prepaid expenses and amortized the $160,000 estimated fair value of the shares over the one year terms of the agreements as professional fees.
 
On August 8, 2008, the Company issued 2,731 shares of common stock to its chief executive officer in consideration of services rendered. The Company included this issuance in
its consolidated statement of operations for the three months ended September 30, 2008 in administrative compensation and benefits at the $273,096 estimated fair value of the
shares.
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Iconic Brands, Inc. and Subsidiary
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2009
 
 
On August 8, 2008, the Company issued a total of 1,050 shares of common stock to designees of Danny DeVito in consideration of services rendered. The Company included this
issuance in its consolidated statement of operations for the three months ended September 30, 2008 in administrative compensation and benefits at the $105,000 estimated fair
value of the shares.
 
On August 11, 2008, the Company issued 2,000 shares of the Company’s common stock to a consulting firm pursuant to a one year financial consulting agreement. The Company
capitalized the $200,000 estimated fair value of the shares as a prepaid expense and amortized the total amount over the one year term of the agreement as professional fees.
 
On June 10, 2009, pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement, the Company issued to the designees of Harbrew New York 27,352,301 shares of Common Stock at the
Closing.  Of this amount;
 
1) 24,909 shares were issued to Harbrew Florida stockholders,
2) 19,634,112 shares valued at $1,963,411 were issued to Company management and personnnel for services, including 15,972,359 shares to the Company’s Chief

Executive Officer, 100,000 shares to the Company’s Chief Financial Officer, 2,586,753 shares to Donald Chadwell, 850,000 shares to eight employees, and 125,000
shares to a law firm,

3) 2,086,973 shares valued at $208,697 were issued to Danny DeVito and affiliates for services,
4) 4,606,307 shares were issued to noteholders in satisfaction of $2,125,625 of debt and $177,529 of accrued interest, and
5) 1,000,000 shares were issued to Capstone as part of the Termination Agreement.
 
Also, pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement, the Company issued 1 share of Series A Preferred Stock valued at $100,000 to the Company’s Chief Executive Officer for
services and 916,603 shares of Series B Preferred Stock valued at $1,833,206 to Capstone as part of the Termination Agreement.
 
The one share of Series A Preferred Stock entitles the holder to two votes for every share of Common Stock Deemed Outstanding and has no conversion or dividend rights.  Each
share of the Series B Preferred Stock has a liquidation preference of $2.00 per share, has no voting rights, and is convertible into one share of Common Stock at the lower of (1)
$2.00 per share or, (2) the volume weighted average price per share (“VWAP”) for the 20 trading days immediately prior to the Conversion Date.  As discussed in Note 11, the
Series B Preferred Stock has been classified as a liability (pursuant to ASC 480-10-25-14(a)) since it embodies a conditional obligation that the Company may settle by issuing a
variable number of equity shares and the monetary value of the obligation is based on a fixed monetary amount known at inception.
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Iconic Brands, Inc. and Subsidiary
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2009
 
In the three months ended September 30, 2009, a total of $122,500 of debt and $28,147 of accrued interest was converted into a total of 300,110 shares of Company common
stock.
 
On August 19, 2009, the Company sold 1,000,000 shares of its common stock at $.50 per share, including 1,000,000 five year warrants with an exercise price of $1.00 per share
(which was reduced to $0.01 per share on December 14, 2009 in connection with a $100,000 loan from the investor) and 1,000,000 five year warrants with an exercise price of
$1.50 per share, to an investor for total proceeds of $500,000.
 
On October 6, 2009, the Company issued 1,000,000 shares of its common stock to a consultant pursuant to a one month consulting agreement for financial services. The Company
included this issuance in its consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2009 in professional fees at the $200,000 estimated fair value of the shares.
 
8.  INCOME TAXES
 
From September 9, 1999 (inception) to December 31, 2006, the Company filed its Federal and New York income tax returns as an S Corporation. Accordingly, the net income
(loss) of the Company for this period was includible in the tax returns of the Company shareholders and the Company was not subject to income tax.
 
No provision for income taxes was recorded in the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 since the Company incurred a net loss in these periods.
 
Based on management’s present assessment, the Company has not yet determined it to be more likely than not that a deferred tax asset of $2,784,548 attributable to the future
utilization of the $7,955,852 net operating loss carryforward as of December 31, 2009 will be realized. Accordingly, the Company has provided a 100% allowance against the
deferred tax asset in the financial statements at December 31, 2009. The Company will continue to review this valuation allowance and make adjustments as appropriate. The
$7,955,852 net operating loss carryforward expires $3,126,077 in 2027, $2,948,525 in 2028, and $1,881,250 in 2029.
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December 31, 2009
 
Current tax laws limit the amount of loss available to be offset against future taxable income when a substantial change in ownership occurs. Therefore, the amount available to
offset future taxable income may be limited.
 
9.  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
 
Rental agreements – The Company occupied its facilities in Freeport, New York up until March 2009 under a month to month agreement at a monthly rent of $14,350.  In March
2009, the Company moved its facilities to Lindenhurst, New York pursuant to a three year lease agreement providing for annual rentals ranging from $85,100 to
$90,283.  Provided certain conditions are met, the Company has an option to renew the lease for an additional two years at annual rentals ranging from $92,991 to $95,781.
 
For the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, rent expense was $117,329 and $171,776, respectively.
 
License agreement – On April 26, 2007 and as amended November 1, 2007, the Company entered into an exclusive License Agreement with Seven Cellos, LLC (“DDV”),
pursuant to which the Company was granted a limited license of certain rights in and to Danny DeVito’s name, likeness and biography for use by the Company in connection with
the Danny DeVito Premium Limoncello brand.  The term of the Agreement continues through perpetuity unless the agreement is terminated.  In consideration for the license, the
Company agreed to pay royalties as follows: (a) 5% of Net Profits (as defined) to Behr Abrahamson & Kaller, LLP (“BAK”), (b) a payment of 50% of the remaining Net Profits to
DDV after the payment described above; and (c) a payment of 2% of Net Profits to Sichenzia Ross Friedman Ference LLP after payment of 50% of Net Profits to DDV.
 
 Danny DeVito agreed to use reasonable efforts to be available for a reasonable number of promotional appearances during each consecutive 12 month period, the duration of
which shall not exceed 2 days.  Pursuant to the agreement, Danny DeVito granted the Company a right of first refusal for a period of 5 years to license any other liquor, spirit or
alcoholic beverage which Danny DeVito may determine to endorse or develop.  A condition precedent to Danny DeVito’s performance under the agreement are subject to the
Company applying for a trademark for the brand name “Danny DeVito’s Premium Limoncello” with Danny DeVito being designated as 50% co-owner of such trademark.  The
Company registered this trademark with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office (trademark application number 77152934).
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Iconic Brands, Inc. and Subsidiary
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2009
 
For the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company calculated cumulative “Net Profits” from the brand to be negative and thus did not pay or accrue any royalty
expense under the License Agreement.
 
Merchandising license agreement - On June 12, 2009, Iconic Imports, Inc., the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a merchandising license agreement (the
“License Agreement”) with Paramount Licensing Inc., (“PLI”) granting Iconic Imports the non-exclusive right to use the title of the theatrical motion picture “The Godfather” in
connection with the development, importation, marketing, and distribution of an Italian organic vodka and Scotch whiskey throughout the United States. Under the terms of the
License Agreement, which has a term of 5 years ending on June 30, 2014 and may be extended to June 30, 2019 upon certain conditions unless it is sooner terminated, the
Company agreed to pay PLI a royalty fee of five percent (5%) and guarantee a total of $400,000 in royalties due as follows; (1) $60,000 as an advance payment due upon signing
of the License Agreement, (2) $100,000 due on or before November 1, 2010, (3) $100,000 due on or before November 1, 2011, and (4) $140,000 due on or before November 1,
2012. In addition, PLI was granted warrants to purchase shares of the Company’s common stock in substantially the same form as other warrants previously issued, which is (a) a
five-year warrant to purchase 1,000,000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $1.00 per share; and (b) a five-year warrant to purchase 1,333,334 shares of our
common stock at an exercise price of $1.50 per share. On August 12, 2009, the Company paid $60,000 to PLI as the advance royalty due under the License Agreement. The
License Agreement became effective on this date as the advance payment was a condition precedent to the effectiveness of the License Agreement.
 
At March 31, 2010, the Company has not yet commenced sales of the product named “The Godfather”. For the year ended December 31, 2009, the Company expensed $40,000
(included in selling, marketing and promotion expenses in the consolidated statement of operations) to provide for the ratable accrual of the $400,000 minimum royalties over 5
year term of the License Agreement.
 
Employment agreement with chief executive officer - On January 23, 2008, the Company entered into an employment agreement with its chief executive officer Richard
DeCicco.  The agreement provides for a term of 5 years, commencing on January 1, 2008.  The term can be extended by a written agreement of the parties.  The agreement
provides for annual compensation ranging from $265,000 to $350,000.  In addition, if the Company enters into an agreement and further sells any brand in the Company’s
portfolio, Mr. DeCicco will receive 5% of such sale.  Mr. DeCicco is also entitled to incentive bonus compensation, stock and/or options in accordance with Company policies
established by the Board of Directors.  The agreement provides for the grant of a non-qualified ten year option to purchase up to 1,000,000 shares of common stock of the
Company at an exercise price which shall represent a discount to the market price. Mr. DeCicco has the right to terminate the agreement upon 60 days notice to the Company for
any reason.  Pursuant to the terms of the agreement, if Mr. DeCicco is absent from work because of illness or incapacity cumulatively for more than 2 months in addition to
vacation time in any calendar year, the Company may terminate the agreement upon 30 days written notice.  The agreement also provides that the agreement may be terminated
upon 90 days notice to Mr. DeCicco if: (A) there is a sale of substantially all of the Company’s assets to a single purchaser or group of associated purchasers; (B) there is a sale,
exchange or disposition of 50% of the outstanding shares of the Company’s outstanding stock; (C) the Company terminates its business or liquidates its assets; or (D) there is a
merger or consolidation of the Company in which the Company’s shareholders receive less than 50% of the outstanding voting shares of the new or continuing corporation. Mr.
DeCicco shall be entitled to severance pay in the amount of 2 years compensation and medical and other benefits in the event of a termination of the agreement under certain
circumstances

 
F-17



Table of Contents
 

Iconic Brands, Inc. and Subsidiary
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2009
 
Employment agreement with chief financial officer - On October 1, 2007, the Company entered into an employment agreement with its chief financial officer William
Blacker.  The agreement provides for a term of 3 years, commencing on October 1, 2007.  The term can be extended by a written agreement of the parties.  The Company agreed to
issue options to purchase shares of its common stock to Mr. Blacker if and when the common stock becomes publicly traded, as follows: (A) upon execution of the agreement,
100,000 options at an exercise price of $0.05 per share; (B) on October 1, 2008, 100,000 options at an exercise price of $0.15 per share; and (C) on October 1, 2009, 100,000
options at an exercise price of $.75 per share.  Pursuant to the terms of the agreement, Mr. Blacker is to receive an annual salary of $150,000.  Mr. Blacker has the right to
terminate the agreement upon 60 days notice to the Company for any reason.  The agreement further provides that if the agreement is terminated for any reason other than willful
malfeasance by Mr. Blacker, Mr. Blacker shall be entitled to receive severance pay in the amount of 6 months or the balance of the agreement’s term of existence, whichever is
greater, and shall receive all benefits under the agreement.
 
The $16,850 estimated fair value of the 300,000 options (using the Black-Scholes option pricing model and the following assumptions: $0.10 stock price, 4% risk free interest rate,
100% volatility, and term of 3.5 years) is being amortized over the 3 year term of the employment agreement as compensation and benefits.
 
Legal proceedings – The Company is party to a variety of legal proceedings that arise in the normal course of business.  We accrue for these items as losses become probable and
can be reasonably estimated.  While the results of these legal proceedings cannot be predicted with certainty, management believes that the final outcome of these proceedings will
not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated results of operations or financial position.
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10.  STOCK OPTIONS AND WARRANTS
 
A summary of stock option and warrant activity for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2009 follows:
 
  Stock     
  Options   Warrants  
Outstanding at January 1, 2008   300,000   3,887,500 
Granted and issued   1,000,000   1,870,000 
Exercised   -   - 
Forfeited/expired/cancelled   -   - 
Outstanding at December 31, 2008   1,300,000   5,757,500 
Granted and issued   -   6,173,334 
Exercised   -   - 
Forfeited/expired/cancelled   -   (165,000)
Outstanding at December 31, 2009   1,300,000   11,765,834 
 

Stock options outstanding at September 30, 2009 consist of:
 

Date  Number   Number   Exercise  Expiration
Granted  Outstanding   Exercisable   Price  Date

October 1, 2007   100,000   100,000  $ 0.05 April 1, 2011
October 1, 2007   100,000   100,000  $ 0.15 April 1, 2011
October 1, 2007   100,000   100,000  $ 0.75 April 1, 2011
January 1, 2008   1,000,000   -  $ 0.10(a) June 30, 2018

              
Total   1,300,000   300,000      

 
(a) Estimated since exercise price is to be determined based on future stock price.
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As of September 30, 2009, there was $58,634 of total unrecognized compensation cost relating to unexpired stock options.  That cost is expected to be recognized $22,352 in 2010,
$18,140 in 2011, and $18,142 in 2012.
 
Warrants outstanding at December 31, 2009 consist of:
 

Date  Number   Number   Exercise  Expiration
Issued  Outstanding   Exercisable   Price  Date

July 2, 2007   500,000   500,000  $ 1.00 July 2, 2012
July 2, 2007   500,000   500,000  $ 1.50 July 2, 2012

August 27, 2007   550,000   550,000  $ 1.00 August 27, 2012
August 27, 2007   550,000   550,000  $ 1.50 August 27, 2012

November 8, 2007   811,250   811,250  $ 1.00 November 8, 2012
November 8, 2007   811,250   811,250  $ 1.50 November 8, 2012

March 5, 2008   192,500   192,500  $ 1.00 March 5, 2013
March 5, 2008   192,500   192,500  $ 1.50 March 5, 2013
June 10, 2008   27,500   27,500  $ 1.00 June 10, 2013
June 10, 2008   27,500   27,500  $ 1.50 June 10, 2013
June 10, 2008   25,000   25,000  $ 1.00 December 10, 2013
June 10, 2008   25,000   25,000  $ 1.50 December 10, 2013

June 11,  2008   30,000   30,000  $ 1.00 December 10, 2013
June 11, 2008   30,000   30,000  $ 1.50 December 10, 2013

July 2, 2008   110,000   110,000  $ 1.00 January 2, 2014
July 2, 2008   110,000   110,000  $ 1.50 January 2, 2014

July 23, 2008   50,000   50,000  $ 1.00 January 23, 2014
July 23, 2008   50,000   50,000  $ 1.50 January 23, 2014

August 11, 2008   1,000,000   1,000,000  $ 1.00 August 11, 2013
June 10, 2009   1,000,000   1,000,000  $ 0.50 June 10, 2014
July 23, 2009   20,000   20,000  $ 1.00 July 23, 2014
July 23, 2009   20,000   20,000  $ 1.50 July 23, 2014

August 12, 2009   1,000,000   1,000,000  $ 1.00 June 12, 2014
August 12, 2009   1,333,334   1,333,334  $ 1.50 June 12, 2014
August 19, 2009   1,000,000   1,000,000  $ 0.01 August 19, 2014
August 19, 2009   1,000,000   1,000,000  $ 1.50 August 19, 2014

September 14, 2009   200,000   200,000  $ 1.00 September 14, 2014
September 14, 2009   200,000   200,000  $ 1.50 September 14, 2014
September 16, 2009   200,000   200,000  $ 1.00 July 2, 2014
September 16, 2009   200,000   200,000  $ 1.50 July 2, 2014

              
Total   11,765,834   11,765,834      
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11. RESTATEMENT OF PREVIOUSLY ISSUED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 
The Company has restated in this Form 10-K/A its consolidated financial statements at December 31, 2009 and for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 (which were
previously included in the Company’s Form 10-K filed with the SEC on April 15, 2010) in order to correct errors relating to (1) the classification of  the Series B Preferred Stock
which represents an equity security with  characteriscs of a liability and (2) the computed number of weighted average number of common shares outstanding used in the net loss
per common share computations for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 concerning common shares issued on June 10, 2009 related to the Harbrew merger (which
merger is discussed in Note 7).
 
As previously reported, the Company classified the Series B Preferred Stock issued on June 10, 2009 as stockholders’ deficiency.  Pursuant to ASC 480-10-25-14(a), the Series B
Preferred Stock should have been classified as a liability since it embodies a conditional obligation that the Company may settle by issuing a variable number of equity shares and
the monetary value of the obligation is based on a fixed monetary amount known at inception.
 
The computed weighted average number of shares used in the net loss computations for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 were increased to reflect shares issued in the
Harbew merger in the period preceding the merger for comparability of loss per share computation in both years.
 
The effect of the restatement adjustments on the consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2009 follows:
 

  
As Previously

Reported   Adjustments   As Restated  
Total assets  $ 1,145,381  $ -  $ 1,145,381 
             

Total current liabilities  $ 3,594,396  $ -  $ 3,594,396 
Long term debt   1,774,944   -   1,774,944 
Series B preferred stock - an equity security with characteristics of a liability   -   1,833,206   1,833,206 

Total Liabilities   5,369,340   1,833,206   7,202,546 
Stockholders’ equity (deficiency):             

Series A preferred stock   1   -   1 
Series B preferred stock - an equity security with characteristics of a liability   1,833,206   (1,833,206)   - 
Common stock   448   -   448 
Additional paid-in capital   7,327,955   -   7,327,955 
Accumulated deficit   (13,385,569)   -   (13,385,569)

             
Total stockholders’ equity (deficiency)   (4,223,959)   (1,833,206)   (6,057,165)

             
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity (deficiency)  $ 1,145,381  $ -  $ 1,145,381 
 
The effect of the restatement adjustments on the consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2008 follows:
 

  
As Previously

Reported   Adjustments   As Restated  
Net income (loss)  $ (3,679,333)  $ -  $ (3,679,333)
Net Income (loss) per common share – basic and diluted  $ (183.36)  $ 183.23  $ (0.13)
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding – basic and diluted   20,066   27,327,317   27,347,383 
 
The effect of the restatement adjustments on the consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2009 follows:

 
F-21



Table of Contents
 

  
As Previously

Reported   Adjustments   As Restated  
Net income (loss)  $ (4,907,434)  $ -  $ (4,907,434)
Net Income (loss) per common share – basic and diluted  $ (0.20)  $ 0.07  $ (0.13)
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding – basic and diluted   24,471,035   12,142,381   36,613,416 
 
 
12.  SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
 
License Agreement:
 
On January 15, 2010, we entered into an exclusive License Agreement with Tony Siragusa, pursuant to which we were granted a limited license to certain rights in and to Tony
Siragusa’s name, likeness and biography for use by us in connection with Tony Siragusa’s YO Vodka. The term of the agreement is four (4) years. In consideration for the license,
we agreed to distribute net profits of the venture as follows: 42.5% to the Company, 42.5% to the licensor, 10% to William Morris Endeavor Entertainment, LLC and 5% to Brian
Hughes. In addition, we issued 250,000 shares  of the Company’s common stock, 5 year warrants to purchase 500,000 shares of our Common Stock at a price of $1.00 per share,
and 5 year warrants to purchase 500,000 shares of our Common Stock at price of $1.50 per share. Tony Siragusa agreed to use reasonable efforts to be available for a reasonable
number of promotional appearances during each consecutive 12 month period, the duration of which will not exceed six days. A condition precedent to Tony Siragusa’s
performance under the agreement is our applying for a trademark for the brand name “Yo Vodka,” with Licensor being designated as a 50% co-owner of such trademark. We
applied for the trademark on March 9, 2010 (trademark application number 77747523), which application is currently being reviewed by the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.
 
Consultants:
 
On January 4, 2010, a consulting agreement was entered into between the Company and CorProminence LLC, under which CorProminence would provide services for
management consulting, business advisory, shareholder information and public relations for a term of 45 days. In return for the services contemplated, the Company issued
300,000 shares of the Company’s common stock.
 
On March 16, 2010, an amendment was made to an agreement with Cresta Capital Strategies LLC extending their financial advisor services for 12 months. In consideration of this
extension, the Company issued 2,000,000 shares of common stock and 2,000,000 five year warrants with an exercise price of $0.25 per share.
 
Common Stock Issuances:
 
On January 6 and 13, 2010, the Company issued a total of 200,000 shares of common stock, 100,000 five year warrants exercisable at $0.22 per share, and 100,000 five year
warrants exercisable at $0.23 per share to an investor in exchange for a $200,000 loan.
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On January 15 and 25, 2010, the Company issued a total of 152,546 shares of common stock to three investors in satisfaction of a total of $62,500 of convertible debt and
approximately $13,773 of accrued interest.
 
On February 8, 2010, the Company issued 250,000 shares of common stock and 1,000,000 warrants to Tony Siragusa pursuant to the License Agreement described above.
 
On February 24, 2010, the Company issued 300,000 shares of common stock to CorProminence pursuant to the consulting agreement described above.
 
On March 16, 2010, the Company issued 2,000,000 shares of common stock to Cresta Capital Strategies pursuant to the consulting agreement described above.
 
On March 31, 2010, the Company has 47,712,957 shares of common stock issued and outstanding.
 
Debt:
 
On January 4 and 13, 2010, the Company issued 2 promissory notes to an investor in the amount of $110,000 each in exchange for cash loans totaling $200,000 (see paragraph 1
of Common Stock Issuances above). The notes bear interest at 13% per annum and are payable on March 31, 2010 and May 31, 2010, respectively.
 
Other:
 
The Company has evaluated subsequent events through the filing date of this Form 10-K and has determined that there were no additional subsequent events to recognize or
disclose in these financial statements.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
 
None.
 
ITEM 9A(T). CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
 
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
 
The Company’s management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, carried out an evaluation of the effectiveness of our “Company’s
disclosure, controls and procedures” (as defined in Rules Rule 13a-15(3) and 15-d-15(3) of the e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) as of the end of the period covered by
this Annual Report (the “Evaluation Date”). As a result of such evaluation, Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer have concluded that, as of the Evaluation Date,
our such disclosure, controls and procedures are effective, providing them with material to provide reasonable assurance that the information relating to our company as required to
be disclosed in the reports we file the Company files or submits under the Securities Exchange Act on a timely basis.
 
There were no changes in our internal controls over of 1934 is (i) recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange
Commission's   rules and forms, and (ii) accumulated and communicated to management, including the Company’s principal executive and principal financial reporting, known to
our Chief Executive Officer or Chief Financial Officer, persons performing such functions, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding disclosure. The Company believes
that a control system, no matter how well designed and operated, cannot provide absolute assurance that the objectives of the control system are met, and no evaluation of controls
can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within a company have been detected.
 
Management's Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting.
 
The management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting for the Company.  Our internal control system
was designed to, in general, provide reasonable assurance to the Company’s management and board regarding the preparation and fair presentation of published financial
statements, but because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.  Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.
 
Our management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2009.  The framework used by management in making
that assessment was the criteria set forth in the document entitled “ Internal Control – Integrated Framework” issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission. Based on that assessment, our management has determined that as of December 31, 2009, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting was
effective for the purposes for which it is intended.
 
This annual report does not include an attestation report of the Company’s registered public accounting firm regarding internal control over financial reporting. Management's
report was not subject to attestation by the Company's registered public accounting firm pursuant to temporary rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission that permit the
Company to provide only management's report in this annual report.
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Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
 
No change in our system of internal control over financial reporting occurred during the period covered by this report, fourth quarter of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009
that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
 

PART III
 
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, PROMOTERS AND CONTROL PERSONS;
Directors and Executive Officers
 

NAME AGE POSITION
Richard J. DeCicco 52 President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
William S. Blacker 65 Chief Financial Officer and Senior Vice President of Finance and Administration

 
 
Richard J. DeCicco, Mr. DeCicco has served as president, secretary and a director of Iconic Brands, Inc. since 2007.  Mr. DeCicco also served as president of Harbrew Imports
Ltd. since its inception in 1999.  With over 34 years experience in the global liquor industry, Mr. DeCicco has been a senior executive and a leader in the wine and spirits
industry.  Prior to his appointment at Harbrew Imports Ltd, Mr. DeCicco was the CEO and President of Harbor Industries from 1990 to 1997. Harbor Industries is a production
facility, which handles over 2 million cases of products per year and with over 600 employees.  In addition to having been the national provider for The Paddington Corporation
brands from 1990 to 1997, Mr. DeCicco pioneered what is now known within the field as Value Added Packaging (VAP).  Mr. DeCicco brings a great deal of creativity, market
savvy, and brand development knowledge to our company.
 
William S. Blacker has served as our Chief Financial Officer and Vice President of Finance and Administration since October 2007 and from November 2002 to September 2007,
Mr. Blacker served as the Senior Vice President of the Israel Humanitarian Foundation, a non-profit organization, where he was responsible for treasury and accounting
functions.  From 1999 through 2002, Mr. Blacker served as Vice President at Harbor Industries (U.S) Ltd., a spirits company.  Mr. Blacker received a B.S. in Accounting from
Long Island University and completed an Executive Program at Columbia University.
 
There are no familial relationships among any of our directors or officers. None of our directors or officers is a director in any other U.S. reporting companies. None of our
directors or officers has been affiliated with any company that has filed for bankruptcy within the last five years. The Company is not aware of any proceedings to which any of the
Company’s officers or directors, or any associate of any such officer or director, is a party adverse to the Company or any of the Company’s subsidiaries or has a material interest
adverse to it or any of its subsidiaries.
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Each director of the Company serves for a term of one year or until the successor is elected at the Company's annual shareholders' meeting and is qualified, subject to removal by
the Company's shareholders. Each officer serves, at the pleasure of the board of directors, for a term of one year and until the successor is elected at the annual meeting of the
board of directors and is qualified.
 
Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance
 
Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires officers and directors of the Company and persons who own more than ten percent of a registered class of the
Company's equity securities to file reports of ownership and changes in their ownership with the Securities and Exchange Commission, and forward copies of such filings to the
Company. We believe, based solely on our review of the copies of such forms, that during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009, all reporting persons complied with all
applicable Section 16(a) filing requirements.
 
Auditors; Code of Ethics; Financial Expert
 
 
Auditors
 
Michael T. Studer CPA., an independent registered public accounting firm, is our auditor.
 
We do not have an audit committee financial expert.  We do not have an audit committee financial expert because we believe the cost related to retaining a financial expert at this
time is prohibitive.  Furthermore, because we are only beginning our commercial operations, at the present time, we believe the services of a financial expert are not warranted.
 
Potential Conflicts of Interest
 
Since we do not have an audit or compensation committee comprised of independent directors, the functions that would have been performed by such committees are performed by
our directors. The Board of Directors has not established an audit committee and does not have an audit committee financial expert, nor has the Board established a nominating
committee. The Board is of the opinion that such committees are not necessary since the Company has only one director, and to date, such director has been performing the
functions of such committees. Thus, there is a potential conflict of interest in that sole officer and director has the authority to determine issues concerning management
compensation, nominations, and audit issues that may affect management decisions. We are not aware of any other conflicts of interest with any of our executive officers or
directors.
 
Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings
 
Kindly refer to Part I, Item 3 for a description of the various legal proceeding to which the Company is a party.
 
ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
 
Summary Compensation
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Richard J. DeCicco
 
Richard DeCicco has been serving as our President, Chief Executive Officer and a director since January 1, 2008.  The terms of his compensation are set forth in his Employment
agreement, dated January 23, 2008 (“DeCicco Employment Agreement”).  DeCicco Employment Agreement, provides for a term of 5 years, commencing on January 1, 2008,
which can be extended by a written agreement of the parties.  The agreement provides for annual compensation ranging from $265,000 to $350,000.  In addition, if the Company
enters into an agreement and further sells any brand in the Company’s portfolio, Mr. DeCicco will receive 5% of such sale.  Mr. DeCicco is also entitled to incentive bonus
compensation, stock and/or options in accordance with Company policies established by the Board of Directors.  The agreement provides for the grant of a non-qualified ten year
option to purchase up to 1,000,000 shares of common stock of the Company at an exercise price which shall represent a discount to the market price. Mr. DeCicco has the right to
terminate the agreement upon 60 days notice to the Company for any reason.  Pursuant to the terms of the agreement, if Mr. DeCicco is absent from work because of illness or
incapacity cumulatively for more than 2 months in addition to vacation time in any calendar year, the Company may terminate the agreement upon 30 days written notice.  The
agreement also provides that the agreement may be terminated upon 90 days notice to Mr. DeCicco if: (A) there is a sale of substantially all of the Company’s assets to a single
purchaser or group of associated purchasers; (B) there is a sale, exchange or disposition of 50% of the outstanding shares of the Company’s outstanding stock; (C) the Company
terminates its business or liquidates its assets; or (D) there is a merger or consolidation of the Company in which the Company’s shareholders receive less than 50% of the
outstanding voting shares of the new or continuing corporation. Mr. DeCicco shall be entitled to severance pay in the amount of 2 years compensation and medical and other
benefits in the event of a termination of the agreement under certain circumstances
 
As of fiscal year ended December 31, 2009, no payments were made to Mr. DeCicco on his 2009 salary but 200,000 stock options vested in his favor. The vested stock options
shall be exercisable until June 30, 2018 at the exercise price of $.10 per share.
.
As of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008, the Company paid Mr. DeCicco $24,300 of his annual salary of $265,000. The remaining balance is still outstanding. As of
December 31, 2008, 200,000 stock options vested in Mr. DeCicco’s favor. The vested stock options shall be exercisable until June 30, 2018 at the exercise price of $.10 per share.
.
On August 8, 2008, the Company issued 2,731 shares of common stock to Mr. DeCicco in consideration for services rendered valued in the amount of $273,096, the estimated fair
market value of the shares.
 
 As of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, The Company paid Mr. DeCicco $88,600 of his annual salary of $265,000. The remaining balance of is still outstanding. He
received no other compensation during such fiscal year.
 
William D. Blacker
 
Richard DeCicco has been serving as our Chief Financial Officer and a director since October 1, 2007.  The terms of his compensation are set forth in his Employment agreement,
dated On October 1, 2007 (“Blacker Agreement”), The Blacker Agreement provides for a term of 3 years, commencing on October 1, 2007, which can be extended by a written
agreement of the parties.  The Company agreed to issue options to purchase shares of its common stock to Mr. Blacker if and when the common stock becomes publicly traded, as
follows: (A) upon execution of the agreement, 100,000 options at an exercise price of $0.05 per share; (B) on October 1, 2008, 100,000 options at an exercise price of $0.15 per
share; and (C) on October 1, 2009, 100,000 options at an exercise price of $.75 per share.  Pursuant to the terms of the agreement, Mr. Blacker is to receive an annual salary of
$150,000.  Mr. Blacker has the right to terminate the agreement upon 60 days notice to the Company for any reason.  The agreement further provides that if the agreement is
terminated for any reason other than willful malfeasance by Mr. Blacker, Mr. Blacker shall be entitled to receive severance pay in the amount of 6 months or the balance of the
agreement’s term of existence, whichever is greater, and shall receive all benefits under the agreement.
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Pursuant to Blacker Employment Agreement, Mr Blacker is entitled to a salary $173,643 in 2009 but no payments was made to Mr. Blacker as of the end of the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2009. As of said period 100,000 stock options were vested in his favor. The exercise price of the stock options at December 31, 2009 was $0.15 per share and the
stock. The vested stock options shall be exercisable until April 1, 2011.
 
As of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008, Mr. Blacker’s salary was $165,375 of which he was paid a total $25,962. As of the date hereof, the remaining balance is owed by
the Company to Mr. Blacker. As of said period 100,000 stock options were vested in his favor. The exercise price of the stock options at December 31, 2008 was $0.05 per share
and the vested stock options are exercisable until April 1, 2011.
 
As of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, Mr. Blacker’s salary was $150,000 of which he was paid a pro-rated amount of $25,962. He received no other compensation during
such fiscal year.
 

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE
 
 
The following table sets forth information with respect to compensation paid by us to our officers and directors during the three most recent fiscal years. This information includes
the dollar value of base salaries, bonus awards and number of stock options granted, and certain other compensation, if any.
 
               Non-   Nonqualified        

Name               Equity   Deferred   All     
and         Stock   Option   Incentive   Compensation   Other     

Principal   Salary   Bonus   Awards   Awards   Plan   Earnings   Compensation   Total  
Position Year  (US$)   (US$)   (US$)   (US$)   (US$)   (US$)   (US$)   (US$)  

(a) (b)  (c)   (d)   (e)   (f)   (g)   (h)   (i)   (j)  
Richard
DeCicco 2009   265,000(1) (2)   0   0   0   200,00(3) (4)  0   0   285,000 
President, CEO 2008   265,000(6)   0  $ 273,096(5)  0   200,000(3)   0   0   558,096 
 2007   265,000(7)   0   0   0   0   0   0   265,000 
                                  
William Blacker 2009   173,643(8)(9)   0   0   0   15,000(3)(5)   0   0   188,643 
CFO, SVP of 2008   165,375(8)(10)  0   0   0   5,000(3)(5)   0   0   170,375 
Finance 2007   150,000(8)(11)  0   0   0   0   0   0   0 
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 1. Pursuant to terms of the Employment Agreement dated January 23, 2007 between Richard DeCicco and the Company (“DeCicco Employment Agreement”), Mr.

DeCicco is entitled to an annual salary of $265,000 for a period of five years commencing on January 1, 2008.
 
 2. As of December 31, 2009, Mr. DeCicco did not receive any payments from the Company for 2009 salary.
 
 3. Pursuant to DeCicco Employment Agreement, Mr. DeCicco was granted 1,000,000 stock options at an exercise price of $0.10 per share of which 200,000 shall vest on

December 31 of each year until fully vested.
 
 4. As of the date of this report, the options have not been exercised.
 
 5. On August 8, 2008, the Company issued 2,731 shares of common stock to Mr. DeCicco in consideration for services rendered valued in the amount of $273,096, the

estimated fair market value of the shares.
 
 6. As of December 31, 2008, Mr. DeCicco was paid $24,300 of his annual salary of $265,000. As of the date hereof, the remaining balance is owed by the Company to Mr.

DeCicco.
 
 7. As of December 31, 2007, Mr. DeCicco was paid $88,600 of his annual salary of $265,000. As of the date hereof, the remaining balance is owed by the Company to Mr.

DeCicco.
 
 8. Pursuant to the terms of the Employment Agreement dated October 1, 2007, between William Blacker and the Company (“Blacker Employment Agreement”), Mr.

Blacker is entitled to a salary of $150,000 for the first year and a raise of 5% per annum.
 
 9. Pursuant to Blacker Employment Agreement, Mr Blacker was entitled to $173,643 as salary for 2009. As of the dated hereof, the entire amount is stilling owing to Mr.

Blacker.
 
 10. As of December 31, 2008, Mr. Blacker’s salary was $165,375 of which Mr. Blacker was paid a total $25,962. As of the date hereof, the remaining balance is owed by

the Company to Mr. Blacker.
 
 11. As of December 31, 2007, Mr. Blacker was paid a pro-rated salary of $34,615.
 
Outstanding Equity Awards
 
The table set forth below presents certain information concerning unexercised options, stock that has not vested, and equity incentive plan awards for each named executive
officer above outstanding as of December 31, 2009.
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OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT FISCAL YEAR-END  
OPTION AWARDS  STOCK AWARDS  

Name
(a)  

Number of
Securities
Underlying
Unexercised
Options
(#)
Exercisable
(b)   

Number of
Securities
Underlying
Unexercised
Options
(#)
Unexercisable
(c)   

Equity
Incentive Plan
Awards:
Number of
Securities
Underlying
Unexercised
Unearned
Options
(#)
(d)   

Option
Exercise
Price
($)
(e)  

Option
Expiration Date
(f)  

Number of
Shares or
Units of
Stock That
Have Not
Vested
(#)
(g)   

Market Value
of Shares or
Units of
Stock That
Have Not
Vested
($)
(h)   

Equity
Incentive Plan
Awards:
Number of
Unearned
Shares, Units
or Other
Rights That
Have Not
Vested
(#)
(i)   

Equity
Incentive Plan
Awards:
Market or
Payout Value
of Unearned
Shares, Units
or Other
Rights That
Have Not
Vested
(#)
(j)  

Richard
DeCicco
President, CEO   1,000,000(1)  0   0  $ 0.10  06/1/2018   600,000   0   0   0 
William
Blacker
CFO, SVP of
Finance   300,000(2)  0   0    (2)04/1/11   0   0   0   0 
 
(1)  Pursuant to an Employment Agreement, dated January 23, 2008, between our Company and Richard DeCicco, our Chief Executive Officer and Director, we granted to Mr.
DeCicco 1,000,000 stock options, vesting at the rate of 200,000 stock options per year over the five years period commencing December 31, 2008 and are exercisable until June
1, 2018.  As of December 31, 2009, 400,000 of such stock options had vested.
(2)  Pursuant to an Employment Agreement, dated October 1, 2007, between our Company and William Blacker, our Chief Financial Officer, we granted to Mr. Blacker stock
options vested (i) upon execution of the agreement, 100,000 options at an exercise price of $0.05 per share; (ii) on October 1, 2008, 100,000 options at an exercise price of $0.15
per share; and (iii) on October 1, 2009, 100,000 options at an exercise price of $.75 per share. The vested stock options are exercisable until April 1, 2011. As of December 31,
2009, 300,000 of such stock options had vested.
 
Compensation of Directors
 
During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009, no director received any type of compensation from the Company in exchange for their services as directors. No arrangements are
presently in place regarding compensation to directors for their services as directors or for committee participation or special assignments.
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ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
 
The following table lists, as of December 31, 2009, the number of shares of Common Stock beneficially owned by (i) each person or entity known to the Company to be the
beneficial owner of more than 5% of the outstanding common stock; (ii) each officer and director of the Company; and (iii) all officers and directors as a group. Information
relating to beneficial ownership of common stock by our principal stockholders and management is based upon information furnished by each person using “beneficial ownership”
concepts under the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission. Under these rules, a person is deemed to be a beneficial owner of a security if that person has or shares
voting power, which includes the power to vote or direct the voting of the security, or investment power, which includes the power to vote or direct the voting of the security. The
person is also deemed to be a beneficial owner of any security of which that person has a right to acquire beneficial ownership within 60 days. Under the Securities and Exchange
Commission rules, more than one person may be deemed to be a beneficial owner of the same securities, and a person may be deemed to be a beneficial owner of securities as to
which he or she may not have any pecuniary beneficial interest. Except as noted below, each person has sole voting and investment power.

 
  Title of Class, Amount, Nature and     
  Percentage of Beneficial Ownership(1)     
  Common Stock(2)   Series A Preferred Stock (3)     

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner  No. of Shares   Percent of Class   No. of Shares   Percent Of Class   

Percent of
Combined Voting

Power of All
Classes (4)  

                
                     

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner  
No. of
Shares   

Percent
of

Class   
No. of
Shares   

Percent
Of

Class  

 

Percent of
Combined

Voting
Power of All
Classes (4)

 

Richard DeCicco   16,375,090 (5)   36.2%(6)  1   66.7%   79% 
William S. Blacker   400,000   *   0   0   *% 
Donald Chadwell   2,586,753   6.03%   0   0   2% 
Edd Cockerill   0   0   0   0   0 
All executive officers and directors, as a group (2 person)   16,475,090   42.83%   1   66.7%   79% 
* less than 1%
 
Notes
 
 (1) Unless otherwise indicated, the persons or entities identified herein have sole voting and investment power with respect to the shares shown as beneficially held by

them, subject to community property laws where applicable.
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 (2) Applicable percentage of ownership is based on 44,810,411 shares of Common Stock outstanding as of December 31, 2009. Beneficial ownership is determined in

accordance with the rules of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 and generally includes voting or investment power with respect to such securities. Shares of
Common Stock subject to securities exercisable for or convertible into shares of Common Stock that are currently exercisable or exercisable within sixty (60) days are
deemed to be beneficially owned by the person holding such options, warrants, rights, conversion privileges or similar obligations, for the purpose of computing the
percentage of ownership of such person, but are not treated as outstanding for the purpose of computing the percentage ownership of any other person.

 
 (3) Applicable percentage ownership is based on one (1) share of Series A Preferred Stock outstanding as of December 31, 2009 and calculated by taking the voting power

of the Series A as included with the class of Common Stock.
 
 (4) Applicable percentage of combined voting power is based on (i) 44,810,411 shares of Common Stock, and (ii) one (1) shares of Series A Preferred Stock, which votes

together as a single class with the Common Stock on all matters subject to stockholder approval and has voting power equal to two (2) votes for every share of Common
Stock outstanding.

 
 (5) The number of shares owned by Mr. DeCicco includes, 15,972,359 shares of common stock issued pursuant to the Agreement and Plan of Merger dated June 10, 2009;

2,731 shares of common stock issued on August 8, 2008 in consideration for services rendered; and 400,000 shares of common stock to be issued upon the exercise of
options vested as of December 31, 2009, in accordance with the terms of the Employment Agreement between the Company and Mr. DeCicco.

 
 (6) The percentage of class of common stock owned by Mr. DeCicco is calculated based on 45,210,411 shares issued and outstanding on a fully diluted basic had Mr.

DeCicco exercise the options at December 31, 2009.
 
 (7) Pursuant to the terms of the Employment Agreement between the Company and William Blacker, Mr. Blacker is entitled to: (i) upon execution of the agreement,

100,000 options at an exercise price of $0.05 per share; (ii) on October 1, 2008, 100,000 options at an exercise price of $0.15 per share; and (iii) on October 1, 2009,
100,000 options at an exercise price of $.75 per share.

 
 (8) The percentage of class of common stock owned by Mr. Blacker is calculated based on 45,110,411 shares issued and outstanding on a fully diluted basic had Mr.

Blacker exercise the options at December 31, 2009.
 
 
ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
 
Employment agreement with Chief Executive Officer
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On January 23, 2008, the Company entered into an employment agreement with its Chief Executive Officer Richard J. DeCicco.  The agreement provides for a term of 5 years,
commencing on January 1, 2008, which can be extended by a written agreement of the parties.  The agreement provides for annual compensation ranging from $265,000 to
$350,000.  In addition, if the Company enters into an agreement and further sells any brand in the Company’s portfolio, Mr. DeCicco will receive 5% of such sale.  Mr. DeCicco is
also entitled to incentive bonus compensation, stock and/or options in accordance with Company policies established by the Board of Directors.  The agreement provides for the
grant of a non-qualified ten year option to purchase up to 1,000,000 shares of common stock of the Company at an exercise price which shall represent a discount to the market
price. Mr. DeCicco has the right to terminate the agreement upon 60 days notice to the Company for any reason.  Pursuant to the terms of the agreement, if Mr. DeCicco is absent
from work because of illness or incapacity cumulatively for more than 2 months in addition to vacation time in any calendar year, the Company may terminate the agreement upon
30 days written notice.  The agreement also provides that the agreement may be terminated upon 90 days notice to Mr. DeCicco if: (A) there is a sale of substantially all of the
Company’s assets to a single purchaser or group of associated purchasers; (B) there is a sale, exchange or disposition of 50% of the outstanding shares of the Company’s
outstanding stock; (C) the Company terminates its business or liquidates its assets; or (D) there is a merger or consolidation of the Company in which the Company’s shareholders
receive less than 50% of the outstanding voting shares of the new or continuing corporation. Mr. DeCicco shall be entitled to severance pay in the amount of 2 years compensation
and medical and other benefits in the event of a termination of the agreement under certain circumstances
 
Employment agreement with Chief Financial Officer
 
On October 1, 2007, the Company entered into an employment agreement with its Chief Financial Officer William Blacker.  The agreement provides for a term of 3 years,
commencing on October 1, 2007, which can be extended by a written agreement of the parties.  The Company agreed to issue options to purchase shares of its common stock to
Mr. Blacker if and when the common stock becomes publicly traded, as follows: (A) upon execution of the agreement, 100,000 options at an exercise price of $0.05 per share; (B)
on October 1, 2008, 100,000 options at an exercise price of $0.15 per share; and (C) on October 1, 2009, 100,000 options at an exercise price of $.75 per share.  Pursuant to the
terms of the agreement, Mr. Blacker is to receive an annual salary of $150,000.  Mr. Blacker has the right to terminate the agreement upon 60 days notice to the Company for any
reason.  The agreement further provides that if the agreement is terminated for any reason other than willful malfeasance by Mr. Blacker, Mr. Blacker shall be entitled to receive
severance pay in the amount of 6 months or the balance of the agreement’s term of existence, whichever is greater, and shall receive all benefits under the agreement.
 
On August 8, 2008, the Company issued 2,731 shares of common stock to its chief executive officer in consideration of services rendered. The Company included this issuance in
its consolidated statement of operations for the three months ended September 30, 2008 in administrative compensation and benefits at the $273,096 estimated fair value of the
shares.
 
On June 10, 2009, the Company issued 19,634,112 shares of common stock to its management and personnel in consideration for services rendered, valued in the amount of
$1,963,411.  The shares were issued as follows:
 
Richard DeCicco 15,972,359 $1,597,236
William Blacker 100,000 10,000
Donald Chadwell 2,586,753 258,675
8 Employees 850,000 85,000
Law firm 125,000 12,500
Total 19,634,112 $1,963,411
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Pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement, the Company issued 1 share of Series A Preferred Stock valued at $100,000 to the Company’s Chief Executive Officer for service
rendered. The one share of Series A Preferred Stock entitles the holder to two votes for every share of Common Stock Deemed Outstanding and has no conversion or dividend
rights.
 
As of December 31, 2009, the Company owed seven hundred sixty three thousand dollars to Donald Chadwell, a significant shareholder of the Company. The loans bear no
interest and have no repayment terms. The loans were not memorialized.
 
As of December 31, 2009, the Company owed seven hundred fourteen thousand eight hundred forty four dollars to Richard DeCicco, our chief executive officer, director and a
significant shareholder of the Company. The loans bear no interest and have no repayment terms. The loans were not memorialized.
 
 
 Code of Ethics
 
We currently do not have a code of ethics that applies to our officers, employees and directors, including our Chief Executive Officer and senior executives, however, we intend to
adopt one in the near future.
 
Conflicts of Interest
 
Certain potential conflicts of interest are inherent in the relationships between our officers and directors, and us.
 
From time to time, one or more of our affiliates may form or hold an ownership interest in and/or manage other businesses both related and unrelated to the type of business that
we own and operate.  These persons expect to continue to form, hold an ownership interest in and/or manage additional other businesses which may compete with ours with respect
to operations, including financing and marketing, management time and services and potential customers.  These activities may give rise to conflicts between or among the
interests of us and other businesses with which our affiliates are associated.  Our affiliates are in no way prohibited from undertaking such activities, and neither we nor our
shareholders will have any right to require participation in such other activities.
 
Further, because we intend to transact business with some of our officers, directors and affiliates, as well as with firms in which some of our officers, directors or affiliates have a
material interest, potential conflicts may arise between the respective interests of us and these related persons or entities.  We believe that such transactions will be effected on
terms at least as favorable to us as those available from unrelated third parties.
 
With respect to transactions involving real or apparent conflicts of interest, we have adopted policies and procedures which require that: (i) the fact of the relationship or interest
giving rise to the potential conflict be disclosed or known to the directors who authorize or approve the transaction prior to such authorization or approval, (ii) the transaction be
approved by a majority of our disinterested outside directors, and (iii) the transaction be fair and reasonable to us at the time it is authorized or approved by our directors.
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ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES
 
(1) Audit Fees
 
The aggregate fees billed for each of the last two fiscal years for professional services rendered by the principal accountant for our audit of annual financial statements and review
of financial statements included in our Form 10-K or services that are normally provided by the accountant in connection with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements for
those fiscal years was:
 

2009  $27,500  Michael T. Studer CPA P.C.
2009  $0  Webb & Company, P.A
2008  $11,298  Webb & Company, P.A
2008  $0  Williams & Webster, CPA, P.S.

 
Audit Related Fees
 
There were no fees for audit related services for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008.
 
Tax Fees
 
For the Company’s fiscal years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, we were not billed for professional services rendered for tax compliance, tax advice, and tax planning.
 
All Other Fees
 
The Company did not incur any other fees related to services rendered by our principal accountant for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008.
 
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned
thereunto duly authorized.
 
Effective May 6, 2003, the Securities and Exchange Commission adopted rules that require that before our auditor is engaged by us to render any auditing or permitted non-audit
related service, the engagement be:
 

-             approved by our audit committee; or
 

-             entered into pursuant to pre-approval policies and procedures established by the audit committee, provided the policies and procedures are detailed as to the
particular  service,  the  audit committee is informed of each service, and such policies and procedures do not include delegation of the audit committee's responsibilities to
management.
 
We do not have an audit committee.  Our entire board of directors pre-approves all services provided by our independent auditors. The pre-approval process has just been
implemented in response to the new rules. Therefore, our board of directors does not have records of what percentage of the above fees was pre-approved.  However, all of the
above services and fees were reviewed and approved by the entire board of directors either before or after the respective services were rendered.
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PART IV
 
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES.
 
Exhibit No.  Documents
2.1  Agreement and Plan of Merger (filed as Exhibit 2.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on

June 16, 2009)
   
3.1  Articles of Incorporation (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to Registration Statement on Form SB-2, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on

November 30, 2007)
   
3.1.1  Certificate of Amendment to Articles of Incorporation (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and

Exchange Commission on June 16, 2009)
   
3.1.2  Nevada Articles of Merger (filed as Exhibit 3.5 to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 16,

2009)
   
3.1.2  New York Certificate of Merger (filed as Exhibit 3.6 to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on

June 16, 2009)
   
3.2  Bylaws (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to Registration Statement on Form SB-2, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 30, 2007)
   
4.1  Specimen Stock Certificate (filed as Exhibit 3.3 to Registration Statement on Form SB-2, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on

November 30, 2007)
   
4.2  Certificate of Designations For The Series A (filed as Exhibit 3.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange

Commission on June 16, 2009)
   
4.3  Certificate Of Designations For The Series B (filed as Exhibit 3.4 to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange

Commission on June 16, 2009)
   
4.4  Promissory Note made by the Company in favor of Capstone Capital Group I, LLC (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed

with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 16, 2009)
   
4.5  Promissory Note dated December 2009 made by the Company in favor of Double U Master Fund, L.P., in the principal sum of One Hundred

Thousand Dollars ((filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 18,
2009)

   
4.6  Form of Warrant (filed as Exhibit10.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 25, 2009)
   
10.1  Purchase Order Agreement dated January 22, 2007 between the Company and Capstone Capital Group I, LLC*
   
10.2  Discount  Factoring Agreement dated January 22, 2007 between the Company and Capstone Business, LLC*
 

 
68



Table of Contents
 
10.3  Termination Agreement (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 16,

2009)
   
10.4  Form of Conversion Agreement (filed as Exhibit10.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June

16, 2009)
   
10.5  License Agreement dated April 26, 2007 between the Company and Seven Cellos LLC*
   
10.6  Addendum To License Agreement dated June 2009 by and between Seven Cellos LLC and Harbrew Imports, Ltd. (filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the

Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 16, 2009)
   
10.7  Reserved
   
10.8  Employment Agreement dated October 1, 2007 between the Company and DeCicco. (filed with Amended Quarterly Report for June 30, 2010)
   
10.9  Employment Agreement dated October 1, 2007 between the Company and William Blacker. (filed with Amended Quarterly Report for June 30, 2010)
   
10.10  Merchandising License Agreement dated June 12, 2009 between the Harbrew Imports Ltd. and Paramount Licensing Inc.*
   
10.11  Lease Agreement dated July 12, 2002 between  Fred and Joseph Scalamandre, as landlords and Islander Imports and Packaging, Inc., as Tenants.*
   
10.12  Exclusive Manufacturing Agreement, dated August 2007, with Fagema Sorrento Delizie Di De Luca Antonino and Scala Antonino,
   
14.1  Code of Ethics ((filed as Exhibit 14.1 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 27, 2009)
   
31  Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 *
   
32  Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 *
 
* filed herewith
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SIGNATURES
 

In accordance with Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, the registrant caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
 
 ICONIC BRANDS, INC.
   
Date: January 14, 2011 By: /s/ Richard DeCicco
  Richard DeCicco
  President, Principal Executive, financial and Accounting Officer
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and
on the dates indicated.
 
 ICONIC BRANDS, INC.
   
Date: January 14, 2011 By: /s/ Richard DeCicco
  Richard DeCicco
  President, Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive, Financial and

Accounting Officer)
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PURCHASE ORDER FINANCING AGREEMENT

This PURCHASE ORDER FINANCING AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is dated as of January 22, 2007, by and between Harbrew Imports, Ltd., a New York
corporation ("Debtor") and Capstone Capital Group I, LLC ("Secured Party").

RECITALS

A.            Debtor desires to obtain financing from Secured Party to enable Debtor to acquire goods for resale for which Debtor has obtained purchase orders.

B.             In connection therewith, Debtor has requested that Secured Party cause the issuance of Letters of Credit and make cash advances to Debtor in accordance with
the terms and conditions herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, and intending to be legally bound hereby, the Parties hereby agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1.             DEFINITIONS. All terms used herein that are defined in the Uniform Commercial Code shall have the meanings ascribed thereto therein. As used herein, the following
terms shall have the following meanings:

1.1           "Account" - means the account between Debtor and Secured Party.

1.2           "Advances" - means L/C Advances and Purchase Money Advances.

1.3           "Advance Limit" - (i) for the first year of this Agreement, $13,000,000 and (ii) for the second year of this Agreement, $17,000,000.

1.4           "Agreement Term" - the period from the date that the Agreement becomes effective until the Termination Date.

1.5           "Annual Fee" - (i) for the first year of this Agreement, $325,000 and (ii) for the second year of this Agreement, $425,000.

1.6           "Buyer" - a customer of Debtor, acceptable to Secured Party in its sole discretion, who has agreed to purchase the Pre-Sold Goods which are the subject of a
Financed Transaction.

1.7           "Cash Advance Guarantee Fee" - 2.50% for the first thirty days (or part thereof) that each Purchase Money Advance is outstanding and 1.25% for every
fourteen days (or part thereof) thereafter that such Purchase Money Advance remains outstanding.

1.8           "Collateral" - all Debtor's present and future Accounts, Chattel Paper, Goods (including Inventory and Equipment), Instalments, Investment Property,
Documents, and General Intangibles, Letter of Credit Rights, Commercial Tort Claims, Deposit Accounts, and the proceeds thereof.
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1.9           "Chosen State" - New York.

1.10         "Default Rate" - 24%.

1.11         "Delivery Instructions" - arrangements to be used in shipping and storing any Pre-Sold Goods (including, but not limited to, the terms and conditions of any
and all warehouse and other agreements relating to the Warehouse).

1.12         "Due Date" - the earlier of sixty (60) days from the date of an Advance or the day on which any of the goods which are the subject of such Advance are
shipped to a Buyer.

1.13         "Eligible Purchase Orders" - purchase orders issued in favor of Debtor, and which have not expired or been cancelled, covering the purchase of goods from
Debtor, issued by Buyers.

1.14         "Factor" - Capstone Business Credit, LLC.

1.15         "Factoring Agreement" - that certain Discount Factoring Agreement, between Debtor and Factor, dated the date hereof, as amended.

1.16         "Financed Transaction" - a transaction whereby Debtor has agreed to purchase Pre-Sold Goods from a Supplier for resale to the Buyer of such Pre-Sold
Goods, concerning which Secured Party has been requested to providing financing hereunder to enable Debtor to acquire the subject Pre-Sold Goods.

1.17         "Financing Request Package" - the following documents relating to a Financed Transaction:

1.17.1     all documents between Debtor and a Buyer evidencing a valid and binding contract for the sale by Debtor to a Buyer of Pre-Sold Goods, and the
unconditional and irrevocable assignment of such contract to Secured Party;

1.17.2     a Supplier Letter, duly executed by the subject Supplier;

1.17.3     undated Invoice(s);

1.17.4     Eligible Purchase Order(s);

1.17.5     an itemization of all costs related to such Financed Transaction, including but not limited to the cost and sale price of the Pre-Sold Goods, shipping and
insurance costs, and customs duties;

1.17.6     a description of the freight forwarder, shipping company, Warehouse and any Delivery Instructions; and

1.17.7     a fully executed Warehouse Agreement.
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1.18         "Guarantor(s)" - all entities now or hereafter guaranteeing the Obligations.

1.19         "Guaranty" - a continuing guaranty in form and substance acceptable to Secured Party by which a Guarantor guarantees the Obligations.

1.20         "Issuer" - the issuer of a Letter of Credit.

1.21         "Interest Rate" - at any time the rate which is 4% in excess of the Prime Rate.

1.22         "Invoice(s)" - invoice(s), from Debtor to a Buyer, relating to all Pre-Sold Goods which are the subject of a Financed Transaction.

1.23         "L/C Advances" - all amounts paid by Secured Party on account of Letters of Credit.

1.24         "Letter of Credit" - a letter of credit issued in favor of Debtor's Suppliers:

1.24.1     to enable Debtor to acquire Pre-Sold Goods:

1.24.2     in a form acceptable to Secured Party;

1.24.3     requiring inter alia, as a condition of draw by the Beneficiary, that the Beneficiary present an inspection certificate by an independent inspection
service acceptable to Secured Party that the subject goods conform to an Eligible Purchase Order;

1.24.4     requiring that the shipment of the Pre-Sold Goods be evidenced by a negotiable bill of lading, consigned to Secured Party; and

1.24.5     providing for honor by the acceptance by Issuer of a draft which shall be due at least thirty days from sight.

1.25         "Letter of Credit Fees" - such commissions, issuance fees, transfer fees and other reasonable fees and charges in connection with the issuance or
administration of each Letter of Credit as are generally imposed by Secured Party.

1.26         "Letter of Credit Guarantee Fee" - 2.50% for the first thirty days (or part thereof) that each Letter of Credit is outstanding and 1.25% for every fourteen days
(or part thereof) thereafter that such Letter of Credit remains outstanding.

1.27         "Loan Documents" - this Agreement, together with any documents, instruments and agreements, executed and/or delivered in connection herewith, as the same
now exist or may hereafter be amended, modified, supplemented, extended, renewed, restated or replaced.

1.28         "Obligors" - Debtor and all Guarantors.

1.29         "Obligations" - all present and future obligations owing by Debtor to Secured Party whether arising hereunder or otherwise, and whether arising before, during
or after the commencement of any Bankruptcy Case in which Debtor is a debtor.
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1.30         "Pre-Sold Goods" - goods which are the subject of Eligible Purchase Orders.

1.31         "Prime Rate" - means that rate designated by JP Morgan Chase Bank, or any successor thereof, from time to time as its prime rate, which shall not necessarily
constitute its lowest available rate.

1.32         "Purchase Money Advances" - all amounts paid by Secured Party as loans to Debtor to enable Debtor to acquire Pre-Sold Goods.

1.33         "Purchase Money Advance Limit" - That portion of the Eligible Purchase Orders which relates to the sales price of the Pre-Sold Goods, excluding shipping
and like charges.

1.34         "Subject Account" - an Account created by the sale of the goods or services which are the subject of an Eligible Purchase Order to the issuer of the Eligible
Purchase Order.

1.35         "Supplier" - a supplier, acceptable to Secured Party in its sole discretion, who has agreed to sell the Pre-Sold Goods which are the subject of a Financed
Transaction.

1.36         "Supplier Letter" - a letter from Supplier, with all required information supplied, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A.

1.37         "Termination Date" - the earlier of (i) two years from the date of this Agreement or (ii) the date on which Secured Party elects to terminate this Agreement
pursuant to the terms herein.

1.38         "Warehouse" - a segregated warehouse space in which Debtor agrees to maintain the Pre-Sold Goods, at a location specified by Secured Party.

1.39         "Warehouse Agreement" - an agreement among the Warehouse, the Buyer and Secured Party, in form acceptable to Secured Party, acknowledging Secured
Party's security interest in the Pre-Sold Goods and agreeing among other things that such Pre-Sold Goods shall not be released without Secured Party's prior written consent.

2.             CREDIT FACILITIES.

2.1           Purchase Money Advances.

2.1.1        During the Agreement Term, upon receipt and approval by Secured Party in its sole discretion of a Financing Request Package, Secured Party may
make a Purchase Money Advance up to the Purchase Money Advance Limit.

2.1.2        The Purchase Money Advance will be paid directly by Secured Party to the Supplier for the account of Debtor.

2.1.3        Each Purchase Money Advance shall be repaid in full on or before the Due Date.
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2.2           Letters Of Credit.

2.2.1        Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, and during the Agreement Term:

2.2.1.1    Issuance of Letters of Credit. Secured Party may, from time to time, in its sole discretion and at Debtor's request, cause the issuance of
Letters of Credit in an amount or amounts determined by Secured Party.

2.2.1.2    Request for Issuance. Each request by Debtor for the issuance of Letter of Credit shall be accompanied by the Financing Request Package on
which such request is based.

2.2.2        Reimbursement.

2.2.2.1    Debtor shall repay Secured Party for the amount of any L/C Advance on or before its respective Due Date.

2.2.2.2    Secured Party shall have no duty to inquire into the propriety of any request by an Issuer for payment by Secured Party, and all such payments
by Secured Party shall conclusively establish Debtor's reimbursement obligations hereunder.

2.2.2.3    Debtor unconditionally indemnifies Secured Party and holds Secured Party harmless from any and all loss, claim or liability incurred by
Secured Party arising from any transactions or occurrences relating to any Letter of Credit, the collateral relating thereto and any drafts or acceptances thereunder, and all
Obligations thereunder, including any such loss or claim due to any errors, omissions, negligence, misconduct or action taken by any Issuer. This indemnity shall survive
termination of this Agreement. Debtor agrees that any charges incurred by Secured Party with respect to Issuer shall be conclusive on Secured Party and may be charged to the
Account.

2.2.2.4    Secured Party shall not be responsible for: (a) the existence, character, quality, quantity, condition, packing, value or delivery of the goods
purporting to be represented by any documents; (b) any difference or variation in the character, quality, quantity, condition, packing, value or delivery of the goods from that
expressed in the documents; (c) the validity, sufficiency or genuineness of any documents or of any endorsements thereon, even if such documents should in fact prove to be in any
or all respects invalid, insufficient, fraudulent or forged; (d) the time, place, manner or order in which shipment is made; partial or incomplete shipment, or failure or omission to
ship any or all of the goods referred to in the Letters of Credit or documents; (e) any deviation from instructions; (f) delay, default, or fraud by the shipper and/or anyone else in
connection with the goods or the shipping thereof; or (g) any breach of contract between the shipper or vendors and Debtor.
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2.2.2.5    Debtor agrees that any action taken by Secured Party, if taken in good faith, or any action taken by any Issuer, under or in connection with
any Letters of Credit, the drafts or acceptances, or the Collateral, shall be binding on Debtor and shall not result in any liability whatsoever of Secured Party to Debtor. In
furtherance thereof, Secured Party shall have the full right and authority to: (a) clear and resolve any questions of non compliance of documents; (b) give any instructions as to
acceptance or rejection of any documents or goods; (c) execute any and all steamship or airways guaranties (and applications therefore), indemnities or delivery orders; (d) grant
any extensions of the maturity of, time of payment for, or time of presentation of, any drafts, acceptances, or documents; and (e) agree to any amendments, renewals, extensions,
modifications, changes or cancellations of any of the terms or conditions of any of the applications, Letters of Credit, drafts or acceptances; all in Secured Party's sole name. The
Issuer shall be entitled to comply with and honor any and all such documents or instruments executed by or received solely from Secured Party, all without any notice to or any
consent from Debtor. Notwithstanding any prior course of conduct or dealing with respect to the foregoing • including amendments and non-compliance with documents and/or
Debtor's instructions with respect thereto, Secured Party may exercise its rights hereunder in its sole and reasonable business judgment. In addition, without Secured Party's
express consent and endorsement in writing, Debtor agrees: (a) not to execute any and all applications for steamship or airway guaranties, indemnities or delivery orders; to grant
any extensions of the maturity of, time of payment for, or time of presentation of, any drafts, acceptances or documents; or to agree to any amendments, renewals, extensions,
modifications, changes or cancellations of any of the terms or conditions of any of the applications, Letters of Credit, drafts or acceptances; and (b) after the occurrence of an
Event of Default which is not cured within any applicable grace period, if any, or waived by Secured Party, not to (i) clear and resolve any questions of non compliance of
documents, or (ii) give any instructions as to acceptances or rejection of any documents or goods.

2.2.2.6    Debtor agrees that: (a) any necessary import, export or other licenses or certificates for the import or handling of the Collateral will have been
promptly procured; (b) all foreign and domestic governmental laws and regulations in regard to the shipment and importation of the Collateral, or the financing thereof will have
been promptly and fully complied with; and (c) any certificates in that regard that Secured Party may at any time request will be promptly furnished. In connection herewith,
Debtor warrants and represents that all shipments made under any such Letters of Credit are in accordance with the laws and regulations of the countries in which the shipments
originate and terminate, and are not prohibited by any such laws and regulations. Debtor assumes all risk, liability and responsibility for, and agrees to pay and discharge, all
present and future local, state, federal or foreign taxes, duties, or levies. Any embargo, restriction, laws, customs or regulations of any country, state, Secured Party, or other
political subdivision, where the Collateral is or may be located, or wherein payments are to be made, or wherein drafts may be drawn, negotiated, accepted, or paid, shall be solely
Debtor's risk, liability and responsibility.

2.2.2.7    Upon any payments made to the Issuer under the Letter of Credit, Secured Party shall acquire by subrogation, any rights, remedies, duties or
obligations granted or undertaken by Debtor to the Issuing Bank in any standing agreement relating to Letters of Credit or otherwise, which shall be deemed to have been granted
to Secured Party and apply in all respects to Secured Party and shall be in addition to any rights, remedies, duties or obligations contained herein.

2.3           Debtor acknowledges and agrees that Secured Party does not intend to make any Advances to the extent that, before or as a result thereof, the aggregate
Obligations shall exceed the Advance Limit.
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3.             INTEREST AND FEES.

3.1           Interest.

3.1.1        Interest on the unpaid balance of Advances shall accrue interest at the Interest Rate and shall be payable on the first day of the month following its
accrual.

3.1.2        Secured Party may charge Debtor's Account with any past due amounts hereunder.

3.1.3        Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in any Loan Document, the interest paid or agreed to be paid under the Loan Documents shall not
exceed the maximum rate of non-usurious interest permitted by applicable law (the "Maximum Rate"). If Secured Party shall receive interest in an amount that exceeds the
Maximum Rate, the excess interest shall be applied to the principal of the loans hereunder or, if it exceeds such unpaid principal, refunded to Debtor. In determining whether the
interest contracted for, charged, or received by Secured Party exceeds the Maximum Rate, Secured Party may, to the extent permitted by applicable law, (a) characterize any
payment that is not principal as an expense, fee, or premium rather than interest, (b) exclude voluntary prepayments and the effects thereof, and (c) amortize, prorate, allocate, and
spread in equal or unequal parts the total amount of interest throughout the contemplated term of the Obligations hereunder.

3.2           Fees.

3.2.1        Letter of Credit Fees. In consideration for Secured Party's causing the issuance of Letters of Credit, Debtor shall pay any Letter of Credit Fees to
Secured Party immediately upon the issuance of a Letter of Credit and monthly thereafter, in arrears, on the first (1st) day of each month following the accrual thereof.

3.2.2        Cash Advance Guarantee Fee. Debtor shall pay the Cash Advance Guarantee Fee to Secured Party monthly, in arrears, on the first (1st) day of each
month following the accrual thereof

3.2.3        Letter of Credit Guarantee Fee. Debtor shall pay the Letter of Credit Guarantee Fee to Secured Party monthly, in arrears, on the first (1st) day of
each month following the accrual thereof.

3.2.4        Annual Fee. Debtor shall pay to Secured Party any amount by which the Cash Advance Guarantee Fees and Letter of Credit Guarantee Fees earned in
the preceding twelve months is less than the Annual Fee, on each anniversary of the date hereof.

4.             GRANT OF SECURITY INTEREST. To secure the payment and performance in full of all of the Obligations, Debtor hereby grants to Secured Party a continuing
security interest in and to and lien upon, and a right of setoff against, and Debtor hereby assigns and pledges to Secured Party, all of the Collateral.

5.             CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO ALL ADVANCES. Secured Party shall not make any Advances unless and until:

 
Page 7 of 17



 

5.1           Secured Party holds a perfected security interest in the Collateral and the Subject Account.

5.2           Secured Party has received guaranties, in a form acceptable to it in its sole discretion, signed by all guarantors.

6.             COVENANTS. Debtor covenants that:

6.1           Debtor shall immediately advise Secured Party if and when an Eligible Purchase Order has been cancelled or attempted to have been cancelled.

6.2           Debtor shall maintain or cause to be maintained at all times, with financially sound and reputable insurers, casualty insurance with respect to the Inventory and
other assets. All such insurance policies shall be in such form, substance, amounts and coverage as may be satisfactory to Secured Party and shall provide for thirty (30) days' prior
written notice to Secured Party of cancellation or reduction of coverage. Debtor hereby irrevocably authorizes Secured Party and any designee of Secured Party to obtain at
debtor's expense, and, after an Event of Default, to adjust or settle any claim or other matter under or arising pursuant to such insurance or to amend or cancel such insurance.
Debtor shall deliver to Secured Party evidence of such insurance and a Secured Party's loss payable endorsement naming Secured Party as loss payee as to all existing and future
insurance policies relating to the Inventory. Debtor shall deliver to Secured Party, in kind, all instruments representing proceeds of insurance received by Debtor. Secured Party
may apply any and all insurance proceeds received at any time to the cost of repairs to or replacement of any portion of the Inventory and/or, at Secured Party's option, to the
payment of or as security for any of the Obligations, whether or not due, in any order or manner as Secured Party determines.

6.3           Debtor shall furnish to Secured Party, in form and substance satisfactory to Secured Party:

6.3.1        As soon as possible after the end of each fiscal year of Debtor, and in any event within one hundred and twenty (120) days thereafter:

6.3.1.1    a complete copy of Debtor's financial statements, including but not limited to (a) the management letter, if any, (b) the balance sheet as of the
close of the fiscal year, and (c) the income statement for such year, together with a statement of cash flows, prepared by a firm of independent certified public accountants of
recognized standing and acceptable to Debtor, or if permitted by Debtor in writing, by Debtor; and

6.3.1.2    A statement certified by the chief financial officer of Debtor that Debtor is in compliance with all the terms, conditions, covenants and
warranties of this Agreement.

6.3.2        No later than fifteen (15) days after the close of each month (an "Accounting Period"), Debtor's balance sheet as of the close of such Accounting
Period and its income statement for that portion of the then current fiscal year through the end of such Accounting Period certified by Debtor's chief financial officer as being
complete, correct, and fairly representing its financial condition and results of operations.
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6.3.3        Copies of each of Debtor's:

6.3.3.1    federal income tax returns, and any amendments thereto, within seventy-five (75) days of the filing thereof with the Internal Revenue Service;
and

6.3.3.2    federal payroll tax returns within ten (10) days of filing, together with proof, satisfactory to Debtor, that all taxes have been paid.

6.4           Debtor shall permit Secured Party or any representatives thereof, during usual business hours, without notice to Debtor, to periodically:

6.4.1        have access to all premises where Collateral is located for the purposes of inspecting (and removing, if after the occurrence of an Event of Default) any
of the Collateral, including Debtor's books and records; and

6.4.2        Permit Secured Party or its designees to inspect, audit, make copies of, and make extracts from Debtor's records as Debtor may request.

6.4.3        Without expense to Secured Party, Secured Party may use any of Debtor's personnel, equipment, including computer equipment, programs, printed
output and computer readable media, supplies and premises for the collection of accounts and realization on other Collateral as Secured Party, in its sole discretion, deems
appropriate.

6.5           Debtor shall pay all reasonable out-of-pocket expenses of Secured Party (including, but not limited to, fees and disbursements of Secured Party's counsel)
incident to (whether by judicial proceedings or otherwise, and whether any resulting dispute resolution procedure involving tort, contract or other claims):

6.5.1        the preparation, negotiation, execution, administration and enforcement of the Loan Documents, any amendments, extensions and renewals thereof,
and any other documents prepared in connection with any transactions between Debtor and Secured Party, whether or not executed;

6.5.2        any expenses incurred by Secured Party (whether or not for the benefit of Debtor) under this Agreement, including, without limitation, all expenses for
postage relating to the mailing of statements, invoices, and verifications, and all expenses relating to any audits of all or any portion of the Collateral;

6.5.3        the protection of Secured Party's rights under the Loan Documents;

6.5.4        defending against any and all claims against Secured Party relating to any of its acts of commission or omission directly or indirectly relating to the
Loan Documents;

6.5.5        or in any way arising out of a bankruptcy proceeding commenced by or against Debtor, including but not limited to expenses incurred in enforcing or
defending Secured Party's claims against Debtor or the Collateral, defending any avoidance actions, and expenses related to the administration of said proceeding.
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6.6       Debtor shall indemnify and save Secured Party harmless from any and all liability with respect to any stamp or other taxes (other than transfer or income taxes)
which may be determined to be payable in connection with the execution of the Loan Documents or any action of Secured Party with respect to the Collateral, including, without
limitation, the transfer of the Collateral to Secured Party's name or that of Secured Party's nominee or any purchaser at a foreclosure sale.

6.7       Debtor shall reimburse Secured Party for all costs and expenses, including attorneys' fees, which Secured Party incurs in enforcing any judgment rendered in
connection with this Agreement. This provision is severable from all other provisions hereof and shall survive, and not be deemed merged into, such judgment.

6.8       Debtor shall make timely payment or deposit of all taxes, assessments or contributions required of Debtor. If Debtor fails to make any such payment or deposit
or furnish proof of such payment immediately upon Secured Party's request, Secured Party may, in its sole discretion and without notice to Debtor:

6.8.1        make payment of the same or any part thereof; or

6.8.2        Set up such reserves against the Obligations as Secured Party deems necessary to satisfy the liability therefore, or both.

6.8.3        Secured Party may conclusively rely on statements of the amount owing or other official statements issued by the appropriate governmental agency.
Any payment made by Secured Party shall constitute neither:

6.8.3.1    an agreement by Secured Party to make similar payments in the future; nor

6.8.3.2    A waiver by Secured Party of any default under the Loan Documents. Secured Party need not inquire into, nor contest the validity of, any
expense, tax, security interest, encumbrance or lien, and the receipt of the usual official notice requiring the payment thereof shall be conclusive evidence that the same was validly
due and owing.

6.9       Debtor shall give Secured Party written notice immediately upon forming an intention to change its name, state of organization or form of business organization.

6.10     Debtor shall maintain with financially sound and reputable insurers insurance with respect to its properties and business against such casualties and
contingencies as shall be in accordance with general practices of businesses engaged in similar activities in similar geographic areas. Such insurance shall be in such minimum
amounts that the Secured Party will not be deemed a co-insurer under applicable insurance laws, regulations, and policies and otherwise shall be in such amounts, contain such
terms, be in such forms and be for such periods as may be reasonably satisfactory to the Secured Party. In addition, all such insurance shall be payable to the Secured Party under a
Secured Party Loss Payable Endorsement. Without limiting the foregoing, the Debtor will:
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6.10.1     Keep all of its physical property insured with casualty or physical hazard insurance on an "all risks" basis, with broad form flood and earthquake
coverage and electronic data processing coverage, with a full replacement cost endorsement and an "agreed amount" clause in an amount equal to 100% of the full replacement
cost of such property;

6.10.2     Maintain all such workers' compensation or similar insurance as may be required by law;

6.10.3     Maintain, in amounts and with deductibles equal to those generally maintained by businesses engaged in similar activities in similar geographic areas,
general public liability insurance against claims of bodily injury, death, or property damage occurring, on, in or about the properties of the Debtor; business interruption insurance;
and product liability insurance.

6.11         Debtor shall not create, incur, assume or permit to exist any lien upon or with respect to any Collateral now owned or hereafter acquired by Debtor. At the
request of Debtor, Secured Party shall enter into a subordination agreement in form reasonably acceptable to Secured Party with respect to any Collateral that is Equipment, so
long as Debtor is not in default hereunder at the time of such request.

7.             EVENTS OF DEFAULT. Each of the following events or conditions shall also constitute an "Event of Default":

7.1           Debtor defaults in the performance of any Obligations due hereunder; and

7.2           Debtor is in default with respect to any agreement between Debtor and Secured Party or Debtor and Factor.

7.3           An order for relief is entered against any Obligor by any United States Bankruptcy Court; or any Obligor does not generally pay its debts as they become due
(within the meaning of 11 U.S.C. 303(h) as at any time amended, or any successor statute thereto); or any Obligor makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors; or any Obligor
applies for or consents to the appointment of a custodian, receiver, trustee, or similar officer for it or for all or any substantial part of its assets, or such custodian, receiver, trustee,
or similar officer is appointed without the application or consent of any Obligor; or any Obligor institutes (by petition, application, answer, consent, or otherwise) any bankruptcy,
insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, arrangement, readjustment of debt, dissolution, liquidation or similar proceeding relating to it under the laws of any jurisdiction; or any
such proceeding shall be instituted (by petition, application, or otherwise) against any Obligor; or any judgment, writ, warrant of attachment, execution, or similar process shall be
issued or levied against a substantial portion of the property of any Obligor;

7.4           An adverse change occurs with respect to the financial condition or operations of Debtor which results in a material impairment of the prospect of repayment of
the Obligations;

7.5           A sale, hypothecation or other disposition is made of twenty (20%) percent or more of the beneficial interest in any class of voting stock of Debtor; and
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7.6           Any Guarantor defaults in the performance of its obligations to Secured Party or shall notify Secured Party of its intention to rescind, modify, terminate or
revoke the Guaranty with respect to future transactions, or the Guaranty shall cease to be in full force and effect for any reason whatever.

8.             REMEDIES. Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, all Obligations shall accrue interest at the Default Rate, and in addition to any other remedies available to
Secured Party under the Loan Documents, at law, in equity or otherwise, Secured Party may:

8.1           Declare all Obligations to be immediately due and payable, without presentment, demand, protest, or notice of any kind, all of which are hereby expressly
waived by Debtor; and

8.2           Debtor shall immediately provide Secured Party with cash collateral in the amount of any undrawn face amount of any Letter of Credit.

9.             ATTORNEYS' FEES. Debtor agrees to reimburse Secured Party on demand for:

9.1           the actual amount of all costs and expenses, including attorneys' fees, which Secured Party has incurred or may incur in:

9.1.1        negotiating, preparing, or administering this Agreement and any documents prepared in connection herewith; and

9.1.2        protecting, preserving or enforcing any lien, security interest or other right granted by Debtor to Secured Party or arising under applicable law, whether
or not suit is brought;

9.2           the actual costs, including photocopying, travel, and attorneys' fees and expenses incurred in complying with any subpoena or other legal process attendant to
any litigation in which Debtor is a party; and

9.3           either (the choice of which shall be in the sole discretion of Secured Party):

9.3.1        the actual amount of all costs and expenses, including attorneys' fees, which Secured Party may incur in enforcing this Agreement and any documents
prepared in connection herewith, or in connection with any federal or state insolvency proceeding commenced by or against Debtor, including those (i) arising out the automatic
stay, (ii) seeking dismissal or conversion of the bankruptcy proceeding or (ii) opposing confirmation of Debtor's plan thereunder; or

9.3.2        20% OF THE AMOUNT OF THE CLAIM OF SECURED PARTY AGAINST DEBTOR, WHICH DEBTOR AGREES SHALL CONSTITUTE A
REASONABLE SUBSTITUTE FOR SUCH ACTUAL FEES AND EXPENSES.
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10.           TERMINATION.

10.1         This Agreement shall become effective upon the execution and delivery hereof by Debtor and Secured Party and shall continue in full force and effect for two
years from the date hereof.

10.2         Upon the Termination Date, the unpaid balance of the Obligations shall be due and payable without demand or notice.

11.           MISCELLANEOUS

11.1         Notices.

11.1.1 All notices required to be given to either party hereunder shall be deemed given upon the first to occur of: (a) deposit thereof in a receptacle under the
control of the United States Postal Service; (b) transmittal by electronic means to a receiver under the control of the party to whom notice is being given; or (c) actual receipt by the
party to whom notice is being given, or an employee or agent of thereof. For purposes hereof, the addresses of the parties are as set forth below or as may otherwise be specified
from time to time in a writing sent by one party to the other in accordance with the provisions hereof:

DEBTOR

 Address: 102 Buffalo Avenue
Freeport, NY 11520

 Attention Richard DeCicco
 Fax Number: 516-377-2509

SECURED PARTY

 Address: 1350 Avenue of the Americas, 24th Floor
New York, NY 10019

 Attention: Joseph F. Ingrassia
 Fax Number: 212-755-6833

11.2         Survival. All representations, warranties and agreements herein contained shall be effective so long as any portion of this Agreement remains executory.

11.3         Amendment and Waiver. Neither this Agreement nor any provisions hereof may be changed, waived, discharged or terminated, nor may any consent to the
departure from the terms hereof be given, orally (even if supported by new consideration), but only by an instalment in writing signed by all parties to this Agreement. Any waiver
or consent so given shall be effective only in the specific instance and for the specific purpose for which given.

11.4         No Waiver. No failure to exercise and no delay in exercising any right, power, or remedy hereunder shall impair any right, power, or remedy which Secured
Party may have, nor shall any such delay be construed to be a waiver of any of such rights, powers, or remedies, or any acquiescence in any breach or default hereunder; nor shall
any waiver by Secured Party of any breach or default by Debtor hereunder be deemed a waiver of any default or breach subsequently occurring. All rights and remedies granted to
Secured Party hereunder shall remain in full force and effect notwithstanding any single or partial exercise of, or any discontinuance of action begun to enforce, any such right or
remedy. The rights and remedies specified herein are cumulative and not exclusive of each other or of any rights or remedies that Secured Party would otherwise have. Any
waiver, permit, consent or approval by Secured Party of any breach or default hereunder must be in writing and shall be effective only to the extent set forth in such writing and
only as to that specific instance.
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11.5         Choice of Law. This Agreement and all transactions contemplated hereunder and/or evidenced hereby shall be governed by, construed under, and enforced in
accordance with the internal laws of the Chosen State.

11.6         Waiver of Statute of Limitations. Debtor waives the pleading of any statute of limitations with respect to any and all actions in connection herewith. To the
extent that Debtor may now or in the future have any claim against Secured Party, arising out of this agreement or the transaction contemplated herein whether in contract or tort or
otherwise, Debtor must assert such claim within one year of it accruing. Failure to assert such claim within one year shall constitute of waiver thereof Debtor agrees that such
period is reasonable and sufficient for it to investigate and act upon the claim. This Section shall survive any termination of this agreement. A copy of the waiver may be filed as a
written consent in any judicial proceeding.

11.7         Venue. The parties agree that any suit, action or proceeding arising out of the subject matter hereof, or the interpretation, performance or breach of this
Agreement, shall, if Secured Party so elects, be instituted in the United States District Court for the Southern District of the Chosen State or any court of said state located in the
Chosen State (the "Acceptable Forums"), each party agrees that the Acceptable Forums are convenient to it, and each party irrevocably submits to the jurisdiction of the Acceptable
Forums, irrevocably agrees to be bound by any judgment rendered thereby in connection with this Agreement, and waives any and all objections to jurisdiction or venue that it may
have under the laws of the Chosen State or otherwise in those courts in any such suit, action or proceeding. Should such proceeding be initiated in any other forum, Debtor waives
any right to oppose any motion or application made by Secured Party as a consequence of such proceeding having been commenced in a forum other than an Acceptable Forum.

11.8         WAIVER OF TRIAL BY JURY. IN RECOGNITION OF THE HIGHER COSTS AND DELAY WHICH MAY RESULT FROM A JURY TRIAL,
THE PARTIES HERETO WAIVE ANY RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY OF ANY CLAIM, DEMAND, ACTION OR CAUSE OF ACTION (A) ARISING
HEREUNDER, OR (B) IN ANY WAY CONNECTED WITH OR RELATED OR INCIDENTAL TO THE DEALINGS OF THE PARTIES HERETO OR ANY OF
THEM WITH RESPECT HERETO, IN EACH CASE WHETHER NOW EXISTING OR HEREAFTER ARISING, AND WHETHER SOUNDING IN CONTRACT
OR TORT OR OTHERWISE; AND EACH PARTY FURTHER WAIVES ANY RIGHT TO CONSOLIDATE ANY SUCH ACTION IN WHICH A JURY TRIAL HAS
BEEN WAIVED WITH ANY OTHER ACTION IN WHICH A JURY TRIAL CANNOT BE OR HAS NOT BEEN WAIVED; AND EACH PARTY HEREBY AGREES
AND CONSENTS THAT ANY SUCH CLAIM, DEMAND, ACTION OR CAUSE OF ACTION SHALL BE DECIDED BY COURT TRIAL WITHOUT A JURY, AND
THAT ANY PARTY HERETO MAY FILE AN ORIGINAL COUNTERPART OR A COPY OF THIS SECTION WITH ANY COURT AS WRITTEN EVIDENCE OF
THE CONSENT OF THE PARTIES HERETO TO THE WAIVER OF THEIR RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY.
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12.           INTERCREDITOR AGREEMENT.

12.1         Remittance of Factoring Advances and Application of Payments Thereof. Factor shall pay all sums due to Debtor under the Factoring Agreement to Secured
Party. Upon receipt of any such sums, Secured Party shall immediately apply such sums to all Obligations of Debtor then due to Secured Party, and remit any balance to Debtor.

12.2         Priority. Notwithstanding the terms or provisions of any agreement or arrangement which either Secured Party or Factor may now or hereafter have with
Debtor or any rule of law, and irrespective of the time, order, or method of attachment or perfection of any security interest or the recordation or filing in any public record of any
financing statement, Factor's security interest in Debtor's assets, including receivables that that are the proceeds of the product of inventory which is sold in the ordinary course of
business and proceeds of such receivables, shall at all times have priority over and be superior to any security interest that Secured Party may have in Debtor's assets and Secured
Party, and its successors and assigns, hereby subordinate their security interest in the Debtor's assets to Factor, and its successors and assigns.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly executed and delivered by their respective officers thereunto duly authorized as of
the date first above written.

DEBTOR: HARBREW IMPORTS, LTD.
   
 By: /s/ Richard DeCicco
 Name: Richard DeCicco
 Title: President
   
SECURED PARTY: CAPSTONE CAPITAL GROUP I, LLC
   
 By: /s/ Joseph F.Ingrassia
 Name: Joseph F.Ingrassia
 Title: Managing Member
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Agreed as to Section 12 hereof:

FACTOR: CAPSTONE BUSINESS CREDIT, LLC
   
 By: /s/ Robert L. Olson
 Name: Robert L. Olson
 Title: Chief Financial Officer
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EXHIBIT A -- SUPPLIER LETTER

[letterhead of Supplier]

Date:

xxxxx

Re: [name of Client] (the "Buyer")

Ladies and Gentlemen:

This will confirm that we have agreed to supply to Buyer the goods described in that certain purchase order #_____________ dated _______________________ (the
"Purchase Order") issued by Buyer to us (the "Goods").

To induce you to pay to us the sum of $____ (the "Payment"), representing the full purchase price of the Goods, we agree with you that we will ship the Goods to you in
accordance with the terms of the Purchase Order, irrespective of any claims to which we may now or hereafter have against Buyer.

Should we fail to ship the Goods as set forth herein, we will repay the Payment to you, on demand, together with interest at the rate of __% per annum, computed from
the date of receipt of the Payment by us to the date of repayment to you.

In the event of any litigation arising hereunder, whether such litigation is based on tort or contract, the prevailing party shall recover its attorneys fees and expenses from
the unsuccessful party.

 Very truly yours.
  
 [name of supplier]
  
 By:

AGREED AND ACCEPTED:

CAPSTONE CAPITAL GROUP I, LLC

By:   
Name: Joseph F. Ingrassia  
Title: Managing Member  
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Exhibit 10.2

DISCOUNT FACTORING AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

CAPSTONE BUSINESS CREDIT, LLC,
AS THE FACTOR

AND

HARBREW IMPORTS, LTD.,
AS THE COMPANY
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DISCOUNT FACTORING AGREEMENT

THIS DISCOUNT FACTORING AGREEMENT (this "Agreement"), made and executed this 22 day of January 2007, by and between HARBREW IMPORTS,
LTD., a New York corporation (the "Company"), and CAPSTONE BUSINESS CREDIT, LLC (the "Factor").

1 .           Definitions. In addition to the terms defined elsewhere in this Agreement, the following terms shall have the following meanings for the purposes of this
Agreement:

"Accounts" shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Code.

"Accounts Receivable" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2 of this Agreement.

"Anniversary Date" means the last day of the twenty fourth (24th) month following the date of this Agreement and the same day in each year thereafter.

"Chattel Paper" shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Code.

"Clearance Days" means three business days.

"Closed" means an Account Receivable that is either (a) paid in full by the Customer obligated on such Account Receivable, or (b) repurchased in cash by the Company.

"Code" shall mean the Uniform Commercial Code as in effect from time to time in the State of New York.

"Collateral" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 7 of this Agreement.

"Company Risk Accounts Receivable" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 3 of this Agreement.

"Customer" means the purchaser of goods or services from Company and who is obligated on an Account, Instrument, Document, Chattel Paper or General Intangible
initially owing to such Company.

"Documents" shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Code.

"Event of Default" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 17.1 of this Agreement.

"Factor Risk Accounts Receivable" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 3 of this Agreement.

"Factored Accounts" means all Accounts, Instruments, Documents, Chattel Paper and General Intangibles which are (a) initially owing to Company by a Customer, and
(b) subsequently purchased by Factor from Company pursuant to this Agreement. Factored Accounts shall include all returned or repossessed goods arising out of or relating to the
sale or other disposition of goods giving rise thereto, all proceeds thereof and the merchandise represented thereby, and all invoices and other records evidencing or pertaining to
the Factored Accounts.
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"Factoring Agreement" means an agreement between Company providing for the purchase by Factor from Company of Accounts owing to Company by its Customers.

"Factoring Documents" means this Agreement, together with any documents, instruments and agreements, executed and/or delivered in connection herewith, as the same
now exist or may hereafter be amended, modified, supplemented, extended, renewed, restated or replaced.

"Funds Employed" means gross Factored Accounts outstanding on Factor's books less any balance outstanding in the Reserve Account to the credit of Company.

"General Intangibles" shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Code.

"Instruments" shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Code.

"Lender" means Capstone Capital Group I, LLC.

"Misdirected Payment Fee" shall be fifteen percent (15%) of the amount of any payment on account of a Factored Account which has been received by Company and not
delivered in kind to Factor on the next business day following the date of receipt by Company.

"Missing Notation Fee" shall be 15% of the face amount of each invoice.

"Obligations" means all obligations, liabilities and indebtedness of Company to Factor, now existing or hereafter incurred, direct or indirect, absolute or contingent,
whether created under this Agreement, any supplement hereto or any other agreement between Company and Factor or otherwise, including without limitation, obligations owed
by Company to others which Factor obtains by assignment.

"Person" means an individual, corporation, partnership, trust, or unincorporated organization, or a government or any agency or political subdivision thereof.

"Purchase Price" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4 of this Agreement.

"Required Reserve Amount" means the Reserve Percentage multiplied by the unpaid balance of Accounts Receivable.

"Reserve Account" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5 of this Agreement.

"Reserve Percentage" means 20%.

"Reserve Shortfall" means the amount by which the Reserve Account is less than the Required Reserve Amount.

"Solvent" means that Company (i) owns property whose fair saleable value is greater than the amount required to pay all of its indebtedness (including contingent debts),
(ii) is able to pay all of its indebtedness as such indebtedness matures and (iii) has capital sufficient to carry on its business and transactions and all business and transactions in
which it is engaged.
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2 .           Appointment. Company appoints Factor as its sole factor with respect to all sales of its merchandise or rendition of services to Customers and hereby offers to
sell and assign only to Factor, as absolute owner, all Accounts Receivables arising out of such sales or services, including all such sales or services arising under any trade names or
through any division or selling agent. "Accounts Receivable" shall mean and include Accounts, contract rights, Instruments, Documents, Chattel Paper, General Intangibles,
returned or repossessed goods arising out of or relating to the sale or other disposition of goods at any time or from time to time, all proceeds thereof and merchandise represented
thereby. The assignment of Accounts Receivable to Factor shall vest in Factor all of Company's rights, securities, guaranties and liens with respect to each Account Receivable,
including all rights of stoppage in transit, replevin, reclamation, and all claims of lien filed by Company or held by Company on personal property, and all rights and interest in the
merchandise sold, and all of Company's defenses and rights of offset with respect to any payments received by Factor on Accounts Receivable, but Factor shall not be obligated to,
and shall not be liable for, exercising or refusing to exercise any rights granted to Factor hereby.

3.           Purchase of Accounts Receivable. Factor agrees to purchase from Company at the office of Factor all Accounts Receivable first approved by Factor in writing as
to credit risk and terms of sale (each such approved Account Receivable being herein called a "Factor Risk Account Receivable"). All orders from Customers including the amount
and terms of each proposed sale or service to such Customers shall be submitted in advance of purchase or rendition of service to Factor for prior written approval, which may be
granted or withheld at Factor's sole discretion. Factor's approval is subject to withdrawal either orally or in writing at any time prior to delivery of merchandise or rendition of
services, and shall be deemed no longer effective in any event if Company's delivery of merchandise or rendition of services is made more than thirty (30) days beyond the date
specified for such delivery or rendition in the terms of sales submitted to Factor for its approval, or more than thirty (30) days from the date of Factor's approval if no delivery or
rendition date has been specified. Submission of orders for Factor's prior written approval shall not be required with regard to a sale made by Company in compliance with any
Customer credit line which may from time to time be issued to Company by Factor in its sole discretion, provided that shipments are made prior to the expiration date of the credit
line approval. Any Customer credit line issued by Factor may be amended or withdrawn by Factor in whole or in part at any time and for any reason without advance notice. The
amount of all Accounts Receivable of each Customer as to which Factor shall have approved a Customer credit line shall, in the order in which they have arisen, be treated as
Factor Risk Accounts Receivable up to the limit of the Customer credit line in effect from time to time. Upon the receipt of any payment in collected funds from or issuance of
credit to a Customer with respect to a Factor Risk Account Receivable, the Accounts Receivable of such Customer in excess of the Customer credit line shall, to the extent of such
payment or credit and in the order in which they have arisen, be treated as Factor Risk Accounts Receivable, unless prior to such payment or credit Factor shall have withdrawn the
credit line approval. Factor's withholding or withdrawing of a Customer order approval or credit line approval shall at all times be in Factor's sole discretion, and Factor's actions
with regard thereto shall not render Factor liable to Company in any respect for damages or otherwise.   Subject to Company's warranties and representations herein contained,
Factor will assume the credit loss on each Factor Risk Account Receivable specifically assigned to Factor hereunder within twenty-one (21) days from the earlier of its invoice date
or shipping date if the Customer, after receiving and accepting delivery of goods or services, fails to pay in full such Factor Risk Account Receivable on its longest maturity solely
because of its financial inability to pay. If, however, such failure to pay is due in whole or in part to any other cause, Factor shall not be responsible and shall have full recourse to
Company. Factor at its option may purchase Accounts Receivable not approved as to credit risk or terms of sale (each such Account Receivable not approved by Factor being
herein called a "Company Risk Account Receivable"), but each purchase of a Company Risk Account Receivable shall be with full recourse to Company and Company agrees to
pay Factor on demand for each Company Risk Account Receivable.
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4 .           Purchase Price. The purchase price of each Account Receivable (the "Purchase Price") shall be equal to eighty-percent (80%) of the gross amount of the
Account Receivable. The Purchase Price shall be remitted to the Company upon acceptance by Factor of the assignment of the Accounts Receivables provided at that time Factor
has received a Letter of Acceptance substantially in the form of Exhibit C annexed hereto or such other evidence acceptable to Factor, in its sole discretion, that the Customer has
received and accepted the merchandise and that the Customer will assert no defenses, claims or offsets in excess of ten (10%) percent of the invoice amount. After purchase of an
Account Receivable by Factor, a discount, credit, unidentifiable payment or allowance may be claimed solely by the Customer, and if not so claimed, such discount, credit,
payment or allowance shall be the property of Factor.

5 .           Company Reserve Account. Factor shall establish on its books in Company's name a reserve account (the "Reserve Account") which Factor shall credit with the
Purchase Price of all Accounts Receivable purchased by Factor from Company and which Factor shall debit with all disbursements of funds made to Company or on its behalf, as
well as all credits, discounts to Company's Customers, anticipations earned by Company's Customers, factoring charges, interest, bank wire transfer and other fees and any other
amounts chargeable to Company under this Agreement or any supplement hereto or any other agreement between Company and Factor. Factor shall furnish Company with advices
of all credits and debits to the Reserve Account. Factor will render to Company on a monthly basis a statement of its Reserve Account. Each statement of account will be
considered correct and binding on Company, absent manifest error, unless Company objects in writing, by certified mail, return receipt requested, to capstone within thirty (30)
days of the date of such statement of account, setting forth each and every specific exception by Company to such statement. Each statement of account shall be deemed delivered
when e-mailed or when mailed through the United States postal service, three days after the date of such statement. Each statement shall be dated within 10 days of the 1st day of
each month, and Company will be deemed to have received such statement unless it claims non-receipt in writing by certified mail, return receipt requested, by the twenty-fifth day
of such month.
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6 .           Warranties and Representations. Company warrants and represents that each Account Receivable sold and assigned to Factor hereunder: (a) shall be genuine
and valid and shall represent a completed delivery or performance in fulfillment in every respect of the terms, conditions and specifications of a bona fide, uncancelled and
unexpired sale or service in the ordinary course of business to a Customer which is not affiliated with Company in full compliance with the specifications of such Customer; (b)
Company shall be at the time of delivery or performance the absolute owner of all merchandise and other property involved; (c) Company has not granted and, without Factor's
prior written consent, Company will not hereafter" grant to any other Person until all security interests granted hereunder have been terminated, a security interest in, or grant to
any other Person any right to purchase, the Factored Accounts; (d) is enforceable for the full amount thereof and will be subject to no dispute or claim by the Customer in whole
or in part as to price, terms, quality, quantity, delay in shipment, offsets, counterclaims, contra accounts or any other defense of any other kind and character, real or claimed; (e)
will be subject to no discounts, deductions, allowances, offsets, counterclaims or other contra items or to no special terms of payment which are not shown on the face of the
invoice thereof; (f)will not represent a delivery of merchandise upon "consignment," "guaranteed sale," "sale or return," "payment on reorder" or similar terms; (g) is payable in
United States Dollars and has been invoiced to the Customer by an invoice that bears notice of the sale and assignment to Factor in compliance with the terms of this Agreement;
and (h) will not represent a "pack, bill and hold" transaction unless Company furnishes Factor with a copy of the Customer's purchase order and has obtained Customer's
agreement to grant Factor a security interest in the merchandise and to pay for the merchandise at the maturity date of the invoice irrespective of whether or not Company has
received instructions to deliver the same; (i) Company agrees to notify Factor promptly of any change in the name, corporate structure, or business addresses or location of the
Company; (j) All applicable state and federal laws have been complied with in conjunction with all of the Factoring Agreement, as well as all of the transactions arising pursuant
to the Factoring Agreement. Company acknowledges to Factor that the non-compliance with such laws constitutes a breach of this Agreement and would have an adverse impact
on the value, enforceability and/or collectability of any Factored Account sold and assigned to Factor pursuant to this Agreement; (k) Company is duly incorporated and in good
standing in its state of incorporation and those states in which Company conducts business and shall remain so for so long as this Agreement is in effect; (1) the Factoring
Agreement, and the transaction entered into in connection therewith, does not and shall not contravene any applicable statute, law or regulation; and (m) the Factoring Agreement
correctly sets forth all of the terms of the factoring relationship between Company and the Factor. Company shall provide Factor with immediate notice of any breach of the
Factoring Agreement.

7.           Collateral, No Lien Termination Without Release, Liquidation Success Premium.

7.1         As security for all of the Obligations, Company grants Factor a continuing lien in, and security interest in the collateral described in Exhibit A (being herein
referred to as the "Collateral"). Recourse to the Collateral or any other security shall not at any time be required and Company shall at all times remain liable for the repayment
upon demand of all Obligations at any time owing by Company to Factor. During the term of this Agreement, Company shall not sell or assign, negotiate, pledge or grant any
security interest in any of the Collateral to anyone other than Factor or Lender, without Factor's prior written consent.

7.2         In recognition of Factor's right to have all its attorneys' fees and other expenses incurred in connection with this Agreement secured by the Accounts Receivables
and other collateral, notwithstanding payment in full of any deficiency by Company, Factor shall not be required to record any termination or satisfactions of any liens on the
Accounts Receivables and Collateral unless the Company has executed and delivered to Factor general releases in a form reasonably acceptable to Factor. The Company
understands that this provision constitutes a waiver of rights under Section 9-513(c) of the UCC.
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7.3         If Company substantially ceases operating as a going concern, and the proceeds of the Collateral created after an Event of Default are in excess of the balance due
at the time of default, Company shall pay to Factor a liquidation success premium of ten (10%) percent of the amount of such excess.

8 .           Invoicing. All invoices for merchandise sold or services rendered to a Customer shall be prepared by the Company and shall bear a notice that they have been
assigned to, are owned by and are payable directly and only to Factor's Refactor in substantially the form shown on the notice of assignment attached hereto as Exhibit B attached
hereto. Upon Factor's request, Company shall furnish Factor with copies of all invoices, accompanied by duly executed assignment schedules, original shipping or delivery
receipts, and such other information or Documents as Factor in its discretion may request from time to time. Company represents and warrants to Factor that it has given or will
promptly give, or has caused or will promptly cause to be given, written notification to all Customers of Factor's purchase and ownership thereof. In the event that such notification
for any reason is not timely provided to a Customer, Factor at its option shall have the right (but no obligation) to provide such notification to such Customer, with the same effect
as if such notice had been given directly by Company. If Company fails for any reason to provide Factor, within two (2) days after a request by Factor, with copies of such invoices
(or the equivalent) or such proof of shipment or delivery when requested by Factor for any Factor Risk Account Receivable or fails to provide the Letter of Acceptance or other
evidence concerning acceptance of merchandise by the Customer as provided in Section 3, such Factor Risk Account Receivable shall automatically become a Company Risk
Account Receivable. Factor shall have no liability with respect such Company Risk Account Receivable and Company shall immediately reimburse Factor for the amount of any
remittances made by Factor to Company thereon. Each invoice shall bear the terms of sale and no change from the original terms of sale shall be made without Factor's prior
written consent. Factor reserves the right to mail original invoices to the Customers at Company's expense; however, mailing, sending or delivery by Factor of a bill or invoice
shall not be deemed to be any representation by Factor with respect thereto.

9.          Payment of Accounts Receivable. All payments of Accounts Receivable and other payments on behalf of Company received by Factor shall be credited to
Company's Reserve Account. No check, draft or other instrument received by Factor shall constitute final payment unless and until such check, draft or other instrument shall have
been actually collected by Factor in immediately available funds. The amount of the Purchase Price of any Factor Risk Account Receivable which remains unpaid will be deemed
collected and will be credited to Company's account as of the earlier of the following dates: (a) the date of the Account Receivables longest maturity if any proceeding or petition is
instituted or filed by or against the Customer for relief under any federal or state bankruptcy or insolvency law, code or act, or if a receiver or trustee is appointed for the Customer;
or (b) as of the last day of the fourth (4th) month following its longest maturity date if such Factor Risk Account Receivable remains unpaid as of such date without the happening
of any of the events specified in the preceding clause (a). If any Factor Risk Account Receivable credited to Company's Reserve Account is not paid for any reason other than the
Customer's financial inability to pay, Factor shall reverse the credit and charge Company's Reserve Account accordingly and such Account Receivable shall then be deemed a
Company Risk Account Receivable.
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1 0 .         Remittances. Without limiting the obligations of Company under Section 9 hereof, all remittances received by Company with respect to all of its Accounts
Receivable purchased by Factor shall be held in trust for Factor, and Company shall immediately deliver to Factor the identical checks, drafts, monies or other forms of payment
received, and Factor shall have the right to endorse Company's name on any check, draft or other form of remittance received, where such endorsement is required to effect
collection. Company hereby appoints Factor or such Person as Factor may name as its attorney-in-fact to execute all necessary documents in Company's name and do all things
necessary to carry out this Agreement. Company ratifies and approves all acts of the attorney and agrees that neither Factor nor the attorney shall be liable for any acts of
commission or omission nor for any error of judgment or mistake of fact or law. This power being coupled with an interest is irrevocable as long as Company is indebted to Factor
in any manner.

1 1 .         Customer Disputes and Claims. Company agrees to notify Factor immediately of all returns and allowances and of all disputes with and claims made by
Customers and to adjust all such claims and disputes at its own expense, issuing credit memoranda promptly, but subject to Factor's approval. It is Factor's practice to allow a
reasonable time for the settlement of disputes between Company and Company's Customers without waiving Factor's right at any time to adjust any claims and disputes on a Factor
Risk Account Receivable directly with the Customer and to charge back to the Reserve Account at any time the full amount of the Account Receivable involved. Factor may at any
time charge the Reserve Account the full amount of: (a) any Customer deduction of not more than one hundred dollars; (b) any Factor Risk Account which is not paid in full when
due for any reason (real or imaginary) other than the Customer's financial inability to pay; (c) any Account for winch there is a breach of any of Company's warranties or
representations set forth herein; (d) any anticipation deducted by such Customer on any Account; and (e) any Company Risk Account Receivable which is not paid in full when
due. Any such charge back shall not be deemed to constitute a reassignment of the Account Receivable, and Factor shall retain a security interest therein as security for all
Obligations owing to Factor.

12 .         Collection of Accounts; Returned Goods. As owner of the Accounts Receivable, Factor shall have the right to (a) bring suit, or otherwise enforce collection, of
the Account Receivable in the name of Company or Factor, (b) modify the terms of payment, settle, compromise or release, in whole or in part, any amounts owing, on terms
Factor may deem advisable, and (c) issue credits in the name of Company or Factor. Should any goods be returned or rejected by Company's Customers or otherwise recovered by
Company, Company shall segregate and hold such goods in trust for Factor, but at Company's sole risk and expense. Company shall also promptly notify Factor and, at Factor's
request, will deliver such goods to Factor, pay Factor the invoice price thereof, or sell such goods at Company's expense for the purpose of paying Company's Obligations to Factor.
Once Company has granted or issued a discount, credit or allowance to a Customer on any Account Receivable, Company shall have no further interest therein.   Any remittances
received by Company on account of any of the Accounts Receivable shall be held by Company as trustee of an express trust for Factor's benefit, separate from its own property,
and Company shall immediately deliver the same in kind properly endorsed to Factor. Factor may endorse Company's name on any check, instrument, draft or other document in
payment of an Account Receivable. Any payments made to either Company or Factor from, or credits issued to, a Customer shall be applied first to the Factor Risk Accounts
Receivable owing by such Customer, irrespective of instructions of the Customer or the invoice dates of such Factor Risk Accounts Receivable or the manner in which payment is
made, and Factor shall have recourse to Company to the extent any such payment is made directly to Company.
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1 3 .         Commissions. Company agrees to pay Factor a commission of two percent (2%), in the form of a discount on the face amount of each Factor Risk Accounts
Receivable or Company Risk Accounts Receivable for the first thirty (30) days or part thereof that such Account Receivable is outstanding. In no event, however, shall the
commission payable for each invoice be less than $7.00. All commissions due hereunder shall be payable by debit to the Reserve Account. After the first thirty (30) days that any
portion of a Factor Risk Accounts Receivable or Company Risk Accounts Receivable has not been Closed and until such Account Receivable is Closed, the commission due to
Factor shall be one percent (1%) for each additional fourteen (14) day period, or portion thereof that such Account Receivable is outstanding, and shall be earned on the first day of
such period. The minimum commissions to be earned by Factor under this Agreement for (i) the first year of this Agreement, commencing the date hereof shall be $420,000 and
(ii) the second year of this Agreement, commencing on the first anniversary date hereof shall be $540,000 (each, a "Minimum Commission"). The difference between the
Minimum Commissions and the amount of commissions actually received shall be chargeable to the Reserve Account as of the end of each such year (or, if this Agreement is
terminated for any reason before the Anniversary Date, as of the date of such termination).

14 .         Refactoring. The Company acknowledges and agrees that the Factor may, from time to time, reassign and resell any Account Receivables and the Collateral to
(i) CIT Commercial Services, Inc. or any of its successors in interest; (ii) any other factor; or (iii) such other business entity as Factor in its sole discretion may determine (any such
entity collectively and severally referred to herein as the "Refactor"). Pursuant to the terms and conditions of agreements entered into with such Refactor from time to time (the
"Refactoring Agreements"), the Company hereby consents to any such resale, reassignment and hypothecation. Company agrees that all agreements, representations, warranties
and covenants made by it hereunder shall be deemed to be made both to the Factor and the Refactor, jointly and severally as the context may require and that the term "Factor" as
used throughout this Agreement shall in all instances be interpreted to mean "either the Factor or the Refactor or both of them." The Company agrees that (i) this Agreement is and
shall at all times be subject to the terms, provisions and covenants of the Refactoring Agreements which may now or hereafter affect this Agreement and to any renewals,
modifications, replacements or extensions thereof; and (ii) the Refactor may exercise all of the Factor's rights and remedies hereunder whether or not such rights or remedies have
been specifically granted herein to the Refactor. The Company covenants and agrees that the Refactor, its employees and its agents shall not be liable to it for any act, omission,
breach or violation on its part or on the Factor's part with respect to performance or non-performance of any of the terms and provisions of the Refactoring Agreements, and with
respect to performance or non-performance of any of the terms and provisions of this Agreement, or any other agreement between the parties hereto and any indebtedness owing by
the Factor to the Company of any kind or nature whatsoever, if any, and that the Company shall look solely to the Factor for enforcement of its rights under this Agreement and the
Reassignment Agreements.
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15.         Financial Statements and Information; Inspections.

15.1       Company shall furnish Factor with annual financial statements prepared by an independent accountant acceptable to Factor and also furnish on a timely basis
interim financial statements and other financial information upon Factor's request.

15.2       Factor shall have the right at any time to access, review and copy, at Company's expense, all records and documents relating to any Collateral, and to access and
utilize computer hardware and software and other data processing systems used by Company. Company shall maintain, and shall furnish to Factor on request, such other supporting
documents and reports with respect to the Factored Accounts as Factor may reasonably request from time to time. If any of Company's records or reports in respect of reporting any
of the foregoing information are prepared by an accounting service or other agent, Company hereby irrevocably authorizes such service or agent to deliver such records, reports
and related documents to Factor, and such accounting service or agent may rely upon a copy of this Agreement as evidencing such authorization without necessity of notice to or
further consent by Company.

15.3       Company shall permit any representative of Factor to visit and inspect any of the properties of Company, to examine all books of accounts, records, reports and
other papers, to make copies and extracts therefrom, and to discuss the affairs, finances and accounts of Company with its officers, employees, independent public accountants,
creditors and depository institutions all at such reasonable times and as often as may be reasonably requested. Company agrees to do all things necessary or appropriate to permit
Factor to fully exercise its rights under this Section 15.3.

16.         Financial Condition. Company warrants that it is Solvent and shall remain Solvent during the term of tins Agreement; that any financial statements delivered to
Factor accurately and fairly state Company's financial condition; that there has been no material adverse change in Company's financial condition as reflected in the statements
since the date thereof nor do the statements fail to disclose any fact or facts which might materially adversely affect Company's financial condition; and there is no litigation
pending or threatened, which taken in the aggregate if adversely determined, can reasonably be expected to have a material adverse affect on Company's financial condition.

17.         Term of Agreement; Termination.
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17.1       This Agreement shall take effect on the date of acceptance by Factor and shall remain in full force and effect until terminated: (a) by Company at any time upon
the giving of not less than thirty (30) days prior written notice of termination to Factor or (b) by Factor at any time upon the giving of not less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of termination to Company, or, (c) without notice if any of the following events (each, an " Event of Default") shall occur: (i) Company shall default in the payment of any
of the Obligations on the due date thereof (whether due at stated maturity, on demand, upon acceleration or otherwise); (ii) any representation or warranty made in this
Agreement or any supplement hereto, or in any other document executed in connection herewith, or any instrument, certification or financial statement furnished in compliance
with or in reference hereto or thereto, or in any other agreement between Company and Factor, shall prove incorrect or misleading in any material respect when made or
furnished; (iii) Company shall fail or neglect to perform, keep or observe any covenant or agreement contained in this Agreement or any supplement hereto or any other
agreement between Company and Factor; (iv) Company or any guarantor of the Obligations shall file or have filed against it a petition, answer or consent seeking relief under
Title 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code, as now constituted or hereafter amended, or any other applicable Federal or state bankruptcy law or other similar law, or a
receiver, liquidator, assignee, trustee, custodian, sequestrator or similar official shall be appointed for Company or any guarantor of the Obligations or any substantial part of its
or his property; (v) the occurrence of any event or condition which, alone or when taken together with all other events or conditions occurring or existing concurrently therewith,
Factor determines (1) has or may be reasonably expected to have a material adverse effect upon Company's business, operations, properties, condition (financial or otherwise);
(2) has or may be reasonably expected to have any material adverse effect whatsoever upon the validity or enforceability of this Agreement or any other agreement between
Company and Factor; (3) has or may be reasonably expected to have any material adverse effect upon any security for the Obligations, Factor's liens therein or the priority of
such liens; or (4) materially impairs the ability of Company to perform its Obligations under this Agreement or any other agreement between Company and Factor, or the ability
of Factor to enforce and collect the Obligations or realize upon any of the security for the Obligations in accordance with the terms of this Agreement or any other agreement
between Company and Factor or applicable law; (vi) Company is no longer Solvent, or fails, closes, suspends, or goes out of business; or (vii) there is a change (by death or
otherwise) in Company's principal stockholders or owners. In the event that this Agreement is terminated by Company prior to an Anniversary Date, Factor shall be entitled to
the unpaid portion of the minimum factoring commissions which would have been payable to Factor pursuant to Section 13 of this Agreement through such Anniversary Date.

17.2       Company shall indemnify Factor and hold Factor harmless from and against any liability, loss, damage, suit, action or proceeding ever suffered or incurred by
Factor (including reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses) as the result of Company's failure to observe, perform or discharge any of its Obligations or duties hereunder or under
any Factoring Agreement. In addition, Company shall defend Factor against and save Factor harmless from the actions, demands or claims of any Person with respect to any of the
Factored Accounts or any of the other Collateral, except any such actions, demands or claims directly arising from Factor's willful misconduct or gross negligence.

17.3       In the event that this Agreement is terminated by Company or by Factor as a result of an Event of Default prior to an Anniversary Date, Factor shall be entitled to
the unpaid portion of the minimum factoring commissions which would have been payable to Factor pursuant to Section 13 of this Agreement through such Anniversary Date.
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18.         Effect of Termination. Upon the effective date of termination, all Obligations of Company to Factor shall become immediately due and payable without further
notice or demand irrespective of any maturity dates established prior thereto. However, no such termination shall release or abrogate any security interest held by Factor in any
collateral of Company until all of Company's Obligations to Factor, including commissions, interest and all costs, expenses and attorneys' fees as herein provided, are paid in full.
In the event that Factor shall cease to act as factor for Company, Company agrees to furnish Factor with indemnity satisfactory to Factor that will protect Factor against possible
charges to Company under the terms of this Agreement and with a release satisfactory to Factor of all claims Company may have against Factor and until Company does so, Factor
may hold any balance remaining to Company's credit in the Reserve Account as security for all Obligations of Company to Factor. Company shall pay Factor upon demand all costs
and expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees, incurred by Factor to obtain or enforce payment of any Obligations due from Company to Factor or in the prosecution or
successful defense of any action or proceeding concerning any matter arising out of or related to this Agreement, the factoring of the Company's Accounts Receivable by Factor, or
any Obligations owing by Company to Factor.

19.        Lien Perfection. Company agrees to execute and deliver to Factor all financing statements provided for by the Uniform Commercial Code and all other documents
or instruments which may be required by law or which Factor may request to perfect its first priority security interest hereunder and to cooperate with Factor in the filing, recording
or renewal thereof, and to pay all filing and recording fees and expenses related thereto, and Company authorizes Factor and any Person whom Factor designates as Company's
attorney with power to sign Company's name thereon. This power being coupled with an interest is irrevocable as long as Company is indebted to Factor in any manner. Company
shall execute, acknowledge and/or deliver such other Instruments as assurances as may reasonably be requested to effectuate the purposes of this Agreement. At Factor's option,
this Agreement may be filed as a financing statement.

20.         Preferences. Company shall indemnify and hold Factor harmless from any loss, damage or expense (including attorneys' fees) incurred by Factor as a result of a
claim made at any time against Factor for the repayment or recovery of any amount received by Factor in payment of any Company Risk Account Receivable by the payor or legal
representative thereof (including a trustee in bankruptcy or assignee for the benefit of creditors) on the grounds of preference under the provisions of the Bankruptcy Code or any
other federal or state insolvency law. If such claim is ever made against Factor, in addition to all of Factor's other rights under this Agreement, Company shall pay to Factor on
demand the full net face amount of any such Company Risk Account Receivable, or if Factor so elects, Factor shall have the right to charge against the Reserve Account the full net
face amount of any such Company Risk Account Receivable, but such charge back shall not be deemed a reassignment thereof. The provisions of this Section 20 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement and the payment in full of the Obligations.

2 1 .         Notices. Any notices, demands, consents, or other writings or communications permitted or required by this Agreement shall be given by facsimile transmitter,
overnight air courier or certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the party to be notified as follows:
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(a)  If to Factor:  Capstone Business Credit, LLC
1350 Avenue of the Americas, 24th Floor
New York, NY 10019
Facsimile No.: 212-755-6833

(b)  If to Company:  Harbrew Imports, Ltd.
102 Buffalo Ave.
Freeport, NY 11520
Facsimile No.: 516-377-2509

or to such other address as each party may designate for itself by notice given in accordance with this Section 21. Any written notice or demand that is not sent in conformity with
the provisions hereof shall nevertheless be effective on the date that such notice is actually received by the noticed party.

2 2 .         ACH Authorization. In order to satisfy any of the Obligations, Factor is hereby authorized by Company to initiate electronic debit or credit entries through the
ACH system to any deposit account maintained by Company wherever located.

2 3 .         Miscellaneous. This Agreement, together with any supplement hereto, contains the entire agreement between the parties, and cannot be modified, altered,
changed or amended orally. This Agreement is intended solely for the benefit of Factor and Company, and no other person or party (including any guarantor), is intended to be
benefited hereby in any way. The captions in this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and shall not define or limit any of the terms or provisions hereof. Failure of
Factor to exercise any rights granted to it hereunder upon any breach or default by Company shall not be deemed a waiver thereof in the event of further breaches or defaults. The
remedies of Factor hereunder shall be deemed to be cumulative and not exclusive. This Agreement shall be binding upon, and inure to the benefit of, the parties hereto and their
respective successors and assigns and shall become effective only from the date of Factor's written acceptance. This Agreement is made and accepted and shall be construed,
interpreted and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of New York, without regard to conflict of law principles, and Company irrevocably consents and submits to the
jurisdiction of state courts of, and federal courts in, the State of New York, for the purpose of any suit, action or proceeding relating hereto.

2 4 .         WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, FACTOR AND COMPANY HEREBY WAIVE,
IRREVOCABLY AND UNCONDITIONALLY, TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION BROUGHT ON, UNDER OR BY VIRTUE OF OR RELATING IN ANY WAY
TO THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY SUPPLEMENT HERETO OR ANY OF THE OTHER DOCUMENTS EXECUTED IN CONNECTION HEREWITH, OR ANY
CLAIM, DEFENSE, RIGHT OF SETOFF OR OTHER ACTION PERTAINING HERETO, OR TO ANY OF THE FOREGOING.
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2 5 .         Electronic Data Transmission. Factor may authorize Company to send to Factor or receive from Factor assignments, invoices, credit memoranda, credit
approval requests, credit approvals, and other reports to be delivered to or transmitted by Factor under this Agreement by electronic means (each, an "Electronic Transmission"").
Any documents authorized by Factor to be sent by Electronic Transmission shall be deemed (a) to have been transmitted by a Person duly authorized to do so, and (b) to have
been received by the Person for whom such documents were intended on the actual date of receipt of such documents, unless such day is not a business day, in which event such
documents shall be deemed to have been received on the first business day following actual receipt. Each party may rely upon, and assume the authenticity of, any signatures
contained in any documents Factor authorizes to be transmitted by Electronic Transmission, and such signatures shall have the same effect and weight as original signatures and
shall be sufficient to satisfy the requirements of the Uniform Commercial Code or any applicable statute, rule of law, or rule of evidence. Electronic Transmissions which are not
readily capable of bearing either a signature or a reproduction of a signature (e.g., e-mail transmissions) shall be deemed signed, for purposes of the Uniform Commercial Code
and all other rules of law and evidence, if they contain the name or an abbreviation of the name of the party sending the Electronic Transmission, it being agreed that such name
or abbreviation serves as a symbol adopted by the sender with the intent to authenticate such writing. On the request of either party, the other party shall immediately confirm the
receipt of any documents transmitted by Electronic Transmission. The sender of any documents transmitted by Electronic Transmission shall maintain backup paper documents
for such documents until at least the third anniversary of the date of the termination of this Agreement and shall, on request of the receiving party, furnish such backup paper
documents within two business days of the receipt of a request therefor. Each party may rely upon documents authorized by Factor to be sent by Electronic Transmission to the
same extent as if original documents had been personally delivered.

26.         Fees. Company agrees to remit to Factor:

26.1       The fees set forth herein in the amounts and on the dates set forth herein and authorizes Factor to collect such fees on their respective due dates by charging
Company's Reserve Account;

26.2       Any Misdirected Payment Fee immediately upon its accrual;

26.3       The Missing Notation Fee on any Invoice that is sent by Company to a Customer which does not contain the notice as required by Exhibit B hereof;

26.4       All past due amounts due from Company to Factor hereunder; and

26.5       The out-of-pocket expenses directly incurred by Factor in the administration of this Agreement such as wire transfer fees, postage and audit fees. Company shall
not be required to pay (a) for more than two audits per twelve-month period unless an Event of Default has occurred, (b) more than $4,500.00 per audit.

2 7 .         Special Covenants. For so long as any of the Obligations are outstanding, Company covenants that, unless otherwise consented to by Factor in writing, it shall
comply with the covenants set forth in Schedule A attached hereto.

28.         Clearance Days. For all purposes under this Agreement, Clearance Days will be added to the date on which Factor receives any payment.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Agreement on the day and year first above written.
 

 HARBREW IMPORTS, LTD.  
   
 By: /s/Richard DeCicco  
 Name: Richard DeCicco  
 Title: President  

Accepted by Factor:  
   
CAPSTONE BUSINESS CREDIT, LLC  
   
By: /s/ Joseph Ingrassia  
Name: Joseph Ingrassia  
Title: Managing Member  
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EXHIBIT A
to

Factoring Agreement

1.             Description of Collateral:

(a)           All inventory and goods, including without limitation, all inventory and goods held for sale or lease or to be furnished under contracts of service, raw materials, work in
process, finished goods, goods in transit, advertising, packaging and shipping materials, and all designs, creations, patterns, styles, samples and all other material and supplies
(collectively, the "Inventory");

(b)           All documents, including without limitation, documents of transport, payment and title relating to any of the foregoing and all such other documents as are made
available to Company for the purpose of ultimate sale or exchange of goods or for the purpose of loading, unloading, storing, shipping, transshipping, manufacturing, processing or
otherwise dealing with goods in a manner preliminary to their sale or exchange;

(c)           All rights, claims, rights of offset, rights of return, actions and causes of action against any Person, including without limitation, those arising out of the purchase by
Company of any of its Inventory including, without limitation, the supplier orders, and all rights of stoppage in transit, replevin, reclamation and rights of any unpaid vendor or as
a lienor;

(d)           All equipment, machinery, fixtures, trade fixtures, vehicles, furnishings, furniture supplies, materials, tools, machine tools, office equipment, appliances, apparatus, dies,
jigs, and chattels; trucks, trailers, loaders and other vehicles and all replacements and substitutions therefore and all accessories thereto;

(e)           All of Company's now owned or hereafter acquired General Intangibles, including, without limitation, trademarks, tradenames, tradestyles, trade secrets, equipment
formulation, manufacturing procedures, quality control procedures, product specifications, patents, patent applications, copyrights, registrations, contract rights, choses in action,
causes of action, corporate or other business records, inventions, designs, goodwill, claims under guarantees, licenses, franchises, tax refunds, tax refund claims, computer
programs, computer data bases, computer program flow diagrams, source codes, object codes and all other intangible property of every kind and nature;

(f)           All of Company's now owned or hereafter acquired Accounts and contract rights, Instruments, insurance proceeds, Documents, Chattel Paper, letters of credit and
Company's rights to receive payment thereunder, any and all rights to the payment or receipt of money or other forms of consideration of any kind at any time now or hereafter
owing or to be owing to Company ("Receivables"), all proceeds thereof and all files in which Company has any interest whatsoever containing information identifying or
pertaining to any of Company's Receivables, together with all of Company's rights to any merchandise which is represented thereby, and all Company's right, title, security and
guarantees with respect to each Receivable, including, without limitation, all rights of stoppage in transit, replevin and reclamation and all rights as an unpaid vendor;
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(g)           All of Company's now owned and hereafter acquired investment property, including, without limitation, securities (whether certificated or uncertificated, securities
entitlements, securities accounts, commodities accounts, and commodities contracts;

(h)           All representations, liens on real or personal property, leases and other agreements and property which in any way secures or relates to the foregoing, or are acquired for
the purpose of securing and enforcing any item thereof;

(i)           (1) all cash held as collateral to the extent not otherwise constituting collateral, all other cash or property at any time on deposit with or held by lender for the account of
Company (whether for safekeeping, custody, pledge, transmission or otherwise), (2) all present or future deposit accounts (whether time or demand or interest or non-interest
bearing) of Company with Lender any other Person including those to which any such cash may at any time and from time to time be credited, (3) all investments and
reinvestments (however evidenced) of amounts from time to time credited to such accounts, and (4) all interest, dividends, distributions and other proceeds payable on or with
respect to (x) such investments and reinvestments and (y) such accounts;

(j)            All Instruments, Chattel Paper, Documents, and contract rights and other rights, irrespective of when acquired; and

(k)           All proceeds, insurance proceeds, products and accessions of or to any and all of the foregoing, and all collateral and security for, and guarantees of, any and all of the
foregoing, and all books and records relating to any and all of the foregoing (including without limitation, any and all microfilm, microfiche, computer programs and records,
source materials, tapes and discs) and all equipment containing said books and records.
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EXHIBIT B
TO

FACTORING AGREEMENT

"This invoice has been sold and assigned to CAPSTONE BUSINESS CREDIT, LLC ("Company"), and has been reassigned by Company to CIT Commercial Services, Inc., by
whom it is now owned and to whom it is exclusively payable at the following address:

CIT Group/Commercial Service, Inc.
POST OFFICE BOX 1036
Charlotte, NC 28201-1036

Prompt notice must be given to CIT Group/Commercial Service, Inc., of any merchandise returns and any claims or disputes whether based on shortages, non-delivery, offsets or
any other claim."
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EXHIBIT C
Letter Of Acceptance

[Attached]

Capstone Business Credit, LLC
1350 Avenue of the Americas, 24th Floor

New York, NY 10019
Tel: 212 755 3636
Fax: 212 755 6833

e-mail: crice@capstonetrade. com

Mr. John Doe
Controller
Sam's Club, Inc.
Address
City, State, Zip

RE:

PO Number PO Date Invoice Number Invoice Date Terms Invoice Amt.

Dear Mr. Doe,

We are a finance company and assignee for the above named entity, providing funding during a period of rapid growth and expansion. Attached is a letter from that company
authorizing all payments to be sent directly and solely to Capstone Business Credit, LLC.

By signing at the bottom and returning this letter to us by fax, you will acknowledge to us both your understanding of the foregoing, and the correctness of the above invoice
numbers pursuant to the terms immediately above your signature.

Sincerely,

Joseph F. Ingrassia Managing Member

The undersigned acknowledges to Capstone Business Credit, LLC that the above invoice amounts are correct and owing: that the work and/or merchandise has been completed and
accepted and that there are not now nor will there be, any setoffs beyond 10% of the invoice amount(s); and that there will be no claims against the. funds paid. Neither Capstone
nor its agents have made any representations except as herein set forth. This estoppel is not subject to modification. New York law shall apply hereto.

Authorized Signature  Title   
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SCHEDULE A
TO FACTORING AGREEMENT

Special Covenants

1. No Material Change or Change of Control. Absent prior written consent from Factor, Company shall not (a) make or permit any material change in the nature of its
business as carried on as of the Effective Date, or (b) allow to occur a Change of Control.

"Change of Control" shall mean, on or after the Effective Date, that any change in the composition of Company's stockholders as of the Effective Date shall occur which would
result in any stockholder or group acquiring 20% or more of any class of the capital stock of Company, or that any Person or entity (or group of Persons or entities acting in
concert) shall otherwise acquire, directly or indirectly, the power to elect a majority of the Board of Directors of Company or otherwise direct the management or affairs of
Company by obtaining proxies, entering into voting agreements or trusts, acquiring securities or otherwise.
 
2. Negative Pledge. Company shall not create, incur, assume or permit to exist any lien upon or with respect to any Collateral now owned or hereafter acquired by

Company, except for liens in favor of Lender or Factor.
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TERMINATION AGREEMENT
TO THE DISCOUNT FACTORING AGREEMENT

AND RELATED DOCUMENTS

This TERMINATION AGREEMENT (this “Termination Agreement”), dated as of June 5, 2009, is entered into by and between Harbrew Imports, Ltd., a New York
corporation (the “Company”), Capstone Business Credit, LLC (“CBC”) and Capstone Capital Group I, LLC (“CCG”, and together with CBC, the “Factor”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Company and the Factor entered into a Discount Factoring Agreement, dated January 22, 2007 (the “Factoring Agreement”), pursuant to which the
Factor provided certain financing to the Company; and

WHEREAS, the Company and the Factor entered into a certain Purchase Order Financing Agreement dated as of January 22, 2007 (the “PO Financing Agreement”,
and with the Factoring Agreement, the “Financing Agreements”) pursuant to which the Factor provided certain financing to the Company; and

WHEREAS, the Company and the Factor are parties to a Settlement Agreement dated as of August 21, 2008, as amended by that certain First Amendment to the
Settlement Agreement dated as of November 7, 2008, and as further amended by that certain Second Amendment to the Settlement Agreement dated as of December __, 2008
(as amended, restated, modified or supplemented and in effect from time to time, the “Settlement Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to certain Guarantees dated January 22, 2007, as reaffirmed by the Reaffirmation of Guarantor dated October 31, 2007, and further reaffirmed in
the First Amendment to the Settlement Agreement and in the Second Amendment to the Settlement Agreement (the “ Guarantees”), Richard DeCicco (the “Guarantor”)
irrevocably and unconditionally guaranteed all of the obligations of the Company under the Financing Agreements and related agreements; and

WHEREAS, as of the date of this Termination Agreement, the Company owes to the Factor $2,833,204.36 under the Financing Agreements (the “Amount Owed”); and

WHEREAS, the Company and the Factor desire to amend the Settlement Agreement and terminate the PO Financing Agreement upon the terms and conditions of this
Termination Agreement; and

WHEREAS, capitalized terms which are used herein without definition and which are defined in the Settlement Agreement shall have the same meanings herein as in
the Settlement Agreement;

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, covenants and agreements hereinafter contained and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1 .             Termination of the Financing Agreements.  Subject to the provisions of this Termination Agreement, the Company and the Factor shall hereby terminate
the PO Financing Agreement as of the date of this Agreement (the “ PO Financing Termination Date”).  Without limiting the generality or effect of the immediately preceding
sentence, from and after the PO Financing Termination Date, the parties hereto shall have no further rights or obligations under the PO Financing Agreements, except as
specifically set forth herein.  Subject to the provisions of this Termination Agreement, upon the payment in full of the Promissory Note (as defined herein), the Company and the
Factor shall each be entitled to terminate the Factoring Agreement at any time pursuant to the terms of that Factoring Agreement (the “Factoring Termination Date”).

 
 



 

2 .             Settlement Under the Financing Agreements. For and in consideration of the full settlement of any and all claims that are, could have been or might in the
future be asserted by the Factor against the Company arising out of, or in connection with, the PO Financing Agreement, the parties agree as follows:

 A. As payment under the PO Financing Agreement, and in full settlement of any outstanding claims, the Borrower shall deliver to the Factor $2,833,204.36 in readily
available funds and/or securities (the “Settlement Payment”), which shall be paid by Borrower to Capstone as follows:

 i. $500,000 shall be paid pursuant to the terms of an unsecured promissory note bearing interest at the rate of seven percent (7%) per annum to be delivered to the
Factor on the date hereof (the “Promissory Note”).   The Promissory Note is attached hereto as Exhibit A.  The payment terms under that certain Promissory Note
shall be as follows:

 (a) A payment of $10,000 per month shall be made to the Factor, which payment shall be first due thirty (30) days from the Effective Date and continuing for a
period of twenty four (24) months,

 (b) A payment of $100,000 shall be due on the thirteenth (13th) month following the Effective Date,

 (c) The remaining amount due shall be paid in full on the date that is twenty five (25) months following the Effective Date, and

 (d) In the event the Company is successful in any financing, the Company shall pay fifty percent (50%) of any monies raised (up to the outstanding balance of
the Promissory Note) to the Factor as a partial or full payoff of the Promissory Note.

 ii. $500,000 worth of common stock of the Company’s parent company, Iconic Brands, Inc. (formerly, Paw Spa, Inc.), (which is equal to 1,000,000 shares of Iconic
Brands, Inc. (formerly, Paw Spa, Inc.) common stock) shall be issued to the Factor;

 iii. $1,833,205 worth of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock of the Company’s parent company, Iconic Brands, Inc. (formerly, Paw Spa, Inc.), (which is equal to
916,603 shares of Class B Preferred Stock) shall be issued to the Factor.  The Class B Preferred Stock shall have a value of $2.00 per share.  The Certificate of
Designation for the Class B Preferred Stock is attached hereto as Exhibit B; and

 iv. A warrant to purchase up to 1,000,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $0.50 per share with an expiration date of three (3) years from the date
hereof.  A copy of the Warrant is attached hereto as Exhibit C.

 B. Releases.

 i. With no additional acts required by any party, at the date when there is only $400,000 remaining to be paid under the Promissory Note, Capstone, for itself and its
predecessors, successors, subsidiaries and affiliates, and each of their respective members, stockholders, directors, managers, employees and agents (collectively,
the “Capstone Releasing Parties”) hereby releases, waives and forever discharges the Company and its predecessors, successors, assigns, subsidiaries, and
affiliates, and each of their respective members, stockholders, directors, managers, employees and agents (collectively, the “Borrower Released Parties”) from
any and all actions, suits, damages, claims and demands which the Capstone Releasing Parties may have as of the date hereof against the Borrower Released
Parties (whether known or unknown, liquidated or unliquidated, due or to become due, direct or derivative, and whether absolute, accrued, contingent or
otherwise, and whether heretofore arising from tort, statute, fiduciary duties or contract), arising out of, under or in connection with the Financing Agreements,
including but not limited to the Guarantees provided by the Guarantor.

 
 



 

 ii. With no additional acts required by any party, at the date when there is only $400,000 remaining to be paid under the Promissory Note, the Company, for itself
and its predecessors, successors, subsidiaries and affiliates, and each of their respective members, stockholders, directors, managers, employees and agents
(collectively, the “Borrower Releasing Parties”) hereby release, waive and forever discharge the Factor and its predecessors, successors, assigns, subsidiaries, and
affiliates, and each of their respective members, stockholders, directors, managers, employees and agents as well as the Guarantor (collectively, the “Capstone
Released Parties”) from any and all actions, suits, damages, claims and demands which the Borrower Releasing Parties may have as of the date hereof against the
Capstone Released Parties (whether known or unknown, liquidated or unliquidated, due or to become due, direct or derivative, and whether absolute, accrued,
contingent or otherwise, and whether heretofore arising from tort, statute, fiduciary duties or contract), arising our of, under or in connection with the Financing
Agreements.

 iii. The releases provided for in this Section B (the “Releases”) apply in all jurisdictions.  Nothing contained in the foregoing Releases shall be construed to impair
any representation, obligation, promise, covenant or condition contained in this Termination Agreement.

 C. UCC-3 Termination Statements.  Upon the Factoring Termination Date, the Factor shall file UCC-3 termination statements terminating their liens on Borrower’s
assets granted pursuant to the Financing Agreements.  In the event the Factor does not timely file such UCC-3 termination statements, the Company shall be
authorized to file such UCC-3 termination statements on behalf of the Factor.

3 .             Binding Agreement. This Termination Agreement shall be binding upon and inure the benefits of the parties hereto and their respective heir, executors,
administrators, predecessors, successors, and assigns and upon any corporation or other entity into or with which any party hereto may merger or consolidate.

4 .             Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which when so executed shall be deemed to be an original and, all
of which taken together shall constitute one and the same Agreement and shall become effective when counterparts have been signed by each party and delivered to the other
parties hereto, it being understood that all parties need not sign the same counterpart. In the event that any signature is delivered by facsimile transmission, such signature shall
create a valid binding obligation of the party executing (or on whose behalf such signature is executed) the same with the same force and effect as if such facsimile signature
were the original thereof.

5 .             Brokers.  Each party hereto hereby confirms that no brokers or finders were employed by such party or any of its officers, directors, employees or
shareholders in connection with the Financing Agreements.

6 .             Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the internal laws of the State of New York, without giving effect to
any of the conflicts of law principles which would result in the application of the substantive law of another jurisdiction. This Termination Agreement shall not be interpreted or
construed with any presumption against the party causing this Termination Agreement to be drafted.

7 .             Enforceability.  Should any provision of the Termination Agreement be declared or determined by any court, arbitrator or body of competent jurisdiction to
be illegal, invalid or unenforceable, the legality, validity and enforceability of the remaining parts, terms or provisions shall not be affected thereby, and said illegal,
unenforceable or invalid part, term or provision shall be deemed not to be a part of this Termination Agreement.

8 .             Authority.  The parties hereto, each for themselves or on behalf of the parties they represent, hereby represent and warrant that each has the full power,
capacity and authority to enter into and perform the obligations under and in connection with this Termination Agreement, and that this Termination Agreement, when executed,
will constitute a valid, legal and binding agreement, enforceable against themselves in accordance with the terms hereof.

 
 



 

9 .             Entire Agreement; Amendment; and Merger . This Termination Agreement contains the entire understanding and agreement of the parties with respect to
the matters covered hereby and, except as specifically set forth herein or in the Financing Agreements or Settlement Agreement, neither the Company nor the Factor makes any
representations, warranty, covenant or undertaking with respect to such matters and they supersede all prior understandings and agreements with respect to said subject matter, all
of which are merged herein. No provision of this Termination Agreement nor any of the Financing Agreements or the Settlement Agreement may be waived or amended other
than by a written instrument signed by the parties, and no waiver of any of the provisions of this Termination Agreement shall be binding unless agreed to in writing by the party
or parties against which such waiver is sought to be enforced.
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[SIGNATURE PAGE TO CAPSTONE TERMINATION AGREEMENT]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Termination Agreement to be duly executed as of the date first above written.

HARBREW IMPORTS, LTD.

By: /s/ Richard DeCicco  
 Name: Richard DeCicco
 Title: President

CAPSTONE BUSINESS CREDIT, LLC

By: /s/ Robert Olson  
 Name: Robert Olson
 Title: Chief Financial Officer

CAPSTONE CAPITAL GROUP I, LLC

By: /s/ Robert Olson  
 Name: Robert Olson
 Title: Chief Financial Officer

 
 



 

Exhibit A

PROMISSORY NOTE

$ 500,000 New York, New York

  June [__], 2009

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, Harbrew Imports LTD. , a New York corporation, having an address at 1174 Route 109, Lindenhurst, New York 11757 (the
“Borrower”) promises to pay to CAPSTONE CAPITAL GROUP I, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, having an address at 1350 Avenue of the Americas, New
York, New York 10019 (“ Lender”), or order, at said office, or at such other place as may be designated from time to time in writing by Lender, the principal sum of FIVE
HUNDRED THOUSAND and 00/100 Dollars ($500,000.00) in lawful money of the United States of America (the “Loan”), with interest at the rate of 7% per annum.

All capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning ascribed to them in the Termination Agreement to the Discount Factoring Agreement and
Related Documents dated of even date herewith.

1.             Payments. The principal amount due under this Note shall be payable by Borrower to Lender at the address above or at such other place as Lender may, from
time to time, designate in writing, without setoff, counterclaim or any other deduction whatsoever, on or before June [__], 2011 (the “Maturity Date”). The principal amount of
the Loan shall be subject to adjustment pursuant to the Termination Agreement of even date herewith or other related documents between Borrower and Lender.

2 .             Mechanism of Payments. Commencing 30 days after the date hereof and on the same day of each and every month thereafter, Borrower shall pay Lender in
equal monthly installment of $10,000 per month for a period of 24 months (the “Monthly Installment”), which shall first be applied to interest and then in reduction of principal
. In addition to the Monthly Installments, on or before June [__], 2010, Borrower shall pay Lender a lump sum amount of $100,000, and, on or before the Maturity Date, Borrow
shall pay Lender the remaining principal amount of $160,000 and any and all accrued interest.

If the Borrower closes a financing, then up to fifty percent (50%) of any monies received in such a financing shall be paid to the Lender, as necessary to satisfy all obligations
under this Note, as a payment under this Note and such payment shall apply against the amount outstanding under this Note to reduce the balance by first crediting each Monthly
Installment and then applying any other amounts to the lump sum payments due under this Section 2.

3.              The occurrence of any one or more of the following events shall constitute an event of default (each an “Event of Default”) hereunder:

(a)            if Borrower makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors;

(b)            if there shall be filed by Borrower or against Borrower (except by Lender) any petition for any relief under the bankruptcy laws of the United States
now or hereafter in effect or any proceeding shall be commenced (except by Lender) with respect to Borrower under any insolvency, readjustment of debt, reorganization,
dissolution, liquidation or similar law or statute of any jurisdiction now or hereafter in effect (whether at law or in equity), provided that in the case of any involuntary filing or
the commencement of any involuntary proceeding against Borrower such proceeding or petition shall have continued undismissed and unvacated for 90 days; or
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(c)            if Borrower shall fail for any reason to make any payment of principal hereunder when due.

If any Event of Default shall occur for any reason, then and in any such event, in addition to all rights and remedies of Lender under applicable law or otherwise, all such rights
and remedies being cumulative, not exclusive and enforceable alternatively, successively and concurrently, all amounts owing under this Note shall be immediately due and
payable, whereupon the then unpaid balance hereof shall bear interest, accruing from the date of this Note, at a rate per annum which is equal to the rate of interest provided for
in Section 1.10 of the Purchase Order Financing Agreement dated as of January 22, 2007, by and between Borrower and Lender (the “PO Financing Agreement”) in each case
from the date of such nonpayment until such amount is paid in full; provided however that in no event shall any interest to be paid pursuant to this Note exceed the maximum rate
permitted by law.

4.             Borrower hereby waives presentment and demand for payment, notice of dishonor, protest and notice of protest of this Note and agrees to pay all costs of
collection when incurred, including reasonable attorneys' fees (which costs may be added to the amount due under this Note and be receivable therewith) and to perform and
comply with each of the terms, covenants and provisions contained in this Note, on the part of Borrower to be observed or performed. No release of any security for the principal
sum due under this Note or extension of time for payment of this Note, or any installment hereof, and no alteration, amendment or waiver of any provision of this Note made by
agreement between Lender and any other person or party shall release, discharge, modify, change or affect the liability of Borrower under this Note.

5.             This Note is subject to the express condition that at no time shall Borrower be obligated or required to pay interest on the principal balance of the Loan at a
rate which could subject Lender to either civil or criminal liability as a result of being in excess of the maximum rate which Borrower is permitted by law to contract or agree to
pay. If by the terms of this Note Borrower is at any time required or obligated to pay interest on the principal balance at a rate in excess of such maximum rate, the rate of interest
under this Note shall be deemed to be immediately reduced to such maximum rate and interest payable hereunder shall be computed at such maximum rate and the portion of all
prior interest payments in excess of such maximum rate shall be applied and shall be deemed to have been paid in reduction of the principal balance.

6.             Borrower hereby irrevocably submits to the jurisdiction of any court of the State of New York or federal court sitting in the State of New York in any action or
proceeding arising out of or relating to this Note. Borrower hereby irrevocably agrees that all claims in respect of such action or proceeding may be heard and determined in such
court of the State of New York or, to the extent permitted by law, in such federal court. Borrower hereby irrevocably waives, to the fullest extent it may effectively do so, the
defense of an inconvenient forum to the maintenance of such action or proceeding. To the extent permitted by law, Borrower also irrevocably consents to the service of any and
all process in any such action or proceeding arising out of or in connection with this Note by the mailing (by certified mail, return receipt requested and postage prepaid) of
copies of such process to the undersigned at the address of Borrower set forth above. Borrower agrees that a final and non-appealable judgment (or a judgment whose time to
appeal has expired) in any such action or proceeding shall be conclusive and may be enforced in other jurisdictions by suit on the judgment or in any other manner provided by
law.

7.              BORROWER HEREBY WAIVES TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING, CLAIM OR COUNTERCLAIM, WHETHER IN CONTRACT
OR TORT, AT LAW OR IN EQUITY, WITH RESPECT TO, IN CONNECTION WITH OR ARISING OUT OF OR IN ANY WAY RELATED TO THIS NOTE OR THE
VALIDITY, PROTECTION, INTERPRETATION, ADMINISTRATION, COLLECTION OR ENFORCEMENT HEREOF OR THEREOF, OR ANY CLAIM OR DISPUTE
HEREUNDER OR THEREUNDER
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8.              The terms of this Note shall be governed and construed under the laws of the State of New York.

9.              This Note may not be changed or terminated orally, but only by an agreement in writing signed by the party against whom enforcement of such change or
termination is sought.

10.            Borrower represents that Borrower has full power, authority and legal right to execute and deliver this Note and that the debt hereunder constitutes a valid
and binding obligation of Borrower.

11.            Whenever used, the singular number shall include the plural, the plural the singular, and the words “Lender” and “Borrower” shall include their respective
successors and assigns.

12.            Notices hereunder shall be given as provided in the PO Financing Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Borrower has duly executed this Note the day and year first above written.

 HARBREW IMPORTS LTD.
  
 By: /s/ Richard J. DeCicco
        Richard DeCicco, Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit B
Class B Preferred Stock

CERTIFICATE OF DESIGNATION,
PREFERENCES AND RIGHTS

of
SERIES B CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK

of

(Pursuant to Section 78.1955 of the
Nevada Revised Statues Law)

ICONIC BRANDS, INC. (formerly, Paw Spa, Inc.), a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Nevada (the "Corporation"), the certificate of
incorporation of which was filed in the office of the Secretary of State of Nevada on October 21, 2005 and amended on June 5, 2009, hereby certifies that the Board of Directors
of the Corporation (the "Board of Directors" or the "Board"), pursuant to authority of the Board of Directors as required by Section 78.1955 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, and
in accordance with the provisions of its Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws, each as amended and restated through the date hereof, has and hereby authorizes a series of the
Corporation's previously authorized 100,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value $0.00001 per share (the "Preferred Stock"), and hereby states the designation and number of
shares, and fixes the relative rights, preferences, privileges, powers and restrictions thereof, as follows:

I. DESIGNATION AND AMOUNT

The designation of this series, which consists of One Million (1,000,000) shares of Preferred Stock, is the Series B Preferred Stock (the "Series B Preferred Stock") and
the stated value amount shall be Two Dollars ($2) per share (the "Stated Value ").

II. CERTAIN DEFINITIONS

For purposes of this Certificate of Designation, in addition to the other terms defined herein, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

A.            “Affiliates” of any particular Person means any other Person that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, controls, or is controlled by or
under common control with such Person.  For purposes of this definition, “ control ” (including the terms “ controlling,” “controlled by” and “under common control with”)
means the possession, direct or indirect, of the power to direct or cause the direction of the management and policies of a Person, whether through the ownership of voting
securities, by contract or otherwise.

B.             “Bloomberg” shall mean Bloomberg, L.P. (or any successor to its function of reporting stock prices).

C.             “Business Combination” means any merger, consolidation or combination of the Corporation or any Subsidiary with or into any other corporation or entity, or
any acquisition by the Corporation or any Subsidiary of all or substantially all the assets or securities of, or majority voting or economic interest in, any other corporation or other
entity, or whether by merger, tender offer, asset purchase, stock purchase, or like combination or consolidation; provided, that such transaction shall not constitute a Sale of
Control.

D.             “Capstone” shall mean Capstone Capital Group I, LLC, a Delaware corporation.

 
 



 

E.             “Common Stock” means the common stock of the Corporation, par value $0.00001 per share, together with any securities into which the common stock may
be reclassified.

F.             “Common Stock Deemed Outstanding” shall mean the number of shares of Common Stock actually outstanding (not including shares of Common Stock held
in the treasury of the Corporation), plus (x) the maximum total number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of the Options, as of the date of such issuance or
grant of such Options, if any, and (y) the maximum total number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion or exchange of Convertible Securities, as of the date of
issuance of such Convertible Securities, if any.

G.             "Conversion Date" means, for any Conversion, the date specified in the notice of conversion in the form attached hereto (the "Notice of Conversion"), so long
as a copy of the Notice of Conversion is faxed, emailed or delivered by other means resulting in notice to the Corporation before 11:59 p.m., New York City time, on the
Conversion Date indicated in the Notice of Conversion; provided, however, that if the Notice of Conversion is not so faxed, emailed or otherwise delivered before such time, then
the Conversion Date shall be the date the Holder faxes or otherwise delivers the Notice of Conversion to the Corporation.

H.             “Convertible Securities” shall have the meaning as defined in Article VIII, Section E(ii) of this Certificate of Designations.

I.              “Corporation” means the collective reference to (i) Iconic Brands, Inc. (formerly, Paw Spa,. Inc.), a Nevada corporation, and (ii) its successor in interest.

J.              “Holder” shall mean the collective reference to Capstone Capital Group I, LLC, its Affiliates or any one or more holder(s) of the Series B Preferred Stock.

K.             “Issuance Date" means one (1) Trading Day following the filing of this Series B Certificate of Designation with the Secretary of State of the State of Nevada.

L.             “Market Price” means, as of any Trading Day, (i) the average of the last reported sale prices for the shares of Common Stock on a national securities exchange which is
the principal trading market for the Common Stock for the five (5) Trading Days immediately preceding such date as reported by Bloomberg or (ii) if no national securities
exchange is the principal trading market for the shares of Common Stock, the average of the last reported sale prices on the principal trading market for the Common Stock
during the same period as reported by Bloomberg, or (iii) if market value cannot be calculated as of such date on any of the foregoing bases, the Market Price shall be the fair
market value as reasonably determined in good faith by (A) the Board of Directors of the Corporation, or (B) at the option of a majority-in-interest of the holders of the
outstanding Series B Preferred Stocks by an independent investment bank of nationally recognized standing in the valuation of businesses similar to the business of the
Corporation.  The manner of determining the Market Price of the Common Stock set forth in the foregoing definition shall apply with respect to any other security in respect of
which a determination as to market value must be made hereunder.

M.            “National Securities Exchange” means any one of the New York Stock Exchange, the NYSE Alternext Exchange, the NASDAQ Capital Market, the OTC
Bulletin Board or any other national securities exchange in the United States where the Corporation’s Common Stock may trade.

N.             “Original Issue Price” means the sum of Two Dollars ($2), representing the aggregate purchase price for each share of Series B Preferred Stock at the Stated
Value.
 

O.             “Options” shall have the meaning as defined in Article VIII, Section E(i) of this Certificate of Designations.

 
 



 

P.             “Series B Preferred Stock” shall mean the 1,000,000 shares of Series B Preferred Stock authorized for issuance pursuant to this Certificate of Designation and
issued to Capstone.

Q.             “Sale of Control” shall mean the sale or transfer of all or substantially all of the assets or securities of the Corporation or any Subsidiary, whether by stock
sale, asset sale, merger, consolidation or like combination, in any one or more series of transactions whereby control of the Board of Directors of the Corporation or any
Subsidiary shall no longer be vested in the Persons who served as members of such Boards of Directors immediately prior to such transaction.

R.             “Series B Conversion Price” means Two Dollars ($2) per share, provided, however, if the Market Price shall be less than Two Dollars ($2) per shares at any
one or more Conversion Date then the Series B Conversion Price shall be equal to 100% of the VWAP per share of Common Stock, as traded on any National Securities
Exchange, for the twenty (20) Trading Days immediately prior to the Conversion Date, or such other dollar amount (or fraction thereof) into which such Series B Conversion
Price may be adjusted pursuant to Article VIII of this Certificate.

S.             “Stated Value” means Two Dollars ($2) per share of Series B Preferred Stock.

T.             “Trading Day” shall mean any day on which the Common Stock is traded for any period on the principal securities exchange or other securities market on
which the Common Stock is then being traded.

U.             “VWAP” means the volume weighted average price per share of the Common Stock as reported by Bloomberg Reporting Service or other recognized stock
market price reporting service.

III. DIVIDENDS

A             Holders of Series B Preferred Stock shall be entitled to receive dividends when, as and if declared by the Board of Directors of the Corporation.  No cash
dividends or distributions shall be declared or paid or set apart for payment on the Common Stock unless such cash dividend or distribution is likewise declared, paid or set apart
for payment on the Series B Preferred Stock in an amount equal to the dividend or distribution that would be payable if all of the issued and outstanding shares of the Series B
Preferred Stock had been fully converted into Common Stock on the day immediately prior to the date which shall be the earliest to occur of the declaration, payment, or
distribution or such dividend.

B.             Dividends on the Series B Preferred Stock are prior and in preference to any declaration or payment of any dividend or other distribution (as defined below)
on any outstanding shares of Junior Securities (as hereinafter defined).

IV. CONVERSION

A.            Optional Conversion

(i)            Subject at all times to the provisions of Section A(v) of this Article IV, Holders of Series B Preferred Stock may at their option convert all or any portion of
their shares of Series B Preferred Stock into Common Stock of the Corporation at any time or from time to time (an “Optional Conversion”).

(ii)            In the event of any one or more Optional Conversions pursuant to this Article IV A. (each a "Conversion") each share of Series B Preferred Stock shall be
convertible into a number of fully paid and non-assessable shares of Common Stock determined in accordance with the following formula:

Series B Preferred Stock Being Converted X Original Issue Price
Series B Conversion Price then in effect

(iii)           Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, express or implied, contained in this Certificate of Designation, without the prior written consent of the
Holder and the board of directors of the Corporation, the maximum number of shares of the Corporation’s Common Stock that may be owned of record or beneficially at any
point in time by any Holder of Series B Preferred Stock or any Affiliate of such Holder (whether upon conversion(s) of Series B Preferred Stock, open market purchases, other
purchases of Corporation Common Stock, exercise of Options or conversion or any Convertible Securities, or any combination of the foregoing) shall not exceed an aggregate of
4.99% of the outstanding shares of the Corporation’s Common Stock

 
 



 

B .             Mechanics of Conversion. In order to effect an Conversion, a Holder of shares of Series B Preferred Stock shall: (i) fax (or otherwise deliver) a copy of the fully
executed Notice of Conversion to the Corporation (Attention: Secretary) and (ii) surrender or cause to be surrendered the original certificates representing the Series B Preferred
Stock being converted (the "Series B Preferred Stock Certificates"), duly endorsed, along with a copy of the Notice of Conversion as soon as practicable thereafter to the
Corporation.  Upon receipt by the Corporation of a facsimile copy of a Notice of Conversion from a Holder, the Corporation shall promptly send, via facsimile, a confirmation to
such Holder stating that the Notice of Conversion has been received, the date upon which the Corporation expects to deliver the Common Stock issuable upon such conversion
and the name and telephone number of a contact person at the Corporation regarding the conversion.  The Corporation shall not be obligated to issue shares of Common Stock
upon a conversion unless either the Series B Preferred Stock Certificates are delivered to the Corporation as provided above, or the Holder notifies the Corporation that such
Series B Preferred Stock Certificates have been lost, stolen or destroyed and delivers the documentation to the Corporation required by Article XII. B hereof.

(i)             Delivery of Common Stock Upon Conversion. Upon the surrender of Series B Preferred Stock Certificates accompanied by a Notice of Conversion,
the Corporation (itself, or through its transfer agent, as appropriate) shall, no later than the later of (a) the fifth (5th) Trading Day following the Conversion Date and (b) the
Trading Day immediately following the date of such surrender (or, in the case of lost, stolen or destroyed certificates, after provision of indemnity pursuant to Article XI B) (the
"Delivery Period"), issue and deliver (i.e., deposit with a nationally recognized overnight courier service postage prepaid) to the Holder or its nominee (x) that number of shares
of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of such shares of Series B Preferred Stock being converted and (y) a certificate representing the number of shares of Series B
Preferred Stock not being converted, if any.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Holder of Series B Preferred Stock shall, for all purposes, be deemed to be a record owner of that
number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of those shares of Series B Preferred Stock set forth in the Conversion Notice as at the date of such Conversion
Notice.  In addition, if the Corporation's transfer agent is participating in the Depository Trust Corporation ("DTC") Fast Automated Securities Transfer program, and so long as
the certificates therefor do not bear a legend and the Holder thereof is not then required to return such certificate for the placement of a legend thereon, the Corporation shall
cause its transfer agent to promptly electronically transmit the Common Stock issuable upon conversion to the Holder by crediting the account of the Holder or its nominee with
DTC through its Deposit Withdrawal Agent Commission system (" DTC Transfer").  If the aforementioned conditions to a DTC Transfer are not satisfied, the Corporation shall
deliver as provided above to the Holder physical certificates representing the Common Stock issuable upon conversion. Further, a Holder may instruct the Corporation to deliver
to the Holder physical certificates representing the Common Stock issuable upon conversion in lieu of delivering such shares by way of DTC Transfer.

(ii)            Taxes.  The Corporation shall pay any and all taxes that may be imposed upon it with respect to the issuance and delivery of the shares of Common
Stock upon the conversion of the Series B Preferred Stock.

( i i i )           No Fractional Shares.  If any conversion of Series B Preferred Stock would result in the issuance of a fractional share of Common Stock
(aggregating all shares of Series B Preferred Stock being converted pursuant to a given Notice of Conversion), such fractional share shall be payable in cash based upon the
Series B Conversion Price per share, and the number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of the Series B Preferred Stock shall be the next lower whole number
of shares.  If the Corporation elects not to, or is unable to, make such a cash payment, the Holder shall be entitled to receive, in lieu of the final fraction of a share, one whole
share of Common Stock.

 
 



 

( i v )           Conversion Disputes.   In the case of any dispute with respect to a conversion, the Corporation shall promptly issue such number of shares of
Common Stock in accordance with subparagraph (i) above as are not disputed. If such dispute involves the calculation of the Series B Conversion Price, and such dispute is not
promptly resolved by discussion between the relevant Holder and the Corporation, the Corporation and the Holder shall submit their disputed calculations to a mutually agreed
upon independent outside accountant via facsimile within three Trading Days of receipt of the Notice of Conversion. If the parties cannot agree on an acceptable independent
outside accountant,, each party shall designate an accountant and those two appointed accountants shall choose a third accountant who shall act as the independent outside
accountant.  The accountant, at the Corporation's sole expense, shall promptly audit the calculations and notify the Corporation and the Holder of the results no later than three
Trading Days from the date it receives the disputed calculations. The accountant's calculation shall be deemed conclusive, absent manifest error. The Corporation shall then issue
the appropriate number of shares of Common Stock in accordance with subparagraph (i) above.

( v )            Payment of Accrued Amounts.  Upon conversion of any shares of Series B Preferred Stock, all amounts then accrued or payable on such shares
under this Certificate of Designation (including, without limitation, all Dividends, if any) through and including the Conversion Date shall be paid by the Corporation in cash. In
the event that the Corporation elects to effect a payment-in-kind, the number of fully paid and non-assessable shares of Common Stock due shall be determined in accordance
with the following formula:

All Amounts Accrued or Payable
Series B Conversion Price

V. RESERVATION OF SHARES OF COMMON STOCK

A .            Reserved Amount.   Immediately following the Corporation’s filing of an Amendment to its Certificate of Incorporation authorizing an increase to its
authorized Common Stock,  the Corporation shall reserve not less than 1,000,000 shares of its authorized but unissued shares of Common Stock for issuance upon conversion of
the Series B Preferred Stock (including any shares that may be issuable in connection with the adjustment provisions of this Certificate of Designations), and, thereafter, the
number of authorized but unissued shares of Common Stock so reserved (the "Reserved Amount") shall at all times be sufficient to provide for the full conversion of all of the
Series B Preferred Stock (including any shares that may be issuable in connection with the adjustment provisions of this Certificate of Designations) outstanding or issuable upon
conversion of Series B Preferred Stock, at the current Series B Conversion Price thereof, and any anticipated adjustments to such Series B Conversion Price.

B.             Increases to Reserved Amount. During the period that the Corporation’s Common Stock is not listed on any National Securities Exchange in the United States
or abroad or the OTC Bulletin Board, the Corporation shall, twice annually, review the Reserved Amount for any stock splits, or adjustments on the Series B Preferred Stock, or
similar situations to determine whether the Reserved Amount needs to be increased.

VI. RANK

All shares of the Series B Preferred Stock shall rank senior to (a) any other class or series of Preferred Stock of the Corporation now existing or hereafter created, (b) to
all shares of the Corporation's Common Stock now existing or hereafter issued, and (c) any other class of securities which is specifically designated as junior to the Series B
Preferred Stock (collectively, with the Common Stock, the "Junior Securities”), in each case as to distribution of assets upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the
Corporation, whether voluntary or involuntary.

VII. LIQUIDATION PREFERENCE

 
 



 

A.            In the event of any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation, either voluntary or involuntary, distributions to the stockholders of the Corporation shall
be made in the following manner:

(i)             Prior and in preference to any distribution of any of the assets or surplus funds of the Corporation to the holders of any Junior Securities, the Holders
of Series B Preferred Stock by reason of their ownership of such stock, shall receive an amount equal to the sum of (x) $1,000.00 for each share of Series B Preferred Stock then
held by them (the "Initial Series B Liquidation Preference Price"), and (y) an amount equal to all unpaid dividends on the Series B Preferred Stock, if any.  If upon the occurrence
of a liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation the assets and funds thus distributed among the holders of the Series B Preferred Stock shall be insufficient to
permit the payment to such holders of the full liquidation preference amount based on the Initial Series B Liquidation Preference Price, then the entire assets and funds of the
Corporation legally available for distribution shall be distributed ratably among the holders of the Series B Preferred Stock in proportion to the preferential amount each such
holder is otherwise entitled to receive.

(ii)            In the event of any Sale of Control, in addition to the right of the Holder(s) of the Series B Preferred Stock to receive the Initial Series B Liquidation
Preference Price, such Holder(s) shall also be entitled to participate with the holders of the Corporation’s Common Stock in receipt of the consideration payable upon such Sale
of Control to the extent that each one (1) share of Series B Preferred Stock then owned by the Holder(s) would be converted pursuant to the terms hereof into Common Stock.

B.             After setting apart or paying in full the preferential amounts due pursuant to Section VII (A) above, the remaining assets of the Corporation available for
distribution to stockholders, if any, shall be distributed to the holders of the Common Stock on a pro rata basis, based on the number of shares of Common Stock then held by
each holder.

VIII. VOTING RIGHTS

A.            Class Voting Rights.  Holders of the Series B Preferred Stock shall vote together as a separate class on all matters which impact the rights, value or conversion terms, or
ranking of the Series B Preferred Stock, as provided herein.

B .             No Other Voting Rights. Except as set forth in Section A of this Article IX, the Series B Preferred Stock shall not vote on any matter submitted to the stockholders of
the Corporation and Holder(s) of the Series B Preferred Stock shall have no other voting rights.

IX. MISCELLANEOUS

A .            Cancellation of Series B Preferred Stock If any shares of Series B Preferred Stock are converted pursuant to this Series B Certificate of Designations, the
shares so converted or redeemed shall be canceled, shall return to the status of authorized, but unissued Series B Preferred Stock of no designated series, and shall not be issuable
by the Corporation as Series B Preferred Stock.

B .             Piggy-Back Registration Rights.  If the Corporation proposes to file a registration statement under the Securities Act with respect to an offering for its own
account of any class of its equity securities (other than a registration statement on Form S-8 (or any successor form) or any other registration statement relating solely to
employee benefit plans or filed in connection with an exchange offer, a transaction to which Rule 145 (or any successor provision) under the Securities Act applies or an offering
of securities solely to the Corporation's existing shareholders), then the Corporation shall in each case give written notice of such proposed filing to the Holder as soon as
practicable before the anticipated filing date, and such notice shall offer each Holder the opportunity to register such number of shares of Common Stock (not otherwise
registered or saleable under Rule 144) as such Holder may request. Each Holder desiring to have Common Stock included in such registration statement shall so advise the
Corporation in writing within 5 Trading Days after the date on which the Corporation's notice is so given, setting forth the number of shares of Common Stock for which
registration is requested. If the Corporation's offering is to be an underwritten offering, the Corporation shall, subject to the further provisions of this Agreement, use its
reasonable best efforts to cause the managing underwriter or underwriters to permit the Holders of the Common Stock requested to be included in the registration for such
offering to include such Common Stock in such offering on the same terms and conditions as any similar securities of the Corporation included therein. The right of each Holder
to registration pursuant to this Section in connection with an underwritten offering by the Corporation shall, unless the Corporation otherwise assents, be conditioned upon such
Holder's participation as a seller in such underwritten offering and its execution of an underwriting agreement with the managing underwriter or underwriters selected by the
Corporation. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the managing underwriter or underwriters of such offering deliver a written opinion to the Corporation that either because of (a)
the kind of securities that the Corporation, the Holders and any other persons or entities intend to include in such offering or (b) the size of the offering that the Corporation, the
Holders and any other persons or entities intend to make, the success of the offering would be materially and adversely affected by inclusion of the Common Stock requested to
be included, then

 
 



 

(i) in the event that the size of the offering is the basis of such managing underwriter's opinion, the number of shares of Common Stock to be registered and offered for the
accounts of Holders shall be reduced pro rata on the basis of the number of securities requested by such Holders to be registered and offered to the extent necessary to reduce the
total amount of securities to be included in such offering to the amount recommended by such managing underwriter or underwriters (provided that if securities are being
registered and offered for the account of other persons or entities in addition to the Corporation, such reduction shall not be proportionally greater than any similar reductions
imposed on such other persons or entities) and (ii) in the event that the combination of securities to be offered is the basis of such managing underwriters opinion, (x) the
Common Stock to be included in such registration and offering shall be reduced as described in clause (i) above or (y) if such actions would, in the reasonable judgment of the
managing underwriter, be insufficient to substantially eliminate the adverse effect that inclusion of the Common Stock requested to be included would have on such offering,
such Common Stock will be excluded entirely from such registration and offering. Any Common Stock excluded from an underwriting shall, if applicable, be withdrawn from
registration and shall not, without the consent of the Corporation, be transferred in a public distribution prior to the earlier of ninety (90) days (or such other shorter period of time
as the managing underwriter may require) after the effective date of the registration statement or ninety (90) days after the date the Holders of such Common Stock are notified
of such exclusion.  Notwithstanding anything herein, if the Holder has shares of Common Stock included in a registration statement and the Securities and Exchange Commission
requests that the number of shares included in any registration statement be cutback pursuant to Rule 415 or similar guidance, then the Holder’s shares shall be cutback first, pari
passu with any other shares that are included as piggy-back shares in such registration statement.

C .             Lost or Stolen Certificates. Upon receipt by the Corporation of (i) evidence of the lost, theft, destruction or mutilation of any Series B Preferred Stock
Certificate(s) and (ii) (y) in the case of loss, theft or destruction, indemnity (without any bond or other security) reasonably satisfactory to the Corporation, or (z) in the case of
mutilation, the Series B Preferred Stock Certificate(s) (surrendered for cancellation), the Corporation shall execute and deliver new Series B Preferred Stock Certificate(s) of like
tenor and date.  However, the Corporation shall not be obligated to reissue such lost, stolen, destroyed or mutilated Series B Preferred Stock Certificate(s) if the Holder
contemporaneously requests the Corporation to convert such Series B Preferred Stock.

D.             Waiver Notwithstanding any provision in this Certificate of Designation to the contrary, any provision contained herein and any right of the Holders of Series
B Preferred Stock granted hereunder may be waived as to all shares of Series B Preferred Stock (and the Holders thereof) upon the written consent of the Holder.

E .             Information Rights So long as shares of Series B Preferred Stock are outstanding, the Corporation will deliver to each Holder of Series B Preferred Stock (i)
audited annual financial statements to the Holders of Series B Preferred Stock within 90 days after the end of each fiscal year; (ii) and unaudited quarterly financial statements
within 45 days of the end of each fiscal quarter.  To the extent that such information is electronically available on the Corporation's Form 10-K Annual Reports, Form 10-Q
Quarterly Reports, Form 8-K Periodic Reports and Annual Reports to Shareholders, the Corporation need not separately furnish such documents to Holders of the Series B
Preferred Stock.

 
 



 

F .             Notices. Any notices required or permitted to be given under the terms hereof shall be sent by certified or registered mail (return receipt requested) or
delivered personally, by nationally recognized overnight carries or by confirmed facsimile transmission, and shall be effective five days after being placed in the mail, if mailed,
or upon receipt or refusal of receipt, if delivered personally or by nationally recognized overnight carrier or confirmed facsimile transmission, in each case addressed to a party.
The addresses for such communications are:

if to the Corporation:
Iconic Brands, Inc.
Attn: Richard DeCicco
1174 Route 109
Lindenhurst, New York 11757

with a copy to (which shall not constitute notice):
Anslow & Jaclin, LLP
Attn: Eric M. Stein
195 Route 9 South, Suite 204
Manalapan, New Jersey 07726

if to the Holder:
Capstone Capital Group I, LLC
1350 Avenue of the Americas
New York, New York 10019

with a copy to (which shall not constitute notice):
Steven L. Siskind, Esq.
1103 Stewart Avenue, Suite 200
Garden City, New York 11530

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

 
 



 

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO SERIES B CERTIFICATE OF DESIGNATION]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned declares under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Nevada that he has read the foregoing Certificate of
Designation and knows the contents thereof, and that he is duly authorized to execute the same on behalf of the Corporation, this 5 day of June 2009.

ICONIC BRANDS, INC. (formerly, Paw Spa, Inc.)

 By:    
  Name: Richard DeCicco  
  Title: President  

 
 



 

NOTICE OF CONVERSION

(To be Executed by the Registered Holder
in order to Convert the Series B Preferred Stock)

The undersigned hereby irrevocably elects to convert __________ shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock (the "Conversion"), represented by Stock Certificate No(s).
______________ (the "Series B Preferred Stock Certificates"), into shares of common stock ("Common Stock") of Iconic Brands, Inc. (the "Corporation") according to the
conditions of the Certificate of Designation, Preferences and Rights of Series B Preferred Stock (the "Certificate of Designation"), as of the date written below.   If securities are
to be issued in the name of a person other than the undersigned, the undersigned will pay all transfer taxes payable with respect thereto.  No fee will be charged to the Holder for
any conversion, except for transfer taxes, if any Each Series B Preferred Stock Certificate is attached hereto (or evidence of loss, theft or destruction thereof).

Except as may be provided below, the Corporation shall electronically transmit the Common Stock issuable pursuant to this Notice of Conversion to the account of the
undersigned or its nominee (which is) with DTC through its Deposit Withdrawal Agent Commission System ("DTC Transfer").

In the event of partial exercise, please reissue a new stock certificate for the number of shares of Series B Preferred Stock which shall not have been converted
.
The undersigned acknowledges and agrees that all offers and sales by the undersigned of the securities issuable to the undersigned upon conversion of Series B Preferred Stock
have been or will be made only pursuant to an effective registration of the transfer of the Common Stock under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Act"), or pursuant to
an exemption from registration under the Act.

In lieu of receiving the shares of Common Stock issuable pursuant to this Notice of Conversion by way of DTC Transfer, the undersigned hereby requests that the Corporation
issue and deliver to the undersigned physical certificates representing such shares of Common Stock.

 Date of Conversion:
  Applicable Series B Conversion Price:  $________

Signature: Name:

Address:

 
 



 

Exhibit C
Warrant

THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED
(THE “ACT”), OR ANY APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES OR “BLUE SKY” LAWS.  THE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED OR
ASSIGNED IN THE ABSENCE OF AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT FOR THE SECURITIES UNDER SAID ACT, OR AN OPINION OF
COUNSEL IN FORM, SUBSTANCE AND SCOPE CUSTOMARY FOR OPINIONS OF COUNSEL IN COMPARABLE TRANSACTIONS THAT REGISTRATION
IS NOT REQUIRED UNDER SAID ACT OR UNLESS SOLD PURSUANT TO RULE 144 OR REGULATION S UNDER SAID ACT.

June 4, 2009
ICONIC BRANDS, INC.

C-001

COMMON STOCK CLASS “C” WARRANT

THIS CERTIFIES that, for value received, CAPSTONE CAPITAL GROUP 1,LLC (the “Holder”), is entitled to subscribe for and purchase from ICONIC
BRANDS, INC., a Nevada corporation with its principal office at 1174 Route 109, Lindenhurst, New York 11757 (the “Company”), up to 1,000,000 fully paid and nonassessable
shares (the “Warrant Shares”) of common stock, $0.001 par value, of the Company (the “Common Stock”) at a price of Fifty cents ($0.50) per share (the “Warrant Price”), at any
time or from time to time during the period (the “Exercise Period”) commencing on the date hereof and ending on June 4, 2012.

SECTION 1.          Exercise of Warrant.  This Warrant may be exercised by the Holder as to the whole or any lesser number of the Warrant Shares covered hereby, upon
surrender of this Warrant to the Company at its principal executive office together with the Notice of Exercise attached hereto as Exhibit A, duly completed and executed by the
Holder, and payment to the Company of the aggregate Exercise Price for the Warrant Shares to be purchased in the form of (i) a check made payable to the Company, (ii) wire
transfer according to the Company’s instructions or (iii) any combination of (i) and (ii).  The exercise of this Warrant shall be deemed to have been effected on the day on which
the Holder surrenders this Warrant to the Company and satisfies all of the requirements of this Section 1.  Upon such exercise, the Holder will be deemed a shareholder of record
of those Warrant Shares for which the warrant has been exercised with all rights of a shareholder (including, without limitation, all voting rights with respect to such Warrant
Shares and all rights to receive any dividends with respect to such Warrant Shares).  If this Warrant is to be exercised in respect of less than all of the Warrant Shares covered
hereby, the Holder shall be entitled to receive a new warrant covering the number of Warrant Shares in respect of which this Warrant shall not have been exercised and for which
it remains subject to exercise.  Such new warrant shall be in all other respects identical to this Warrant.

 
 



 

SECTION 2.          No Shareholder Rights.  This Warrant shall not entitle the holder hereof to any voting rights or other rights as a shareholder of the Company.

SECTION 3.          Adjustment.  In case the Company shall at any time during the three (3) year period commencing on the date hereof issue or sell any shares of Common
Stock, including shares held in the Company's treasury and shares of Common Stock issued upon the exercise of any warrants, rights or options to subscribe for shares of
Common Stock (other than the issuances or sales of Common Stock pursuant to rights to subscribe for such Common Stock distributed to all the shareholders of the Company
and Holders of Warrants) and shares of Common Stock issued upon the direct or indirect conversion or exchange of securities for shares of Common Stock, for an effective
consideration per share of less than the than Exercise Price or for no consideration (such lower price, the “Base Share Price”, then, the Exercise Price shall be reduced to a price
equal to the Base Share Price.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the adjustments provided in this Section 3 shall not be triggered by the grant of options, or the sale of shares
pursuant to the exercise of such options, under the Company’s current or future Board of Director and stockholder approved option plans for the benefit of officers, directors and
employees, not to exceed 10% of the Company’s outstanding shares.

SECTION 4.          Registration. The Company agrees to include the shares issuable upon exercise of the Warrant Shares as piggy-back registrable securities upon the same
terms and conditions as the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock.

SECTION 5.         Covenant of the Company.  The Company covenants and agrees that the Company shall at all times have authorized and reserved or shall authorize and
reserve, free from preemptive rights, a sufficient number of shares of its Common Stock to provide for the exercise of the rights represented by this Warrant.

SECTION 6.          Investment Representations and Warranties.  The Holder hereby represents and warrants to the Company as follows:

(a)            The Holder is acquiring the Warrant, and it will acquire the Common Stock issuable upon exercise thereof, for its own account, for investment and not with a
view to the distribution thereof, nor with any present intention of distributing the same.  The Holder understands that the Warrant and Common Stock issuable upon exercise
thereof, will not be registered under the Act or registered or qualified under any state securities or “blue-sky” laws, by reason of their issuance in a transaction exempt from the
registration and/or qualification requirements thereof, and that they must be held indefinitely unless a subsequent disposition thereof is registered under the Act or registered or
qualified under any applicable state securities or “blue-sky” laws or is exempt from registration and/or qualification.

(b)            The Holder understands that the exemption from registration afforded by Rule 144 (the provisions of which are known to the Holder) promulgated under the
Act depends on the satisfaction of various conditions and that, if applicable, Rule 144 may only afford the basis for sales under certain circumstances only in limited amounts.

 
 



 

(c)            The Holder has no need for liquidity in its investment in the Company, and is able to bear the economic risk of such investment for an indefinite period and to
afford a complete loss thereof.

(d)            The Holder is an “accredited purchaser” as such term is defined in Rule 501 (the provisions of which are known to the Holder) promulgated under the Act.

SECTION 7.          Restrictions on Transfer.  The Holder of this Warrant by acceptance hereof agrees that the transfer of this Warrant and the shares of Common Stock
issuable upon exercise of this Warrant are subject to the following provisions:

(a)            General.   Subject to the requirements of the Act or any applicable state securities laws, the Holder may sell, assign, transfer or otherwise dispose of all or any
portion of the Warrants or the Warrant Shares acquired upon any exercise hereof at any time and from time to time. Upon the sale, assignment, transfer or other disposition of all
or any portion of the Warrants, Holder shall deliver to the Company a written notice of such in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B, duly executed by Holder, which includes
the identity and address of any purchaser, assignor or transferee.

( b )            Restrictive Legend.  Each certificate for Warrant Shares held by the Holder and each certificate for any such securities issued to subsequent transferees of
any such certificate shall be stamped or otherwise imprinted with legends in substantially the following form:

“THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE HAVE BEEN ACQUIRED FOR INVESTMENT AND HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED
UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE “ACT”) OR ANY RELEVANT STATE SECURITIES LAWS.  THESE SECURITIES MAY
NOT BE SOLD OR TRANSFERRED IN THE ABSENCE OF SUCH REGISTRATION OR AN EXEMPTION THEREFROM UNDER SAID ACT AND
APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS”.

( c )            Indemnification.  Holder acknowledges that he, she or it understands the meaning and legal consequences of the representations, warranties and
acknowledgments he, she or it has made in Section 7 and elsewhere in this Warrant and he, she or it understands that the Company is relying upon the truth and accuracy
thereof.  Accordingly, the Holder hereby agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Company, its officers, agents and representatives, from and against any and all loss, damage
or liability due to or arising out of a breach of any representation or warranty of Holder contained in this Warrant.

SECTION 8.          Amendment.  The terms and provisions of this Warrant may not be modified or amended, except with the written consent of the Company and the Holder.

 
 



 

SECTION 9.          Reorganizations, Etc.  In case, at any time during the Exercise Period, of any capital reorganization, of any reclassification of the stock of the Company
(other than a change in par value or from par value to no par value or from no par value to par value or as a result of a stock dividend or subdivision, split-up or combination of
shares), or the consolidation or merger of the Company with or into another corporation (other than a consolidation or merger in which the Company is the continuing operation
and which does not result in any change or reclassification in the Warrant Shares) or of the sale of all or substantially all the properties and assets of the Company as an entirety
to any other corporation, the Company, at its sole discretion, shall have the right and option to (A) provide 10 days prior written notice of such event to the Holder and this
Warrant shall terminate and be of no further force and effect on and after the effective date of such capital reorganization or reclassification or the consummation of such
consolidation, sale or merger; or (B) provide that this Warrant shall, after such reorganization, reclassification, consolidation, merger or sale, be exercisable for the kind and
number of shares of stock or other securities or property of the Company or of the corporation resulting from such consolidation or surviving such merger or to which such
properties and assets shall have been sold to which such holder would have been entitled if he, she or it had held the Warrant Shares issuable upon the exercise hereof
immediately prior to such reorganization, reclassification, consolidation, merger or sale.

SECTION 10.        Lost, Stolen, Mutilated or Destroyed Warrant.  If this Warrant is lost, stolen, mutilated or destroyed, the Company may, on such terms as to indemnity or
otherwise as it may in its discretion impose (which shall, in the case of a mutilated Warrant, include the surrender thereof), issue a new Warrant of like denomination and tenor as
the Warrant so lost, stolen, mutilated or destroyed.  Any such new Warrant shall constitute an original contractual obligation of the Company, whether or not the allegedly lost,
stolen, mutilated or destroyed Warrant shall be at any time enforceable by anyone.

SECTION 11.       Notices.  All notices, advices and communications to be given or otherwise made to any party to this Agreement shall be deemed to be sufficient if contained
in a written instrument delivered in person or by telecopier or duly sent by first class registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, or by overnight courier,
or by electronic mail, with a copy thereof to be sent by mail (as aforesaid) within 24 hours of such electronic mail, addressed to such party at the address set forth below or at
such other address as may hereafter be designated in writing by the addressee to the addresser listing all parties:

 (a) If to the Company, to:

Iconic Brands, Inc
1174 Route 109
Lindenhurst, NY 11757
Attention:  Richard DeCicco

and

 (b) If to the Holder, to:

 
 



 

Capstone Capital Group 1, LLC
1350 Avenue of the Americas
New York, NY 10019

or to such other address as the party to whom notice is to be given may have furnished to the other parties hereto in writing in accordance herewith.  Any such notice or
communication shall be deemed to have been delivered and received (i) in the case of personal delivery or delivery by telecopier, on the date of such deliver, (ii) in the case of
nationally-recognized overnight courier, on the next business day after the date when sent and (ii) in the case of mailing, on the third business day following that on which the
piece of mail containing such communication is posted.  As used in this Section 11, “business day” shall mean any day other than a day on which banking institutions in the State
of New York are legally closed for business.

SECTION 12.        Binding Effect on Successors.  Subject to Section 9 hereof, this Warrant shall be binding upon any corporation succeeding the Company by merger,
consolidation or acquisition of all or substantially all of the Company’s assets.

SECTION 13.       Descriptive Headings and Governing Law.  The description headings of the several sections and paragraphs of this Warrant are inserted for convenience
only and do not constitute a part of this Warrant.  This Warrant shall be construed and enforced in accordance with, and the rights of the parties shall be governed by, the laws of
the State of New York (without giving effect to conflicts of law principles thereunder).

SECTION 14.        Fractional Shares.  No fractional shares shall be issued upon exercise of this Warrant.  The Company shall, in lieu of issuing any fractional share, pay the
holder entitled to such fraction a sum in cash equal to such fraction multiplied by the then effective Warrant Price.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT BLANK]

 
 



 

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO CLASS C WARRANT]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has caused this Common Stock Warrant to be executed by it’s duly authorized officer as of the date first above written.

  ICONIC BRANDS, INC.  
    
 By: /s/ Richard J. DeCicco  
  Name:  Richard DeCicco  
  Title:    President  

 
 



 

Exhibit A

Form of Subscription

NOTICE OF EXERCISE
COMMON STOCK WARRANT

To:           ICONIC BRANDS, INC.

The undersigned hereby:

1.              (a) elects to purchase _______ shares of Common Stock (“Common Stock”) of ICONIC BRANDS., a Nevada corporation, (the “Company”)
pursuant to the terms of the attached Warrant, and tenders herewith payment of the aggregate exercise price therefor and any transfer taxes payable pursuant to the terms of the
Warrant; or

2.              (b) elects to exercise this Warrant for the purchase of ________ shares of the Common Stock pursuant to the provisions of Section 1(b) of the
attached Warrant.

Please issue a certificate or certificates representing said shares of Common Stock in the name of the undersigned or in such other name or names as are
specified below:

 Name:   
 Address:   
    

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Warrant Holder has executed this Notice of Exercise effective this ___ day of ________,  ______.

_______________________________

 (Signature)

 
 



 

Exhibit B

Form of Assignment

[To be signed only upon transfer of Warrant]

For value received, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto the right represented by the within Warrant to purchase _______ shares of
Common Stock of ICONIC BRANDS, INC, to which the within Warrant relates, and appoints Attorney to transfer such right on the books of ICONIC BRANDS,INC, with full
power of substitution in the premises.

Dated:   
 (Signature)  

Signed in the presence of:

______________________________
 
 



Exhibit 10.5

LICENSE AGREEMENT

This License Agreement (Agreement") dated as of April 26, 2007 recites the agreement between Seven Celios, LLC ("DDV") and Harbrew imports Limited, a New York
corporation ("Company") with respect to the manufacture, distribution, and promotion of an alcoholic beverage (liqueur) which will be known as "Danny DeVito's Premium
Limoncello" (the "Beverage").

RECITALS

This Agreement is made with reference to the following:

A.            Company has requested to use Danny DeVito's ("Devito") name and likeness and obtain DeVito's endorsement in connection with the Company's manufacture,
distribution and promoter, of the Beverage.

B.             In order to effectuate the foregoing. Company has requested that DDV enter into this Agreement for the limited license of certain rights in and to DeVito's name, likeness
and biography for the use by Company in connection with the name for, and advertising, publicity and promotion of, the Beverage Company has also requested that DeVito provide
certain personal publicity services in connection with the promotion of the Beverage.

C.             DDV desires to grant to Company a limited license of certain rights in and to DeVito's name likeness end, biography and agrees to cause DeVito to perform certain
personal publicity services for the Beverage, upon the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.

Accordingly the parties agree as follows:

PRINCIPAL TERMS

1 .             Conditions Precedent: All of DDV's obligations hereunder are subject to Company applying for a trademark for the brand name "Danny DeVito's Premium Limoncello
and DDV being designated as a fifty percent (50%) co-owner (tenants-in-common) of such trademark.

2              Recitals: The Recitals are material hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.

3              License. DDV grants to Company, for the Term (as defined in paragraph 4., below), subject to the terms and conditions contained in this Agreement, a limited, exclusive,
license for the Beverage (subject to revocation in accordance with the terms of this Agreement) to utilize DeVito's name, approved likeness, and approved biographical material in
connection with the name for, and advertising, publicity and promotion of. the Beverage ("Licensed Rights").

4 .             Term. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the later of the date of signature by all parties of this Agreement and satisfaction of the Conditions Precedent set
forth in paragraph 1., above, and shall continue in perpetuity unless the parties either mutually agree to terminate this Agreement or this Agreement is otherwise terminated in
accordance with its terms (the "Term").
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5.             Compensation: In consideration for the license and the performance of DDV's obligations under this Agreement Company snail pay royalties as follows:

a.             BAK. Company shall directly pay DeVito's attorneys, Behr Abramson & Kaller. LLP ("BAK"), or their designee, five percent (5%) of the Net Profits (as
defined below). This five percent (5%) amount shall not be deducted from payments due to DDV.

b.             DDV. After the payment described in Section 5(a) above, Company shall pay DDV a royalty equal to fifty percent (50%) of the remaining Net Profits.

c.             SRFF After the royalty payment of 50% of net profits is paid to DDV Company shall pay its attorneys, Sichenzia Ross Friedman Ference, LLP, ("SRFF"), or its
designees, two per percent (2%) of the Net Profits (as defined below).

d .             Net Profits. For purposes of this Agreement, "Net Profits" shall mean the gross-revenue generated by the sale of the Beverage and the related products utilizing
the Licensed Rights, less expenses incurred in the manufacture, distribution, sale and promotion of the Beverage and the related products, as determined by the Company's regular
outside accountants, in calculating Net Profits the parties agree that the expenses will only include actual out-of-pocket costs incurred by the Company and will not include (i)  an
allocation for unspecified overhead or (ii) depreciation or other non-cash expenses All amounts due pursuant to this Section 5 shall be paid every 3 months ("Quarterly Period")
within 30 days after the last day of each Quarterly Period Company shall deliver to DDV With each royalty payment a detailed report setting forth the Net Profit for the Quarterly
Period.

e .             Additional Consideration. As additional consideration hereunder. DDV shall be granted a warrant to purchase 100,000 shares of the issued and outstanding
stock of Company, for an exercise price equal to the lower of $1.00 per share, or 85% of the 30 day average bid and ask price as reported by the PinkSheets, OTC Bulletin Board or
whatever exchange or service that lists the Company's Common Stock; provided, however, that in no event shall the exercise price be less than $0.50 per share BAK shall also be
granted a warrant to purchase 20,000 shares of the issued and outstanding stock of Company, for an exercise price of the lower of $1.00 per share, or 85% of the 30 day average
bid and ask price as recorded on the PinkSheets. OTC Bulletin Board or whatever exchange or service that lists the Company's Common Stock: provided, however, that in no event
shall the exercise price be less than SO 50 per share Attached hereto as Exhibits "A" and "B" are Warrant Forms for DDV and BAK.

6.             License Territory. Company shall be entitled to utilize the Licensed Rights throughout the world.

7              DDV Approval Rights: Company shall consult with DDV with respect to (i) the taste, quality, and manufacture of the Beverage and (ii) all concepts, designs and other
creative elements For the marketing and promotion of the Beverage, including without limitation, how, when, and where the Beverage is marketed and promoted and the
engagement of any marketing or publicity personnel to market or promote the Beverage The Company shall develop not less frequently than annually a marketing plan describing
the proposed marketing and promotion of the Beverage, which shall be submitted to DDV for approval. In connection with the foregoing, DDV shall have the following specific
approval rights.
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a.             Likeness Approvals:

i .              Photographic Approval. DDV shall have the right of approval of any and all photographs in which DeVito appears (whether alone or with others)
which are proposed to be used in any way in connection with the Beverage. DDV shall exercise his approval right In good faith provided the foregoing shall not limit DDV's right
to provide photographs to be used by Company in lieu of those photographs for which approval is sought.

i i .             Artwork Likeness Approval. DDV shall have the right of approval over all artwork renderings or artwork incorporating any image or pan thereof of
DeVito. DDV shall have no obligation to approve any artwork rendering (including any caricature artwork representation of his image).

i i i .            Magazine Covers/Website. Company shall resubmit to DDV for further approval all photographs or artwork than have been previously approved by
DDV, which Company proposes to use for the cover of or inclusion in, a magazine or other similar publication, whether print or otherwise (e.g. on Beverage website, if any).

i v .            Tabloids. Company shall not furnish any photographs or artwork containing the likeness of DeVito to the "National Enquirer." "The Star" or "The
Globe" or similar domestic or foreign tabloids.

v .             Photographic sessions. If requested by Company, DDV stall cause DeVito to participate in a photographic session for Company at a time, date and
location and with a photographer, hair and makeup personnel, acceptable to DDV. All expenses associated with such photo session shall be paid by Company. The photographs
produced shall be subject in ail regards to DDV's approval rights hereunder.

v i .            No Circumventing Approvals No sound-alike or look-alike or digital doubles whose voice or physical attributes (i.e., hair color, height and physical
stature) could reasonably be identified as DeVito may be used to circumvent DDV's approval rights with respect to his likeness hereunder.

b .             Use of Name. DDV shall have the right of approval over any and all uses of DeVito's name and likeness and biography in connection with the Beverage,
including without limitation any modifications or extensions to the brand name. The brand name "Danny DeVito's Premium Limoncello" is pre-approved.

c .             Manufacture, Advertising, Marketing and Promotion. DDV shall have the right to approve of material aspects of manufacture, bottling, advertising, marketing
and promotional campaign for the Beverage, including the flavor of the Beverage, the alcoholic content, labeling, all major marketing and promotional materials (irrespective of
whether or not such materials contain DeVito's name, likeness or biography) and any other branding for the Beverage.

d.             Press Releases, DDV shall have the right to approve all press releases regarding The Beverage (irrespective of whether or not such materials contain reference to
DeVito).

e .             Cross Promotional Activities/Tie Ins. DDV shall have the right to approve any and all so-called cross promotions and tie-ins in and to the Beverage, including
without limitation promotional partnerships, if any and any products or services relating to the Beverage and "product placements" of the Beverage or Beverage branded items in
any media. DDV shall have approval over any "behind-the-scenes" or "making-of" productions in connection with the Beverage.
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f.              Merchandising DDV shall have the right to approve any merchandising of services in correction with the Beverage (irrespective of whether such merchandising
contains DeVito's name, likeness of biographical materials), if approved Company shall not depict DeVito as personally endorsing any such merchandise or service without DDV's
prior written consent.

g .             Biography. DDV shall have the right of approval over all of DeVito's biographies' materials used in connection with the Beverage DDV shall furnish Company
with approved DeVito biographical materials for Company's reference within fifteen (15) business days of receipt of Company's written request therefor.

h .             Further Ventures A1 proposed ventures between the parties other than the Beverage, including but not limited to other beverages or products and a.!j proposed
ventures between Company and any third party relating to the Beverage, as well as any sale of the Beverage and any material distributing agreements respecting the Beverage
(other than in the ordinary course of business), are subject to DDV's approval. In the event of a proposed sale of the Beverage assets of the Company (collectively, a "Sale"), DDV
shall have the right to approve such Sale, and if DDV shall not approve such Sale which approval shall be given if at all in DDV's sole discretion; this Agreement shall terminate.

i.              Timing or Approval Reasonableness. Unless otherwise expressly provider: herein to the contrary, the approval of DDV to any action under this Agreement shall
not be unreasonably withhold or delayed. Additionally, except to the extent otherwise expressly provided herein to the contrary, approvals (or disapprovals) shall be furnished
within ten (10) business days of notice of any action to be taken (except where the nature of the action requiring approval requires a taster response in which case approval or
disapproval snail be within five (5) business days provided that DDV has been so notified that a faster response is required and the reason why). The failure to timely respond shall
be deemed an approval of any such action. In the event of disapproval, the notice shall describe the basis for the disapproval.

8 .             Right of First Refusal. DDV and DeVito hereby grant the Company a Right of First Refusal to license any other liquors, spirits alcoholic beverages which DDV or
DeVito determine to endorse or develop for a period of five years from the date of this Agreement.

9 .             Personal Appearances During each consecutive twelve (12) month period of the Term. DDV snail use reasonable efforts to make DeVito available for a reasonable
number of promotional appearances including Company sponsored or coordinated events, media opportunities and plug opportunities as mutually agreed upon by DDV and the
Company ("Personal and Media Appearance Days") the duration of which shall not exceed two (2) days, unless otherwise agreed by DDV. The timing of Personal and Media
Appearance Days shall be subject to DeVito's schedule, and any failure to appear for any or all of Personal and Media appearances shall not be deemed a breach of this Agreement
if such failure is due to DeVito's professional unavailability due to contractual commitments in the entertainment industry or for any cause beyond the reasonable control of
DeVito. DDV shall have approval over all publicity and promotional activities that Company requests DeVito participate during the Personal Appearance Days. DDV agree to
cause DeVito to attend and participate in the annual spirits tradeshow on April 30, 2007, in connection with the introduction of the Severage subject to DDV's approval rights of
the marketing and promotional materials as set forth in Section 7 above Company agrees that Joel and Trudi Behr win be DeVito's pre-approved guests, within the meaning of
Section 10(a) below in connection with such promotional appearance a: the annual Spirit tradeshow on April 30, 2007.

1 0 .           Transportation. Accommodations and Expenses: DeVito shall be provided with the following transportation, accommodations and expenses in connection with each
promotional appearance whether in accordance with paragraph 9, above of as otherwise agreed).
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a .             Air Transportation Roundtrip air transportation for DeVito his wife Rhea Perlman and pre -approved guests including Star Rosenfield, by means of
first-class commercial air-transportation from DeVito's then location;

b.             Accommodations and Expenses. First class hotel suite for DeVito and his pre-approved guests in a hotel of DeVito's choice and expenses for first class
incidentals during each visit:

c.             First class. First class exclusive ground transportation (car and driven between airports, accommodations and appearance location: and

d.             Rental Car. An exclusive full-sized luxury rental car or at DeVito's election, luxury SUV, and drive; for DeVito's exclusive use.

1 1 .           Company Representations and Warranties. Company hereby represents and warrants: (i) I: is and shall remain a Company in good standing in the State of its
cooperation. (ii) no shareholder or officer of the Company has ever been charged with or found guilty of a criminal offense or is or has been the subject of a criminal investigation.
(iii) Company will secure at the required times any and all necessary licenses and approvals from the applicable regulatory authorities and will be in full compliance with all laws
and regulations applicable to its activities, including without limitation all alcoholic beverage control laws and regulations and any other laws and regulations applicable to the
manufacture, importation, distribution, and promotion of alcoholic beverages: (iv) at; employees and contractors engaged by Company shall: be required to provide and maintain
valid work authorizations. (v) Company will inform and train (as required by any applicable laws and regulations) all employees and independent contractors regarding all relevant
applicable laws and regulations regarding the importation marketing and sale of alcoholic beverages, (vi) all advertising and promotion will comply with applicable laws and will
be entirely true and accurate and will not defame or disparage any individual or organization; (vii) Company is not affiliated with any political party or organization affiliated to
any political party or makes or will make contributions to any political party or organization affiliated with any political party; (viii) Company shall maintain at all times the
insurance set forth in paragraph. 14 below.

12.           DDV Representations and. Warranties: DDV represents and warrants that he has the power to enter into this Agreement and grant the rights herein granted.

13.           Indemnification Except to the extent that DDV is in breach of a material term or material Condition or any of his representations or warranties hereunder and such breach
or default relates to the claim or demand for which DDV is seeking indemnity Company shall Indemnify, defend and hold harmless DDV and DeVito against any and all claims,
liabilities, demands, damages costs and expenses, including attorneys' fees, arising in connection with this Agreement, the Beverage, and or any activities of Company. DDV and
DeVito shall have the right at their own expense to instigate or defend suits or proceedings to which this indemnity may apply. Company shall not dispose of or compromise any
action without the prior written consent of DDV (which shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed). Except to the extent that Company is in breach of a material term or
material condition or any of its representations or warranties hereunder and such breach or default relates to the claim or demand for which Company is seeking indemnify. DDV
shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Company against any and all claims, liabilities demands, damages, costs and expenses including attorneys' fees, arising in connection
with the breach by DDV of its obligations, representations and warranties hereunder Company shall have the right at its own expense to instigate or cetera suits or proceedings to
which this indemnity may apply. DDV shall not dispose of or compromise any action without the prior written consent of Company (which shall not be unreasonably withheld or
delayed).
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14.           Insurance. Prior to making any use whatsoever of the rights granted hereunder. Company shall secure, and thereafter shall keep in force at all times hereunder, insurances
In connection with ail insurable risks associated with the Beverage or any other ventures approved by DDV hereunder, and the rights granted in accordance with this Agreement,
including but not limited to workers compensation insurance, general liability insurance, product liability insurance, insurance related to the production of commercials, and other
advertising, all the terms of which (including without limitation the amount of such coverage) shall be subject to the approval of DDV Each policy shall contain a provision
specifying that the policy may not be cancelled without at least sixty (60) days prior written notice to DDV. Company expressly acknowledges that the provisions of this paragraph
must be strictly followed and are material obligations of Company under this Agreement. DDV shall be named as a named insured if requested on any such policy (otherwise as an
additional insured, and Company shall provide DDV with the certificates of the currency of all policies. At a minimum, Company shall obtain and maintain in force continuously
during the Term and for a period of not less than two (2) years thereafter products liability insurance and general liability insurance with liability limits not less than Two Million
Dollars ($2,000,000} per occurrence, subject to aggregate policy limits of riot less than Five Million Dollar ($5,000,000) per year.

15.           Termination: This Agreement shall terminate as follows:

a              DDV shall have the right to terminate this Agreement upon ten (10) business days written, notice to Company in the event of the Company fails,
refuses neglects or is unable to perform material obligations hereunder, or breaches any of Its representation and warranties contained here or is in material; breach of any provision
of this Agreement, and fails to cure (provided such breach is of a nature that can be cured) such failure, refusal, neglect, inability to perform, or breach within ten (10) business
days after receipt of written notice of such failure from DDV provide that if the breach is of a nature that it cannot be cured within said ten (10) business day period. the Company
will be granted a time period of up to an additional thirty (30) business days provided that Company is diligently prosecuting said cure to completion DDV shall have the further
right to terminate this Agreement, upon ten (10) business days written notice to Company, if the Company fails to launch the distribution of the Beverage within 180 from the date
hereof.

b.            Company shall have the right to terminate this Agreement, upon ten (10) business days written notice to DDV, in the event DDV or DeVito refuses to
perform material services required hereunder, or DDV breaches a material provision of this Agreement, and DDV falls to cure (provided such breach is of a kind that can be cured)
such refusal to perform, or breach within ten (10) business days after receipt of written notice of such failure from Company, provided that if the breach is of a nature that it cannot
be cured within said ten (10) business day period, DDV will be granted a time period of up to an additional thirty (30) business days provided that DDV is diligently prosecuting
said cure to completion.

c.            Upon termination of this Agreement, all obligations under this Agreement of DDV and DeVito shall immediately terminate, and all rights or privileges
granted by DDV and DeVito to the Company under or pursuant to this Agreement snail cease, except that subject to this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and the
Company shall fulfill all orders and obligations under this Agreement with respect to all orders for the Beverage from third parties received prior to the date of termination. If such
termination occurs by reason of breach of this Agreement by the Company or pursuant to Section 14.a of this Agreement, the Company shall immediately deliver to DDV all
residual saleable stocks of the Beverage in usable condition lying in the Company's warehouse and stockrooms, as well as the Beverages in usable condition lying in bonded
warehouses or in transit, but only to the extent the Company does not need such stocks to fill third- party orders received prior to the date of termination If such termination, occurs
for any other reason.  DDV shall have the right (but not the obligation) to purchase such stocks from the Company at the land-ad cost price of such stocks paid by the Company
DDV shall exercise such right, if at all within thirty (30) days from the date of termination by giving the Company written notice of its wish to purchase such stocks The term
landed cost price shall I mean the net price actually paid by the Company at the time of importation thereof for the purchase of the Beverage, plus landing charges, customs duties,
and all other incidental charges actually incurred by the Company in order to place the Beverage in its warehouse, such charges to be verified by presentation of a statement
certified by an independent accountant, in any case, thereafter, the Company shall cease to manufacture, Import, or sell the Beverage (except as provided above with respect to
orders received prior to the date of termination), and DDV shall, in its sole discretion, be free to manufacture, import, or sell the Beverage without further obligation to the
Company. The provisions of this Agreement which are expressed to survive this Agreement, or to apply notwithstanding termination hereof, shall be observed by both parties.
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1 6 .           Assignment: This Agreement shall not be assignable by either party without the express written consent of the other, except that DDV may assign this Agreement to a
company wholly owned by DeVito or his family members which will provide DeVito's services, provided DeVito personally executes an inducement letter in standard form
agreeing that DeVito will render such services. Any purported or attempted assignment without prior written consent shall be deemed void.

17 .           Trademarks: Except as otherwise provided herein if Company should wish to register a trademark, service mark, or other mark ("Mark") which Incorporates any aspect
of DeVito's name, likeness or biography, Company may do so at its own cost but only in the name of DDV and with DDV's express written consent. During the Term, Company
shall have a license to use such Mark as permitted hereunder, subject to any protections required by DDV to protect and secure DDV's rights in DeVito's name, likeness and
biography. Upon any termination of this Agreement, any and all rents to use of DeVito's name, likeness and biography shall cease, including without limitation in and in
connection with any trademark, service mark or any other proprietary designation.

18.           Confidentiality Each party shall keep all confidential information (i.e. proprietary information or any other information which is not generally known to the general
public) regarding the other party and the forms of this Agreement confidential. Notwithstanding the foregoing, (i) a party may disclose such information pursuant to subpoena or
other legal process three (3) business days after giving prior written notice to ether parties (to the extent such notice is possible under the circumstances'!, which notice shall
specify the information to be disclosed and the circumstances of such disclosure, and (Is) the Company shall have the right to disclose the terms of this Agreement and proprietary
information to its professionals, lenders and investors to the Company or any subsidiary entity relating to the Beverage. In such case, the Company will use best efforts to secure a
confidentiality agreement in form reasonably satisfactory to the Company before the release of such information.

1 9 .           Protections: The Company, the Beverage and the advertising, marketing and promotion related thereto shall not defame or demean DeVito or reflect negatively (as
defined below) upon DeVito's reputation. If the Company, Beverage, or the advertising and promotion related thereto, is defamatory, demeaning or reflects on DeVito in a
materially negative manner, DDV shall be entitled to require that the activity cease or materials be withdrawn or amended (even if such have been approved by DDV, provided
DDV was materially unaware of the context in which the materials would be used), By way of example and not limitation. DDV will consider as materially negative the following
behaviors: the denigration of any person or character on the basis of race, religion, national origin, gender, sexual orientation, or mental or physical disability or illegal or morally
reprehensible behavior by any shareholder or officer of Company or senior employee of Company.

2 0 .           Inspection Right. Company shall allow DDV and/or his authorized representatives at any reasonable time and from time to time inspect Company's financial records,
advertising and marketing campaign records, and methods of doing business (including its methods of manufacturing and distributing the Beverage) to verify compliance of
Company with the provisions of this Agreement. Representatives of DDV shall be permitted access to Company's place of business at all reasonable times to accomplish the
foregoing.
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2 1 .           Audit Procedures. DDV will have the right, as its own expense and at any reasonable time or times, to inspect and audit the books and records of Company in order to
verify the contents of the report detailing Net Profits produced in connection with Section 5(c) above. Any such audit (a) may be conducted by DDV or an authorized
representative, (b) shall be conducted after reasonable prior notice (c) may not be conducted more than once in any given twelve (12) month period. Company shall at the election
of DDV, either provide DDV or its agents access to such books and records at Company's principal place of business or forward copies of such books and records to DDV or its
authorized agent. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if any such audit results in the discovery of an underpayment of more than five percent (5%) of the payments due. DDV shall
have the right to conduct up to two (2) such audits in the subsequent year. In the case of any dispute as the sufficiency or accuracy of Company's records, DDV at DDV's expense,
may have an independent certified public accountant examine and certify such records. However, if the audit establishes underpayment greater than five percent (5%) of the
payments due, Company shall reimburse DDV -or the cost of the audit. DDV. DDV's agents, and any independent certified public accountant shall agree, at the request of
Company, to maintain the confidentiality of any records so disclosed herein.

22.           Notices. Any notice required hereunder shall be given in writing and shall be given by personal delivery or by mailing (in a postpaid, certified or registered wrapper), or
by depositing the same with Federal Express or a similar recognized courier service fall charges prepaid), or by telex or telecopier provided a confirmation copy is also sent by one
of the other approved methods, addressed as follows (or as subsequently designated in writing):

 To Company Harbrew Imports, Ltd.
1G2 Buffalo Avenue
Freeport, NY 11520
Attn Richard DeCicco

 With a copy to: Sichenzia Ross Friedman Ference LLP
61 Broadway. 32nd Floor
New York, New York 10006
Attn: Richard A. Friedman Esq.

 To DDV: c/o Behr Abramson Kaller, LLP
9701 Wilshire Blvd. Suite 800
Beverly Hills, CA 90212
Attn: Joel Behr. Esq.

23.           Relationship of Parties: Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to place the parties in the relationship of partners or joint venturers, and neither party
shall have any right to obligate or bind the other in any manner The parties acknowledge and agree that neither shall act as an authorized agent with power to bind the other in any
manner.
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2 4 .           Miscellaneous This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes prior written or oral agreements pertaining the matters contained
herein. This Agreement cannot be modified except by writing between the parties. Paragraph headings are for convenience only and shall not be used to construe this Agreement or
otherwise be given any legal effect No waiver by either party hereto of any failure by the other party to keep or perform any covenant or condition of this Agreement shall be
deemed a waiver of any preceding or succeeding breach, or nonfullfillment of the same or of any other term or condition hereof. This Agreement shall be nonstated in accordance
with the laws of the State of California. The parties agree that this Agreement may be executed in counterpart. This Agreement shall be construed without regard to any
presumption or other rule requiring construction against the party causing this Agreement to be drafted In the event of any default hereunder, all remedies at law end In equity s hall
be available. In the event of litigation concerning this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to receive its costs and reasonable attorneys' fees, through and including all
appeals, from the non-prevailing party if, for any reason, any provision of this Agreement is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provision of this Agreement, and the
Agreement shall otherwise remain in full force and effect. This Agreement may be executed via facsimile, in which event facsimile signatures shall be created so original
signatures for all purposes.

 AGREED  
   
 “DDV”  
   
 SEVEN CELLOS, LLC  
   
 /s/ Danny Devito, President  
 By: Danny Devito, President  
   
   
 “Company”  
   
 HARBREW IMPORTS, LTD.  
 a New York corporation  
   
 /s/ Richard Decicco  
 By: Richard Decicco, President  
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Exhibit 10.6
ADDENDUM TO

LICENSE AGREEMENT
BETWEEN

SEVEN CELLOS AND HARBREW IMPORTS, LTD.

This Addendum, dated November 1, 2007, sets forth certain amendments to the License Agreement between Seven Cellos, LLC ("Seven Cellos") and Harbrew
Imports, LLC ("Harbrew") dated April 26, 2007 ("the License Agreement"). By this Addendum, the parties hereto: i) memorialize their agreement to extend the License to cover
specific promotional products related to the Danny DeVito Premium Limoncello ("the Beverage") identified herein; and ii) create a simplified mechanism by which additional
products can be integrated into the License Agreement.  Seven Cellos and Harbrew are hereinafter together referred to as "the Parties."

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to expand the License Agreement to include a promotional drinking glass, and for that glass to be subject to the very same compensation
terms as defined in the Agreement;

WHEREAS, the Parties wish to have a method by which both parties can agree, by mutually signing a one page schedule, to include additional promotional products
under the terms of the License Agreement;

WHEREAS, the Parties acknowledge and agree that each has given and received from the other consideration that is in addition to the consideration given or received
in their Licensing Agreement, which is defined more explicitly below;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein stated, SEVEN CELLOS and HARBREW agree to clarify or amend particular terms of their
License Agreement as follows:

1.                    License:

a)          A promotional drinking glass that is contemplated to be sold in multiple possible venues as a related product to the Beverage, referred to herein as the "DDV
Promo Glass," is to be immediately included in the License Agreement, and shall be subject to the same terms and conditions as the Beverage;

(b)         Additional promotional products, not including the DDV Promo Glass which is covered by the body of this Addendum, may be included similarly if the
Parties agree by signing a Schedule and immediately filing such as an Addendum with the Secretary of Harbrew and appropriate officer or manager of Seven Cellos, as well as
with the Securities and Exchange Commission once Harbrew is subject to reporting requirements.

 
 



 

2.           Consideration:

Warrant Grant: as additional consideration for extending the License Agreement to cover promotional products, Harbrew is hereby issuing to Seven Cellos a warrant to
purchase 20,000 shares of the issued and outstanding stock of Company, for an exercise price equal to the lower of $1.00 per share, or 85% of the 30 day average bid and
ask price as reported by the PinkSheets, OTC Bulletin Board or whatever exchange or service that lists the Company's Common Stock; provided, however, that in no event
shall the exercise price be less than $0.50 per share. Trudi Behr "Behr" shall also be granted a warrant to purchase 5,000 shares of the issued and outstanding stock of
Company, for an exercise price of the lower of $1.00 per share, or 85% of the 30 day average bid and ask price as recorded on the PinkSheets, OTC Bulletin Board or
whatever exchange or service that lists the Company's Common Stock; provided, however, that in no event shall the exercise price be less than $0.50 per share.

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Addendum to be executed by their respective officers, who are each authorized to sign on behalf of

his respective corporation, and have duly delivered and executed this Addendum to be effective on September o, 2007, intending it to be an instrument under seal.

SEVEN CELLOS, LLC.
   
By:   
   
  Danny DeVito
  President

 
HARBREW IMPORTS, LLC.
   
By:  /s/ Richard DeCicco
  Richard DeCicco,
  Chief Executive Officer

 
 



 

Schedule [  ]

DANNY DEVITO PREMIUM LIMONCELLO
RELATED AND/OR PROMOTINOAL PRODUCT APPLICATION

Name of Product Date of Application Description

The described product, once accepted by the Parties, shall be deemed to be incorporated into the Licence Agreement entered into on April 26, 2007 and amended on
November [ ] 2007 (collectively, "the Agreement"), and shall be subject to the same terms and conditions as the Beverage in the Agreement. Parties can indicate approval for the
above described product by: 1) signing below, before a witness, and; 2) providing copies of the fully executed agreement to the appropriate record keeper of his respective
busienss entity. Once reporting, all such new product additions to the License Agreement shall be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

SEVEN CELLOS, LLC
    
By:   
  Danny DeVito
  President

ATTEST:
 
_____________________________

PRINT NAME BELOW SIGNATURE
Secretary or other witness.

 
 



 

HARBREW IMPORTS, LLC.
   
By: /s/ Richard DeCicco
  Richard DeCicco
  Chief Executive Officer

ATTEST:
 
____________________________

PRINT NAME BELOW SIGNATURE
Secretary or other witness
 
 



Exhibit 10.10
 

MERCHANDISING LICENSE AGREEMENT
      
1. DATED:  As of June 12, 2009.
    
2. LICENSOR:  PARAMOUNT LICENSING INC. (“PLI”)

5555 Melrose Avenue
Los Angeles, California 90038

    
 LICENSEE:  HARBREW IMPORTS, LTD. (“Licensee”)

1174 Route 109
Lindenhurst, NY 11757
Telephone: 631-991-3174
Attention: Mr. Richard DeCicco

    
3. PROPERTY:   The theatrical motion picture entitled “THE GODFATHER” (the “Picture”).
     
4. LICENSED ARTICLE(S):   Italian organic Vodka and Scotch whiskey, sold in bottles.
     
5. TERRITORY:   United States.
     
6. TERM:   Begins upon execution hereof by Licensee and PLI and ends June 30, 2014, unless sooner

terminated as provided in Schedule “I” hereto.
     
    Provided that (a) Licensee is not in breach of any terms of this Agreement; (b) PLI has received by

December 30, 2013 an amount equal to or greater than One Million United States Dollars
(US$1,000,000.00) in royalties earned and paid from the actual sale of the Licensed Articles; (c) PLI
receives, no later than May 31, 2014, written notice from Licensee of Licensee’s desire to extend the
Term, together with payment of Six Hundred Twenty Five Thousand United States Dollars
(US$625,000.00) as an additional advance payment against royalties, which additional advance shall
be the first installment of an additional guarantee of Two Million Five Hundred Thousand United
States Dollars (US$2,500,000.00) (the “Additional Guarantee”) due in connection with extending the
Term; and (d) Licensee and PLI have agreed upon a payment schedule for the remainder of the
Additional Guarantee no later than May 31, 2014; then the Term shall be extended until June 30,
2019, unless sooner terminated as provided in Schedule “I” attached hereto, subject to the terms of
this Agreement. For the avoidance of doubt, the Additional Guarantee may not be cross-credited
against any other payments which have already been paid or become due, and shall be recoupable
solely from royalties earned from sales of the Licensed Articles which occur during the period from
July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2019.

     
7. LICENSES GRANTED:   In consideration of the payments set forth below, and of and subject to the covenants, undertakings

and agreements by Licensee in this Agreement, PLI hereby grants to Licensee the non-exclusive
license (except as specified below) to use the Property only in connection with the Licensed Articles
(per Paragraph 4 above), in the Channels of Distribution (per Paragraph 12 below), in the Territory
(per Paragraph 5 above), and during the Term (per Paragraph 6 above).

     

    Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, it is agreed that, provided Licensee has
manufactured, distributed and commenced the marketing and sale of a substantial number of items of
the Licensed Articles not later than the Marketing Date set forth below, then:

      
    (a) PLI will not authorize third parties to distribute and sell vodka based on the Picture in the

Territory until August 31, 2011, subject to the terms of this Agreement; and
 
 
Harbrew Imports, Ltd. / 280162
Page 1 of 3



 
 
    (b) provided PLI has received by August 31, 2011 an amount equal to or greater than Two

Hundred Fifty Thousand United States Dollars (US$250,000.00) in royalties earned from the
actual sale of the Licensed Articles, then PLI will not authorize third parties to distribute and
sell vodka based on the Picture in the Territory until August 31, 2012.

      
    Except as specified in the immediately preceding sentence, nothing in this Agreement shall be

construed to prevent or restrict PLI’s or its affiliates’ rights to exploit or enter into agreements with
third parties for the exploitation of rights the same as or similar to the rights licensed to Licensee
hereinabove.

     
8. PAYMENT: a. Advance:  Sixty Thousand United States Dollars (US$60,000.00) payable upon execution hereof, and PLI’s

receipt of which shall be a condition precedent to the effectiveness of this Agreement.
      
  b. Royalty Rate:  Five percent (5%).
      
  c. Guarantee:  Four Hundred Thousand United States Dollars (US$400,000.00), due and payable as follows:
      
     (i) Sixty Thousand United States Dollars (US$60,000.00), payable as the Advance;
      
     (ii) One Hundred Thousand United States Dollars (US$100,000.00), due on or before November

1, 2010;
      
    (iii) One Hundred Thousand United States Dollars (US$100,000.00), due on or before November

1, 2011; and
      
    (iv) One Hundred Forty Thousand United States Dollars (US$140,000.00), due on or before

November 1, 2012.
      
9. MARKETING DATE(S):  August 31, 2009.
      
10. PLACE OF MANUFACTURE:  Italy (for the Vodka) and Scotland (for the Scotch whiskey).
      
11. APPROVALS:   All Licensed Articles and any related packaging and advertising must be approved by PLI in writing

before distribution or sale by Licensee. Such approvals or disapprovals are within PLI’s sole
discretion, and any submission not approved in writing is deemed disapproved.

      
12. CHANNELS OF DISTRIBUTION:  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in Paragraphs 3 and 4.c. of Schedule “I” attached hereto,

the Licensed Articles may be sold to distributors and wholesalers, and shall be distributed and made
available for sale solely through the following Channels of Distribution: airport and duty-free stores,
bars and taverns, club stores, grocery stores, restaurants, and specialty stores.

 
13. ADDITIONAL TERMS:
    
 (a) The balance of the terms shall be PLI’s Schedule “I”, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.
    
 (b) Warrants: In addition to all payments due to PLI from Licensee hereunder, Licensee shall grant PLI (or an affiliate designated by PLI) the following warrants

(“Warrants”) to acquire shares of Licensee’s common stock (or the common stock of any successor entity to Licensee by merger or consolidation or otherwise, as
set forth in Exhibit “C” hereto):

    
  i. a warrant (the “First Warrant”) with an exercise price of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00), at One Dollar ($1.00) per share, for One Million (1,000,000)

shares; and
    
  ii. a warrant (the “Second Warrant”) with an exercise price of Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00), at One Dollar and Fifty Cents ($1.50) per share, for One

Million Three Hundred Thirty-Three Thousand and Three Hundred Thirty-Four (1,333,334) shares. In the event PLI exercises the Second Warrant, it
agrees that it shall exercise no fewer than Three Hundred Thirty-Three Thousand Three Hundred Thirty Three (333,333) shares.
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  The Warrants shall be issued together within thirty (30) days following the execution of this Agreement, and shall each vest over a five (5) year period, with the

first one-fifth (1/5) vesting on the date of issue, and the remaining four-fifths (4/5) vesting in four (4) equal installments on the first, second, third and fourth
anniversary dates of the execution of this Agreement. Licensee shall grant PLI (or its affiliated designee) the Warrants as set forth herein under such terms as shall
be set forth in one or more separate agreements containing reasonable and customary provisions, including, without limitation, anti-dilution protections and
registration rights, to be evidenced in a form as attached hereto as Exhibit “C” and incorporated herein as reference (the “Warrant Agreement”), With respect to the
anti-dilution provisions specifically, the Warrant Agreement shall provide for adjustments of the First and Second Warrant shares and/or exercise price in
connection with stock dividends, stock splits, reverse stock splits, reclassification of shares, combinations or mergers. The First Warrant and Second Warrant shall
each expire five (5) years from the date of issue. For the avoidance of doubt, PLI shall be under no obligation to exercise either Warrant.

    
 (c) Samples: In line 1 of Paragraph 7.f. of Schedule “I”, the words “fifty (50) samples” shall be deleted and replaced with “six (6) cases”.
    
 (d) Warrantees and Indemnification: The following shall be added at the end of Section 9.a. of Schedule “I”: “Licensee further represents and warrants that (a) the

Licensed Articles shall meet the highest quality of beverage industry standards in the Territory, and shall be in full conformity with all applicable laws, standards,
regulations, and guidelines relating to health, product safety, labeling, and the importation, manufacture, production, distribution, and advertising of alcoholic
beverages, including without limitation those of the United States Food and Drug Administration and all applicable federal, state, and local laws; and (b) Licensee
has obtained all necessary approval(s) and certification(s) throughout the Territory for the importation, manufacture, production, distribution, and advertising of the
Licensed Articles. In addition, Licensee represents and warrants that the Licensed Articles shall not be marketed for sale to minors.”

   
 (e) Paragraph 12.d. of Schedule “I” shall be deleted in its entirety.
 
ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO:   
   
HARBREW IMPORTS, LTD.
(“Licensee”)

 PARAMOUNT LICENSING INC.
(“PLI”)

 
By: /s/ Richard John DeCicco  By: /s/ N. Becker
 
Print Name: Richard John DeCicco  Print Name: N. Becker
 
Title: President/CEO  Title:                  SVP
Contract No. 280162    
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 SCHEDULE “I” ADDITIONAL

TERMS AND CONDITIONS
 
1.          PROPERTY: As used herein and in the Agreement to which this Schedule “I” is attached, the term “Property” shall mean the characters, characterizations, designs and
or visual representations as they appear in the theatrical motion picture (for convenience, hereinafter “Picture”) or other material specified in Paragraph 3 of the Agreement to
which this Schedule “I” is attached including the names and likenesses (in character) of only those performers approved in writing by PLI but not including any footage (film,
tape, disc or other medium), outtakes, music, effect track, voice track, or sound track of such picture. This Agreement applies to the Picture only and not to any sequels, prequels,
remakes, or any other production or work based on, derived from or inspired by the Picture.
 
2.          LICENSE: Subject to the terms of this Agreement, including the covenants, undertakings, and agreements made by Licensee herein. PLI hereby grants to Licensee and
Licensee hereby accepts the nonexclusive license and privilege to manufacture the designated Licensed Articles based upon the Property, and to distribute, offer for sale, sell,
advertise and promote them in the Territory in the Channels of Distribution, during the Term. The license granted herein includes the non-exclusive license to use, in the Territory
and for the Term, the title of the Picture or Property and the approved trade and service marks and names and the approved logos and art work, if any, embodying them
(Collectively the “Trademarks”). Licensee’s rights are subject to the “Reserved Rights” specified in Paragraph 3 below. Nothing herein shall affect or limit the unrestricted rights
of Paramount Pictures Corporation (“PPC”) or its designees to distribute or exhibit the Picture or Property, in whole or in part by any means or in any media.
 
3.          RESERVED RIGHTS: The license granted herein does not include any right, title or interest in or to the Property or the Picture, nor to any copyrights, patents, and/or
trademarks therein or associated therewith. All rights not specifically licensed to Licensee herein are reserved to PLI and PPC without restriction. Without limiting the foregoing,
PLI reserves unto itself and/or its designees the right to manufacture, distribute, offer for sale, sell, advertise, promote, display and otherwise exploit articles similar and/or
identical to the Licensed Articles for use in connection with Property or Picture related marketing, Promotion, or similar activities, premium sales and/or give-aways, promotional
give-aways, in-theater sales and sales outlets immediately adjacent to motion picture theaters, sales at or adjacent to theme parks, amusement parks, entertainment centers or
other amusement attractions. and/or sales in or in connection with facilities owned, operated and/or controlled by PLI, PPC and their parent affiliated and/or subsidiary
companies. Licensee is expressly prohibited from making use of, or reference to the Property in connection with any online activities, except for online advertising of the
Licensed Articles. Licensee agrees to furnish to PLI at its best wholesale distributor price any number of Licensed Articles ordered by PLI for sale in connection with any of the
foregoing reserved activities.
 
4. MANUFACTURING AND DISTRIBUTION OBLIGATIONS/MARKETING DATE:
   
 a.     Licensee shall manufacture, distribute and commence the marketing of a substantial number of items of the Licensed Articles not later than the Marketing Date set

forth in this Agreement. If Licensee fails to meet or demonstrates an inability to meet the Marketing Date for any Licensed Article. PLI may terminate the license granted to
Licensee with respect to such Licensed Article on ten (10) business days prior written notice, provided Licensee shall not have commenced distribution of commercially
reasonable quantities of such Licensed Article within such period. If, subsequent to the commencement of marketing and distribution of any Licensed Article. Licensee fails
to actively continue the marketing and distribution of commercially reasonable quantities of said Licensed Article in any country of or substantial portion of the Territory.
PLI may terminate the license granted to Licensee with respect to that particular country or portion of the Territory on ten (10) business days prior written notice, provided
Licensee shall not have recommenced distribution of commercially reasonable quantities of such Licensed Article within such country or portion of the Territory within
such period. Termination of this Agreement, or any portion thereof, by PLI pursuant to this subparagraph 4.a, shall in no way reduce, proportionally or otherwise, the
Guarantee required to be paid to PLI hereunder. Failure by Licensee to meet the Marketing Date or actively market and distribute Licensed Articles shall be deemed a
material breach of this Agreement. Licensee shall be solely responsible for, and shall pay, any and all sums relating to the development, production, manufacture,
distribution, and promotion of the Licensed Articles.

   
 b.      Licensee acknowledges that PLI is entering into this Agreement not only in consideration of the payments to be made by Licensee, but also in consideration of the

promotional value to it, to the Property and to the Picture of the widespread distribution, sale, advertising and promotion of the Licensed Articles. Accordingly, Licensee
shall seek to procure the greatest volume of sales of the Licensed Articles consistent with high quality and shall make and maintain timely and adequate arrangements for
their manufacture, distribution, sale, advertising and promotion.

   
 c.      Licensee shall distribute and sell the Licensed Articles outright at a competitive price, and not on approval, consignment, sale-or-return, or any similar basis, and

further, only to jobbers, wholesalers, and retailers for distribution and sale to retail stores and merchants; but not for publicity or promotional tie-in purposes, or any other
means of distributing, marketing or merchandising reserved to PLI under Paragraph 3 above.

 
5.                 PAYMENT: All payments (including, without limitations, advances, royalties, and guarantees) required to be made by Licensee shall be made to PLI. The Advance
is non-returnable and is to be applied against royalties payable hereunder, and the royalties shall be applicable to the Guarantee. The Royalty Rate shall be applied to Licensee’s
“Net Wholesale Price” of each Licensed Article. For purposes hereof. “Net Wholesale Price” means any and all gross sales of Licensed Articles by Licensee or any of its
affiliated, associated or subsidiary companies, without any deductions whatsoever (including, without limitation, uncollectible accounts, manufacturing, distribution, advertising,
marketing or promotion costs and cash, trade or other discounts). except for actual returns not exceeding three percent (3%) of gross sales. Credit against sales will be allowed
only for actual returns, and no credit will be allowed against sales based on an actual or reserve system. The foregoing royalty will be payable on all Licensed Article(s)
distributed by Licensee, including Licensed Articles(s) not billed, except for a reasonable number of samples which may be given away in the normal course of business, not to
exceed five percent (5%) of Licensee’s total production. The Guarantee is payable, to the extent not then already paid to PLI as an Advance or Royalty no later than three (3)
months prior to the expiration of the Term or earlier termination of this Agreement.
 
6 .                 ACCOUNTING AND AUDIT: Licensee shall render accounting statements that include the “Project Number” given to Licensee in writing by PLI, if any, which
has been assigned to each SKU of the Licensed Articles (in the form of Exhibit “A” attached hereto) to PLI  on a quarterly (calendar year) basis within thirty (30) days of the end
of each quarter, whether or not any payment is shown to be due to PLI thereunder, and remit payments due PLI along with such statements, as follows: via regular mail to
Paramount Licensing Inc., P.O. Box 100590, Pasadena. CA 91189-0590 with copies to MANAGER ROYALTY ACCOUNTING. Paramount Licensing Inc., 5555 Melrose
Avenue, Hart Bldg., Los Angeles, California 90038. If the Territory covers more than one country, accounting statements shall be separated on a country-by-country basis. All
payments shall be made without set-off of any amount or nature whatsoever whether based upon any claimed debt or liability of PLI to Licensee. Sums not paid when due shall
bear interest at the greater of the rate of ten percent (10%) per annum or the prime interest rate of Chase Manhattan Bank plus two percent (2%). without prejudice to any other
rights of PLI in connection therewith. The receipt and deposit of monies by PLI   shall not prevent or limit PLI’s right to contest the accuracy and/or correctness of any statement
in respect of such monies. Licensee shall keep accurate books of account and records covering all transactions relating to this Agreement and shall retain such documents in its
possession or under its control relating to this Agreement, at Licensee’s principal place of business for not less than two (2) years after the expiration of the Term or earlier
termination of the Agreement and shall allow PLI and its representatives, upon prior written notice, to audit said books of account and records and to make copies thereof at PLI’s
expense. If any such audit reveals Royalties due to PLI exceeding five percent (5%) of the Royalties paid to PLI for the period covered by such audits, all auditing fees, costs and
expenses shall be borne by Licensee, plus interest on the amount due, computed from the first due date of the applicable accounting period in which such Royalties were found to
have been unpaid. If any such audit reveals Royalty payments due to PLI in excess of twenty percent (20%) of the Royalties paid to PLI for the period covered by such audit,
then, in addition to any and all other rights, legal and/or equitable of PLI, PLI shall have the right to immediately terminate the Term upon notice to Licensee.
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SCHEDULE “I” ADDITIONAL

TERMS AND CONDITIONS
 
7. APPROVALS/ARTWORK/SAMPLES:
  
 a .          The quality of the Licensed Articles and all packaging, bang-tags,  labels, press releases, advertising, promotional, display and any other material prepared in

connection with the Licensed Articles (collectively, “Packaging and Promotional Material”) shall be of a high standard, no less than the best quality of similar material
presently manufactured, distributed, sold and/or used by Licensee in the Territory. Additionally, the Licensed Articles and Packaging and Promotional Material shall be
safe for use by consumers and shall comply and be in full conformity with all applicable governmental rules, laws, guidelines, codes, and regulations and Licensee shall
follow reasonable and proper testing procedures in connection therewith. The Licensed Articles shall be manufactured, distributed, sold, and advertised in accordance with
the provisions of Paragraph 9.a. of this Schedule “I” and with all applicable laws and regulations and in a manner that will not reflect adversely upon PLI, and will
not infringe upon or violate any rights of any third parties. In the event that the Licensed Articles pose a safely threat to consumers, or are the subject of a claim or inquiry
by any person, agency, or commission because of quality and/or safely concerns, and/or labeling or are the subject of negative publicity due to poor quality and/or safely of
the Licensed Articles. Licensee shall, upon PLI’s request, immediately recall such Licensed Articles from the marketplace, and take any other measures PLI may
reasonably demand. Licensee’s agreements with manufactures for the production of the Licensed Articles shall be fully consistent with the terms of this Agreement,
including without limitation Paragraph 9.a. of this Schedule “I”.

   
 b.          PLI shall have a right of absolute prior written approval in its sole discretion of the Licensed Articles and all Packaging and Promotional Material at all stages of

the development, manufacture, and application thereof for each individual item (regardless of whether a similar or related item may previously have been approved), and
prior to any use thereof by or on behalf of Licensee as more fully set forth in Exhibit “B” hereto. Any acts by Licensee contrary to the terms of this Paragraph shall be
deemed a material breach of this Agreement.

   
 c.          Licensee shall submit in a timely manner for PLI’s approval all Licensed Articles and all Packaging and Promotional Material, to be safely identified by the Project

Number, to PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT MANAGER. Paramount Licensing Inc.. 5555 Melrose Avenue Los Angeles, California 90038. All submissions shall be made
prior to any use thereof, or public disclosure thereof by or on behalf of Licensee. Any submission not approved in writing by PLI within fourteen (14) days shall be
deemed disapproved (see Exhibit “B” (Approval Guidelines) which is attached hereto and made a part hereof).

   
 d.          PLI shall furnish to Licensee, at Licensee’s costs, such artwork as may be reasonably necessary solely for the manufacture, advertising and promotion of the

Licensed Articles, subject to availability (“Artwork”): all such Artwork shall be and remain the property of PLI, notwithstanding its creation or modification by Licensee,
and shall be returned to PLI after its use by Licensee.

   
 e.          Licensee shall allow PLI or its designee to enter Licensee’s premises and all manufacturing facilities during regular business hours, upon reasonable prior written

notice, for the purpose of inspecting the Licensed Articles. Packaging and Promotional Material and the facilities in which they are manufactured and packaged. In the
event that the quality standards hereinabove referred to are not met Licensee shall, upon written notice from PLI, discontinue the manufacture and distribution of such
Licensed Articles and/or the Packaging and Promotional Material related thereto unless Licensee shall have remedied such failure of quality to PLI’s satisfaction within ten
(10) business days after Licensee’s receipt of notice thereof: failure to effect such remedial measures shall entitle PLI to terminate this Agreement upon notice to Licensee.

   
 f.          Licensee shall furnish to PLI at no charge fifty (50) samples of each Licensed Article at the commencement of distribution thereof. Upon PLI’s request. Licensee

shall furnish additional samples at cost such samples not to be resold by PLI.
   
 g.          Licensee shall furnish to PLI at Licensee’s expense a camera ready slide or digital image file of Licensee’s logo, pre-approved by Licensee, along with

photographs of the Licensed Articles and high-resolution digital image files of all artwork and designs used thereupon, for use in PLI’s trade advertising of its licensing
program in respect of the Property, and licensed articles produced in connection therewith, and PLI’s exploitation of Reserved Rights under Paragraph 3 hereof.

   
8. GOODWILL, PATENTS, TRADEMARKS AND COPYRIGHT:
  
 a.          Licensee recognizes and acknowledges that: (i) the title of the Property and/or the Picture (and, if the Picture is a sequel to a prior work, or if there are now or are

later developed sequels to the pictures, the titles of such prior work and of such sequels) and the logos and/or artwork (including artwork developed for advertising and
promotional use) embodying such title or titles are trademarks and copyrights of PLI or its designee, whether or not registered as such; (ii) the good will associated with
the Property and the Trademarks inures solely and exclusively to PLI or its designee; and (iii) the Property and the Trademarks have acquired, and will continue
indefinitely to have and to acquire, a secondary meaning in the minds of the public.

   
 b.          Licensee shall not acquire any rights in the Property and/or Trademarks as a result of Licensee’s use thereof, and all use by Licensee shall inure to PLI’s or its

designee’s benefit. Licensee shall not directly or indirectly, during the Term or thereafter, attack PLI’s or its designee’s ownership of the Property and/or the Trademarks or
the validity thereof or attack the validity of the license granted herein, or apply for any registration or file any document or take any action which would affect PLI’s or its
designee’s ownership of the Property or Trademarks or aid or able anyone else in doing so, or use or authorize the use of any trademark, trade name or words, symbols or
combination thereof or other designation identical with or confusingly similar to the Trademarks or to any element of the Property, whether or not such element shall have
been protected by patent, trademark or copyright, nor shall Licensee in any way disparage the Property, the Picture, the Trademarks and/or PLI or its designee.

   
 c.          Ownership of all copyright, patent and trademark rights in the Licensed Articles and Packaging and Promotional Material shall be in the same of PLI or its

designee, and Licensee hereby irrevocably and unconditionally transfers and assigns to PLI or its designee in perpetuity and throughout the universe any  and all
of Licensee’s right, title and interest, if any (including, without limitation, any rights that may be deemed “moral rights”) in and to the Licensed Articles and the Packaging
and Promotional Material. Licensee shall cause such copyright, trademark and other required notices, including any notices pertaining to movie ratings, parental
advisories, or age appropriateness, to appear on or within each unit of the Licensed Articles and/or the Packaging and Promotional Material as may be designated and
approved by PLI. Any and all additions to, and new renderings, modifications or embellishments of, the Artwork notwithstanding their invention, creation and use by
Licensee or its agents, shall become upon creation and remain in perpetuity the property of PLI or its designee, and PLI may use, and license others to use, the same,
subject only to the provisions of this Agreement. Licensee shall enter into written agreements with all of its employees and independent contractors (i) providing that all
artwork and designs created by them in the course of Licensee’s performance under this Agreement shall become upon creation the property of PLI or its designee either
as works for hire under U.S. copyright law or otherwise; and (ii) obligating them to assign all rights, including copyrights, in such artwork and designs to PLI or its
designee. Licensee shall be submit for PLI’s approval copies of all such agreements prior to use thereof. Licensee shall not permit any of its employees or independent
contractors to obtain or reserve, by written or oral agreement or otherwise, any rights as “authors” or “inventors” of any such artwork or design (as such terms are used in
present or future U.S. copyright and/or patent statutes or judicial decisions). License shall furnish to PLI, at PLI’s request, full information concerning the invention and
creation of such artwork and designs, together with the originals of assignments of all rights therein obtained from all such third parties to PLI.
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SCHEDULE “I” ADDITIONAL

 TERMS AND CONDITIONS
 
 d.          Licensee shall fully cooperate with PLI or its designee in protecting the Property and/or the Trademarks, and shall promptly supply. PLI, with any information

or materials reasonably required by PLI. If Licensee learns of any unauthorized use of the Property in the Territory. Licensee shall promptly advise PLI in writing of
the nature and extent of same. PLI may, in its sole discretion, take or elect not to take. such action as it deems advisable against any infringing party without
consultation with. or responsibility to, Licensee. Licensee shall fully cooperate with PLI in the prosecution of any action. Including by way of providing documents,
giving testimony and the like. PLI shall incur no liability to Licensee by reason of PLI’s failure or refusal to prosecute, or permit Licensee to prosecute, any alleged
infringement by third parties, nor by reason of any settlement to which PLI may agree. PLI shall retain any and all recoveries from any such actions or settlements.

   
 e.          If the Territory covers countries outside of the United States. Licensee shall not use the Property. Trademarks or other trademarks or service marks included in

the Property in any such country without first requesting and receiving a Notification of Availability from PLI; failing which, PLI ’s indemnification obligation as
provided under subparagraph 9.d., below, shall not apply to the use of the property, Trademark, trademark or service marks in such country for such goods or services.

   
9. WARRANTIES AND INDEMNIFICATION:
   
 a.          Licensee represents and warrants that it is duly organized under applicable law and that it has the right and authority to enter into this Agreement and perform

its obligations hereunder. Licensee further represents and warrants, on its own behalf and on behalf of any third-party manufacturer(s) it uses. wherever located, in
connection with the development, manufacture, distribution, sale and use of the Licensed Articles and all activities pursuant to this Agreement: (a) that it and they shall
comply with all applicable governmental laws, rules and regulations, including environmental laws and regulations: (b) that the Licensed Articles are not
manufactured in any so-called “sweatshops” or under any other abusive conditions (i.e. all employees shall works on a voluntary basis and shall be provided with a
safe and healthy workplace environment): and (c) that the Licensed Articles are manufactured in compliance with all applicable labor, health, safety and related laws
(including Federal, State, and/or local laws), including, but not limited to, wage laws, hour laws, fair employment practices, and all mandated employee benefits.

   
 b.          PLI represents and warrants that it is duly organized under applicable law and that it has the right and authority to enter into and perform this Agreement and

to grant the license granted herein. PLI makes no representation or warranty as to the amount of receipts Licensee will derive or as to the quality or success of the
Picture or Property or reception it will receive by the public, nor shall PLI be obligated to continue the exhibition, distribution or other exploitation of the Picture or
Property or continue the use of any element of the Property.

   
 c.          Licensee shall indemnify, hold harmless, and defend PLI, its parent, affiliated and subsidiary companies, and the respective officers, directors, agents,

attorneys and employees of each (“Indemnitees”) from and against any and all liabilities, claims, causes of action, suits, losses, damages, fines, judgments, settlements
and expenses (including reasonable attorneys fees and court costs) which may be suffered, made or incurred by any of such indemnitees arising out of or in connection
with the Licensed Articles or the use and exploitation thereof, and/or any breach or alleged breach of any of the covenants, warranties, representations and agreements
made by Licensee herein, including without limitation, claims relating to or based upon: (i) unauthorized use of, or infringement of any patent, trademark, design,
copyright or other proprietary or privacy right of a third party by Licensee: (ii) artwork or other material relating to the Property created, modified and/or used by
Licensee in connection with the Licensed Articles without PLI’s approvals; and/or (iii) defects in the Licensed Articles, despite PLI’s approval thereof, it being
understood and agreed that any governmental order of recall or injunction against distribution and/or sale shall, as between PLI and Licensee, be deemed conclusive
proof of such defect for the purpose of invoking the indemnifications set forth herein. PLI and Licensee shall give the other prompt written notice of the institution of
any action or the making of any claim alleging a breach hereunder.

   
 d.          PLI shall indemnify, hold harmless, and defend Licensee from and against any and all liabilities, claims, causes of action, suits, losses, damages, fines,

judgments, settlements and expenses (including reasonable attorney’s fees and court costs) which may be suffered, made or incurred by Licensee arising solely out of
any breach by PLI of any of its representations, warranties and/or agreements set forth herein. Licensee shall give PLI prompt written notice of the institution of any
action or the making of any such claims. PLI shall control all aspects of the disposition of such claims an Licensee shall cooperate fully with PLI in connection
therewith.

   
10.          INSURANCE: Licensee shall obtain and maintain throughout the Term, at Licensee’s sole expense, standard Product Liability Insurance. Advertiser’s Liability
Insurance, and Errors and Omission Insurance from a reputable insurance company qualified to do business in the State of California, naming PLI, its parent companies,
subsidiaries and affiliated companies, including their respective directors, officers, employees, agents and representatives, as additional insureds. Coverage under each policy
shall be a minimum of One Million United States Dollars (US$1,000,000) for each instance and Three Million United States Dollars (US$3,000,000) in the aggregate with a
deductible in each instance of not more than Fifty Thousand United States Dollars (US$50,000). Each such policy shall require that PLI receive at least thirty (30) days written
notice of the cancellation, amendment, or endorsement thereof before the same is effective. Licensee shall furnish PLI upon signature of this Agreement by Licensee with
certificates of insurance and certified policy endorsements evidencing that this insurance coverage (with the additional named insured identified) is in full force and effect.
   
11. TERMINATION:
   
 a.          PLI shall have the right to terminate this Agreement without prejudice to any other rights which it may have, whether pursuant to the provisions of this

Agreement, in law, equity or otherwise, upon the occurrence of any one or more of the following events (herein called “defaults”):
   
  (i)          If Licensee defaults in the performance of any of its obligations provided for in this Agreement; or
   
  (ii)          If Licensee shall have failed to deliver to PLI or to maintain in full force and effect the insurance and evidence thereof referred to in Paragraph 10

hereof ; or
   
  (iii)          If Licensee shall fail to make any payments due hereunder on the date due; or
   
  (iv)          If Licensee shall fail to deliver any of the statements hereinabove referred to or to give access to the premises and/or license records pursuant to the

provisions hereof to PLI and/or its authorized representatives for the purpose permitted hereunder; or
   
  (v)          If Licensee shall fail to comply with any laws, regulations or industry standards as provided in Paragraph 7.a., or if any governmental agency or other

body, office or official vested with appropriate authority finds that the Licensed Articles are harmful or defective in any way, manner or form, or are being
manufactured. sold or distributed in contravention of applicable laws, regulations or standards, or in a manner likely to cause harm; or

   
  (vi)          If Licensee shall be unable to pay its debts when due, or shall make any assignment for the benefit of creditors, or shall file any petition under the

bankruptey, or insolvency laws of any jurisdiction, county or place, or shall have or suffer a receiver or trustee to be appointed for its business or property, or
be adjudicated a bankrupt or an insolvent; or

   



  (vii)          In the event that Licensee does not commence in good faith to manufacture, distribute, and sell each Licensed Article throughout the Territory on or
before the Marketing Date and thereafter fails to diligently and continuously manufacture, distribute, and sell each of the Licensed Articles throughout the
Territory; or
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SCHEDULE “I” ADDITIONAL
 TERMS AND CONDITIONS

  (viii) If License shall manufacture, sell, or distribute, whichever first occurs, any of the Licensed Articles without prior written approval of PLI as provided in
Paragraph 7 hereof : or

   
  (ix) If a manufacturer approved hereunder shall engage in conduct, which if engaged in by Licensee would entitle PLI to terminate this Agreement; or
   
  (x) If Licensee delivers or sells Licensed Articles outside the Territory or knowingly sells Licensed Articles to a third party for delivery outside the Territory:

or
   
  (xi) If Licensee shall breach any other agreement in effect between Licensee on the one hand and PLI, or either of them, on the other.
   
 b.          In the event any of these defaults occur, PLI shall give notice of termination in writing in Licensee. Licensee shall have ten (10) business days from the date of

giving notice in which to correct any of these defaults (except subdivision (viii) above which is not curable), and failing such this Agreement shall thereupon
immediately terminate, and any and all payments then or later due from Licensee hereunder (including the Guarantee) shall then be promptly due and payable and no
portion of prior payments shall be repayable to the Licensee.

  
 c.          Upon the expiration of the Term or earlier termination of this Agreement: (i) all rights, licenses and privileges granted to Licensee hereunder shall

automatically revert to PLI: (ii) Licensee shall, in PLI’s discretion, either deliver to PLI materials which reproduce the Licensed Articles or give to PLI satisfactory
proof of the destruction thereof: (iii) Licensee shall, within one (1) month after such expiration or termination, deliver to PLI a complete and accurate inventory of all
units of the Licensed Articles on hand and/or in the process of manufacture, as of both the date of such expiration or termination and the date of such statement and
PLI shall have the right, upon prior notice, to enter onto Licensee’s premises during normal business hours to conduct physical inventories to verify the accuracy of
said statement; and (iv) provided this Agreement is not terminated due to material breach by Licensee, Licensee may sell off then existing inventories of the Licensed
Articles on a non-exclusive basis for a period of ninety (90) days, subject to all the other terms and conditions hereof, and provided the same have not been
manufactured solely or principally for sale during such period and only after first giving PLI the opportunity to purchase the same at Licensee’s cost of manufacture
thereof, which purchase may be of some or all of such units, in PLI’s sole discretion.

  
 d.          No waiver, whether express or implied, by either party hereto of any breach of this Agreement shall be deemed to be a waiver of any preceding or succeeding,

breach of the same or any other provision hereof. The exercise of any right granted to either party hereunder shall not operate as a waiver. The normal expiration of the
Term of this Agreement shall not relieve either party of its respective obligations accruing prior thereto, nor impair or prejudice the respective rights of either party
against the other, which rights by their nature survive such expiration.

  
12. MISCELLANEOUS:
  
 a.          INJUNCTION: Licensee acknowledges that its failure to perform any of the material terms or conditions of this Agreement shall result in immediate and

inreparable damage to PLI, PPC, their affiliates, and or licensors.  Licensee also acknowledges that there may be no adequate remedy at law for such failures and that
in the event thereof PLI shall be entitled to equitable relief in the nature of injunction and to all other available relief, at law and/or in equity.

  
 b.          CONFIDENTIALITY: Other than as may be required by any applicable law , government order or regulation, or by order or degree of any court of

competent jurisdiction Licensee shall not publicly divulge or announce, or in any manner disclose to any third party, any information or matters revealed to Licensee
pursuant hereto, or any of the specific terms and conditions of this Agreement.  If Licensee is required by legal process to disclose any such information. Licensee
shall provide PLI with prompt notice thereof so that PLI may seek a protective order or other remedy in PLI’s or any other name, and in any event Licensee shall
disclose only that portion of the information which Licensee is legally required to disclose.

  

 c.          NO ASSIGNMENT: The rights and obligations of Licensee hereunder may not be assigned, delegated, or sublicensed without the prior written consent of
PLI, each to be granted or withheld in its sole and absolute discretion.  The transfer in the aggregate of fifty percent (50%) or more of the capital stock or voting power
of Licensee shall be deemed an assignment for purposes of this Agreement.  Licensee may not enter into any agreement with any third party for the manufacturing or
distribution of any of the Licensed Articles without PLI’s prior written consent. PLI may assign all or part its rights hereunder, and/or may delegate all or part of its
obligations hereunder, to any third party.

  
 d.          TRANSFER FEE: In the event that PLI consents to an assignment transfer, or sublicense of this Agreement and the rights and obligations of Licensee

hereunder pursuant to the terms of Paragraph 12.e. of this Schedule “I” (including any transfer of the capital stock or voting power of Licensee which is deemed an
assignment pursuant to the terms of Paragraph 12.e.), which consent PLI may grant or withhold in its sole and absolute discretion.  Licensee shall pay to PLI a
nonreturnable, non-recoupable fee (the “Transfer Fee”) in the amount of thirty-five percent (35%) of one hundred percent (100%) of any and all amount(s) of cash or
cash equivalents received by or credited to Licensee in connection with the event(s) triggering such request for assignment, including the “Capital Transaction
Proceeds” of any “Capital Transactions” (as such terms are defined below). As used herein, “Capital Transactions” shall mean and refer to any initial public or private
offering, sale, acquisition, merger, recapitalization or other restructuring or financing of or for Licensee or its affiliates where a portion of the proceeds of any such
event go to the shareholders, owners, directors, officers, management or members of Licensee or its affiliates. As used herein, “Capital Transaction Proceeds” shall
mean and refer to the gross total proceeds and consideration (which if not in cash shall have assigned to it a fair market value) of any Capital Transactions, not only of
actual, direct and verifiable third party underwriting costs incurred by Licensee. The Capital Transaction Proceeds shall exclude only those proceeds derived from any
financing that are actually used by Licensee specifically to pay Licensee’s overhead expenses (e.g. employee salaries) in the ordinary course of Licensee’s business.
Licensee shall deliver to PLI in writing any request to assign this Agreement not later than thirty (30) business days in advance of the event triggering such request
(e.g. the projected conclusion of any Capital Transaction). Licensee shall further provide any and all information and documentation requested by PLI in connection
with evaluating the requested assignment. In the event PLI consents to an assignment of this Agreement, the associated Transfer Fee shall be due to PLI no later than
five (5) business days after the conclusion of the related transaction.

  
 e.          FORCE MAJEURE: The parties shall be released from their respective obligations hereunder if government regulations or other causes arising out of a state

of war or other national emergency, or other causes beyond the reasonable control of the parties, render performance of such obligations reasonably impracticable. If
such event continues for a period sixty (60) days, either party may terminate this Agreement by giving written notice. Upon such termination, all royalties due on sales
theretofore made shall become then immediately due and payable, and no Advance, Royalties, or Guarantee theretofore paid shall be repayable. If neither party elects
to terminate this Agreement as immediately hereinabove provided, the Term of this Agreement shall be extended automatically for a period of time equal to the period
of such  “force majeure” event but not to exceed six (6) months from the date of the first occurrence.

  



 f.          FURTHER INSTRUMENTS: Licensee shall furnish PLI with any further instruments , in such  form and substance as PLI may reasonably require to
evidence, establish, protect , record, enforce, defend, or secure to PLI or its designee any or all of their rights , titles, properties or interests or more fully to effectuate
to carry out the purposes, provisions or intent of this agreement. Unless Licensee executes and delivers such documents reasonably requested by PLI or provides a
reasonable objection to said request within ten (10) days from the date of request. Licensee irrevocably appoints PLI as its lawful attorney-in-fact to execute or deliver
the instruments contemplated by this paragraph .
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SCHEDULE “I” ADDITIONAL  

TERMS AND CONDITIONS  
 
g.    GOVERNING LAW:  THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED AND INTERPRETED PURSUANT TO THE LAWS OF THE STATE
OF CALIFORNIA. USA. AND THE PARTIES HERETO SUBMIT AND CONSENT TO THE JURISDICTION OF THE COURTS OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA.
INCLUDING FEDERAL COURTS LOCATED THEREIN. SHOULD FEDERAL JURISDICTION REQUIREMENTS EXIST. IN ANY ACTION BROUGHT TO ENFORCE
(OR OTHERWISE RELATING TO) THIS CONTRACT. THE PREVAILING PARTY IN ANY ACTION BROUGHT TO ENFORCE THE TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT
SHALL BE ENTITLED TO RECOVER ITS REASONABLE ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND COSTS.

h.    NOTICES:   notices hereunder shall be given in writing and sent by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, or by nationally recognized express carrier.
addressed to the address indicated in the Agreement. to the attention of such official as the recipient shall designate in writing. Each party shall notify the other in writing
promptly after any change in address. Requirements relating to submission for approvals shall be governed by paragraph 7. above.
 
i.    ENTIRE AGREEMENT, ETC:  This Agreement (including any exhibits and schedules which are attached hereto and made a part hereof by this reference) shall constitute
the entire understanding of  the parties with respect to the subject matter, superseding all prior and contemporaneous promises, agreements and understandings, whether written
or oral. pertaining thereto and cannot be modified except by a written instrument signed by both parties. Paragraph headings contained in this Agreement are for convenience
only and shall not be given any legal effect. Nothing herein contained shall constitute a partnership between or joint venture by the parties hereto. or constitute either party the
agent of the other. This Agreement is not for the benefit of any third party and shall not be deemed to give any right or remedy to any such party. whether referred to herein or
not. Nothing herein contained shall be construed to require the commission of any act contrary to law. and wherever there is any conflict between any provision of this
Agreement and material stature, law or ordinance, the latter shall prevail, but in such event the provision of this Agreement affected shall be curtailed and limited only to the
extent necessary to bring it within the legal requirements. This Agreement shall not become effective or be binding on PLI unless and until executed by an authorized officer of
PLI in Los Angeles. California.
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EXHIBIT “A”
LICENSEE’S ROYALTY STATEMENT

(To be completed in the agreed upon currency per contract)
 

ROYALTY SUMMARY
       
 Contract No      
       
 Licensee  Licensor Paramount Licensing Inc.  
 Address    5555 Melrose Avenue  
     Hart 400  
     Los Angeles, CA 90038-3197  
 Phone Number    Attn: Mgr, Royalty Accounting  
 Finance Contact Name      
       
 Contract Term  Property Name   
 Reporting Period  Currency   
       
 

Current Period Information  Cumulative Information
          
 Total Net Sales     Total Cumulative Royalties    
 Royalty Rate     Less: Advances    
 Less: Unearned Adv/Guar     Less: Previous Royalty Payments    
      Add: Current Period Royalties    
 Royalty Due         
      Total Balance Due    
          
 
 

 



 
 

EXHIBIT “A” (continued)
LICENSEE’S ROYALTY STATEMENT

(To be completed in the agreed upon currency per contract)
 

ROYALTY DETAIL
(separate sheet to be submitted for each territory)

      
 CONTRACT NO _______________________  REPORTING PERIOD _______________________
      
 LICENSEE NAME _______________________  TERRITORY _______________________
      
 
        Units  Sales     
PLI Project # (1)  Product Description  Channel  Price  Gross  Returns  Deductions  Net  Gross  Returns  Deductions  Net  Rate  Royalty
                           
                           
                           
                           
                           
                           
                           
                           
                           
                           
                           
                           
                           
                           
                           
                           
                           
                           
                           
                           
                           
      TOTALS                        
 
 (1) PLI Project #’s are listed on each product approval from.

 
 



 
 

EXHIBIT “B”
 
Your agreement with Paramount Licensing Inc. requires submission of all articles for review and written approval prior to production.
Please send all materials to:
 
Product Development Manager
Paramount Licensing Inc.
Chevalier 200
5555 Melrose Avenue
Los Angeles, CA 90038
 
Approval will be required at each of the following stages of preparation. This procedure ensures that problems are caught early on, when they can still be changed, without great
expense of time or money:
    
 1. Packaging, Collateral Materials, Catalogs and Brochures, Print Advertising (consumer and trade) and Printed Product:
   
  a. Rough sketches or layout concepts and rough copy.
  b. Finished comps – final copy and art together (mechanical) including legal notices.
  c. Final art (color).
    
  Note: In some instances such as posters, approval of color proof may be required to ensure quality of final product.
   
 2. Three-Dimensional Products:
   
  a. Concept (renderings).
  b. Prototypes (sculpture).
  c. Production samples or finished production samples.
    
 3. Audio or Video Advertising, Sales Aids, Etc.:
   
  a. Radio Script or television script and storyboard.
  b. Audio or video tapes prior to use or airing (rough cut and final cut); copyright notice must be visible on tape.
 
 REVISIONS: In addition, all materials must be re-submitted for approval each time a revision is made incorporating changes requested. Revisions of copy or

manuscripts must be redlined or highlighted.
  
 Samples of finished products must be submitted pursuant to the Agreement.
  
 Please Remember that all submissions not approved in writing are deemed disapproved.
 
 

 



 
 

EXHIBIT “B” (continued)
 
Advertising and Promotional Approval Guidelines:
  
1. All advertising and promotional mechanicals or materials must be approved in writing. This encompasses print ads, commercial (radio or television), point-of-purchase

materials, brochures, and package designs.
  
 Please submit these materials to:

Product Development Manager
Paramount Licensing Inc.
Chevalier 200
5555 Melrose Ave.
Los Angeles, CA 90038

  
2. Do not proceed with any promotional activities prior to approval. The submission of  promotion concepts for approval will prevent possible infringement of rights

granted to other companies and spare you potential legal liability for such infringement.
 
 

 



 
 

EXHIBIT “C”
 

THIS WARRANT HAS NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, AND MAY NOT
BE SOLD, ASSIGNED, TRANSFERRED, OR OTHERWISE

DISPOSED OF IN THE ABSENCE OF AN EFFECTIVE
REGISTRATION STATEMENT THEREFOR OR AN

APPLICABLE EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION.
 

HARBREW IMPORTS, LTD.
 

Warrant for the Purchase of Shares
of Common Stock

 
June 12, 2009

 
                    FOR VALUE RECEIVED and subject to the terms and conditions contained herein, HARBREW IMPORTS, LTD. hereby certifies that PARAMOUNT
LICENSING INC. and its successors, assigns, or designees are entitled to purchase from the Company (as defined below) at any time or from time to time during the Exercise
Period (as defined below) any or all of the Warrant Shares (as defined below) for the Warrant Price (as defined below). The Warrant Price shall not be subject to adjustment,
except as set forth in Paragraph 3 hereof.
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   1. Definitions.
 
                    As used in this Warrant, the following terms have the respective meanings set forth below:
   
                     “Additional Membership Interests” shall mean any additional Membership Interests granted by the Company on or after the date hereof, other

than the Membership Interest issued pursuant to this Warrant.
 

   
                     “Affiliate” of a Person shall mean any Person who, directly or indirectly, controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with such other

Person. For purposes of this definition, “control” of a Person means the power to direct or to cause the direction of management and policies of such Person,
directly or indirectly, whether through ownership of voting securities, by contract or otherwise.

 

   
                     “Aggregate Warrant Price” shall mean, with respect to the exercise of a portion or all of the Warrant Shares, the Warrant Price multiplied by the

number of Warrant Shares purchased upon such exercise.
 

   
                     “Book Value” shall mean, at a particular date, the consolidated net book value of the Company as determined in accordance with GAAP as

determined by a firm of independent public accountants of nationally recognized standing (the fees and expenses of which shall be paid by the Company)
approval by Holder.

 

   
                     “Business Day” shall mean any day that is not a Saturday or Sunday or a day on which banks are required or permitted to be closed in the State of

California.
 

   
                     “Commission” shall mean the Securities and Exchange Commission or any other federal agency then administering federal securities laws or any

successor thereto.
 

   
                     “Common Share Equivalents” means, at any time of determination and without duplication, (i) Membership Interests that are granted and

outstanding, (ii) Membership Interests that are to be granted upon conversion, exercise, or exchange of any other debt or equity security, and (iii) shares of
Common Stock that are to be granted upon exercise of any option, warrant, or other right to acquire a Membership Interest (including Membership Interests
subject to vesting requirements whether or not presently exercisable or earned). Except as otherwise provided in this Warrant, wherever this Warrant requires the
calculation of a ratio or percentage of Common Share Equivalents, such ratio or percentage shall consist of a numerator which includes all Common Share
Equivalents of the Person whose percentage or ratio is to be calculated and a denominator which includes all Common Share Equivalents held by all Persons.

 

   
                     “Membership Interest” shall mean a member’s share of the profits and losses of the Company and a member’s right to receive distributions of the

Company and shall also include a Membership Interest or shares of common stock of any successor or acquiring corporation referred to in Paragraph 3(c)
received by or distributed to the holders of such interest or capital stock in the circumstances contemplated by Paragraph 3(c).

 

   
                     “Company” shall mean HARBREW IMPORTS, LTD. or any successor entity by merger or consolidation or otherwise.  
   
                     “Convertible Securities” shall mean evidences of indebtedness, shares of stock, or other securities which are convertible into or exchangeable, with

or without payment of additional consideration in cash or property, for a Membership Interest, either immediately or upon the occurrence of a specified date or a
specified event.
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                     “Exchange Act” shall mean the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or any successor thereto, or any similar federal statute, and the rules

and regulations of the Commission thereunder, all as the same shall be in effect from time to time.
 

   
                     “Exercise Period” shall mean the period commencing on June 12, 2009 and ending on June 12, 2014.  
   
                     “GAAP” shall mean generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America as from time to time in effect.  
   
                     “Holder” shall mean PARAMOUNT LICENSING INC. or any permitted assignees of this Warrant.  
   
                     “License Agreement” shall mean the Merchandising License Agreement dated as of June 12, 2009, as the same may be amended from time to time,

between PLI and the Company.
 

   
                     “Members” shall mean either individuals or business entities who have acquired a Membership Interest in the Company.  
   
                     “NASD” shall mean the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc., or any successor corporation thereto.  
   
                     “Outstanding” shall mean, when used with reference to Membership Interests, at any time as of which the number of shares thereof is to be

determined, all Common Share Equivalents, except shares then owned or held by or for the account of the Company or any majority-owned subsidiary
of the Company, and shall include all shares issuable in respect of any certificates representing fractional interests in Common Share Equivalents.

 

   
                     “Person” shall mean any individual, sole proprietorship, partnership, joint venture, trust, incorporated organization, association, corporation,

institution, public benefit corporation, limited liability corporation, entity or government (whether federal, state, county, city, municipal or otherwise, including,
without limitation, any instrumentality, division, agency, body or department thereof).

 

   
                     “Register”, “registered” and “registration” shall, unless otherwise expressly set forth, refer to a registration effected by preparing and filing a

registration statement in compliance with the Securities Act and declaration or ordering of effectiveness of such registration statement.
 

   
                     “Registrable Securities” shall mean any Warrant Shares; provided however, that once issued, such securities shall cease to be Registrable Securities

when (i) a registration statement with respect to the sale of such securities shall have become effective under the Securities Act and such securities shall have
been disposed of in accordance with such registration statement, (ii) such securities shall have been distributed (or are and continue to remain distributable) to the
public pursuant to Rule 144 (or any successor provision under the Securities Act), (iii) such securities shall have been otherwise transferred, new certificates
therefor not bearing a legend restricting further transfer shall have been delivered by the Company and subsequent disposition of them shall not require their
registration under the Securities Act or (iv) such securities have ceased to be outstanding.
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                     “Sale of the Company” shall mean (i) a sale of at least twenty percent (20%) of the outstanding voting securities of the Company (or any other

entity or entities then controlling, directly or indirectly, all or substantially all of the assets of the Company) in one transaction or series of transactions, (ii) a
sale of all or substantially all the assets of the Company (which for such purpose shall be deemed to include assets of any subsidiary of the Company in one
transaction or series of transactions, or (iii) a merger or consolidation pursuant to which at least twenty percent (20%) of the voting securities of the merged or
consolidated entity are held by persons other than Affiliates of the Company in the case of the Company (and other than the Company in the case of any other
entity or entities controlling, directly or indirectly, all or substantially all of the assets of the Company and its subsidiaries taken as a whole), in each case
involving an arm’s length transaction or series of transactions with a party who is not an Affiliate of the Company.

 

   
                     “Securities Act” shall mean the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or any similar federal statute, and the rules and regulations of the Commission

thereunder, all as the same shall be in effect at the time.
 

   
                     “PLI” shall mean PARAMOUNT LICENSING INC., and any successor entity by merger or consolidation or otherwise.  
   
                     “Warrant Price” shall mean a total, aggregate price of One Million United States Dollars ($1,000,000.00).  
   
                     “Warrant Shares” shall mean the Membership Interests purchasable under this Warrant.
 
                    2 .         Exercise of Warrant. This Warrant may be exercised, in whole at any time or in part from time to time, during the Exercise Period, by the Holder by the
surrender of this Warrant (with the subscription duly executed) at the address set forth in Paragraph 1l(a) hereof, together with payment of the Aggregate Warrant Price.
Payment for the Warrant Shares to be purchased shall be made by wire transfer or certified or official bank check payable to the order of the Company. Upon surrender of this
Warrant, the Company will promptly issue a certificate or certificates in the name of the Holder for the number of Membership Interests to which the Holder shall be entitled.
The Company shall not be required to issue a fractional Membership Interest upon any exercise of this Warrant. If this .Warrant is exercised in part, the Holder shall be entitled
to promptly receive a new Warrant covering the percentage of Company’s Membership Interest with respect to which this Warrant has not been exercised.
 
                    3 .         Adjustment of Warrant Shares and/or Warrant Price . The price at which a Membership Interest may be purchased and the kind and number of such
Membership Interests issuable upon exercise of this Warrant shall be subject to adjustment only as set forth below in this Paragraph 3. The Company shall give the registered
Holder written notice of any event described below which requires an adjustment pursuant to this Paragraph 3 in accordance with the provisions of Paragraph 4.
   
            (a)          Dividends, Subdivisions, and Combinations. If, at any time, the Company shall:
   
                  (i)           fix a record date for the purpose of determining which Members are entitled to receive a dividend payable in, or other distribution of,

Additional Membership Interests;
   
                   (ii)         subdivide its outstanding Membership Interests into a larger number of Membership Interests;
   
                   (iii)        combine its outstanding Membership Interests into a smaller number of Membership Interests; or
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                       (iv)          issue any shares of its capital stock or other securities by reclassification of its Membership Interests (other than pursuant to Paragraph
3(c) below);

 then the kind of capital stock or other securities of the Company which may be purchased shall be adjusted in the case of such a reclassification of the Common Stock,
each on the record date for such dividend or distribution or effective date of such subdivision, combination or reclassification, as the case may be, such that the Holder
shall be entitled to receive, upon exercise of this Warrant, the aggregate number and kind of shares of Common Stock which, if the Warrant had been fully exercised
immediately prior to such date, it would have owned upon such exercise and been entitled to receive by virtue of such dividend, distribution, subdivision, combination
or reclassification.

  
                                 (v)           fix a record date for the purpose of determining the holders of its Common Stock entitled to receive any dividend or other distribution

(including any such distribution made in connection with a consolidation or merger, but excluding any distribution referred to in subparagraph (a) above) of:
  
                                        (A)          any evidences of indebtedness, any shares of its capital stock (including Convertible Securities but excluding Common Stock)

or any other securities or property of any nature whatsoever (other than cash dividends or cash distributions payable out of consolidated earnings or earned
surplus); or

   
                                        (B)          any warrants or other rights to subscribe for or purchase any evidences of its indebtedness, any shares of its stock (including

Convertible Securities) or any other of its securities or its property of any nature whatsoever (other than cash dividends or cash distributions payable out of
consolidated earnings or earned surplus);

   
           Such adjustments shall be made whenever such a record date is fixed. A reclassification of the Common Stock (other than a change in par value, or from par

value to no par value or from no par value to par value) into shares of Common Stock and shares of any other class of stock shall be deemed a distribution by the
Company to the holders of its Common Stock of such shares of such other class of stock within the meaning of this subparagraph (a)(v) and, if the outstanding shares
of Common Stock shall be changed into a larger or smaller number of shares of Common Stock as a part of such reclassification, such change shall be deemed a
subdivision or combination, as the case may be, of the outstanding shares of Common Stock within the meaning of the balance of this subparagraph (a).

  
                     (b)          Consolidation or Merger. In the case of any consolidation of the Company with or merger of the Company into another corporation or in case of

any sale or conveyance to another corporation of the property of the Company as an entirety or substantially as an entirety, including, without limitation, a Sale of the
Company, the Company or such successor or purchasing corporation, as the case may be, shall execute with the Holder an agreement that the Holder shall have the
right thereafter upon payment of the Aggregate Warrant Price (assuming full exercise of this Warrant) in effect immediately prior to such action to purchase upon
exercise of the Warrant the kind and amount of shares and other securities and property that it would have owned or have been entitled to receive after the happening
of such consolidation, merger, sale or conveyance had such Warrant been exercised immediately prior to such action. Such agreement shall provide for adjustments,
which shall be as nearly equivalent as may be practicable to the adjustments provided for in this Paragraph 3. The provisions of this subparagraph (b) shall similarly
apply to successive consolidations, mergers, sales or conveyances.

  
                     (c)          Issuance of Shares, Warrants or Other Rights. If at any time the Company shall issue or sell to any Person any Additional Shares of Common

Stock, or warrants or other similar rights to subscribe for or purchase any Additional Shares of Common Stock or Convertible Securities, whether or not the rights to
exchange or convert thereunder are immediately exercisable (but
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 excluding any distributions in subparagraphs (a) or (b) above), an adjustment shall be made on the basis that (i) the maximum number of Additional Shares of
Common Stock issuable pursuant to all such warrants or other similar rights or necessary to effect the conversion or exchange of all such Convertible Securities shall
be deemed to have been issued and outstanding, (ii) the price per share for such Additional Shares of Common Stock shall be deemed to be the lowest possible price
per share in any range of prices per share at which such Additional Shares of Common Stock are available to such holders, and (iii) the Company shall be deemed to
have received all of the consideration payable therefor, if any, as of the date of the actual issuance of such warrants or other similar rights.

  
                     (d)          Superseding Adjustment. If, at any time after any adjustment to the Warrant Price shall have been made pursuant to subparagraph (c) above as

the result of any issuance of warrants, rights or Convertible Securities, and either
  
                  (i)          such warrants or rights, or the right of conversion or exchange in any other Convertible Securities, shall expire, and all or a portion of

such warrants or rights, or the right of conversion or exchange with respect to all or a portion of such other Convertible Securities, as the case may be, shall not
have been exercised; or

   
                  (ii)          the consideration per share for which shares of Common Stock are issuable pursuant to such warrants or rights, or the terms of such

other Convertible Securities, shall be increased solely by virtue of provisions therein contained for an automatic increase in such consideration per share upon
the occurrence of a specified date or event;

   
           then such previous adjustment shall be rescinded and annulled and the Additional Shares of Common Stock which were deemed to have been issued by virtue

of the computation made in connection with the adjustment so rescinded and annulled shall no longer be deemed to have been issued by virtue of such computation.
  
                     (e)          Fractional Interests. In computing adjustments under this Paragraph 3, fractional interests in Common Stock shall be taken into account to the

nearest whole share.
  
                     (f)          When Adjustments Not Required. If the Company shall fix a record date for the purpose of determining the holders of its Common Stock entitled

to receive a dividend or distribution and shall, thereafter and before the distribution to stockholders thereof, legally abandon its plan to pay or deliver such dividend or
distribution, then thereafter no adjustment shall be required by reason of the taking of such record and any such adjustment previously made in respect thereof shall be
rescinded and annulled.

 
                      4.        Notices of Adjustments . Whenever the Warrant Price or the number of Warrant Shares shall be adjusted pursuant to Paragraph 3, the Company shall
forthwith deliver to the Holder a certificate prepared by the Company, setting forth, in reasonable detail, the event requiring the adjustment and the method by which such
adjustment was calculated (including a description of the basis on which the Board of Directors of the Company determined the fair value of any evidences of indebtedness,
shares of stock, other securities or property or warrants or other subscription or purchase rights), specifying the number of Warrant Shares then issuable hereunder, the Warrant
Price after giving effect to such adjustment and (if such adjustment was made pursuant to Paragraph 3 (a)) describing the number and kind of any other shares of stock for
which the Warrant is exercisable. In the event that the Holder shall disagree with any such adjustment, it shall notify the Company thereof in writing and the parties shall
attempt in good faith to resolve such matter within fifteen (15) business days. If the parties do not resolve such matter within such period, then any such disagreement shall be
resolved (on a binding basis) by an investment banking firm of nationally recognized standing mutually agreeable to the Company and the Holder, or if the Company and the
Holder are unable to agree upon an investment banking firm, an investment banking firm selected by an investment banking firm chosen by the Company and an investment
banking firm chosen by the Holder.
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                    5.          Reservation of Warrant Shares. The Company agrees that, upon commencement of the Exercise Period and prior to the expiration of this Warrant, the
Company will at all times have authorized and in reserve, and will keep available, solely for issuance or delivery upon the exercise of this Warrant, the shares of the Common
Stock and other securities and properties as from time to time shall be receivable upon the exercise of this Warrant, free and clear of all restrictions on sale or transfer and free
and clear of all preemptive rights.
 
                    6.          Fully Paid Stock: Taxes. The shares of Common Stock represented by each and every certificate for Warrant Shares delivered on the exercise of this
Warrant shall, at the time of such delivery, be validly issued and outstanding, fully paid and nonassessable, and not subject to pre-emptive rights (other than those held by PLI
or Holder), and the Company will take all such actions as may be necessary to assure that the par value or stated value, if any, per share of the Common Stock is at all times
equal to or less than the then Warrant Price divided by the number of Warrant Shares. The Company further covenants and agrees that it will pay, when due and payable, any
and all federal and state stamp, original issue or similar taxes which may be payable in respect of the issuance of any Warrant Shares or certificate therefor.
 
                    7.          Transferability. This Warrant is fully transferable or assignable by the Holder to an Affiliate of the Holder without the prior written consent of the
Company. Additionally, the Holder may transfer or assign this Warrant to any other parry after first negotiating in good faith for not less than ten (10) business days with the
Company regarding the Company’s purchase of this Warrant. Any transfer or assignment may only be effected in accordance with applicable securities laws or pursuant to
exemptions therefrom. The Company may treat the registered holder of this Warrant as it appears on the Company’s books at any time as the Holder for all purposes.
 
                    8.          Loss, etc., of Warrant. Upon receipt of evidence satisfactory to the Company of the loss, theft, destruction or mutilation of this Warrant, and of indemnity
reasonably satisfactory to the Company, if lost, stolen or destroyed, and upon surrender and cancellation of this Warrant, if mutilated, the Company shall execute and deliver to
the Holder a new Warrant of the like date, tenor and denomination.
 
                    9.          Holder Not Shareholder. This Warrant does not confer upon the Holder any right to vote or to consent to or receive notice as a shareholder of the
Company, as such, in respect of any matters whatsoever, or any other rights or liabilities as a shareholder, prior to the exercise hereof.
 
                    10.        Surrender. The Holder may at any time surrender all or a portion of this Warrant for cancellation by transmitting same to the Company at its address set
forth elsewhere herein accompanied by a written notice setting forth the Holder’s intention to surrender the Warrant (or such portion) for cancellation and upon such transmittal
by the Holder, this Warrant (or such portion) shall become null and void and of no further force and effect.
 
                    11.        Notice. Any notice, demand, request, consent, approval, declaration, delivery or other communication hereunder to be made pursuant to the provisions of
this Warrant shall be sufficiently given or made if in writing and either delivered in person with receipt acknowledged, sent by facsimile or sent by registered or certified mail,
return receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed as follows:
  
                      (a)          Company at 1174 Route 109, Lindenhurst, NY 11757 (facsimile no. 631-991-3175), Attention: Chief Executive Officer.
  
                      (b)          Holder, c/o PLI at 5555 Melrose Avenue, Los Angeles, California 90038 (facsimile no. 323-862-1187), Attention: Senior Vice President,

Business Affairs, with a copy to the attention of the General Counsel of Paramount Pictures Corporation at the same address, or at such other address as may be
substituted by notice given as herein provided.
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          The giving of any notice required hereunder may be waived in writing by the party entitled to receive such notice. Every notice, demand, request, consent, approval,
declaration, delivery or other communication hereunder shall be deemed to have been duly given or served on the date on which personally delivered, with receipt
acknowledged, or three (3) Business Days after the same shall have been deposited in the United States mail. Failure or delay in delivering copies of any notice, demand,
request, approval, declaration, delivery or other communication to the person designated above to receive a copy shall in no way adversely affect the effectiveness of such
notice, demand, request, approval, declaration, delivery or other communication.
 
                       12.           Registration Rights.
   
                            (a)          Registration Requests. Subject to Paragraph 12(e) below, if at any time the Company determines to register any of its Common Stock under

the Securities Act in connection with the public offering of such Common Stock solely for cash on a form that would also permit the registration of any of the Warrant
Shares, the Company shall, each such time, promptly give the Holder written notice of such proposal. Upon the written request of the Holder given within twenty (20)
Business Days after the giving of any such notice by the Company and so long as Holder is in compliance with Paragraph 13(b) hereof, the Company shall use best
efforts to cause to be registered under the Securities Act all of the Warrant Shares that the Holder requests be registered. In addition to the foregoing rights, and also
subject to Paragraph 12(e) below, at any time during the term of this Warrant when the Warrant Shares are not registered pursuant to an effective registration statement
(but when other shares of Common Stock are so registered), Holder may make a written request for the registration under the Securities Act (a “Demand Registration”)
of all of such Warrant Shares, and the Company shall use its best efforts to effect such Demand Registration as promptly as possible. The right to cause a Demand
Registration of the Warrant Shares under this Paragraph 12(a) shall be limited to one (1) such registration. Notwithstanding the provisions of this Paragraph 12, the
Company shall not be required to effect or maintain any new registration if the Company has previously filed with the Commission five (5) registration statements
pursuant to the provisions of this Paragraph 12.

  
                            (b)          Obligations of the Company. Whenever required under Paragraph 12(a) to use best efforts to effect the registration of any Warrant Shares,

the Company shall, as expeditiously as reasonably possible:
  
                              (iii)        Prepare and file with the Commission a registration statement with respect to such Warrant Shares and use best efforts to cause such

registration statement to become and remain effective; provided, however, that in connection with any proposed registration intended to permit an offering of
any securities from time to time (i.e., a so-called “shelf registration”), the Company shall in no event be obligated to cause any such registration to remain
effective for more than 365 days.

   
                              (iv)        Prepare and file with the Commission such amendments and supplements to such registration statement and the prospectus used in

connection with such registration statement as may be necessary to comply with the provisions of the Securities Act with respect to the disposition of all
securities covered by such registration statement.

   
                              (v)         Furnish to the Holder such numbers of copies of the prospectus, including the preliminary prospectus, in conformity with the

requirements of the Securities Act, and such other documents, including, without limitation, copies of the registration statement and any amendments thereto as
the Holder may reasonably request in order to facilitate the disposition of Warrant Shares owned by the Holder.
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                      (vi)          Use best efforts to register and qualify the securities covered by such registration statement under such other securities or “blue sky” laws

of such states or jurisdictions as, in the opinion of the managing underwriter of the offering, shall be reasonably appropriate for the distribution of the securities
covered by the registration statement, provided that the Company shall not be required in connection therewith or as a condition thereto to qualify to do business
in any such states or jurisdictions, and further provided that (anything in this Warrant to the contrary notwithstanding with respect to the bearing of expenses) if
any jurisdiction in which the securities shall be qualified shall require that expenses incurred in connection with the qualification of the securities in that
jurisdiction be borne by selling shareholders, then such expenses shall be payable by selling shareholders, pro rata, to the extent required by such jurisdiction.

   
                      (vii)         Use best efforts to cause such Warrant Shares to be listed on each securities exchange on which similar securities of the Company are

then listed (or, if no securities of the Company are then listed, on a securities exchange selected by the Company and reasonably acceptable to the Holder), and
enter into related customary agreements including a listing application and indemnification agreement in customary form.

   
                      (viii)        Promptly notify in writing the Holder and any underwriters (a) when the prospectus or any prospectus supplement or post-effective

amendment has been filed, and, with respect to the registration statement or any post-effective amendment, when the same has become effective, (b) of any
request by the Commission for amendments or supplements to the registration statement or the prospectus or for additional information, (c) of the issuance by
the Commission of any stop order suspending the effectiveness of the registration statement or the initiation of any proceedings for that purpose, (d) if at any
time the representations and warranties of the Company made in connection with the registration statement cease to be true and correct in all material respects,
(e) of the receipt by the Company of any notification with respect to the suspension of the qualification of the Registrable Securities for sale in any jurisdiction
or the initiation or threatening of any proceeding for such purpose, and (f) of the happening of any event which makes any statement made in the registration
statement, the prospectus or any document incorporated therein by reference untrue or which requires the making of any changes in the registration statement,
the prospectus or any document incorporated therein by reference in order to make the statements therein not misleading.

   
                      (ix)          Make every reasonable effort to obtain the withdrawal of any order suspending the effectiveness of the registration statement at the

earliest possible moment.
   
                      (x)           Cooperate with the Holders and any underwriter to facilitate the timely preparation and delivery of certificates representing Registrable

Securities to be sold which do not bear any restrictive legends; and cause such Registrable Securities to be in such denominations and registered in such names
as any underwriter may request at least two business days prior to any sale of Registrable Securities to the underwriters.

   
                      (xi)          Make generally available to its stockholders earnings statements satisfying the provisions of Section 11(a) of the Securities Act no later

than forty-five (45) days after the end of any fiscal quarter (or ninety (90) days after the end of any fiscal year) (a) commencing at the end of any fiscal quarter
in which Registrable Securities are sold to underwriters in a firm or best efforts underwritten offering, or, if not sold to underwriters, in such an offering, (b)
beginning with the first month of the Company’s first fiscal quarter commencing after the effective date of the registration statement.

   
                      (xii)          Take any such other actions as may be necessary or advisable to enable the Holder to dispose of its Warrant Shares pursuant to this

Paragraph 12, including, without limitation, entering into an underwriting agreement with a managing underwriter or underwriters specified by the Holder,
which contains customary provisions including indemnification.
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                     (c)          Furnish Information. It shall be a condition precedent to the obligations of the Company under this Paragraph 12 that the Holder shall furnish to

the Company such information regarding the Holder, the Warrant Shares held by it and the intended method of disposition of such securities as the Company shall
reasonably request and as shall be required in connection with the action to be taken by the Company.

  
                     (d)          Registration Expenses. In the case of any registration effected pursuant to Paragraph 12(a), to the extent permitted by applicable law, the

Company shall bear any additional registration and qualification fees and expenses and any additional costs and disbursements of counsel for the Company that result
from the inclusion of securities held by the Holder in such registration. The Holder shall bear the fees and costs of its own counsel and underwriters’ discounts and
commissions with respect to its Warrant Shares.

  
                     (e)          Underwriting Requirements. In connection with any offering involving an underwriting of shares being issued by the Company, the Company

shall not be required under Paragraph 12(a) to include any of the Holder’s Warrant Shares in such underwriting unless the Holder accepts the terms of the
underwriting as agreed upon between the Company and the underwriters selected by the Company, and then only in such quantity as will not, in the written opinion of
the underwriters, jeopardize the success of the offering by the Company. If the total amount of Warrant Shares that the Holder requests to be included in such offering
exceeds the amount of securities that the underwriters reasonably believe compatible with the success of the offering, the Company shall be required to include in the
offering only so many of the Warrant Shares of the Holder as the underwriters believe will not jeopardize the success of the offering. The exclusion shall apply to all
holders of Registrable Securities (and shall not apply to shares held or issuable by the Company) proposing to sell shares of Registrable Securities in such underwritten
offering on a pro rata basis (in proportion to the respective number of shares of Registrable Securities as to which registration has be requested by such holders). To
facilitate the allocation of shares in accordance with the above provisions, the Company may round the number of shares allocated the nearest one hundred (100)
shares. In any registration involving an underwritten offering of Registrable Securities, the Holder shall have the unconditional right to withdraw, by giving written
notice to the Company and the managing underwriter(s) any or all of its Registrable Securities from such registration prior to the initial distribution of preliminary
prospectuses with respect to such underwritten offering. If Registrable Securities are not withdrawn by such time, the Holder of such Registrable Securities shall have
no right to withdraw such Registrable Securities from such registration and shall be obligated to sell such Registrable Securities at a price per share (the “Sale Price”)
to be determined by the Company and the managing underwriter(s) for such underwritten offering, provided that such Sale Price is either within the range set forth on
the cover of the preliminary prospectus relating to such underwritten offering or is in excess of the highest offering price set forth in such range. Any Registrable
Securities that are withdrawn from registration hereunder shall not be transferred in a public distribution prior to ninety (90) days after the effective date of such
registration, or such other shorter period of time as the managing underwriter(s) for such registration may require.

  
                     (f)          Indemnification. In the event any Warrant Shares are included in a registration statement under this Paragraph 12:
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                     (i)          To the extent permitted by law, the Company will and hereby does defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Holder, each of its directors

and officers and any agent for it, any underwriter (as defined in the Securities Act) for the Holder, and each Person, if any, who controls the Holder or
underwriter within the meaning of the Securities Act, against any losses, claims, expenses, damages or liabilities, joint or several, to which the Holder or any
such director, officer, agent, underwriter or controlling person may become subject under the Securities Act or otherwise, insofar as such losses, claims,
expenses, damages or liabilities (or actions or proceedings in respect thereof) arise out of or are based on (x) any untrue or alleged untrue statement of any
material fact contained in such registration statement under which such securities were registered under the Securities Act, any preliminary prospectus, final
prospectus, or summary prospectus contained therein or any amendments or supplements thereto, or any statement incorporated by reference therein, or (y) any
omission or alleged omission to state therein a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein not misleading or (z) any
violation by the Company of any rule or regulation promulgated under the Securities Act or otherwise applicable to the Company and relating to action or
inaction required of the Company in connection with any such registration; and the Company will reimburse Holder, and each such officer, director,
underwriter or controlling Person for any legal or other expenses reasonably incurred by them in connection with investigating or defending any such loss,
claim, damage, liability or action; provided, however, that the indemnity agreement contained in this Paragraph 12(f)(i) shall not apply to amounts paid in
settlement of any such loss, claim, expense, damage, liability or action if such settlement is effected without the consent of the Company (which consent shall
not be unreasonably withheld) nor shall the Company be liable in any such case for any such loss, claim, damage, expense, liability or action to the extent that
it arises out of or is based upon an untrue statement or alleged untrue statement or omission or alleged omission made in connection with such registration
statement, preliminary prospectus, final prospectus or amendments or supplements thereto in reliance upon and in conformity with written information
furnished expressly for inclusion in such registration statement, preliminary prospectus, final prospectus or amendments or supplements by the Person
requesting indemnification.

  
                     (ii)          To the extent permitted by law, the Holder, when joining in a registration, will defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Company, each

of its directors, each of its officers who have signed the registration statement, each person, if any, who controls the Company within the meaning of the
Securities Act, and each agent and any underwriter for the Company (within the meaning of the Securities Act) against any losses, claims, expenses, damages or
liabilities to which the Company or any such director, officer, controlling person, agent or underwriter may become subject, under the Securities Act or
otherwise, insofar as such losses, claims, expenses, damages or liabilities (or actions in respect thereto) arise out of or are based upon any (x) any untrue or
alleged untrue statement of any material fact contained in such registration statement under which such securities were registered under the Securities Act, any
preliminary prospectus, final prospectus, or summary prospectus contained therein or any amendments or supplements thereto, or any statement incorporated
by reference therein, or (y) any omission or alleged omission to state therein a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements
therein not misleading, in each case to the extent, but only to the extent, that such untrue or alleged untrue statement of any material fact contained in such
registration statement under which such securities were registered under the Securities Act, any preliminary prospectus, final prospectus, or summary
prospectus contained therein or any amendments or supplements thereto, or any statement incorporated by reference therein, was made in such registration
statement, preliminary or final prospectus, or amendments or supplements thereto, in reliance upon and in conformity with written information furnished by the
Holder expressly for inclusion therein; provided, however, that the indemnification liability of the Holder shall not exceed the amount by which the total price
at which any shares of Registrable Securities sold by the Holder were offered to the public (less any applicable underwriting discounts and commissions)
exceeds the amount of any damages by which the Holder has otherwise been required to pay by reason of such untrue or allegedly untrue statement or omission
or alleged omission. The Holder will reimburse any legal or other expenses incurred by the Company or any such director, officer, controlling Person, agent or
underwriter in connection with investigating or defending any such loss, claim, expense, damage, liability or action; provided, however, that the indemnity
agreement contained in this Paragraph 12(f)(ii) shall not apply to amounts paid in settlement of any such loss, claim, damage, liability or action if such
settlement is effected without the consent of the Holder (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld).
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                     (iii)          Promptly after receipt by an indemnified party under this Paragraph 12(f) of notice of the commencement of any action, such

indemnified party will, if a claim in respect thereof is to be made against any indemnifying party under this Paragraph 12(f) notify the indemnifying party in
writing of the commencement thereof and the indemnifying party shall assume the defense thereof with counsel selected by the indemnifying party and
approved by the indemnified party (provided that the indemnified party’s approval shall not be unreasonably withheld); provided, however, that the
indemnified party shall have the right to participate in such defense. The failure to notify an indemnifying party promptly of the commencement of any such
action, if prejudicial to its ability to defend such action, shall relieve such indemnifying party of any liability to the indemnified party under this Paragraph
12(f), but the omission to so notify the indemnifying party will not relieve it of any liability that it may have to any indemnified party otherwise than under this
Paragraph 12(f). Notwithstanding the foregoing, however, (x) if the indemnified party reasonably determines that there may be a conflict between the positions
of the indemnifying party and of the indemnified party in connection with the defense of such action, suit, investigation, inquiry or other proceeding or that
there may be legal defenses available to such indemnified party different from or in addition to those available to the indemnifying party, the indemnified party
shall be entitled to have separate counsel to participate in the defense at the expense of the indemnifying party, and (y) in any event, the indemnified party shall
be entitled to have counsel chosen by such indemnified party participate in, but not to conduct, the defense at the indemnified party’s expense.

  
                     (iv)          If the indemnification provided in either Paragraphs 12(f)(i) or (ii) above is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be unavailable to

an indemnified party with respect to any loss, liability, claim, damage or expense referred to therein, then the indemnifying party thereunder shall contribute to
the amount paid or payable by such indemnified party as a result of such loss, liability, claim, damage or expense in such proportion as is appropriate to reflect
the relative fault of the indemnifying party on the one hand, and of the indemnified party, on the other hand, in connection with the statements or omissions
which resulted in such loss, liability, claim, damage or expense as well as any other relevant equitable considerations, but bearing in mind any limitations of
liability of the Company specified in Paragraph 12(f)(i) above. The relative fault of the indemnifying party and of the indemnified party shall be determined by
reference to, among other things, whether the untrue or alleged untrue statement of a material fact or the omission to state a material fact relates to information
supplied by the indemnifying party or by the indemnified party and the parties’ relative intent, knowledge, access to information and opportunity to correct or
prevent such statement or omission, provided, however, that no person guilty of fraudulent misrepresentation (within the meaning of Section 11(f) of the
Securities Act) shall be entitled to contribution from any person who was not guilty of such fraudulent misrepresentation. Each party entitled to contribution
agrees that upon service of a summons or other initial legal process upon such party in connection with any action instituted against such party in respect of
which contribution may be sought, such party will promptly give written notice of such service to the party or parties from whom contribution may be sought,
but the omission to notify such party or parties of any such service shall not relieve the party from whom contribution may be sought from any obligation such
party or parties may have hereunder, or otherwise (except as specifically otherwise provided in this Paragraph 12(f)).
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                           (g)         Rule 144 Reporting. With a view to making available the benefits of certain rules and regulations of the Commission which may at any time

permit the sale of any of the Warrant Shares to the public without registration, after such time as any of the Warrant Shares have been purchased by the Holder, and
provided that the Company has previously registered any of its shares pursuant to the Securities Act, the Company agrees to use best efforts to:

   
                             (i)          Make and keep public information available, as those terms are understood and defined in Rule 144 under the Securities Act, at all

times after the date that the Company became subject to the reporting requirements of Section 13 of the Exchange Act;
   
                            (ii)          File with the Commission in a timely manner all reports and other documents required of the Company under the Securities Act and

the Exchange Act (at any time after it has become subject to such reporting requirements); and
   
                            (iii)         To furnish to the Holder forthwith upon request (A) a written statement by the Company as to its compliance with the reporting

requirements of Rule 144 and of the Securities Act and Exchange Act (at any time after it has become subject to such reporting requirements), (B) a copy of the
most recent annual or quarterly report of the Company, and (C) such other reports and documents of the Company and other information in the possession of or
reasonably obtainable by the Company that the Holder may reasonably request in availing itself of any rule or regulation of the Commission allowing such
Holder to sell any such securities without registration.

   
                          (h)         Transfer of Registration Rights. The rights granted to the Holder under Paragraph 12 hereof may be assigned to a transferee or assignee in

connection with any transfer or assignment of any of the Warrant Shares previously purchased by a Holder.
   
                          (i)          Certain Limitations in Connection with Future Grants of Registration Rights. From and after the date of this Agreement, the Company shall

not enter into any agreement with any holder or prospective holder of any securities of the Company providing for the granting of registration rights to such holder
unless such agreement:

   
                             (i)           includes a provision the equivalent of Paragraph 12(g); and
   
                            (ii)          includes a provision that, in the case of a public offering involving an underwritten registered offering under Paragraph 12(a), protects

the Holder if marketing factors require a limitation on the number of securities to be included in the underwriting by providing that all selling shareholders will
be allowed to register and sell a pro rata portion of their securities based upon the ratio that the amount of securities held by each selling shareholder bears to
the aggregate of the securities held by the selling shareholders.

   
                          (j)          Survival of Obligations. The obligations of the Company under Paragraphs 12 and 14 shall survive the issuance of all of the Warrant Shares to

the Holder pursuant hereto.
   
             13.          Market Stand Off; Compliance with Securities Laws.
   
                         (a)         The Holder agrees not to sell or otherwise transfer or dispose of any Common Stock (or other securities of the Company) held by it during the

one hundred eighty (180) day period (in the case of the Company’s initial public offering) and ninety (90) day period (in the case of subsequent offerings, unless the
underwriter determines in its good faith business judgment that it is necessary for the period to be extended up to a total of one hundred eighty (180) days) following
the effective date of a registration statement of the Company filed under the Securities Act if so requested by the Company and underwriter of Common Stock (or
other securities), provided that all officers and directors of the Company enter into similar agreements. The Company may impose stop-transfer instructions with
respect to the shares (or other securities) subject to the foregoing restriction until the end of such period.
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                        (b)        During such time as the Holder may be engaged in a distribution of Registrable Securities, the Holder will comply with all applicable laws,

including, but not limited to, Rules 10b-6 and 10b-7 promulgated under the Exchange Act and pursuant thereto will, among other things: (i) not engage in any
stabilization activity in connection with the securities of the Company in contravention of such rules; (ii) distribute the securities owned by the Holder solely in the
manner described in the registration statement; (iii) cause to be furnished to each underwriter, agent or broker-dealer to or through whom the Registrable Securities
owned by the Holder may be offered, or to the offeree if an offer is made directly by the Holder, such copies of the prospectus (as amended and supplemented to such
date) and documents incorporated by reference therein as may be required by such underwriter, agent, broker-dealer or offeree; and (iv) not bid for or purchase any
securities of the Company or attempt to induce any person to purchase any securities of the Company other than as permitted under the Exchange Act.

  
           14.          Due Diligence. The Company will provide to the authorized representative(s) of PLI and Holder full access, during normal business hours, to any and

all premises, properties, files, books, records, documents and other information of the Company and will cause its officer to furnish to PLI and/or Holder or its
authorized representatives any and all financial, technical and operating data and other information pertaining to the businesses and properties of the Company as may
be reasonably requested by PLI and Holder and make available for inspection and copying by Holder true and complete copies of any documents relating to the
foregoing. PLI and Holder agree to keep confidential any non-public business information, using the same degree of care as Holder uses with its own non-public
business information.

  
           15.          Miscellaneous.
  
                        (a)          Remedies. The Holder, in addition to being entitled to exercise all rights provided herein or granted by law, including recovery of damages, will

be entitled to specific performance of its rights under Paragraph 12. The Company agrees that monetary damages would not be adequate compensation for any loss
incurred by reason of a breach by it of the provisions of this Warrant and hereby agrees to waive the defense in any action for specific performance that a remedy at
law would be adequate.

  
                        (b)          No Inconsistent Agreements. The Company will not on or after the date of this Warrant enter into any agreement with respect to its securities

which is inconsistent with the rights granted to the Holder in this Warrant or otherwise conflicts with the provisions hereof. The rights granted to the Holder hereunder
do not in any way conflict with and are not inconsistent with the rights granted to the holders of the Company’s securities under any such agreements.

  
                        (c)         Adjustments Affecting Warrant Shares . The Company will not take any action, or permit any change to occur, with respect to the Warrant

Shares which would adversely affect the ability of the Holder of Warrant Shares to include such Warrant Shares in a registration undertaken pursuant to this Warrant.
  
                        (d)          Successors and Assigns. Subject to the provisions of Paragraph 7 hereof, this Warrant shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the

successors and assigns of each of the parties, including without limitation and without the need for an express assignment, subsequent Holders of Warrant Shares.
  
                        (e)          Severability. In the event that any one or more of the provisions contained herein, or the application thereof in any circumstances, is held

invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the validity, legality and enforceability of any such provision in every other respect and of the remaining provisions contained herein
shall not be affected or impaired thereby.
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                     (f)          Amendments and Waivers. The provisions of this Warrant, including the provisions of this sentence, may not be amended, modified or

supplemented, and waivers or consents to departures from the provisions hereof may not be given unless the Company has obtained the written consent of the Holder.
  
                     (g)          Entire Agreement. The provisions of this Warrant are intended by the parties as a final expression of their agreement and are intended to be a

complete and exclusive statement of the agreement and understanding of the parties hereto in respect of the subject matter contained herein, There are no restrictions,
agreements, warranties or undertakings, other than those set forth or referred to herein, including with respect to the registration rights granted by the Company with
respect to the Warrant Shares.

  
                     (h)          Headings. The headings of this Warrant have been inserted as a matter of convenience and shall not affect the construction hereof.
  
                     (i)          Applicable Law. This Warrant shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California.
 
                    IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Warrant to be signed in its name by its Officer thereunto duly authorized, as of the date of this Warrant,
June 12, 2009.
   
HARBREW IMPORTS, LTD.
  
By:   
  
Its:   
 
ACCEPTED BY:
  
PARAMOUNT LICENSING INC.
  
By:   
  
Its:   
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SUBSCRIPTION
 
                    The undersigned, ____________________, pursuant to the provisions of the foregoing Warrant, hereby agrees to subscribe for and purchase ____________ shares
of the Common Stock of HARBREW IMPORTS, LTD., covered by said Warrant, and makes payment therefor in full at the price per share provided by said Warrant.
     
Dated:     
   (Signature)  
     
   (Address)  
     
 

ASSIGNMENT
 
                    FOR VALUE RECEIVED, ________________ hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto ________________ the foregoing Warrant and all rights evidenced
thereby and does irrevocably constitute and appoint ______________, attorney, to transfer said Warrant on the books of HARBREW IMPORTS, LTD.
     
Dated:     
   (Signature)  
     
   (Address)  
     
 

PARTIAL ASSIGNMENT
 
                    FOR VALUE RECEIVED, ________________ hereby assigns and transfers unto ________________ the right to purchase ______ shares of the Common Stock
of HARBREW IMPORTS, LTD. by the foregoing Warrant and the rights evidenced thereby, and does irrevocably constitute and appoint ______________, attorney, to
transfer said Warrant on the books of HARBREW IMPORTS, LTD.
     
Dated:     
   (Signature)  
     
   (Address)  
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SUBSCRIPTION
 
                    The undersigned, PARAMOUNT LICENSING INC., pursuant to the provisions of that certain Warrant for the Purchase of Shares of Common Stock dated June
12, 2009, hereby agrees to subscribe for and purchase ___________ shares of the Common Stock of HARBREW IMPORTS, LTD., covered by said Warrant, and makes
payment therefor in full at the price per share provided by said Warrant.
      
Dated:   PARAMOUNT LICENSING INC.
     
   By:   
     
   Its:   
     
   5555 Melrose Avenue

Hollywood, CA 90038
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Exhibit 10.11
 

[ILLEGIBLE] Distributed by Blumberg Excelsior Inc
 
This Lease made the 12th day of July 2002 between FRED & JOSEPH SCALAMANDRE REAL ESTATE, with offices at 157 Albany Avenue, Freeport, NY 11520
 

hereinafter referred to us LANDLORD, and
 

ISLANDER IMPORTS & PACKAGING, INC.
 

hereinafter jointly, severally and collectively referred to as TENANT.
 

Witnesseth, that the Landlord hereby leases to the Tenant, and the Tenant hereby hires and takes from the Landlord  Premises
 

In the building known as 102 Buffalo Avenue, Freeport, NY 11520
 

to be used and accupied by the Tenant
 

Warehousing & Storage
 

and for no other purpose, for a term to commence on August 2002 and to end on                   unless sooner terminated as hereinafter provided, at the ANNUAL RENT of
August 7, 2002  - August  6, 2003  6,000.00 [ILLEGIBLE]  (Year 1)  $72,000 **
August 7, 2003  -  August  6, 2004  7,333.33                         (Year 2)  $88, 000 **
August 7, 2004  -  August  6, 2005  8,666.67                         (Year 3)  $104,000 **
 
** – plus General, Village and School Taxes
 
all payable in equal monthly instalments in advance on the first day of each and every calendar month during said term, except the first instalment, which shall be paid upon the
execution hereof.
 
THE TENANT JOINTLY AND SEVERALLY COVENANTS:
 
FIRST.—That the Tenant will pay the rent as above provided.
 

REPAIRS
 
 

OBLIGATIONS
AND

VIOLATIONS
 
 

ENTRY
 
 

[ILLEGIBLE]
LANDLORD

 SECOND.—That, throughout said term the Tenant will take good care of the demised premises, fixtures and [ILLEGIBLE], and all
alterations, additions and improvements to either; make all repairs in and about the same necessary to preserve them in good order and
condition, which repairs shall be, in quality and class, equal to the original work; promptly pay the expense of such repairs; suffer no waste
or injury; give prompt notice to the Landlord of any fire that may occur; execute and comply with all laws, rules, orders, ordinances and
regulations at any time issued or in force (except those requiring structural alterations), applicable to the demised premises or to the Tenant’s
occupation thereof, of the Federal, State and Local Governments, and of each and every department, bureau and official thereof, and of the
New York Board of Fire Underwriters; permit at all times during usual business hours, the Landlord and representatives of the Landlord to
enter the demised premesis for the purpose of inspection, and to exhibit them for purposes of sale or rental; suffer the Landlord to make
repairs and improvements to all parts of the building, and to comply with all orders and requirements of governmental authority applicable
to said building or to any occupation thereof; suffer the Landlord to erect, use, maintain, repair and replace pipes and conduits in  the
demised premises and to the floors above and below; forever indemnity and save harmless the Landlord for and against  any and all liability,
penalties, damages, expenses and judgments arising from injury during said term to person or property of any nature, occasioned wholly or
in part by any act or acts, omission or omissions of the Tenant, or of the employees, guests, agents, assigns or undertenants of the Tenant and
also for any matter or thing growing out of the occupation of the demised premises or of the streets, sidewalks or vaults adjacent thereto;
permit, during the six months next prior to the expiration of the term the usual notice “To Let” to be placed and to remain unmolested in a
conspicuous place upon the exterior of the demised premises; repair, at or before the end of the term, all injury done by the installation or
removal of furniture and property; and at the end of the term, to quit and surrender the demised premises with all alterations, additions and
improvements in good order and condition.

   
MOVING

INJURY
SURRENDER

 
NEGATIVE

COVENANTS
 

OBSTRUCTION
SIGNS

 
AIR

CONDITIONING

 THIRD.—That the Tenant will not disfigure or deface any part of the building, or suffer the same to be done, except so far as may
be necessary to afix such trade fixtures as are herein consented to by the Landlord; the Tenant will not obstruct, or permit the obstruction of
the street or the sidewalk adjacent thereto; will not do anything, or suffer anything to be done upon the demised premises which will
increase the rate of fire insurance upon the building or any of its contents, or be liable to cause structural injury to said building; will not
permit the accumulation of waste or refuse matter, and will not, without the written consent of the Landlord first obtained in each case,
either sell, assign, mortgage or transfer this lease, underlet the demised premises or any part thereof, permit the same or any part thereof to
be occupied by anybody other than the Tenant and the Tenant’s employees, make any alterations in the demised premises, use the demised
premises or any part thereof for any purpose other than the one first above stipulated, or for any purpose deemed extra hazardous on account
of the risk, nor in violation of any law or ordinance. That the Tenant will not obstruct or permit the obstruction of the light, halls, stairway or
entrances to the building, and will not erect or inscribe any sign, signals or advertisements unless and until the style and location thereof
have been approved by the Landlord; and if any be erected or inscribed without such approval, the Landlord may remove the same. No
water cooler, air conditioning unit or system or other apparatis shall be installed or used without the prior written consent of Landlord.

   
  IT IS MUTUALLY COVENANTED AND AGREED, THAT
   



FIRE CLAUSE  FOURTH.—If the demised premises shall be partfully damaged by fire or other cause without the fault or neglect of Tenant.
Tenant’s servants, employees, agents, visitors or licensees, the damage shall be repaired by and at the expense of Landlord and the rent until
such repairs shall be made shall be apportioned according to the part of the demised premises which is usable by Tenant. But if such partial
damage is due to the fault or neglect of Tenant, Tenant’s servants, employees, agents, visitors or licensees without prejudice  to any other
rights and remedies of Landlord and without prejudice to the rights of subrogation of Landlord’s insurer, the damages shall be repaired by
Landlord but there shall be no apportionment or abatement of rent. No penalty shall accrue for reasonable delay which may arise by reason
of adjustment of insurance on the part of Landlord and/or Tenant, and for reasonable delay on account of “Labor troubles”, or any other
cause beyond Landlord’s control. If the demised premises are totally damaged or are rendered wholly untenantable by fire or other cause,
and if Landlord shall decide not to restore or not to rebuild the same, or if the building shall be so damaged that Landlord shall decide to
demolish it or to rebuild it, then or in any of such events Landlord may, within ninety (90) days after such fire or other cause, give Tenant a
notice in writing of such decision, which notice shall he given as in Paragraph Twelve hereof provided, and thereupon the term of this lease
shall expire by lapse of time upon the third day after such notice is given, and Tenant shall lapse the demised premises and surrender the
same to Landlord. If Tenant shall not be in default under this lease then, upon the termination of the lease under the conditions provided for
in the sentence immediately preceding. Tenant’s liability for rent shall cense as of the day following the casualty. Tenant hereby expressly
waives the provisions of Section 227 of the Real Property Law and agrees that the foregoing provisions of this Article shall govern and
control in [ILLEGIBLE] thereof. If the damage or destruction be due to the fault or neglect of Tenant the debris shall be removed by, and at
the expense of, Tenant.

   
[ILLEGIBLE]  FIIFTH.—If the whole or any part of the premises hereby demised shall be taken or condemned by any competent authority for any

public use or purpose then the term hereby granted shall cense from the time when possession of the part so [ILLEGIBLE] shall be required
for such public purpose and without apportionment of award, the Tenant hereby assigning to the Landlord all right and claim to any such
award, the current rent, however, in such case to be apportioned.

   

LEASE NOT
IN EFFECT

 
DEFAULTS

 
TEN DAY

NOTICE

 SIXTH.—If, before the commencement of the term, the Tenant be adjudicated a bankrupt, or make a “general assignment” or take
the benefit of any insolvent act, or if a Receiver or Trustee be appointed for the Tenant’s property, or if this lease or the estate of the Tenant
hereunder be transferred or pass to or devolve upon any other person or corporation, or if the Tenant shall default in the performance of any
agreement by the Tenant contained in any other lease to the Tenant by the Landlord or by any corporation of which an officer of the
Landlord is a Director, this lease shall thereby, at the option of the Landlord, be terminated and in that case, neither the Tenant nor
anybody claiming under the Tenant shall be entitled to go into possession of the demised premises. If after the commencement of the term,
any of the events mentioned above in this subdivision shall occur, or if Tenant shall make default in fulfilling any of the covenants of this
lease, other than the covenants for the payment of rent or “additional rent” or if the demised premises become vacant or deserted, the
Landlord may give to the Tenant ten days’ notice of intention to and the term of this lease, and thereupon at the expiration of said ten days’
(if said condition which was the basis of said notice shall continue to exist) the term under this lease shall expire as fully and completely as if
that day were the date herein definitely fixed for the expiration of the term and the Tenant will then quit and surrender the demised premises
to the Landlord, but the Tennant shall remain liable as hereinafter provided.

 
 

 



 

[ILLEGIBLE]
LANDLORD

 
 

RELATING
 
 

WAIVER
BY TENANT

           If the Tenant shall make default in the payment of the rent reserved hereunder, or any them of “additional rent” herein mentioned, or
any part of either or in making any other payment herein provided for, or if the notice last above provided for shall have been given and if
the condition which was the basis of said notice shall exist at the expiration of said ten days’ permit, the Landlord may immediately, or if
any time thereafter; re-enter the demised premises and remove all persons and all or, any property therefrom, either by summary dispossess
proceedings, or by any suitable nation or proceeding  at law, or by XXX or otherwise, without being liable to indictment, prosecution or
damages therefor, and re-possess and enjoy said premises together with all additions, alterations and improvements. In any each case or in
the event that this lease be “terminated” before the commencment of the term, as above provided, the Landlord may either re-let the demised
premises or any part or parts thereof for the Landlord’s own account, or may, at the Landlord’s option, re-let the demised premises or any
part or parts thereof for as the agent of the ‘Tenant, and receive the rents therefor, applying the same [ILLEGIBLE] to the payment of such
expenses as the Landlord may [ILLEGIBLE], and then to the [ILLEGIBLE] of the covenants as the Tenant herein, and the balance, if any, at
the expiration of the term first [ILLEGIBLE] provided for, shall be paid to the Tenant. Landlord may rent the premises for a term extending
beyond the term hereby granted without releasing Tenant from any liability, in the event that the term of this lease shall expliro as above in
this [ILLEGIBLE] “Sixth” provided, or terminate by summary proceedings or otherwise, and if the Landlord shall not re-let the demised
premises for the Landlord’s own account, then, whether or not the premises be re-let, the Tenant shall remain liable for, amt the Tenant
hereby agrees to pay to the Landlord, until the time when this lease would have expired but for such termination or expiration, the equivalent
of the amount of all of the rent and “additional rent” reserved herein, less the avails of relating. If any, and the same shall be due and payable
by the Tenant to the Landlord on the several rent days above [ILLEGIBLE], that is, upon each of such rent days the Tenant shall pay
[ILLEGIBLE] Landlord the amount of deflelency then existing. The Tenant hereby expressly waives any and all right of redemption in case
the Tenant shall be dispossessed by judgment or warrant of any court or judge, and the Tenant waives and will waive all right to trial by jury
in any summary proceedings hereafter [ILLEGIBLE] by the Landlord against the Tenant in respect to the demised premised. The words “re-
enter” and “re-entry” as used in this lease are not restricted to the technical legal meaning.

   
[ILLEGIBLE] ARE

CUMULATIVE
           In the event of a breach or the [ILLEGIBLE] breach by the Tenant of any of the covenants or provisions hereof, the Landlord shall

have the right of injunction and the right to invoke any remedy allowed at low or in equity, as if re-entry, summary proceedings and other
remedies were not herein provided for.

   
LANDLORD

MAY PERFORM

ADDITIONAL
RENT

 

           SEVENTH. — If the Tenant shall make default in the performance of any covenant herein contained, the Landlord may immediately,
or at any time thereafter, without notice, perform the same for the account of the Tenant. If a notice of [ILLEGIBLE] [ILLEGIBLE] be
[ILLEGIBLE] against the demised premises or against premises of which the demised premises are part, for, or purporting to be for, labor or
material [ILLEGIBLE] to have been furnished, or to be furnished to or for the Tenant at the demised premises, and if the Tenant shall fall to
take such action as shall cause such [ILLEGIBLE] to be discharged within fifteen days after the filling of such notice, the Landlord may pay
the amount of such [ILLEGIBLE] or discharge the same by deposit or by bonding proceedings, and in the event of such deposit or bonding
proceedings, the Landlord may require the [ILLEGIBLE] to [ILLEGIBLE] an appropriate action to enforce the [ILLEGIBLE] claim. In such
case, the Landlord may pay any judgment recovered on such claim. Any amount paid or expense incurred by the landlord as in the use of
water, electric current or sprinkler superelsory service, and any expense incurred or sum of money paid by the Landlord by reason of the
failure of the Tenant to comply with any provision hereof, or in defending any such action, shall be deemed to be “additional rent” for the
demised premises, and shall be due and payable by the Tenant to the Landlord on the first day of the next following month, or, at the option
of the Landlord, on the first day or any succeeding month. The receipt by the Landlord of any installment of the regular stipulated rent
hereunder or any of said “additional rent” shall not be a waiver of any other “additional rent” then due.

   
AS TO

WAIVERS
           EIGHTH. — The failure of the Landlord or Tenant to insist. In any one or more [ILLEGIBLE] upon a strict performance of any of the

[ILLEGIBLE] of this lease, or to exercise any option herein contained, shall not be construed as a waiver or a relinquishment for the future
of such covenant or option, but the same shall continue and remain in full force and effect. The receipt by the Landlord of rent, with
knowledge of the breach of any covenant hereof, shall not be deemed a waiver of such breach and no waiver by the Landlord of any
provision hereof shall be deemed to have been made unless expressed in writing and signed by the Landlord. Even though the Landlord shall
consent to an assignment hereof no further assignment shall be made without express consent in writing by the Landlord.

   

COLLECTION
OF RENT

FROM OTHERS

           NINTH. — If this lease he assigned, or if the demised premises or any part thereof be [ILLEGIBLE] or occupied by anybody other
than the Tenant the Landlord may collect rent from the assignee, under-tenant or occupant, and apply the rent amount collected to the rent
herein reserved, and no such collection shall be deemed a waiver of the covenant herein against assignment and under letting, or the
acceptance of the assignee, under-tenant or occupant as tenant, or a release of the Tenant from the further performance by the Tenant of the
[ILLEGIBLE] herein contained on the part of the Tenant.

   
MORTGAGES           TENTH. — This lease shall be subject and subordinate at all times, to the [ILLEGIBLE] of the mortgages now on the demised

premises, and to all advances made or hereafter to be made upon the security thereof, and subject and subordinate to the [ILLEGIBLE] of
any mortgage or mortgages which at any time may be made a [ILLEGIBLE] upon the premises. The Tenant will execute and deliver such
further instrument or instruments subordinating  this lease to the [ILLEGIBLE] of any such mortgage or mortgages as shall be desired by
any mortgage or proposed mortgage. The Tenant hereby appoints the Landlord the attorney-In-fact of the Tenant, irrevocable, to execute and
deliver any such Instrument or Instruments for the Tenant.

   

IMPROVEMENTS

           ELEVENTH. — All improvements made by the Tenant to or upon the demised premises, except said trade fixtures, shall when made,
at once be deemed to be attached to the freehold, and become the property of the Landlord, and at the end or other expiration of the term,
shall be surrendered to the Landlord in as good order and conditions as they were when installed, reasonable wear and damages by the
elements excepted.

   
NOTICES            TWELFTH. — Any notice or demand which under the terms of this lease or under any statute must or may be given or made by the

parties hereto shall be in writing and shall be given or made by mailing the same by certified or registered [ILLEGIBLE] addressed to the
respective parties at the addresses set forth in this lease. Notice is also acceptable if made by overnight courier or facsimile transmission.

   
NO LIABILITY            THIRTEENTH. — The Landlord shall not be liable for any failure of water supply or electrical current, sprinkler damage, or failure

of sprinkler service, [ILLEGIBLE] for injury, or damage to person or property caused by the elements or by other tenants or persons in said
building, or resulting from steam, gas, electricity, water, rain or snow, which may leak or flow from any part of said buildings, or from the
pipes, appliances or plumbing works of the same, or from the street or sub-surface, or from any other place, not for interference with light or
other [ILLEGIBLE] [ILLEGIBLE] by anybody other than the Landlord, or caused by operations by or for a governmental authority in
construction of any public or quasi-public work, neither shall the Landlord be liable for any latent defect in the building, for which Landlord
is not insured.

   



NO ABATEMENT            FOURTEENTH. — No [ILLEGIBLE] or abatement of rent, or other compensation shall be claimed or allowed for inconvenience or
discomfort arising from the making of repairs or improvements to the building or to its appliances, nor for any space taken to comply with
any law, ordinance or order of a governmental authority. In respect to the various “services” if any, herein expressly or [ILLEGIBLE]
agreed to be furnished by the Landlord to the Tenant. It is agreed that there shall be no [ILLEGIBLE] or abatement of the rent, or any other
compensation, for interruption or [ILLEGIBLE] of such “service” when such interruption or [ILLEGIBLE] shall be due to accident,
alterations or repairs desirable or necessary to be made or to inability or difficulty in securing supplies or labor for the maintenance of such
“service” or to same other cause, not gross negligence on the part of the Landlord. No such interruption or [ILLEGIBLE] of any such
“service” shall be deemed a constructive eviction. The Landlord shall not be required to furnish, and the Tenant shall not be entitled to
receive, any of such “services” during any period wherein the Tenant shall be in default in respect to the payment of rent. Neither shall there
be any abatement or [ILLEGIBLE] of rent because of making of repairs, improvements or decorations to the demised premises after the date
above fixed for the commencement of the term, it being understood that rent shall, in any event, commence to run at such date so above
fixed.

   
RULES, ETC.            FIFTEENTH. — The Landlord may prescribe and regulate the placing of safes, machinery, quantities of merchandise and other

things. The Landlord may also prescribe and regulate which elevator and entrances shall be used by the Tenant’s employees, and for the
Tenant’s shipping. The Landlord may make such other and further rules and regulations as, in the Landlord’s judgment, may from time to
time be needful for the safety, care or cleanliness of the building, and for the preservation of good order therein. The Tenant and the
employees and agents of the Tenant will observe and conform to all such rules and regulations.

   
SHORTING OF

WALLS
           SIXTEENTH. — In the event that an excavation shall be made for building or other purposes upon land adjacent to the demised

premises or shall be contemplated to be made, the Tenant shall afford to the person or persons causing or to cause such excavation, license
to enter upon the demised premises for the purpose of doing such work as said person or persons shall deem to be necessary to preserve the
wall or walls, structure or structures upon the demised premises from injury and to support the same by proper foundations.

   
VAULT SPACE           SEVENTEENTH. — No vaults or space not within the property line of the building are leased hereunder. Landlord makes no

representation as to the location of the property line of the building. Such vaults or space as Tenant may be permitted to use or occupy are to
be used or occupied under a revocable License and if such license be revoked by the Landlord as to the use of part or all of the vaults or
space Landlord shall not be subject to any liability; Tenant shall not be entitled to any compensation or reduction in rent nor shall this be
deemed constructive or actual [ILLEGIBLE]. Any tax, fee or charge of municipal or other authorities for such vaults or space shall be paid
by the Tenant for the period of the Tenant’s use or occupancy thereof.

   
ENTRY            EIGHTEENTH. — That during seven months prior to the expiration of the term hereby granted, applicants shall be admitted at all

reasonable hours of the day to view the premises until rented; and the Landlord and the Landlord’s agents shall be permitted at any time
during the term to visit and examine them at any reasonable hour of the day, and workmen may enter at any time, when authorized by the
Landlord or the Landlord’s agents, to make or facilitate repairs in any part of the building; and if the said Tenant shall not be personally
present to open and permit an entry into said premises, at any time, when for any reason an entry therein shall be necessary of permissible
hereunder, the Landlord or the Landlord’s agents may forcibly enter the same without rendering the Landlord or such agents liable to any
claim or cause of action for damages by reason thereof (if during such entry the Landlord shall accord reasonable care to the Tenant’s
property) and without in any manner affecting the obligations and covenants of this lease; it is, however, expressly understood that the right
and authority hereby reserved, does not impose, nor does the Landlord assume, by reason thereof, any responsibility or liability whatsoever
for the care or supervision of said premises, or any of the pipes, fixtures, appliances or appurtenances therein contained or therewith in any
manner connected. Reasonable notice of entry shall be given by Landlord to Tenant.

   
[ILLEGIBLE]

SENTATIONS
           NINETEENTH. — The Landlord has made no representations or promises in respect to said building or to the demised premises

except those contained herein, and those, if any, contained in some written communication to the Tenant, signed by the Landlord. This
instrument may not be changed, modified, discharged or terminated orally.

   
ATTORNEY’S FEES            TWENTIETH. — If the Tenant shall at any time be in default hereunder, and if the Landlord shall institute an action or summary

proceeding against the Tenant based upon such default, then the Tenant will reimburse the Landlord for the expense of attorneys feed and
disbursements thereby incurred by the Landlord, so far as the same are reasonable in amount. Also so long as the Tenant shall be a tenant
hereunder the amount of such expenses shall be deemed to be “additional rent” hereunder and shall be due from the Tenant to the Landlord
on the first day of the month following the incurring of such respective expenses.

   
POSSESSION           TWENTY-FIRST. — Landlord shall not be liable for failure to give possession of the premises upon commencement date by reason

of the fact that premises are not ready for occupancy, or due to a prior Tenant wrongfully holding over or any other person wrongfully in
possession or for any other reason: In such event the rent shall not commence until possession is given or is available, but the term herein
shall not be extended.

 
 

 



 
 
  THE TENANT FURTHER COVENANTS:
   

IF A FIRST
FLOOR

           TWENTY-SECOND.— If the demised premises or any part thereof consist of a store, or of a first floor, or of any part thereof, the
Tenant will keep the sidewalk and curb in front thereof clean at all times and free from snow and ice, and will keep insured in favor of the
Landlord, all plate glass therein and furnish the Landlord with policies of insurance covering the same.

   
INCREASES

FIRE
INSURANCE

RATE

           TWENTY-THIRD.— If by reason of the conduct upon the demised premises of a business not herein permitted, or if by reason of
the improper or careless conduct of any business upon or use of the demised premises, the fire insurance rate shall at any time be higher
than it otherwise would be, then the Tenant will reimburse the Landlord, as additional rent hereunder, for that part of all fire insurance
premiums hereafter paid out by the Landlord which shall have been charged because of the conduct of such business not so permitted, or
because of the improper or careless conduct of any business upon or use of the demised premises, and will make such reimbursement upon
the first day of the month following such outlay by the Landlord; but this covenant shall not apply to a premium for any period beyond the
expiration date for this lease, first above specified. In any action or proceeding wherein the Landlord and Tenant are parties, it schedule or
“make up” of rate for the building on the demised premises, purporting to have been issued by New York Fire Insurance Exchange, or
other body making fire Insurance rates for the demised premises, shall in prima facie evidence of the facts therein stated and of the several
items and charges included in the fire insurance rate then applicable to the demised premises.

   
WATER RENT

 
 SEWER

           TWENTY-FOURTH.— If a separate water meter be installed for the demised premises, or any part thereof, the Tenant will keep the
same in repair and pay the charges made by the municipality or water supply company for or in respect to the consumption of water, as and
when bills therefore are rendered. If the demised premises, or any part thereof, be supplied with water through a meter which supplies
other premises, the Tenant will pay to the Landlord, as and when bills are rendered therefore, the Tenant’s proportionate part of all charges
which the municipality or water supply company shall make for all water consumed through said meter, as indicated by said meter. Such
proportionate part shall be fixed by apportioning the respective charge according to floor area against all of the rentable floor area in the
building (exclusive of the basement) which shall have been occupied during the period of the respective charges, taking into account the
period that each part of such area was occupied. Tenant agreed to pay as additional rent the Tenant’s proportionate part determined as
aforesaid, of the sewer rent or charge imposed or assessed upon the building of which the premises are a part.

   
ELECTRIC
CURRENT

           TWENTY-FIFTH.—That the Tenant will purchase from the Landlord. If the Landlord shall so desire, all electric current that the
Tenant requires at the demised premises, and will pay the Landlord for the same, as the amount of consumption shall be indicated by the
meter furnished therefore. The price for said current shall be the same as that charged for consumption similar to that of the Tenant by the
company supplying electricity in the same community. Payments shall be due as and when bills shall be rendered. The Tenant shall
comply with like rules, regulations and contract provisions as those prescribed by said company for a consumption similar to that of the
Tenant.

   
SPRINKLER

SYSTEM
           TWENTY-SIXTH.—If there now is or shall be installed in said building a “sprinkler system” the Tenant agrees to keep the

appliances thereto in the demised premises in repair and good working condition, and if the New York Board of Fire  Underwriters or the
New York Fire Insurance Exchange or any bureau, department or official of the State or local government requires or recommends that
any changes, modifications, alterations or additional sprinkler heads or other equipment be made or supplied by reason of the Tenant’s
business, or the location of partitions, trade fixtures, or other contents of the demised premises, or if such changes, modifications,
alterations, additional sprinkler heads or other equipment in the demised premises are necessary to prevent the imposition of a penalty or
charge against the full allowance for a sprinkler system in the fire insurance rate as fixed by said Exchange of by any Fire Insurance
Company, the Tenant will at the Tenant’s own expense, promptly make and supply such changes, modifications, alterations, additional
sprinkler heads or other equipment. As additional rent hereunder the Tenant will pay in the Landlord, annually in advance, throughout the
term $…………………….., toward the contract price for sprinkler supervisory service.

   
SECURITY           TWENTY-SEVENTH.—The sum of $12,000 Dollars is deposited by the Tenant herein with the Landlord herein as security for the

faithful performance of all the covenants and conditions of the lease by the said Tenant. If the Tenant faithfully performs all the covenants
and conditions on his part to be performed, then the sum deposited shall be returned to said Tenant.

   
INSURANCE            TWENTY-EIGHTH.—This lease is granted and accepted on the especially understood and agreed condition that the Tenant will

conduct his business in such a manner, both as regards noise and kindred nuisances, as will in no wise interfere with, annoy, or disturb any
other tenants, in the conduct of their several businesses, or the landlord in the management of the building; under penalty of forfeiture of
this lease and consequential damages.

   
BROKERS

COMMISSIONS
 X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X

X X X X X X
   

WINDOW
CLEANING

           THIRTIETH.—The Tenant agrees that it will not require, permit, suffer, nor allow the cleaning of any window, or windows, in the
demised premises from the outside (within the meaning of Section 202 of the Labor Law) unless the equipment and safety devices required
by law, ordinance, regulation or rule, including, without limitation. Section 202 of the New York Labor Law, are provided and used, and
unless the rules, or any supplemental rules of the Industrial Board of the State of New York are fully compiled with; and the Tenant hereby
agrees to indemnify the Landlord, Owner, Agent, Manager and/or Superintendent, as a result of the Tenant’s requiring, permitting,
suffering or allowing any window, or windows in the demised premises to be cleaned from the outside in violation of the requirements of
the aforesaid laws, ordinances, regulations and/or rules.

   
VALIDITY            THIRTY-FIRST.—The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision of this lease shall in no way affect the validity or

enforceability of any other provision hereof.
   

EXECUTION
& DELIVERY

OF LEASE

           THIRTY-SECOND.—In order to avoid delay, this lease has been prepared and submitted to the Tenant for signature with the
understanding that it shall not bind the Landlord unless and until it is executed and delivered by the Landlord.

   
EXTERIOR OF

PREMISES
           THIRTY-THIRD.—The Tenant will keep clean and polished all metal, trim, marble and stonework which are a part of the exterior of

the premises, using such materials and methods as the Landlord may direct, and if the Tenant shall fall to comply with the provisions of
this paragraph, the Landlord may cause such work to be done at the expense of the Tenant.

   
PLATE GLASS           THIRTY-FOURTH.—The Landlord shall replace at the expense of the Tenant any and all broken glass in the skylights, doors and

walls in and about the demised premises. The Landlord may insure and keep insured all plate glass in the skylights, doors and walls in the
demised premises, for and in the name of the Landlord and bills for the premiums therefor shall be rendered by the Landlord to the Tenant
at such times as the Landlord may elect, and shall be due from and payable by the Tenant when rendered, and the amount thereof shall be
deemed to be, and shall be paid as, additional rent.

   



WAR
EMERGENCY

           THIRTY-FIFTH.—This lease and the obligation of Tenant to pay rent hereunder and perform all of the other covenants and
agreements hereunder on part of Tenant to be performed shall in nowise be affected. Impaired or excused because Landlord is unable to
supply or is delayed in supplying any service expressly or impliedly to be supplied or is unable to make, or is delayed in making any
repairs, additions, alterations or decorations or is unable to supply or is delayed in supplying any equipment or fixtures if Landlord is
prevented or delayed from so doing by reason or governmental preemption in connection with a National Emergency declared by the
President of the United States or in connection with any rule, order or regulation of any department or subdivision thereof of any
government agency or by reason of the conditions of supply and demand which have been or are affected by war or other emergency.

   
  THE LANDLORD COVENANTS
   

QUIET
POSSESSION

           FIRST.—That if and so long as the Tenant pays the rent and “additional rent” reserved hereby, and performs and observes the
covenants and provisions hereof, the Tenant shall quietly enjoy the demised premises, subject, however, to the terms of this lease, and to
the mortgages above mentioned, provided however, that this covenant shall be conditioned upon the retention of title to the premises by
Landlord.

   
ELEVATOR

DEAL
 XX X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X

X X X X X
   
            RIDER (8 pages) is annexed hereto and made a part herein. If the terms of the Rider are inconsistent with the preprinted Lease, the Rider

shall govern.
   
            And it is mutually understood and agreed that the covenants and agreements contained in the within lease shall be binding upon the

parties hereto and upon their respective successors, heirs, executors and administration.
   
            In Witness Whereof, the Landlord and Tenant have respectively signed and sealed these presents the day and year first above

written.
 
 /s/ Fred Scalamandre

/s/ Joseph Scalamandre  [I.. S.]
 FRED & JOSEPH SCALAMANDRE REAL ESTATE Landlord

IN PRESENCE OF:  
   
 

  [I.. S.]
 ISLANDER IMPORTS & PACKAGING, INC Tenant
 
 

 



 
 
Multi-Tenant Commercial Building
 
RIDER TO LEASE DATED JULY 12, 2002 BETWEEN FRED & JOSEPH SCALAMANDRE, as Landlord, and ISLANDER IMPORTS & PACKAGING, INC. as Tenant.
 
Tenant:
36.          If this Lease shall be in full force and effect on the expiration date of the original term, Tenant may elect to renew this Lease upon the same terms and conditions for a
period of three (3) years with a five percent (5%) per annum increase in the rent during the option term, beginning with the expiration of the original term. To exercise the election
Tenant shall give the Landlord notice in writing of the election at least 180 days prior to the expiration of the original term. The net annual rent (not including taxes, insurances or
utilities) during the renewal term shall be $109,200 for renewal year one; $114,600 for renewal year two; and $120,393 for renewal year three.
 
37.          At any time subsequent to the original term of this Lease and prior to the expiration of the renewal term, Tenant shall have the option to purchase the demised premises
from Landlord and its successors in interest at the price of $3,200,000. To exercise the election, Tenant shall give the Landlord notice in writing of the election within 180 days
from the expiration of the 3rd renewal year. At the time of election, Tenant shall furnish Landlord with a deposit check in the amount of 10% of the purchase price. Such option shall
expire at the end of this period. Landlord shall retain its rights to freely convey and sell the demised premises at any time during the original or renewal period, provided Tenant is
granted the right of first refusal to match the price offered to Landlord for the purchase of the demised premises.
 
38.          Tenant represents that Metro Realty Services, LLC brought Tenant to Landlord and/or participated in negotiations which resulted in the within lease. Tenant hereby
agrees to indemnify and hold Landlord harmless from any claim, liability or expense, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, in connection with any claim by any broker contending
to have acted for or on behalf of the Tenant.
 
39.          The premises herein are leased to and accepted by Tenant in their “as is” condition and it is expressly understood that Landlord has made no representations, warranties or
statements of any kind with respect to the condition of the premises or any of its equipment. The tenant acknowledges it has fully inspected the demised building and the Tenant
hereby accepts the demised premises and the building and improvement situated thereon as suitable for the purpose for which the same are leased, in its present condition. To the
best of the Landlord’s knowledge, all systems including the HVAC, plumbing, electrical, sprinkler, and doors are in good working order on the day that the Tenant takes
possession.
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40.          Tenant shall pay to Landlord, as additional rent, 42.50% of all real estate taxes, village taxes and school taxes as are assessed on the buildings described as 90 Mill
Road/102 Buffalo Road. Although Tenant ’s actual possession is 51% of the entire space of these buildings, Tenant shall be obligated to pay Landlord for 42.50% of the entire tax
billings for these buildings. In addition, Tenant shall be responsible to pay Landlord for any increase in those taxes over their base Tax year of 2002, which is set forth below and
made a part of this lease as Exhibit “A”:
 
General Taxes (Fiscal Year 1/1/02 thru 12/31/02)    $ 18,029.34 
School Taxes (Fiscal Year 7/1/01 thru 6/30/02)      $ 85,180.09 
Village Taxes (Fiscal Year 3/1/02 thru 2/28/03)  $ 28,846.98 
Total Taxes Base Year  $ 132,056.41 
 
The Base Year Tax Obligation is computed is follows:
 
Total Tax x 42.50% or $132,056.41 x 42.50% = 56,123.97, which is broken down as follows:
 
General Taxes (Base Year)  $ 7,662.47 
School Taxes (Base year)   36,201.54 
Village Taxes (Base year)   12,259.96 
 
The taxes will be billed on a monthly, quarterly, or bi-annual basis as received from the taxing agencies. Tenant will pay taxes in the time and format that they are billed.
 
41.          Any statement in this leased contained as to the nature of the business to be conducted by the Tenant in this demised premises shall not be deemed or construed to
constitute a representation or guarantee by the Landlord that such business is lawful or permissible. Tenant shall, at its own cost and expense, and upon its own responsibility,
apply for and obtain any necessary permits and other licensed, if any, required for the use, conduct and maintenance of the business to be conducted in the Demised premises and
shall comply with all municipal rules and regulations which respect to Tenant’s use of the premises. Tenant shall give Landlord prompt notice of any notice it receives of any
violation of any law or municipal requirement with respect to the Demised Premises or use and occupancy thereof.
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42.          In addition to any other obligation imposed upon Tenant by reason of any other provisions of this relating thereto, Tenant covenants and agrees that should it store
combustible or inflammable materials in the Demised premises, Tenant will, at its own cost and expense, obtain all licenses therefore as may be required by any governmental
authority, bureau, agency and/or department having jurisdiction thereover. Tenant will furthermore comply with all laws, directives and regulations of said governmental
authorities applicable to the storage of said combustible or inflammable materials.
 
43.          Tenant shall not cause or permit any Hazardous Material to be brought upon, kept, or used in or about the premises by Tenant, its agents, employees, contractors, or
invitees, except, as such hazardous materials are necessary for Tenant’s business. Any and all containers therefore, shall be used, kept, stored and disposed of in a manner that
complies with all federal, state, and local laws or regulations applicable to any such Hazardous Material.
 
44.          Tenant shall not discharge, leak, or emit, or permit to be discharged, leaked, or emitted, any material into the atmosphere, ground, sewer system, or any body of water, or
cause such material to pollute or contaminate the premises or adversely affect the health, welfare, or safety of persons, whether located on the premises or elsewhere; or the
condition, use or enjoyment of the building or any other real or personal property.
 

    (a)     As used herein, the term “Hazardous Material” means:
(i)         Any “hazardous waste” as defined by the Resource conservation and Recovery Act of 1976, as amended from time to time, and regulations promulgated

thereunder;
(ii)        Any “hazardous substance” as defined by the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, as amended from time to

time, and regulations promulgated thereunder;
(iii)       Any oil, petroleum products, and their by-products; and
(iv)       Any substance which is or becomes regulated by any federal, state, or local governmental authority.

 (b)   Tenant agrees that they shall be fully liable for all costs and expenses related to the use, storage, and disposal of Hazardous Material kept on the premises by the
Tenant, and the Tenant. (AND INDIVIDUAL IF CORPORATE TENANT) shall give immediate notice to the Landlord of any violation or potential violation of the provisions of
herein. Tenant shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Landlord and its Agents, from and against any claims, demands, penalties, fines, liabilities, settlements, damages, costs
or expenses, including, without limitation, attorneys and consultant fees, court costs and litigation expenses, of whatever kind or nature, known or unknown, contingent or
otherwise arising out of or in any way related to the following which is caused by Tenant but not its predecessors:
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(i)        The presence, disposal, release or threatened release of any such Hazardous Material which is on, from or affects soil, water, vegetation, buildings, personal
property, persons or otherwise;

(ii)       Any personal injury, including wrongful death, or property damage, real or personal, arising out of or related to such Hazardous Material;
(iii)      Any lawsuit brought or threatened, settlement reached, or governmental order relating to such Hazardous Material; or
(iv)     Any violation of any laws applicable thereto. The provisions of this paragraph shall be in addition to any other obligations and liabilities Tenant may have to

Landlord at law or equity and shall survive the transactions contemplated herein and shall survive the termination of this Lease.
 
45.          If the Landlord or any successor-in-interest shall be an individual, joint venture, tenants-in-common, firm or partnership, general or limited, there shall be no personal
liability of such individual or on the members of such joint ventures, tenants-in-common, firm or partnership in respect to any of the covenants or conditions of this Lease. The
Tenant shall look solely to the equity of the Landlord in the property for the satisfaction of the remedies of the event of a breach by the Landlord of any of the covenants or
conditions of this lease.
 
46.          In any case where the Landlord shall expend any reasonable sum of money in order to cure any default after 10 days notice to the Tenant under this lease, the Tenant shall
repay to the Landlord, as additional Rent, such monies expended by the Landlord. Together with interest thereof at the legal rate of interest, and same shall be due and payable with
said interest with the next installment of Base Rent coming due on the next rent date after such payment. Tenant hereby agrees that Landlord may use any security monies to pay
any expenses for curing such default by Tenant, whatever it may be.
 
47.          Tenant shall, at its own cost and expense, procure and maintain during the entire term of this agreement, and any extension thereof, public liability insurance from a
reputable company licensed to do business in the State of New York, which policy shall be in the sum of $1,000,000.00 as to a single person and $2,000,000.00 as to a single
occurrence and $500,000.00 property damage, and shall name both Landlord and Tenant as insured thereby. Said policy shall be evidenced by a duplicate original policy or
certificate deposited with the Landlord as of the date of the commencement of the term of this agreement. Upon failure on their own application thereof, the amount of the
premium, if paid by Landlord, shall be due and payable with the rent installment next due, and shall be considered as Additional Rent reserved hereunder. The foregoing coverages
may be included under a blanket policy covering other locations.
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48.          Landlord shall procure and maintain during the entire term of this lease, fire insurance with extended coverage, vandalism and malicious mischief coverage, rent
insurance and related coverage’s for the Landlord’s entire premises, of which the premised premises is a part, in an amount up to the full market of replacement value of Landlord’s
entire building and improvements, as determined solely by the Landlord, but in no event in an amount less than the amount required by any lender at any time holding a mortgage
upon such premises. Tenant shall pay, as and for additional rent hereunder, 100% of Landlord’s entire premium cost for such insurance covering Tenant’s occupied area. Landlord
shall render a bill to Tenant for such additional rent, and the same shall be due and payable by the Tenant to the Landlord the first day of the month following Landlord’s rendering
of such bill therefore, the same being collectible with the same remedies as if originally reserved as rent hereunder as “additional rent”. In the event the premiums for any insurance
obtained or maintained by Landlord shall be increased because of the nature of Tenant’s business, then Tenant shall, upon demand by Landlord, compensate Landlord for the
amount of such increase, as “additional rent”.
 
49.          It is hereby expressly covenanted and agreed by and between the parties hereto that the Tenant shall not be entitled to any abatement or rent or rental value or diminution
of rent in any action between the parties hereto or in any summary proceedings for the nonpayment of rent or in any other covenant contained in this lease on its part to be
performed and that in any action by the Landlord for rent or additional rent and in any summary proceedings for nonpayment or rent or in any other action or proceedings, the
Tenant shall not have the right or set-off, recoupment or counterclaim for any damages which the Tenant may have sustained by reason of the Landlord’s failure to perform any of
the terms, covenants and conditions contained in this lease on its part to be performed or for any other cause. The Tenant shall be relegated to an independent action for damages
and such independent action shall not at any time be brought or consolidated with any action or proceeding instituted by the Landlord. In addition to any such action or summary
proceeding brought by the Landlord for the collection of rent or for the nonpayment of rent, the Tenant does hereby waive and agree not to introduce any defense or counterclaim
which the Tenant now has or hereafter may have, except the defense of payment. The Tenant, however, shall have the right to litigate any such claim in some independent action
therefore, and such independent action shall at no time be joined or consolidated with any action or summary proceeding for nonpayment of rent. This provision shall not apply in
the event of total or partial destruction of the major portion of the leased premises.
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50.          If any month’s installment of Base Rent or Additional Rent is paid after the fifth (5th) day of the month, there shall be a late charge to be applied as further Additional
Rent as follows:
 

10% of the Base Monthly rent for each and every month that any portion of the Base Rent or Additional Rent remains unpaid.
 
51.          Tenant shall not be permitted to make any structural changes with the demises premises without the written approval of the Landlord herein and shall be fully responsible
and pay damages for any damages running from such changes. A breach of this clause shall be considered a material breach in the terms of this lease.
 
52.          The Landlord shall not, under any circumstances, be liable to pay for any work, labor or services rendered or materials furnished to or for the account of the Tenant upon
or in connection with the Demised Premises, and no mechanic’s lien or other lien for work, labor or services rendered or materials furnished to or for the account of the Tenant,
shall under any circumstances attach to or affect the reversionary or other estate or interest of the Landlord in and to the Demised premises or in and to any buildings,
alterations, repairs or improvements erected or made thereon. Any mechanic’s lien  filed against the Demised premises for work claimed to have been done for or materials claimed
to have been furnished to the Tenant shall be removed by the Tenant by bonding, discharge, or otherwise within twenty (20) days after written notice thereof by Landlord to
Tenant.
 
53.          The tenant shall, at its own cost and expanse, keep in good repair and maintain in safe condition and free from dirt, snow, ice, rubbish and other accumulations,
obstructions and encumbrances, the sidewalks, parking lot, and curbs in front of the Demised premises.
 
54.          In the event of a breach or threatened breach by the Tenant of any of the covenants or provisions hereof, the Landlord shall have the right of injunction and the right to
invoke any remedy allowed at law or in equity, as if re-entry, summary proceedings and other remedies were not herein provided for.
 
55.          Should there be any conflict between any provisions in the printed portion of this lease as compared to the typewritten (word processed) portion, then the terms, covenants
and conditions in the typewritten (word processed) portion shall be controlling hereunder.
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56.          Tenant agrees that it will not cause  or permit trucks or vehicles to be parked in front of the demised premises, other than for the specific deliveries or pickups, it being the
intention to beep the approach to the demises premises and other units within the Landlord’s entire  factory building for the free approach of trucks and vehicles for deliveries and
pickups to all tenants.
 
57.          All rent shall be paid to the Landlord on the first (1st) day or each and every month when due, without the Landlord making specific demand therefore, the same being
delivered or mailed to the Landlord’s address set forth herein or at any other place the Landlord may designate in writing. All notices under this lease agreement shall be personally
delivered or sent by certified or registered mail with return receipt requested or by overnight courier or by facsimile transmission and by ordinary mail to the aforesaid address of
the Landlord, and to the Tenant at the Demised Premises with copies to Demon DiSimone, Esq. At 157 Albany Avenue, Freeport, NY 11520 (Fax 516.868.1290) and Sandra M.
Gumerove, Esq. at 42 Marian Lane, Jericho, NY 11753 (Fax 516.822.3516).
 
58.          In addition to and in amplification of paragraph “twentieth” or this agreement, an attorney’s fee of One Thousand ($1,000.00) Dollars for each action or proceeding plus
out-of-pocket costs and disbursements shall  be deemed reasonable in amount, and said expenses may be anticipated and incorporated in such action of proceeding as if the same
were then due and payable as additional rent.
 
59.          Each party agrees, at any time and from time to time, as requested by the other party, upon not less than ten (10) days prior notice, to execute and deliver to the other a
statement certifying that this lease is unmodified and in full force and effect (or if there have been modifications, that the same is in full force and effect as modified and stating the
modifications), certifying the dates to which the base net rent and additional rent have been paid and stating whether or not, to the knowledge of the signer, the other party is in
default in performance of any of its obligations under this Lease, and if so, specifying each such default of which signer may have knowledge, it being intended that any such
statement delivered pursuant hereto may be relied upon by the other with whom the party requesting such certificate may be dealing.
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60.          Tenant has deposited the sum of $18,000 with the Landlord as security for the faithful performance of all covenants and conditions of the lease by said Tenant. If Tenant
defaults in the obligation to Tenant to pay Base Rent or Additional Rent (additional rent for the purposes of this provision limited to Taxes and any insurance premiums required to
be paid by Tenant hereunder), Landlord may use, apply or retain the whole or any part of the security so deposited to the extent required for the payment of any Base Rent or
Additional Rent as to which Tenant is in default before or after summary proceedings or other re-Entry by Landlord. If all or any portion of the security deposit is so used or
applied by Landlord, Tenant shall deliver to Landlord an amount equal to such sum, so that at all times the security deposit shall be $12,000. If Tenant shall fully and faithfully
observe and perform all the terms, covenanted and conditions of this lease, the security shall be returned to Tenant after the end of the terms of this lease and the delivery or
possession of the Premises to Landlord. Landlord shall have the right to transfer the security to any vendee or transferee of the Premises, and upon delivery to Tenant of a writing
indicating such transfer, and the transferee’s agreement to assume Landlord’s obligation under this lease, Landlord shall be deemed released by Tenant from all liability for the
return of such security and Tenant agrees to look to such new owner or Landlord for return of said security.
 
61.           Tenant agrees to pay for all costs associated with utilities including, but not limited to, gas, water, electric, etc. as may be consumed for the use of Tenant. In addition,
Tenant will be responsible for all costs associated with maintenance of the fire alarm/sprinkler system as may be required for the term of this lease.
 
62.           Should Landlord receive a reduction in taxes as a result of a tax grievance grant for any taxes accruing during the term of this lease, Landlord shall forward such tax
savings to Tenant on a proportionate share basis as set forth in paragraph 40 above, less Tenant’s proportionate share of attorney’s fees and other costs associated with processing
the tax grievance case.
 
63.           Tenant may sublease the premises or any portion thereof to any businesses owned by or affiliated with Tenant, provided Landlord is notified of such sublease and all
insurance requirements are met by Sublessor.
 
 LANDLORD,  
     

  BY: /s/ Fred Scalamandre
/s/ Joseph Scalamandre  

   FRED & JOSEPH SCALAMANDRE  
   REAL ESTATE  

 
 TENANT,  
     

  
BY:

 

   ISLANDER IMPORTS & PACKAGING,
   INC.  
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Exhibit 10.12
 

EXCLUSIVE MANUFACTURING AGREEMENT

This EXCLUSIVE MANUFACTURING AGREEMENT (this "Agreement") is made as of this 18th day of August 2007("Effective Date"), by and between Harbrew
Imports Limited, a Florida corporation, having offices at 102 Buffalo Ave. Freeport, NY 11520 ("Harbrew"), Fagema Sorrento Delizie Di De Luca Antonino and Scala Antonino
an Italian corporation having its principal offices at Via Campangnano 2, 80067-Sorrento- (NA) Italia. ("Sorrento" or "Manufacturer").

Recitals:

A.           Harbrew is in the business of importing and wholesaling Spirits, Wine and Beer;

B.           Sorrento is in the business of the production and manufacturing of over twenty types of liquors, baboa and chocolates;

C.           Harbrew owns and/or possesses the right to produce and sell a limoncello product bearing the Trademark and Tradename, Danny DeVito 's Premium
Limoncello ("the Product").

D.           In connection with the development and sale of the Product, Harbrew wishes to import and sell the Product from Sorrento, and to have Sorrento be the
exclusive manufacturer of the Product for Harbrew, and Sorrento wishes to exclusively supply Harbrew with the Product pursuant to the terms set forth below;

Agreement:

In consideration of the premises and in further consideration of the mutual promises and undertakings herein contained, and other good and valuable consideration, the
receipt and adequacy of which hereby are acknowledged, the parties hereto hereby agree as follows:

1 .        Appointment of Manufacturer. During the term of this Agreement, Sorrento shall manufacture the Product pursuant to specifications set forth in Section
2 below (the "Specifications") and use its commercially reasonable efforts to meet all of Harbrew's United States supply requirements for the Product, as well as all International
markets at Harbrew's direction.

2.        Packaging/Labeling Specifications.
 
 a. Sorrento shall manufacture the Product with the recipe provided for bottles of 750 ML each.

 b. Each bottle of the Product shall bear the Tradename and the brand name Danny Devito's Premium Limoncello™, or such other brand name and logo that
Harbrew chooses to use in connection with the Product (the "Brandname").

                
                3.        Trade-dress (Package Design).

 a. Harbrew shall design the package utilizing a package design, layout and colors so that customers will identify the product as a "Harbrew" product.
 
 

 



 
 
 b. At the end of this Agreement, neither Sorrento nor any of its licensees will utilize a package design and/or colors similar to the Harbrew design.

4.        Delivery and Initial Order. Upon receipt of a purchase order from Harbrew, Sorrento shall ship the requested Product to the location and in the manner set forth
in such purchase order. The initial order shall be 500,000 finished pieces (each being a 750 ML bottle) divided into (2) orders of 250,000 each. The costs of shipping, including
freight, insurance and other shipping expenses, as well as any special packing requests, shall be borne solely by Harbrew, and Harbrew shall provide Sorrento with appropriate
courier charge numbers so that Harbrew can be billed directly for such shipping costs and/or promptly reimburse Sorrento for all shipping costs incurred by Sorrento on Harbrew'
behalf upon the presentation by Sorrento to Harbrew of appropriate shipping receipts and documentation. Title and risk of loss shall pass to Harbrew at the time Sorrento delivers
the Product, or makes available the Product for pick-up, to the courier designated by Harbrew. The total contract over the contract period will be for 10,000,000 bottles (Ten
million bottles)

5 .        Fees. For each bottle of the Product purchased by Harbrew, Harbrew shall pay Sorrento its Manufacturing Cost (as defined below), which costs are set forth in
Exhibit A hereto. Such payment will be due and payable by Harbrew within thirty (30) days of delivery of an invoice from Sorrento. Price is between $61.00 and $63.00 per
case of 12 750ml bottles.

6.        Representations and Warranties of the Parties.   Each party represents to the other that:

 a. it has the power, right and authority to enter into this agreement;

 b. that this Agreement has been duly authorized by all requisite corporate and partnership actions; and

 c. that it shall comply with all applicable laws, rules and regulations in performing its obligations under this Agreement.

7.        Manufacturers Assurances. Sorrento represents, warrants-and/or agrees to each of the following:

 a. Sorrento warrants that it possesses the expertise, facilities and ability to professionally and successfully manufacture the Product;

 b. Sorrento shall manufacture and maintain sufficient stocks of the Products to satisfy the orders submitted by Harbrew. The Products shall be handled and
stored in accordance with instructions provided by Harbrew.
 

 
 c. Sorrento acknowledges and agrees that this Agreement shall in no way be construed to provide to Sorrento any express or implied right or license to make

or authorize any use, direct or indirect, of the Product or any variation thereof, for any purpose other than as specifically contemplated by this Agreement
or to manufacture the Product, except as set forth herein.
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 d. Sorrento hereby acknowledges and agrees that the Product and all of its related Intellectual Property embodies and constitutes valuable intellectual

property rights of Harbrew, including, but not limited to, trademark rights and trade secrets, and that Harbrew now holds and shall retain all right, title, and
interest in and to the Intellectual Property. Upon termination of this Agreement, Sorrento shall retain no rights of any nature with respect to the any of the
Intellectual Property, shall immediately cease using the Tradename and Brandname and the use of the Tradename and Brandname shall remain with
Harbrew. Sorrento agrees never to contest the rights of Harbrew in and to the Intellectual Property. Sorrento shall not at any time apply for the registration
of any patent, trademark copyright or other designation that would affect the ownership of or rights of Harbrew in and to the Intellectual Property, nor shall
it file any document with any governmental authority to take any action that would adversely affect the ownership of or rights of Harbrew in and to the
Intellectual Property, or assist anyone else in doing so.

 e. Sorrento and Harbrew shall cooperate to ensure that third parties may not unlawfully infringe on or imitate the Intellectual Property or engage in any acts
of unfair competition involving the Intellectual Property. Sorrento shall promptly notify Harbrew of any such infringements, imitations, or acts by third
parties that come to its attention. Harbrew shall have the exclusive right, exercisable at its discretion and at its expense, to institute in its own name and/or
Sorrento' name and to control all actions against third parties relating to the Intellectual Property. With respect to any such actions, Harbrew shall employ
counsel of its own choice to direct the handling of the litigation and any settlement thereof. Harbrew shall be entitled to receive and retain all amounts
awarded, if any, as damages, profits, or otherwise in connection with such suits. Sorrento shall not, without Harbrew's prior written consent, institute any
suit or take any action on account of such infringements, imitations, or acts. Harbrew shall incur no liability to Sorrento by reason of Harbrew's failure or
refusal to prosecute, or by Harbrew's refusal to permit Sorrento to prosecute, any alleged such infringements, imitations, or acts by third parties, nor by
reason of any settlement to which Harbrew may agree.

 f. Sorrento shall not use the Trademark or any other trademark or service mark owned by Harbrew, or the Intellectual Property, other than as expressly
permitted under this Agreement. Sorrento agrees that in utilizing the Trademark in its manufacturing of the Product, it will in no way represent that it has
any right, title, or interest in or to the Intellectual Property other than those expressly granted under the terms of this Agreement.

 g. In connection with the sale of the Product and all other products in connection with which Sorrento utilizes the Trademark, Sorrento shall include all such
notices of Harbrew's proprietary right, title, and interest in and to the Intellectual Property as Harbrew shall reasonably require.

 h. At any time and from time to time at the request of Harbrew, Sorrento shall execute and deliver to Harbrew or other parties designated by Harbrew, at no
cost or expense to Sorrento, any new, additional, or confirmatory instruments and any other documents and perform all acts that may be necessary or
desirable to protect or confirm Harbrew's right, title, and interest in and to the Intellectual Property.
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8.        Recall.

 a. In the event Harbrew shall be required or shall voluntarily decide to recall any Product distributed by Sorrento pursuant to this Agreement, then Sorrento
shall fully cooperate with Harbrew in connection with the recall. If such recall is initiated because of the negligence or failure of Sorrento to comply with
the terms of this Agreement, then Sorrento will credit Harbrew for the price invoiced by Sorrento for all Product returned and, in addition, Sorrento will
reimburse Harbrew for all reasonable recall expenses in connection therewith. If such recall is initiated because of the negligence or failure of Harbrew to
comply with the terms of this Agreement, then Harbrew will reimburse Sorrento for all reasonable recall expenses in connection therewith.

 b. Sorrento agrees to abide by all decisions of Harbrew to recall Product and both Parties shall fully cooperate with each other in the event of any recall of
Product under this Agreement.

9.        Product Warranties and Indemnification.

 a. Sorrento warrants that the Products shall meet the ingredient specifications contained on the label and conform to Harbrew's specifications for the Products
when it leaves Sorrento's control. Sorrento makes no other warranties, either express or implied, including warranties of merchantability or of fitness for a
particular use.

 b. Sorrento shall defend and indemnify Harbrew against all expenses, claims, demands, liabilities or money judgments, including recall, incurred by Harbrew
arising from the negligence or fault of Sorrento or from Sorrento's failure to comply with the terms of this Agreement, except to the extent that said
expenses, claims, demands, liability or money judgments are caused by the negligence or fault on the part of Harbrew or Harbrew's failure to comply with
the terms of this Agreement.

 c. Sorrento shall defend and indemnify Harbrew against all expenses, claims, demands, liabilities or money judgments, including recall, incurred by Harbrew
arising from the negligence or fault of Sorrento or from Sorrento's failure to comply with the terms of this Agreement, except to the extent that said
expenses, claims, demands, liability or money judgments are caused by the negligence or fault on the part of Harbrew or Harbrew's failure to comply with
the terms of this Agreement.

1 0 .      Insurance. Each party shall maintain product liability insurance on the Product of at least $1,000,000.00 and shall have the other party listed as an additional
insured on such policies.
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11.      Term.  The term of this Agreement shall be___ 5_ years effective from the date set forth above, and it shall automatically renew thereafter for additional,

consecutive Five-year terms, unless either party gives the other party written notice that it does not want to renew the Agreement at least ninety (90) days prior to the end of the
then current term
 

12.      Termination.  Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, this Agreement may be terminated:

 a. by the non-breaching party immediately if the other party shall fail to perform any obligation under this Agreement and such failure is incapable of
remedy;

 b. by the non-breaching party after thirty (30) days notice and opportunity to cure if the other party shall fail to perform any obligation under this Agreement,
such failure is capable of remedy, and such failure continues unremedied after the expiration of such thirty (30) day period, provided that if Harbrew is in
breach of any term of this Agreement, Sorrento shall be entitled to suspend the supply of the Product to Harbrew until Harbrew cures the breach;

 c. by a party immediately if the other party shall file any voluntary petition or similar proceeding under any bankruptcy act, institute any voluntary
proceeding in any court to declare itself insolvent or unable to meet debts, make an assignment for the benefit of creditors, or consent to the appointment of
a receiver for any of its property;

 d. by a party if the other party shall have filed against it any involuntary petition or similar proceeding under any bankruptcy act, have instituted against it any
involuntary proceeding in any court to declare it insolvent or unable to meet debts, have all or substantially all of its property levied upon or attached by
process of law, or have a receiver appointed for any of its property, and the same is not dismissed, vacated, set aside, or released within sixty (60) days
thereafter; or

 e. by Sorrento should Harbrew (i) make any false misrepresentations regarding the Product, or (ii) conduct its business in an immoral or unprofessional
manner which could result in liability to Sorrento.

                13.      Effect of Termination, Termination by either party shall not prejudice any remedy that either party may have, at law, in equity, or under this Agreement. If this
Agreement is terminated for any reason, all amounts owed to Sorrento shall immediately come due and payable and shall thereafter accrue interest at the Default Rate until repaid
in full.

14.      Exclusivity; Non-Competition.

 a. During the term hereof, Sorrento shall not manufacture or sell the Product to anyone other than Harbrew, and Harbrew shall not purchase the Product or
related product from anyone other than Sorrento.
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 b. Sorrento hereby covenants and agrees that during the term of this Agreement and for a period of one year following the end of this Agreement, Sorrento
will not, without the prior written consent of Harbrew, directly or indirectly, on its own behalf or in the service or on behalf of others, whether or not for
compensation, engage in any business activity, or have any interest in any person, firm, corporation or business, through a subsidiary or parent entity or
other entity (whether as a shareholder, agent, joint venturer, security holder, trustee, partner, consultant, creditor lending credit or money for the purpose
of establishing or operating any such business, partner or otherwise) with any Competing Business in the Covered Area. For the purpose of this Section
14: (i) "Competing Business" means the manufacture or sale by or for itself or any other company or entity (whether or not organized for profit) that has,
or is seeking to develop, one or more premium, band-name limoncello products and (ii) "Covered Area" means all geographical areas of the United
States and other foreign jurisdictions where Company then has offices and/or sells its products directly or indirectly through distributors and/or other
sales agents. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Sorrento may own shares of companies whose securities are publicly trades, so long as such securities do
not constitute more than one percent (1%) of the outstanding securities of any such company.

 c. Non-Solicitation. Sorrento further agrees that as long as the Agreement remains in effect and for a period of one (1) year from its termination, Sorrento will
not divert any business of Harbrew and/or its affiliates or any customers or suppliers of Harbrew and/or Harbrew's and/or its affiliates' business to any
other person, entity or competitor, or induce or attempt to induce, directly or indirectly, any person to leave his or her employment with Harbrew.

 d. Remedies. Sorrento acknowledges and agrees that its obligations provided herein are necessary and reasonable in order to protect Harbrew and its affiliates
and their respective business and Sorrento expressly agrees that monetary damages would be inadequate to compensate the Company and/or its affiliates
for any breach by Sorrento of its covenants and agreements set forth herein. Accordingly, Sorrento agrees and acknowledges that any such violation or
threatened violation of this Section 14 will cause irreparable injury to Harbrew and that, in addition to any other remedies that may be available, in law, in
equity or otherwise, Harbrew and its affiliates shall be entitled to obtain injunctive relief against he threatened breach of this Section 14 or the continuation
of any such breach by Sorrento without the necessity of proving actual damages.

15.      Communication.

 a. Upon the execution of this Agreement, Harbrew shall provide Sorrento with a non-binding forecast of the supply of the Product that Harbrew anticipates
that it will require for the rest of that calendar quarter. Thereafter, ten (10) days before the end of each subsequent quarter, Harbrew shall provide
Sorrento with a non-binding forecast of the supply of the Product that Harbrew anticipates that it will require in the next calendar quarter.
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 b. Harbrew shall make all of its orders with Purchase Orders in a form acceptable to Sorrento.

 c. Further, the parties agree to use and/or develop mutually acceptable electronic means to expedite communications between the parties wherever reasonably
possible.

16.      Indemnification/Limitation on Liability.

 a. Sorrento shall indemnify, defend and hold Harbrew and its parents, subsidiaries, affiliates, officers, directors, employees, agents, and representatives (the
"Harbrew Indemnified Parties") harmless from and against any and all claims, liabilities, demands, actions, causes of action, judgments, settlements, and
expenses (including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys' fees, costs, and expenses) ("Damages") arising out of or in connection with any (i) third-party
claims based upon infringement of any United States patent, copyright, or other proprietary right by the Intellectual Property, excepting any Damages
resulting from the intentionally wrongful or negligent acts of the Harbrew Indemnified Parties or (ii) third-party product-liability claim in which the death,
personal injury, illness, property damage or other loss is conclusively determined to have resulted from the proper use of the Product manufactured by
Sorrento and dispensed by a licensed veterinarian.

 b. Harbrew shall indemnify, defend and hold Sorrento and its parents, subsidiaries, affiliates, officers, directors, employees, agents, and representatives (the
"Sorrento Indemnified Parties") harmless from and against any and all claims, liabilities, demands, actions, causes of action, judgments, settlements, and
expenses (including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys' fees, costs, and expenses) ("Damages") arising out of or in connection with Harbrew' breach
of any representation, warranty, covenant, or agreement made by Harbrew under or in connection with this Agreement or the failure of Harbrew to perform
any of its covenants or agreements contained in this Agreement.

 c. Upon obtaining knowledge thereof, the party to be indemnified (the "Indemnified Party") shall promptly notify the party which is required to provide
indemnification (the "Indemnifying Party") in writing of any damage, claim, loss, liability or expense which the Indemnified Party has determined has
given rise or could give rise to a claim under this Section 16 (such written notice being hereinafter referred to as a "Notice of Claim"). A Notice of Claim
shall contain a brief description of the nature and estimated amount of any such claim giving rise to a right of indemnification. With respect to any claim or
demand set forth in a Notice of Claim relating to a third-party claim, the Indemnifying Party shall have the power and right to defend, direct the defense,
compromise and settle, in good faith and at its expense, any such claim or demand, and the Indemnified Party, at its sole expense, shall have the right to
participate and shall cooperate in the defense of any such third-party claim. So long as the Indemnifying Party is defending in good faith any such third
party claim, the Indemnified Party shall not settle or compromise such third party claim.
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 d. In no event shall either party be liable to the other or to any third party for any special, indirect, incidental, consequential, or punitive damages arising

out of or in connection with this Agreement, the Product or the Intellectual Property, whether based on breach of contract, breach of warranty, tort
(including negligence), or otherwise.

 e. Except as otherwise provided herein, if the Product is found to be defective, Harbrew' sole remedy shall be the return and replacement of such Product, and
the parties agree that under no circumstances shall Sorrento be liable for consequential, incidental, indirect, special, punitive or exemplary damages for
loss of revenue, loss of business, loss of anticipated savings, or any other loss or damage arising for any reason whatsoever, and that its liability shall not
exceed the price of the Product purchased under this Agreement.

 
                17.      Compliance With Laws. Both parties agree to comply with all laws and regulations and other requirements governing the performance of their activities under
an agreement such as this.
 
                18.      Publicity. Except as required by law, neither Party shall make any public announcement in connection with the subject matter of this Agreement without the
prior approval of the other Party.
 
                19.      Confidentiality. Each party agrees to hold in strict confidence, and not to disclose to any other person or to use in any manner, either before or after termination
of this Agreement, any technical or business information, manufacturing technique, process, experimental work, trade secret, patent, or other confidential matter belonging to
other party, including the Intellectual Property ("Confidential Property"), except as specifically permitted pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, and shall take all reasonable
measures to maintain the confidentiality of such Confidential Information, which will in no event be less than the measures it uses to maintain the confidentiality of its own
information of similar importance. Confidential Information shall include the terms of this Agreement.
 
                 20.     Recitals. The parties agree that the recitals to this Agreement are true and accurate and hereby incorporate them into this Agreement.
 
                 21.     Force Majeure. For the period and to the extent that a party hereto is disabled from fulfilling in whole or in part its obligations hereunder, where such disability
arises by reason of an event of force majeure (including, but not limited to, any law or government regulation, or any act of God, flood, war, terrorism, revolution, civil
commotion, political disturbance, fire, explosion, or any other cause whatsoever over which such party has no control), such party shall be released from its obligations
hereunder until the cessation of such disability. Notice of any such disability and cessation thereof shall forthwith be given by the party claiming the benefits thereof to the other.
The provisions of this Article shall not be applicable to any obligation involving the payment of money.
          
                 22.     Assignment. Neither this Agreement, nor any of the rights or interests of Sorrento or Harbrew hereunder, may be assigned, transferred or conveyed by operation
of law or otherwise without the prior written consent of the other party; provided, however, that Harbrew may assign its rights and interest under this Agreement to any acquirer
of Harbrew in any transaction that constitutes a Change of Control for Harbrew. A Change of Control shall mean the sale of substantially all of the assets of Harbrew, the sale of
substantially all of the stock of Harbrew or the merger or consolidation of Harbrew with a third party in which Harbrew is not the surviving entity.
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23.      Relationship Of The Parties. The relationship established between Harbrew and Sorrento by this Agreement is that of a vendor to its vendee. Sorrento is not an

agent of Harbrew and has no authority to bind Harbrew, transact any business in Harbrew's name or on its behalf in any manner, or make any promises or representations on
behalf of Harbrew. Sorrento agrees to represent itself only as an independent business who is an "authorized Harbrew Manufacturer." The employees and agents of Sorrento are
NOT for any purpose the employee or agents of Harbrew.

24.      Successors and Assigns. Subject to Section 22 above, this Agreement shall be binding upon, and shall inure to the benefit of, each of the parties hereto and their
respective permitted successors and assigns.

25.      Survival of Rights of Parties. The termination of this Agreement shall not release either party from any liability, obligation, or agreement which, pursuant to any
provision of this Agreement, is to survive or be performed after such expiration or termination.

2 6 .      Notices. All notices or other communications pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed valid and sufficient if delivered by personal
service or overnight courier or dispatched by registered mail, postage prepaid, in any post office, or if dispatched by telefax, promptly confirmed by letter dispatched as above
provided, to the parties at the addresses as set forth above. A party hereto may change its address by notice to the other in the manner set forth above. Notices and other
communications rendered as herein provided shall be deemed to have been given on the day on which personally served or sent by telefax or, if sent by overnight courier, on the
second (2nd) day after being posted, or if sent by registered mail, on the fifth (5th) day after being posted, or in either case the date of actual receipt, whichever date is the earlier.

27.      Partial Invalidity. If any term, covenant or provision contained herein shall be invalid or illegal, such invalidity or illegality shall not impair, invalidate or nullify
the other provisions of this Agreement.

28.      Jurisdiction/Choice of Law. This Agreement shall be governed by, interpreted and construed, and all claims and disputes, whether in tort, contract or otherwise
be resolved in accordance with the substantive laws of the State of New York, United States of America, without reference to any rules of conflict of laws. In the event of any
controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this Agreement, performance hereunder, termination hereof, or relationship created hereby, each Party irrevocably submits to the
exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of the Supreme Court of the State of New York and the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of New York for the purposes of any suit,
action or other proceeding arising out of this Agreement or transactions contemplated hereby. Each Party irrevocably and unconditionally waives any objection to the laying of
venue in the courts of New York as stated above and that any such action was brought in an inconvenient forum. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event of a threatened
disclosure in violation of this Agreement, Harbrew shall have the right to seek injunctive relief from any competent court in the jurisdiction where the disclosure is threatened to
prevent such disclosure pending resolution of the merits of the dispute.
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2 9 .      Subject Headings. The subject headings on this Agreement have been placed thereon for the convenience of the parties and shall not be considered in any

question of interpretation or construction of this Agreement.

30.      Complete Agreement, Waivers, And Amendments . This Agreement, in combination with the Secrecy Agreement previously signed by the parties and the
purchase orders and invoices issued pursuant hereto, constitutes the entire agreement between the parties relative to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes and replaces all
prior or contemporaneous agreements, written or oral, between the parties regarding such subject matter. The failure of either party to enforce at any time or for any period of
time any provision of this Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver of such provision or of the right of such party thereafter to enforce such provision. In addition, no terms
or provisions of this Agreement may be changed, waived, discharged, or terminated orally but only by an instrument in writing signed by the party against whom the
enforcement of such change, waiver, discharge, or termination is sought. Harbrew and Sorrento agree to renegotiate in good faith any provision of, or addition to, this Agreement.

31.      Further Assurances. From and after the date hereof the parties agree to take or cause to be taken such further action and executed, deliver and file such further
documents and instruments as the other party may reasonably request from time to time to effectuate the intent and purposes of this Agreement.

32 .      Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which when executed and delivered shall be deemed to be an original
and all of which counterparts when taken together shall constitute but one and the same instrument.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Agreement the day and year first above written.
 
 
 Fagema Sorrento Delizie Di De Luca Antonino  
     
     
 By: /s/ Tonino Scala  
   Name: Tonino Scala  
   Title: Administrator  
     
     
 By:  /s/ Tonino DeLuca  
   Name: Tonino DeLuca  
   Title: Director Production  
     
     
 Harbrew Imports Ltd.  
     
 By: /s/ Richard DeCicco  
   Name: Richard DeCicco  
   Title: President  
 
 

11



 
 

EXHIBIT A

Price per 9 liter case $61.00 - $63.00 USD per case FOB Port of Napoli or a port mutually agreed upon by Fagema and Harbrew at time of shipping.
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EXHIBIT 31

CERTIFICATION OF
PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE AND FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO

SECTION 302(a) OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Richard DeCicco, certify that:

1. I have reviewed the Amended Annual Report on Form 10-KA of Iconic Brands, Inc.(the “registrant”) for the year  ended December 31, 2009;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s), and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant
and have:

 a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

 b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

 c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

 d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s), and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

 a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

 b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

 
Date: January 14, 2011  By: /s/ Richard DeCicco

Name: Richard DeCicco
  Title: President, Chief Executive Officer and Director (Principal Executive, Financial

and Accounting Officer)
 
 



 
Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Richard DeCicco, the President, Chief Executive Officer, and Director of Iconic Brands, Inc. (the “Registrant”), certifies, under the standards set forth and solely for the purposes
of 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to his knowledge, the Amended Annual Report on Form 10-KA of the Registrant
for the year ended December 31, 2009 fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and information contained in that
Form 10-KA fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Registrant.

 
Date: January 14, 2011  By: /s/ Richard DeCicco

Name: Richard DeCicco
  Title: President, Chief Executive Officer and Director (Principal Executive, Financial

and Accounting Officer)

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to the Securities and
Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.
 
 


